

Global status report on alcohol and health 2014





Global status report on alcohol and health 2014



WHO Library Cataloguing-in-Publication Data

Global status report on alcohol and health - 2014 ed.

1.Alcoholism - epidemiology. 2.Alcohol drinking - adverse effects. 3.Social control, Formal - methods. 4.Cost of illness. 5.Public policy. I.World Health Organization.

ISBN 978 92 4 156475 5 (Print) ISBN 978 92 4 069276 3 (PDF) (NLM classification: WM 274)

© World Health Organization 2014

All rights reserved. Publications of the World Health Organization are available on the WHO website (www.who.int) or can be purchased from WHO Press, World Health Organization, 20 Avenue Appia, 1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland (tel.: +41 22 791 3264; fax: +41 22 791 4857; e-mail: bookorders@who.int).

Requests for permission to reproduce or translate WHO publications —whether for sale or for non-commercial distribution— should be addressed to WHO Press through the WHO website (www.who.int/about/licensing/copyright_form/en/index.html).

The designations employed and the presentation of the material in this publication do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the World Health Organization concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries. Dotted lines on maps represent approximate border lines for which there may not yet be full agreement.

The mention of specific companies or of certain manufacturers' products does not imply that they are endorsed or recommended by the World Health Organization in preference to others of a similar nature that are not mentioned. Errors and omissions excepted, the names of proprietary products are distinguished by initial capital letters.

All reasonable precautions have been taken by the World Health Organization to verify the information contained in this publication. However, the published material is being distributed without warranty of any kind, either expressed or implied. The responsibility for the interpretation and use of the material lies with the reader. In no event shall the World Health Organization be liable for damages arising from its use.

Design and layout: L'IV Com Sàrl, Villars-sous-Yens, Switzerland.

Printed in Luxembourg.

CONTENTS

Foreword					
Acknowledgements					
Abbreviations					
Executive summary xiii					
1	Alcohol	and public health	1		
1.1	Alcoho	ol consumption in its historical context	3		
1.2		ays of alcohol-related harm			
	1.2.1	Volume of alcohol consumed	4		
	1.2.2	Pattern of drinking.	4		
	1.2.3	Quality of alcohol consumed	5		
1.3	Mecha	nisms of harm in an individual	5		
1.4	Absten	ntion	7		
1.5	Factors	s affecting alcohol consumption and alcohol-related harm	7		
	1.5.1	Age			
	1.5.2	Gender			
	1.5.3	Familial risk factors	9		
	1.5.4	Socioeconomic status.	9		
	1.5.5	Economic development 1	0		
	1.5.6	Culture and context	11		
	1.5.7		11		
1.6	Alcoho	ol-related harms.	11		
	1.6.1	Health consequences for drinkers	11		
	1.6.2	Socioeconomic consequences for drinkers	13		
	1.6.3	Harms to other individuals 1	4		
	1.6.4		16		
1.7	Action		18		
	1.7.1	Evidence of effectiveness 1	19		
	1.7.2	Global action	20		
	1.7.3	Regional action	24		
	1.7.4	National policies	24		
1.8	Monito	pring	25		
2	Alcohol	consumption.	27		
2.1	Levels	of consumption	28		
	2.1.1	Total per capita consumption	29		
	2.1.2	Unrecorded alcohol consumption	30		
	2.1.3	Most consumed alcoholic beverages.	31		
2.2 Patterns of drinking					
	2.2.1	Abstention rates	32		
	2.2.2	Heavy episodic drinking	34		
	2.2.3	Patterns of drinking score.	35		
	2.2.4	Factors impacting on alcohol consumption	36		

2.3	Trends and projections2.3.1Five-year change in alcohol consumption2.3.2Projections up to 2025	41		
2		45		
	ealth consequences			
3.1	Aggregate health effects 3.1.1 Alcohol-attributable mortality			
3.2	3.1.3 Factors impacting on health consequences.			
3.2		57		
4	Icohol policy and interventions	59		
4.1	Leadership, awareness and commitment.	60		
	4.1.1 Written national alcohol policies	62		
	4.1.2 Nationwide awareness-raising activities			
4.2	Health services' response	63		
4.3	Community action	65		
4.4	Drink–driving countermeasures	67		
	4.4.1 BAC limits	67		
	4.4.2 Methods used to ascertain driver BACs	69		
4.5	Regulating availability of alcohol.	70		
	4.5.1 National control of production and sale of alcohol			
	4.5.2 Restrictions on on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages	72		
	4.5.3 National minimum purchase or consumption age	74		
	4.5.4 Restrictions on drinking in public	74		
	4.5.5 Restrictions on purchase of alcohol at petrol stations	75		
4.6	Marketing restrictions			
	4.6.1 Regulations on alcohol advertising			
	4.6.2 Regulation on alcohol product placement			
	4.6.3 Regulation on alcohol sales promotions.			
	4.6.4 Methods of detecting marketing infringements			
4.7	Pricing			
	4.7.1 Excise tax			
4.8	Reducing negative consequences of drinking			
	4.8.1 Responsible beverage services training.			
	4.8.2 Labels on alcohol containers			
4.9	Addressing illicit and informal production			
	4.9.1 Inclusion of informal or illicit production in national alcohol policies			
	4.9.2 Methods used to track illicit or informal alcohol			
4.10	Monitoring and surveillance			
	4.10.1 National surveys on alcohol consumption			
	4.10.2 Legal definition of an alcoholic beverage			
	4.10.3 National monitoring systems			
4.11	Trends	85		
Cou	try profiles	87		
Appendix I – Alcohol consumption 289				
Appendix II – Health consequences				
Appendix III – Indicators related to alcohol policy and interventions				
Appendix IV – Data sources and methods				
References				

FOREWORD

am pleased to present the World Health Organization's Global status report on alcohol and health 2014. WHO has published several reports in the past on this topic with the last one being published in 2011, but this report of 2014 has some unique features. First, it describes some progress made in alcohol policy development in WHO Member States after endorsement of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol in 2010. Second, this report provides a wealth of information on alcohol-related indicators for the comprehensive global monitoring framework for the prevention and control of non-communicable diseases (NCDs) adopted by the 66th World Health Assembly. The global monitoring framework was developed to fulfil the mandate given by the Political Declaration of the High-level Meeting of the General Assembly on the Prevention and Control of Non-communicable Diseases (NCDs) and includes the voluntary target of a 10% relative reduction in harmful use of alcohol by 2025 measured against a 2010 baseline. Thirdly, this report presents an overview of some of the mechanisms and pathways which underlie the impact of the harmful use of alcohol on public health.

The report highlights some progress achieved in WHO Member States in the development and implementation of alcohol policies according to the ten areas of action at the national level recommended by the Global strategy. This progress is uneven and there is no room for complacency given the enormous public health burden attributable to alcohol consumption. Globally, harmful use of alcohol causes approximately 3.3 million deaths every year (or 5.9% of all deaths), and 5.1% of the global burden of disease is attributable to alcohol consumption. We now have an extended knowledge of the causal relationship between alcohol consumption and more than 200 health conditions, including the new data on causal relationships between the harmful use of alcohol and the incidence and clinical outcomes of infectious diseases such as tuberculosis, HIV/AIDS and pneumonia. Considering that beyond health consequences, the harmful use of alcohol inflicts significant social and economic losses on individuals and society at large, the harmful use of alcohol continues to be a factor that has to be addressed to ensure sustained social and economic development throughout the world. In the light of a growing population worldwide and the predicted increase in alcohol consumption in the world, the alcoholattributable disease burden as well as the social and economic burden may increase further unless effective prevention policies and measures based on the best available evidence are implemented worldwide. And, importantly, we know that in countries with lower economic wealth the morbidity and mortality risks are higher per litre of pure alcohol consumed than in the higher income countries.

Following the endorsement of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol WHO has strengthened its actions and activities to prevent and reduce alcohol-related harm at all levels. Several regions have developed and adopted regional strategies focusing on the target areas recommended in the global strategy. At the global level the WHO Secretariat has facilitated establishment of a global network of WHO national counterparts as well as a coordinating council to ensure effective collaboration with and between Member States. At the same time all the efforts and resources available at all levels are clearly not adequate to confront the enormous public health burden caused by the harmful use of alcohol, and further progress is needed at all levels and by all relevant actors to

achieve the objectives of the Global alcohol strategy and the voluntary global target of at least a 10% relative reduction in the harmful use of alcohol by 2025. WHO is prepared and committed to continue to monitor, report and disseminate the best available knowledge on alcohol consumption, alcohol-related harm and policy responses at all levels, which is key to monitoring progress in implementing the Global strategy and regional action plans. Accurate and up-to-date information is vital for alcohol policy development, and I hope that you will find this report, which is largely based on the information submitted from Member States, useful in contributing to the public health objectives articulated in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol.

Oleg Chestnov Assistant Director-General Noncommunicable Diseases and Mental Health

ACKNOW/LEDGEMENTS

he report was produced by the Management of Substance Abuse Unit (MSB) in the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse (MSD) of the World Health Organization (WHO), Geneva, Switzerland. The report was developed within the framework of WHO activities on global monitoring of alcohol consumption, alcohol-related harm and policy responses, and is linked to WHO's work on the Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

Executive editors: Vladimir Poznyak and Dag Rekve.

Within the WHO Secretariat, Oleg Chestnov, Assistant Director-General, Noncommunicable Diseases and Mental Health, and Shekhar Saxena, Director, Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse, provided vision, guidance, support and valuable contributions to this project.

The WHO staff involved in development and production of this report are: Alexandra Fleischmann, Vladimir Poznyak, Dag Rekve and Maria Renström of the WHO MSD/MSB unit at WHO Headquarters in Geneva. The report benefited from technical inputs from Nicolas Clark of WHO MSD/MSB. Linda Laatikainen provided a significant contribution to the production of the report during its final stages in her capacity as a consultant. Gretchen Stevens and Colin Mathers from the Department of Health Statistics and Information Systems, contributed to the estimates of alcohol-attributable disease burden and provided technical input at all stages of the report's development. Margie Peden from the Department of Violence and Injury Prevention provided technical input to the report at different stages of its development. Leanne Riley, Regina Guthold and Melanie Cowan from the Department of Prevention of Noncommunicable Diseases provided data from the WHO-supported surveys and technical input to the report. Florence Rusciano from the Department of Health Statistics and Information Systems created the maps used in the report.

Preparation of this report is a collaborative effort of the WHO Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse, Management of Substance Abuse, with the Centre for Addiction and Mental Health (CAMH), Toronto, Canada. The contributions from Jürgen Rehm, Kevin Shield, Margaret Rylett (CAMH, Canada) as well as from Gerhard Gmel and Florian Labhart (Addiction Info, Switzerland) and David Jernigan and Marissa Esser (Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health, USA) have been critical for development of this report.

The collection of data in the framework of the WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health and the development of this report were undertaken in collaboration with the six WHO regional offices and WHO country offices. Key contributors to the report in the WHO regional offices are:

WHO African Region:

Carina Ferreira-Borges, Davison Munodawafa and Hudson Kubwalo

WHO Region of the Americas:

Maristela Monteiro, Jorge J. Rodriguez and Blake Andrea Smith

WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region: Khalid Saeed

WHO European Region:

Lars Møller and Nina Blinkenberg

WHO South-East Asia Region:

Vijay Chandra and Nazneen Anwar

WHO Western Pacific Region:

Xiangdong Wang and Maribel Villanueva.

For their contributions to individual chapters and annexes we acknowledge the following: **Executive summary:** Linda Laatikainen and Maria Renström.

Chapter 1: Linda Laatikainen, Alexandra Fleischmann, Gerhard Gmel, David Jernigan, Vladimir Poznyak, Jürgen Rehm, Dag Rekve, Maria Renström, Margaret Rylett.

Chapter 2: Gerhard Gmel, Florian Labhart, Jürgen Rehm, Margaret Rylett, Kevin Shield.

Chapter 3: Jürgen Rehm, Kevin Shield, Gretchen Stevens.

Chapter 4: David Jernigan and Marissa Esser with contributions from Baigalmaa Dangaa (Mongolia), Melvyn Freeman (South Africa), Ivan Konorazov (Belarus), John Mayeya (Zambia) and Margaret Rylett.

Country Profiles: Alexandra Fleischmann and Margaret Rylett with contributions from Gerhard Gmel, David Jernigan, Vladimir Poznyak, Jürgen Rehm and Dag Rekve.

Appendices 1–3: Margaret Rylett and Alexandra Fleischmann with contribution from Gretchen Stevens.

Appendix 4: Margaret Rylett with contributions from Alexandra Fleischmann, Jürgen Rehm and Gretchen Stevens.

This report would not have been possible without contributions of the WHO national counterparts for implementation of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol in WHO Member States who provided country level data and other relevant information regarding alcohol consumption, alcohol-related harm and policy responses.

The report benefited from the input provided by the following peer reviewers:

Chapter 1: Steve Allsop (Australia), Thomas Babor (USA), Maria Elena Medina-Mora (Mexico), Neo Morojele (South Africa), Esa Österberg (Finland).

Chapters 2 and 3: Guilherme Borges (Mexico), Wei Hao (China), Ralph Hingson (USA), Pia Mäkelä (Finland), Ingeborg Rossow (Norway).

Chapter 4: Bernt Bull (Norway), Maris Jesse (Estonia), Isidore S. Obot (Nigeria), Esa Österberg (Finland), Charles Parry (South Africa).

Susan Kaplan (Switzerland) edited the report.

L'IV Com Sàrl (Switzerland) developed the graphic design and layout.

Administrative support was provided by Divina Maramba and Mary Dillon.

WHO interns who contributed to the report include: Fredrik Ansker, Sally Cruse, Michael Dean, Nina Elberich, Elise Gehring, Wenjing Huang, Angelos Kassianos, Dan Liu, Celine Miyazaki, Even Myrtroen, Eugenie Ng, Ifeoma Onyeka, Derrick Ssewanya, Karin Strodel, Helen Tam-Tham and Christina von Versen.

Finally, WHO gratefully acknowledges the financial support of the Government of Norway for the development and production of this report.

ABBREVIATIONS

15+	population of those aged 15 years and older
AAF	alcohol-attributable fraction
AD	alcohol dependence
AFR	WHO African Region
AIDS	acquired immunodeficiency syndrome
AMR	WHO Region of the Americas
APC	alcohol per capita consumption
ASDR	age-standardized death rate
AUD	alcohol use disorder
BAC	blood alcohol concentration
CI	confidence interval
CVD	cardiovascular disease
DALY	disability-adjusted life year
EMR	WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region
EUR	WHO European Region
ESPAD	European School Survey Project on Alcohol and Other Drugs
FAOSTAT	Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO) statistical database
FAS	fetal alcohol syndrome
GDP	gross domestic product
GENACIS	Gender, alcohol, and culture: an international study
GISAH	WHO Global Information System on Alcohol and Health
GSHS	Global School-based Student Health Surveys
HED	heavy episodic drinking
HIV	human immunodeficiency virus
HU	harmful use of alcohol
ICD	International Classification of Diseases
MA	moving average
mhGAP	WHO Mental Health Gap Action Programme
MLPA	minimum legal purchase age

NCD	noncommunicable disease
NICE	National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
NIS	Newly Independent States
οιν	Organisation Internationale de la Vigne et du Vin
PPP	purchasing power parity
RBS	responsible beverage service
SBIRT	screening, brief intervention and referral to treatment
SEAR	WHO South-East Asia Region
SES	Socioeconomic status
STEPS	STEPwise approach to surveillance
UN	United Nations
WHA	World Health Assembly
WHO	World Health Organization
WPR	WHO Western Pacific Region
YLL	years of life lost

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

his report provides a global overview of alcohol consumption in relation to public health (Chapter 1) as well as information on: the consumption of alcohol in populations (Chapter 2); the health consequences of alcohol consumption (Chapter 3); and policy responses at national level (Chapter 4). The main messages of these chapters can be summarized as follows:

CHAPTER 1: ALCOHOL AND PUBLIC HEALTH

Alcohol is a psychoactive substance with dependence-producing properties that has been widely used in many cultures for centuries. The harmful use of alcohol causes a large disease, social and economic burden in societies.

- Environmental factors such as economic development, culture, availability of alcohol and the level and effectiveness of alcohol policies are relevant factors in explaining differences and historical trends in alcohol consumption and related harm.
- Alcohol-related harm is determined by the volume of alcohol consumed, the pattern of drinking, and, on rare occasions, the quality of alcohol consumed.
- The harmful use of alcohol is a component cause of more than 200 disease and injury conditions in individuals, most notably alcohol dependence, liver cirrhosis, cancers and injuries.
- The latest causal relationships suggested by research are those between harmful use of alcohol and infectious diseases such as tuberculosis and HIV/AIDS.
- A wide range of global, regional and national policies and actions are in place to reduce the harmful use of alcohol.

CHAPTER 2: ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

- Worldwide consumption in 2010 was equal to 6.2 litres of pure alcohol consumed per person aged 15 years or older, which translates into 13.5 grams of pure alcohol per day.
- A quarter of this consumption (24.8%) was unrecorded, i.e., homemade alcohol, illegally produced or sold outside normal government controls. Of total recorded alcohol consumed worldwide, 50.1% was consumed in the form of spirits.
- Worldwide 61.7% of the population aged 15 years or older (15+) had not drunk alcohol in the past 12 months. In all WHO regions, females are more often lifetime abstainers than males. There is a considerable variation in prevalence of abstention across WHO regions.

- Worldwide about 16.0% of drinkers aged 15 years or older engage in heavy episodic drinking.
- In general, the greater the economic wealth of a country, the more alcohol is consumed and the smaller the number of abstainers. As a rule, high-income countries have the highest alcohol per capita consumption (APC) and the highest prevalence of heavy episodic drinking among drinkers.

CHAPTER 3: HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

- In 2012, about 3.3 million deaths, or 5.9% of all global deaths, were attributable to alcohol consumption.
- There are significant sex differences in the proportion of global deaths attributable to alcohol, for example, in 2012 7.6% of deaths among males and 4.0% of deaths among females were attributable to alcohol.
- In 2012 139 million DALYs (disability-adjusted life years), or 5.1% of the global burden of disease and injury, were attributable to alcohol consumption.
- There is also wide geographical variation in the proportion of alcohol-attributable deaths and DALYs, with the highest alcohol-attributable fractions reported in the WHO European Region.

CHAPTER 4: ALCOHOL POLICY AND INTERVENTIONS

- Alcohol policies are developed with the aim of reducing harmful use of alcohol and the alcohol-attributable health and social burden in a population and in society. Such policies can be formulated at the global, regional, multinational, national and subnational level.
- Many WHO Member States have demonstrated increased leadership and commitment to reducing harmful use of alcohol in recent years. A higher percentage of the reporting countries indicated having written national alcohol policies and imposing stricter blood alcohol concentration limits in 2012 than in 2008.

The report also contains country profiles for all 194 WHO Member States as well as data tables to support information provided in chapters 2–4 (Appendices I–III) and a section explaining data sources and methods used in this report (Appendix IV).

1. Alcohol and public health

1. ALCOHOL AND PUBLIC HEALTH

he protection of the health of populations by preventing and reducing the harmful use of alcohol is a public health priority, and one of the objectives of the World Health Organization (WHO) is to reduce the health and social burden caused by the harmful use of alcohol. The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol defines "harmful use" as drinking that causes detrimental health and social consequences for the drinker, the people around the drinker and society at large, as well as the patterns of drinking that are associated with increased risk of adverse health outcomes.¹ The vision of this strategy is to improve the health and social outcomes of individuals, families and communities, considerably reducing morbidity and mortality due to harmful use of alcohol and their ensuing social consequences (WHO, 2010a).

Alcohol is a psychoactive substance with dependence-producing properties. As described in this report, consumption of alcohol and problems related to alcohol vary widely around the world, but the burden of disease and death remains significant in most countries. The harmful use of alcohol ranks among the top five risk factors for disease, disability and death throughout the world (WHO, 2011a; Lim et al., 2012). It is a causal factor in more than 200 disease and injury conditions (as described in Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems (ICD) 10th revision, WHO, 1992). Drinking alcohol is associated with a risk of developing such health problems as alcohol dependence, liver cirrhosis, cancers and injuries (WHO, 2004a; Baan et al., 2007; Shield, Parry & Rehm, 2013). The latest causal relationships suggested by research findings are those between alcohol consumption and incidence of infectious diseases such as tuberculosis and HIV/ AIDS (Lönnroth et al., 2008; Rehm et al., 2009b; Baliunas et al., 2010) as well as between the harmful use of alcohol and the course of HIV/AIDS (Hendershot et al., 2009; Azar et al., 2010). As described in chapter 3 of this report, the net effect of harmful use of alcohol is approximately 3.3 million deaths each year, even when the beneficial impact of lowrisk patterns of alcohol use on some diseases is taken into account. Thus, harmful use of alcohol accounts for 5.9% of all deaths worldwide.

As described in section 1.6 of this chapter, harmful use of alcohol can also have serious social and economic consequences for individuals other than the drinker and for society at large (e.g. Anderson et al., 2006; Sacks et al., 2013).

Despite the large health, social and economic burden associated with harmful use of alcohol, it has remained a relatively low priority in public policy, including in public health policy (see section 1.7). However, recent international policy frameworks and action plans, such as the WHO Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol and the WHO Global action plan for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases (NCDs) 2013–2020 (see section 1.7.2) are expected to shift the political compass towards

¹ The word "harmful" in the strategy refers only to public-health effects of alcohol consumption, without prejudice to religious beliefs and cultural norms in any way. The concept of "harmful use of alcohol" in this context is different from "harmful use of alcohol" as a diagnostic category in the ICD-10 Classification of Mental and Behavioural Disorders (WHO, 1992)

an increased focus on the harmful use of alcohol. In fact, since 2008 WHO Member States have already made improvements in several areas of action recommended by the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. In particular, an increased number of Member States reported having written national alcohol policies and taking action to reduce the prevalence of drink–driving, to limit availability of alcohol and to implement restrictions on alcohol marketing. This positive trend is expected to continue as society's ability and willingness to tackle NCDs and their risk factors, including the harmful use of alcohol, is "a precondition for, an outcome of and an indicator of all three dimensions of sustainable development: economic development, environmental sustainability, and social inclusion" (Global NCD Action Plan 2013–2020; WHO, 2013a).

1.1 ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION IN ITS HISTORICAL CONTEXT

The use of alcoholic beverages has been an integral part of many cultures for thousands of years (McGovern, 2009). Prior to the modern era, fermented alcoholic beverages were known in all tribal and village societies except in Australia, Oceania and North America. In societies where there was no aboriginal alcohol consumption, the encounter with alcoholic beverages was often abrupt and highly problematic. Where alcohol was traditionally consumed, production of alcoholic beverages commonly occurred on a small scale as a household or artisanal activity, particularly when and where agricultural surpluses were available. Drinking alcohol was thus often an occasional and communal activity, associated with particular communal festivals (Gumede, 1995; Parry & Bennets, 1998; Room et al., 2002). There are many places in the world today where versions of these traditional patterns originating from tribal and village societies persist (Obot, 2000; Room et al., 2002; Willis, 2006).

Superimposed upon, and often replacing the aforementioned traditional patterns of drinking, are patterns of production and consumption which developed in European empires and during early modern industrialization. These involved new beverages, new modes of production, distribution and promotion, and new drinking customs and institutions (Jernigan, 2000). As distilled spirits became available and transportation improved, alcoholic beverages became a market commodity which was available in all seasons of the year, and at any time during the week. This increased supply and availability often proved disastrous for indigenous economies (Colson & Scudder, 1988) and public health (e.g. Coffey, 1966). The consequences were also often catastrophic elsewhere in the world (Room et al., 2002). By the nineteenth century, leaders of industry were viewing alcohol as a major impediment to industrial livelihoods, which demanded a sober and attentive workforce. Eventually, and with great difficulty, industrializing societies in Europe and elsewhere came to see the flood of alcohol as a substantial social and health problem. In a number of countries, popular social movements to limit drinking and even to prohibit it gained broad membership and eventually political strength. In most of these countries, after a century or more of popular movements and political activity, a new and fairly stable alcohol control structure was put in place (Aaron & Musto, 1981; Room et al., 2002; WHO, 2011a).

1.2 PATHWAYS OF ALCOHOL-RELATED HARM

Alcohol consumption can have an impact not only on the incidence of diseases, injuries and other health conditions, but also on the course of disorders and their outcomes in individuals. Alcohol-related harm is determined, apart from environmental factors, by three related dimensions of drinking: the volume of alcohol consumed, the pattern of drinking and, on rare occasions, also the quality of alcohol consumed (Rehm et al., 2003a; Rehm, Kanteres & Lachenmeier, 2010; WHO, 2010a).

1.2.1 VOLUME OF ALCOHOL CONSUMED

Alcohol consumption has been identified as a component cause for more than 200 diseases, injuries and other health conditions with ICD-10 codes (see section 1.6.1; WHO, 1992; Rehm et al., 2009a). A component cause may be one among a number of components, none of which alone is sufficient to cause the disease. When all the components are present, the sufficient cause is formed (Rothman, 1976; Rothman & Greenland, 2005; Rothman, Greenland & Lash, 2008). For most diseases and injuries causally impacted by alcohol, there is a dose–response relationship. For example, for all alcohol-attributable cancers, the higher the consumption of alcohol, the larger the risk for these cancers (IARC, 2010; Shield et al., 2013).

1.2.2 PATTERN OF DRINKING

Not only the volume of alcohol consumed, but also the pattern of drinking over time affects the risks of harm (Rehm et al., 2003a). For example, a pattern of drinking while eating seems to be associated with less harm from chronic diseases than the same pattern of drinking at other times (Trevisan et al., 2001; Stranges, 2004). In particular, pattern of drinking has been linked to injuries (both unintentional and intentional; Macdonald et al., 2013) and risk of cardiovascular diseases (mainly ischaemic heart disease and ischaemic stroke; Roerecke & Rehm, 2010a). The latter is linked to the fact that the cardioprotective effect of low-risk patterns of alcohol consumption disappears completely in the presence of heavy episodic drinking (HED) (see Box 1; Roerecke & Rehm, 2010; 2013).

Box 1. Heavy episodic drinking (HED)

In the context of population-level data presented in this report, HED is defined as consumption of 60 or more grams of pure alcohol (6+ standard drinks in most countries) on at least one single occasion at least monthly. The volume of alcohol consumed on a single occasion is important for many acute consequences of drinking such as alcohol poisoning, injury and violence, and is also important wherever intoxication is socially disapproved of. HED is associated with detrimental consequences even if the average level of alcohol consumption of the person concerned is relatively low.

1.2.3 QUALITY OF ALCOHOL CONSUMED

The quality of alcoholic beverages may impact on health and mortality (Preedy & Watson, 2005), for instance when home-made or illegally produced alcoholic beverages are contaminated with methanol or other very toxic substances, such as disinfectants (Rehm, Kanteres & Lachenmeier, 2010). Other ingredients in alcoholic beverages, especially in beverages produced informally or illegally, have been analysed as potential causes of health problems (Kanteres et al., 2009; Lachenmeier et al., 2009; Leitz et al., 2009). However, the most comprehensive recent reviews of the research found no evidence that consumption of unrecorded alcohol is markedly linked at population level to morbidity or mortality over and above the effects of ethanol (Rehm, Kanteres & Lachenmeier, 2010; Rehm et al., 2014).

Notable exceptions were outbreaks of methanol poisoning and the use of surrogate alcohol, which refers to liquids usually containing ethanol, but not intended for consumption as beverages. Even though consumption of these products can lead to tragic events, they accounted for considerably less than 1% of all alcohol-attributable deaths.

Consumption of beverages produced illegally or informally is relevant for estimation of alcohol-attributable burden of disease. As unrecorded products are often available outside the regulated market (resulting e.g. in cheaper prices, different controls, or no controls on availability), they may increase overall consumption and have also been linked to more heavy drinking occasions (Rehm et al., 2014).

1.3 MECHANISMS OF HARM IN AN INDIVIDUAL

There are three main direct mechanisms of harm caused by alcohol consumption in an individual (Babor et al., 2003; WHO, 2004b; WHO, 2007; see also Figure 1). These three mechanisms are:

- toxic effects on organs and tissues;
- intoxication, leading to impairment of physical coordination, consciousness, cognition, perception, affect or behaviour;
- dependence, whereby the drinker's self-control over his or her drinking behaviour is impaired.

The conceptual model in Figure 1 shows how interrelated factors, some of which are not alcohol-related, result in alcohol-related death and disability. Differential vulnerability and socioeconomic consequences as well as health outcomes are discussed further in sections 1.5 and 1.6, respectively. Alcohol not only impacts on the incidence of disease and injury, but can also affect the course of diseases such as liver cirrhosis (see Box 2), stroke or ischaemic heart disease (for an overview see Shield et al., 2013).





^a Quality of the alcohol consumed can also be a factor

 $^{\scriptscriptstyle b}$ $\,$ Development of health and welfare system, and economy as a whole

Source: Based on Rehm et al., 2010 and Blas et al., 2010.

Box 2. The impact of alcohol on the course of liver cirrhosis

The risk curve for incidence of liver cirrhosis is much flatter than the risk curve for mortality from liver cirrhosis (Rehm et al., 2010b). This indicates that relatively low or moderate levels of alcohol consumption are not associated with marked increases for the risk of developing liver cirrhosis (but this risk increases exponentially with heavier drinking). However, if a person has developed liver cirrhosis, no matter whether this is due to alcohol consumption or to other factors, the risk of mortality from liver cirrhosis becomes quite pronounced even at relatively moderate levels of drinking.

1.4 ABSTENTION

The previous section has exclusively discussed the factors affecting alcohol-related harm to an individual and the mechanisms for this. However, it is important to note that when discussing alcohol-related harm at the population level, abstention from drinking alcoholic beverages in the population (see section 2.2.1) is an important mediating factor determining the level of alcohol-attributable harm in a population. Because abstention is highly prevalent throughout the world, any diminution in abstention levels could have a significant impact on the global burden of disease caused by the harmful use of alcohol.

1.5 FACTORS AFFECTING ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION AND ALCOHOL-RELATED HARM

A variety of factors have been identified at the individual and the societal levels, which affect the magnitude and patterns of consumption and can increase the risk of alcohol use disorders and other alcohol-related problems in drinkers and others (Shi & Stevens, 2005; Babor et al., 2010). Environmental factors such as economic development, culture, availability of alcohol and the level and effectiveness of alcohol policies are relevant factors in explaining differences in vulnerability between societies, historical trends in alcohol consumption and alcohol-related harm (WHO, 2007; Babor et al., 2010; Nelson et al., 2013).

For a given level or pattern of drinking, vulnerabilities within a society are likely to have many of the same differential effects as those for differences between societies. Many of these differences are mitigated, but not entirely removed, by the universal availability of health care within the society. Where there is unequal access to treatment or other resources, the health and social consequences of a given level or pattern of drinking are also likely to be more severe for those with less resources (Shi & Stevens, 2005; WHO, 2007; Blas & Kurup, 2010).

Although there is no single risk factor that is dominant, the literature suggests that the more vulnerabilities a person has, the more likely the person is to develop alcohol problems (Schmidt et al., 2010). From a public health perspective, vulnerability denotes susceptibility to poor health or illness, which can be manifested through physical, mental and social outcomes, including alcohol-related problems. It has been shown that vulnerable individuals are often at greater risk of having more than one individual risk factor, e.g., unhealthy diet, lack of physical activity and tobacco use (Blas & Kurup, 2010).

1.5.1 AGE

Children, adolescents and elderly people are typically more vulnerable to alcohol-related harm from a given volume of alcohol than other age groups (Hilton, 1987; Midanik & Clark, 1995; Mäkelä & Mustonen, 2000). Also, early initiation of alcohol use (before 14 years of age) is a predictor of impaired health status because it is associated with increased risk for alcohol dependence and abuse at later ages (Grant & Dawson, 1997; Grant, 1998;

DeWit et al., 2000; Kraus et al., 2000, Sartor et al., 2007), alcohol-related motor vehicle crashes (Hingson et al., 2001; Hingson, Edwards & Zha, 2009), and other unintentional injuries (Hingson et al., 2000; Cherpitel, 2013). At least part of the excess risk among young people is related to the fact that, typically, a greater proportion of the total alcohol consumed by young people is consumed during heavy drinking episodes (US Surgeon General, 2007). Also, young people appear to be less risk-averse and may engage in more reckless behaviour while drunk.

Alcohol-related harm among elderly people is due to somewhat different factors than alcohol-related harm among young people. While alcohol consumption generally declines with age, older drinkers typically consume alcohol more frequently than other age groups. Also, as people grow older, their bodies are typically less able to handle the same levels and patterns of alcohol consumption as in previous life years, leading to a high burden from unintentional injuries, such as alcohol-related falls (Sorock et al., 2006; Grundstrom et al., 2012). The alcohol-related burden of disease among older age groups is an increasing public health concern because of the rapidly ageing population in many countries worldwide (WHO, 2012).

Age-related vulnerability is the basis for age-specific monitoring of alcohol consumption (see section 2.1) and policy responses. Alcohol policies that are based on age-related vulnerability include partial or total advertising bans, restrictions on access to alcohol through minimum ages at which it is legal to purchase alcohol, and laws aimed to prevent any alcohol consumption by young people when driving vehicles (see Chapter 4).

1.5.2 GENDER²

Harmful use of alcohol is the leading risk factor for death in males aged 15–59 years, yet there is evidence that women may be more vulnerable to alcohol-related harm from a given level of alcohol use or a particular drinking pattern. The vulnerability of females to alcohol-related harm is a major public health concern because alcohol use among women has been increasing steadily in line with economic development and changing gender roles (Grucza et al., 2008; Wilsnack, 2013) and because it can have severe health and social consequences for newborns (Abel & Sokol, 1987; Lupton et al., 2004; Popova et al., 2013).

As discussed in chapter 3, 7.6% of all male deaths in 2012 were attributable to alcohol, compared to 4.0% of female deaths. Men also have a far greater rate of total burden of disease expressed in disability-adjusted life years (DALYs) attributable to alcohol than women – 7.4% for men compared to 2.3% for women (see chapter 3). The increased burden of disease among men is largely explained by the fact that compared to women, men are less often abstainers, drink more frequently and in larger quantities. When the number of health and social consequences is considered for a given level of alcohol use or drinking pattern, sex differences for social outcomes reduce significantly or even reverse. One explanation is the higher prevalence of injuries among men (Midanik & Clark, 1995; Bongers et al., 1998; Mäkelä & Mustonen, 2000; Hoeksema, 2004); however, for health outcomes such as cancers, gastrointestinal diseases or cardiovascular diseases, the same level of consumption leads to more pronounced outcomes for women (Rehm et al., 2010a).

^{2 &}quot;Sex" refers to the biological and physiological characteristics and "gender" refers to the socially constructed roles, behaviours etc. In the remainder of this report, "sex" will be used when reporting alcohol-related data for females, males and both sexes in line with the reporting standards of Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) (see Box 12).

The vulnerability of women may be explained by a wide range of factors (Wilsnack et al., 2013). For example, women typically have lower body weight, smaller liver capacity to metabolize alcohol, and a higher proportion of body fat, which together contribute to women achieving higher blood alcohol concentrations than men for the same amount of alcohol intake. Women are also affected by interpersonal violence and risky sexual behaviour as a result of the drinking problems and drinking behaviour of male partners (Morojele et al., 2006; Kalichman et al., 2007). Moreover, alcohol use has been shown to be a risk factor for breast cancer (Allen et al., 2009; Boyle & Boffetta, 2009; Seitz et al., 2012). Also many societies hold more negative attitudes towards women's drinking alcohol than men's drinking, and especially towards their harmful drinking (Otto, 1981; Gomber, 1988; Pretorius et al., 2009), which, depending on the cultural context, may increase women's vulnerability to social harm. Finally, women who drink during pregnancy may increase the risk of fetal alcohol spectrum disorder (FASD), and other preventable health conditions in their newborns (Barr & Steissguth, 2001; Viljoen et al., 2005). This is part of the evidence supporting mandatory health warning labels on alcoholic beverage containers, including information for all pregnant women on the impact of alcohol on the fetus.

1.5.3 FAMILIAL RISK FACTORS

A family history of alcohol use disorders is considered a major vulnerability factor for both genetic and environmental reasons (Merigankas et al., 1998; WHO, 2004a).

Heritable or genetic risk factors account for a substantial proportion of the variation in alcohol dependence. Multiple genes influence alcohol use initiation, metabolism and reinforcing properties in different ways (Clark, 2006), contributing to the increased susceptibility to toxic, psychoactive and dependence-producing properties of alcohol in some vulnerable groups and individuals.

Parental alcohol use disorders have been found to negatively affect the family situation during childhood. Parents with alcohol use disorders display particular patterns of alcohol consumption and thereby increase the likelihood that their children will develop drinking patterns associated with high risk of alcohol use disorders when they are introduced to alcohol. Heavy drinking by parents affects family functioning, the parent–child relationship and parenting practices, which in turn affects child development adversely (Latendresse et al., 2008). The mistreatment of children, including sexual abuse, physical abuse and neglect, may also lead to childhood psychopathology and later to problem drinking (Shin et al., 2009).

1.5.4 SOCIOECONOMIC STATUS

Surveys and mortality studies, particularly from the developed world, suggest that there are more drinkers, more drinking occasions and more drinkers with low-risk drinking patterns in higher socioeconomic groups, while abstainers are more common in the poorest social groups. However, people with lower socioeconomic status (SES) appear to be more vulnerable to tangible problems and consequences of alcohol consumption (Grittner et al., 2012). For example, manual workers seem more vulnerable to severe alcohol-related health outcomes, including mortality, than non-manual workers for a given

pattern of drinking. Notably, this vulnerability is found to be handed down through the generations (Norström & Romelsjö, 1998; Mäkelä et al., 1999a, 2002; Hemström et al., 2002).

One explanation for the potentially greater vulnerability among lower SES groups is that they are less able to avoid adverse consequences of their behaviour due to a lack of resources. For example, individuals with higher SES may be more able to choose safer environments in which to drink, purchase social or spatial buffering of their behaviour and have better access to high-quality health care services (potentially explaining SES-related differences in survival after hospitalization or treatment for alcohol problems). A second explanation could be that individuals in lower SES groups have a less extensive support network, i.e., fewer factors or persons to motivate them to address alcohol problems before severe consequences occur. A third, contested, explanation that has been proposed in the past is that of an "all or nothing" pattern of behaviour in lower SES groups, i.e., poor people drink less often, but when they drink, they drink a lot (Schmidt et al, 2010).

The link between SES and alcohol-related harm is an area of growing public health concern, because market liberalization and increasing affluence have increased the availability of alcohol to lower SES groups in growing economies. Given that changes in affordability of alcohol have often increased drinking, particularly among lower SES groups (Mäkelä, 1999b; McKee et al., 2000; Hradilova Selin, 2004), a rise in alcohol consumption is expected to increase the alcohol-attributable burden of disease in developing economies. The process of marginalization and stigmatization related to alcohol use disorders, and the drift in social status that may result, may also cause significant social burden.

1.5.5 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The most important of the societal vulnerability factors related to alcohol consumption, as well as to alcohol-attributable disease burden, is economic development. For the purpose of this report World Bank income groups and gross domestic product per capita based on purchasing power parity (GDP-PPP) are used as a proxy for economic wealth. World Bank income groups aggregate countries into low-income, lower middle income, upper middle income and high-income countries. In contrast, GDP-PPP is gross domestic product converted to international dollars using purchasing power parity rates for the purposes of normalizing between-country differences (World Bank, see Appendix IV for details). Countries' development status can be more broadly defined than just considering their economic wealth, for example by describing development in terms of levels of infant mortality and adult life expectancies.

The research on links between alcohol consumption, alcohol-related harm and economic development of a society, country or region largely mirrors data on associations between alcohol consumption and the SES of an individual. As described in more detail in chapter 2 and chapter 3, greater economic wealth is broadly associated with higher levels of consumption and lower abstention rates. However, for a given level or pattern of drinking, the alcohol-attributable mortality and burden of disease and injury will generally be greater in societies with lower economic development than in more affluent societies. For chronic effects of heavy drinking such as liver cirrhosis, for instance, there will often be a worse outcome because of the existence of cofactors such as nutritional deficiencies or viral hepatitis (Room et al., 2002a). Also, services to mitigate the adverse health effects of

drinking are likely to be less widely available. Drink–driving may also have a worse outcome because less affluent societies have less safe streets and vehicles.

1.5.6 CULTURE AND CONTEXT

The degree of risk for harm due to use of alcohol varies with the drinker's age, sex, familial factors and SES, as well as the drinker's behaviour and alcohol exposure (volume, patterns and quality of alcohol consumed; as discussed in section 1.2). However, it also varies with the physical and socioeconomic context in which a given drinking occasion and the ensuing hours take place. Moreover, the nature and extent of the harm that results from drinking can vary widely depending on the context.

In some contexts, drinkers will be vulnerable to alcohol-related social harm, disease, injury or even death if any volume of alcohol is consumed. This is the case for instance if a person drinks before driving a car or piloting an aeroplane, when consuming alcohol can result in serious penalties and harm. Also, in many countries there can be serious social or legal consequences for drinking at all, due to laws and regulations or cultural and religious norms, which can increase the vulnerability of drinkers to alcohol-related social harm. Studies showing differences in consumption or alcohol-related harm between different ethnicities within countries have underlined the importance of further research on culture-related vulnerabilities (Neumark et al., 2003; Chartier et al., 2013).

1.5.7 ALCOHOL CONTROL AND REGULATION

As discussed in greater detail in section 1.7 of this chapter and in chapter 4, another critical factor in determining the level of vulnerability to harmful use of alcohol and alcohol-related harm across countries is the level and effectiveness of alcohol control and regulations in each country, and within countries, in each jurisdiction with the ability to set alcohol policies (Babor et al., 2010).

1.6 ALCOHOL-RELATED HARMS

Alcohol consumption can have both health and social consequences for the drinker. The harmful use of alcohol can also result in harm to other individuals, such as family members, friends, co-workers and strangers. Moreover, the harmful use of alcohol results in a significant health, social and economic burden on society at large.

1.6.1 HEALTH CONSEQUENCES FOR DRINKERS

As mentioned in section 1.2, alcohol consumption has been identified as a component cause for more than 200 health conditions covered by ICD-10 disease and injury codes (see Box 3 for the main disease and injury categories causally linked to alcohol; WHO, 1992; Rehm et al., 2010a, Shield et al., 2013; see also Appendix IV for details on which of these disease and injury outcomes have been modelled in this report). Most notably, new evidence points to a causal link between alcohol and infectious diseases such as tuberculosis and pneumonia (Rehm et al., 2009b; Samokhvalov et al., 2010a). Also, it is important to note that alcohol consumption can contribute to more than one type of disease or injury in the drinker.

Box 3. Major disease and injury categories causally impacted by alcohol consumption

- Green: Overall beneficial effects from low-risk patterns of drinking, while heavy drinking is detrimental
- Red: 100% alcohol-attributable

Neuropsychiatric conditions: alcohol use disorders (AUDs, see Box 4) are the most important neuropsychiatric conditions caused by alcohol consumption. Epilepsy is another disease causally impacted by alcohol, over and above withdrawal-induced seizures (Samokhvalov et al., 2010b). Alcohol consumption is associated with many other neuropsychiatric conditions, such as depression or anxiety disorders (Kessler, 2004; Boden and Fergusson, 2011), but the complexity of the pathways of these associations currently prevents their inclusion in the estimates of alcohol-attributable disease burden (Rehm et al., 2010a).

Gastrointestinal diseases: liver cirrhosis (Rehm et al., 2010b) and pancreatitis (both acute and chronic; Irving et al., 2009) are causally related to alcohol consumption. Higher levels of alcohol consumption create an exponential increase in risk. The impact of alcohol is so important that for both disease categories there are subcategories which are labelled as "alcoholic" or "alcohol-induced" in the ICD.

Cancers: alcohol consumption has been identified as carcinogenic for the following cancer categories (International Agency for Research on Cancer, 2012) cancer of the mouth, nasopharynx, other pharynx and oropharynx, laryngeal cancer, oesophageal cancer, colon and rectum cancer, liver cancer and female breast cancer. In addition, alcohol consumption is likely to cause pancreatic cancer. The higher the consumption, the greater the risk for these cancers, with consumption as low as one drink per day causing significantly increased risk for some cancers, such as female breast cancer (Seitz et al., 2012; Rehm & Shield, 2013; Nelson et al., 2013).

Intentional injuries: alcohol consumption, especially heavy drinking, has been causally linked to suicide and violence (Cherpitel, 2013; Macdonald et al., 2013).

Unintentional injuries: almost all categories of unintentional injuries are impacted by alcohol consumption. The effect is strongly linked to the alcohol concentration in the blood and the resulting effects on psychomotor abilities. Higher levels of alcohol consumption create an exponential increase in risk (Taylor et al., 2010).

Cardiovascular diseases (CVD): the relationship between alcohol consumption and cardiovascular diseases is complex. The beneficial cardioprotective effect of relatively low levels of drinking for ischaemic heart disease and ischaemic stroke disappears with heavy drinking occasions. Moreover, alcohol consumption has detrimental effects on hypertension, atrial fibrillation and haemorrhagic stroke, regardless of the drinking pattern (Roerecke & Rehm, 2012).

Fetal alcohol syndrome (FAS) and preterm birth complications: alcohol consumption by an expectant mother may cause these conditions that are detrimental to the health of a newborn infant (Foltran et al., 2011).

Diabetes mellitus: a dual relationship exists, whereby a low-risk pattern of drinking may be beneficial while heavy drinking is detrimental (Baliunas et al., 2009).

Infectious diseases: harmful use of alcohol weakens the immune system thus enabling development of pneumonia and tuberculosis. This effect is markedly more pronounced when associated with heavy drinking, and there may be a threshold effect, meaning that disease symptoms manifest mainly if a person drinks above a certain level of heavy drinking (Lönnroth et al., 2008).

In addition to the causal relationships between alcohol consumption and disease and injury categories described in Box 3, a strong association exists between alcohol consumption and HIV infection and sexually transmitted diseases (Baliunas et al., 2010; Hahn et al., 2011). This in itself is no proof of a causal relationship, as it may be that a common third cause, such as having generally risky behaviour impacts on both alcohol consumption and risky sexual behaviour leading to infection. However, experimental research, where alcohol consumption was manipulated, showed that it was clearly related to the increased risk of unsafe sex (Rehm et al., 2012). If one assumes a causal relationship between intention and (risky sexual) behaviour, which research has demonstrated to be the case (Sheeran et al., 1998; 1999), the result is acceptance of a causal relationship between alcohol consumption and HIV incidence. In addition, there is a clear causal effect of alcohol consumption on HIV/AIDS patients' adherence to antiretroviral treatment, which can be quantified (Hendershot et al., 2009; Azar et al., 2010; Gmel et al., 2011), as well as on the course of HIV/AIDS among patients who are not yet on antiretroviral therapy (Pol et al., 1996; Liu et al., 2003; Chander et al., 2006; Azar et al., 2010; Baum et al., 2010; Hahn & Samet, 2010).

Of the more than 200 ICD-10 disease and injury codes for which alcohol consumption is a component cause, more than 30 include alcohol in their name or definition. This indicates that these disease conditions would not exist at all in the absence of alcohol consumption. Of these 30, AUDs, (see Box 4) are the most significant.

Box 4. Alcohol use disorders (AUDs)

Harmful use of alcohol is defined as a pattern of alcohol use that is causing damage to health, and the damage may be physical (as in cases of liver cirrhosis) or mental (as in cases of depressive episodes secondary to heavy consumption of alcohol) (see ICD-10; WHO, 1992).

Alcohol dependence (also known as alcoholism or alcohol dependence syndrome) is defined as a cluster of behavioural, cognitive, and physiological phenomena that develop after repeated alcohol use and that typically include a strong desire to consume alcohol, difficulties in controlling its use, persisting in its use despite harmful consequences, a higher priority given to alcohol use than to other activities and obligations, increased tolerance, and sometimes a physiological withdrawal state (see ICD-10; WHO, 1992).

1.6.2 SOCIOECONOMIC CONSEQUENCES FOR DRINKERS

In addition to harm to the physical (e.g., liver disease) and/or mental health (e.g., episodes of depressive disorder) of the drinkers, alcohol consumption is often associated with socioeconomic consequences, as shown in Figure 1. These socioeconomic consequences are tied up with the responses of other people. Where use of alcohol is forbidden for religious or cultural reasons, drinking at all will be negatively judged by others. Also in societies where drinking is thoroughly integrated into daily life, there are boundaries of acceptable drinking behaviour, whether in terms of a specific drinking event or a specific pattern of drinking (Bennett et al., 1993). When an individual crosses culture-specific boundaries, he or she may experience socioeconomic consequences such as loss of earnings, unemployment or family problems, stigma and barriers to accessing health care. These four consequences are discussed in more detail below.

Alcohol is typically a valued commodity, which means that drinking usually uses resources which would otherwise be available for other purposes. Where earnings are low, heavy drinking may further impoverish the drinker, the drinker's family, or a whole community, thus increasing health or social harm (Schmidt et al., 2010; De Silva et al., 2011).

Intoxication, dependence or alcohol withdrawal states can result in poor performance in major social roles – in functioning at work, in parenting, in relationship and friendship roles. Both the drinker and others may be affected by the consequences, such as job or productivity loss, break-up and dysfunction in family life, including domestic violence. This in turn can result in harm to physical or mental health, caused by the role functioning impairment itself, others' reactions to the impairment, or both (Schmidt et al., 2010).

The reputational drinking history of an individual, i.e., how the pattern of drinking is interpreted by others, is crucial in social judgements, both those made in the moment and in the longer term. There is a clear tendency in many cultures to marginalize and socially exclude habitually intoxicated persons and their families, even more so than "dirty or unkempt" persons (Room et al., 2001).

One direct path by which marginalization can affect health status is through diminished access to good health care. In several surveys around the world, respondents felt that heavy alcohol users should receive less priority in health care. Often the justification given is the belief that the users' behaviour contributed to their own illness (Olsen et al., 2003). More worryingly, studies on health services show that the care given is likely to be inferior, or the access to health care worsened, if the patient is seen as a run-down drinker or a similarly degraded status (e.g., Sudnow, 1967; Strong, 1980; Santana 2002; Mitchell et al., 2009). Given that access to good health care is expected to affect health status, this is a major concern both at the individual and at the societal level.

1.6.3 HARMS TO OTHER INDIVIDUALS

The harms done by people's drinking to others involve both socioeconomic consequences and substantial health problems, such as alcohol-related injuries, mental health impacts and FASD (see Box 5 for examples; Navarro et al., 2011). As stated in the WHO Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a), "special attention needs to be given to reducing harm to people other than the drinker". The individual(s) affected may be a spouse or partner, child, relative, friend, neighbour, co-worker, person living in the same household, or a stranger, as is particularly common in the case of traffic crashes.

Box 5. Examples of types of harm to other individuals

Injury to other individuals can be intentional, e.g., assault or homicide, or unintentional, e.g., a traffic crash, workplace accident or scalding of a child.

Neglect or abuse can affect, for example, a child, a partner or a person in the drinker's care.

Default on social role can involve the drinker's role as a family member, as a friend and/or as a worker.

Property damage can involve damage, for example, to clothing, a car or a building.

Toxic effects on other individuals include most notably fetal alcohol syndrome (FAS) and preterm birth complications (Foltran et al., 2011).

Loss of amenity or peace of mind can influence family members (including children), friends, co-workers and strangers, who may, for example, be kept awake or frightened by the actions of the drinker.

The harms to others may be concrete and externally verifiable, as with injuries or damages, or may be more subject to social definition, as with some social role defaults, or to another's perception, as with many losses of amenity (Laslett et al., 2011). The harms may be relatively mild, such as being wakened by drunken carousers outside, or may be very severe, including death or a lifelong disability. A survey specific to harms to others in New Zealand found the prevalence of such harms to be higher than the prevalence of harms from one's own drinking (18% versus 12%), particularly among women and young people (Connor & Casswell, 2012). The same research group found that the greater the exposure to heavy drinkers, the lower people's scores on measures of personal well-being and health status (Casswell et al., 2011).

Reflecting the information that is most readily available in the underlying health system statistics, measures of problems from alcohol consumption have primarily focused on harm to the drinker's health and have placed limited emphasis on the harm to the health and welfare of others around the drinker. For example, chapter 3 reports on prenatal conditions caused by a mother's drinking, while injuries to others from violence inflicted by an intoxicated assailant are still not included in most current estimates of alcohol-attributable burden of disease (and are also not included in the calculations in chapter 3). It is important to develop algorithms to enable a more systematic and complete inclusion of both harm to health and social harm to others into future burden of disease studies. The first step was taken in an Australian survey, which found that more than two thirds of respondents had been adversely affected by someone else's drinking in the past year, and about 50% of the Australian population were negatively impacted by a stranger's drinking (Laslett et al., 2011). Building on this Australian study, recent studies in the European

Union (Graham et al., 2008; Shield et al., 2012a) and in Sweden (Ramstedt et al., 2013) tried to model alcohol-attributable harm to the health and social welfare of others. One significant finding is that women appear to suffer more from the drinking of others than men. Building on these studies, WHO has identified research on harm to others from drinking as a major strand in the Research Initiative on Alcohol, Health and Development, and initiated a collaborative research project with Thai Health on this topic (see Box 6 for details). More work is necessary to quantify the effects of alcohol on others in a way similar to that used to quantify the effects of passive smoking.

Box 6. The Harm to Others from Drinking – A WHO/Thai Health international collaborative research project

This aim of this research project is to measure and analyse the harm to others from drinking in low-income and middle-income countries, in terms of the situation in each society and also in cross-national analyses. The project is developing a master model for application in six countries, but it is expected that the master protocol will be more widely applied in future projects, including in developed countries. The study is divided into two phases.

The first phase will be carried out over 18 months and includes a scoping and assessment study; a general population survey of at least 1500 completed interviews of adults; a descriptive report for the country on the results; and a descriptive cross-national analysis of the results across societies.

The second phase will also last for 18 months and will include a register of data analyses of harm to others from drinking as manifested in the case records of societal first-response agencies. Agency caseload studies in three first-response agency systems will also be carried out, particularly where no electronic or other cumulative case registry is available for that type of agency.

1.6.4 HARM TO SOCIETY AT LARGE

One of the key arguments for policy action to address harmful use of alcohol is that harmful use of alcohol results in a significant health, social and economic burden on society at large.

1.6.4.1 BURDEN OF DISEASE

There is an increasing awareness of the significant impact of harmful use of alcohol not only on individuals, but also on global public health. As described in chapter 3, 5.9% of all deaths and 5.1 % of the global burden of disease and injury in 2012, as measured in DALYs, is attributable to alcohol (see Box 7 for explanations of the terminology). These figures translate into 3.3 million alcohol-attributable deaths, after taking into account the beneficial effects of low-risk patterns of alcohol consumption on some diseases. Beyond the population-level burden of diseases and injuries described, it is important to note that harmful use of alcohol kills or disables people at a relatively young age, resulting in the loss of many years of life to death and disability. The latest data on alcohol-attributable burden of disease and injury are discussed in chapter 3, and the range of methods used to estimate the aggregate burden of disease at population level is discussed in section 1.8.

Box 7. Terminology related to burden of disease and injury at population level

Burden of disease is defined as the gap between current health status and an ideal situation in which everyone lives to old age free of disease and disability. Premature death, disability and risks that contribute to illness and injury are the causes of this health gap.

Disability-adjusted life years (DALYs) represent a time-based measure of overall burden of disease for a given population. DALYs are the sum of years of life lost due to premature mortality as well as years of life lost due to time lived in less than full health.

Alcohol-attributable deaths are defined as the number of deaths attributable to alcohol consumption. They assume a counterfactual scenario of no alcohol consumption. Thus, alcohol-attributable deaths are those deaths that would not have happened without the presence of alcohol.

Alcohol-attributable fraction (AAF) is the proportion of all diseases and deaths that are attributable to alcohol. AAFs are used to quantify the contribution of alcohol as a risk factor to disease or death. AAFs can be interpreted as the proportion of deaths or burden of disease which would disappear if there had not been any alcohol. AAFs are calculated based on level of exposure to alcohol and the risk relations between levels of exposure and different disease categories.

1.6.4.2 SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC COSTS

Harms from drinking are not only personal and they are not limited to health. Rather, harmful use of alcohol may also impose significant social and economic costs on society. As described below, there are three major categories of alcohol-attributable social and economic costs.

The first category of costs are direct economic costs of alcohol consumption, the estimates of which are typically derived from register data, i.e., the records of case-bycase operation of the major institutions of societal response to problems, e.g., hospitals and the health system, the police and criminal justice system, the unemployment and welfare systems (Anderson et al., 2006; Thavorncharoensap et al., 2009; Bouchery et al., 2011). Direct costs encompass costs for multiple types of health-care services, such as hospitalizations, ambulatory care, nursing home care, prescription medicines or home health care. However, such direct health sector costs appear to represent only 9–24% of all alcohol-attributable social costs (Van Gils et al., 2010). Direct costs also include significant costs in the justice sector caused, for example, by damage to property from vehicle crashes and arrests for being "drunk and disorderly" as well as increased crime. Depending on the society, many of the direct costs are borne by governments. The second major category of social costs is indirect costs. These result, for example, from lost productivity due to absenteeism, unemployment, decreased output, reduced earnings potential and lost working years due to premature pension or death (Anderson et al., 2006; Thavorncharoensap et al., 2009). These indirect costs are typically borne by society at large, because the alcohol-attributable loss in workforce productivity can affect the economic viability of an entire community (Room et al., 2002).

A third category, which is poorly measured and for which the practice of adding estimates is disputable, is intangible costs. Intangible costs are the costs assigned to pain and suffering, and more generally to a diminished quality of life. Such intangible costs are borne by the drinkers, as well as their families and potentially by other individuals linked to the drinker (Anderson et al., 2006; Thavorncharoensap et al., 2009).

Monitoring social costs is important as it provides essential information regarding the full social consequences of alcohol consumption at a national financial level. For example, alcohol-attributable costs have been estimated at about 125 billion euros in the European Union for 2003 (Anderson et al., 2006), 21 billion pounds in 2009 in the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (HM Government, 2012), and 233.5 billion dollars in 2006 in the United States of America (Bouchery et al., 2011). Such social costs attributable to alcohol represent from 1.3% to 3.3% of the gross domestic product (Rehm et al., 2009a; WHO, 2011a). Even when intangible costs are omitted, these costs are substantial, not only in comparison to gross domestic product, but also in relation to the costs associated with other risk factors. In the Republic of South Africa the estimates made of the combined tangible and intangible costs of harmful use of alcohol to the economy reached nearly 300 billion rand or 10–12% of the 2009 gross domestic product (Matzopoulos et al., 2014).

However, available measures of the social costs linked to harmful use of alcohol are mostly incomplete due to deficiencies in the available data. Although some studies separate out costs borne by governments (e.g., Johansson et al., 2006; Sacks et al., 2013), future studies should look more closely into who bears the harm and by whom the cost is paid, and should seek more robust ways of estimating intangible costs.

1.7 ACTION TO REDUCE HARMFUL USE OF ALCOHOL

As discussed above, the harmful use of alcohol has a severe impact on the health and wellbeing of individuals and populations. The scope and nature of alcohol-attributable disease burden and alcohol-related social harms provide a solid rationale for tackling harmful use of alcohol through national and international alcohol policies and interventions. "Alcohol policy", as a collective noun, refers to the set of measures in a jurisdiction or society aimed at minimizing the health and social harms from alcohol consumption. These measures may be taken in any governmental or societal sector, and may include measures which are not directly aimed at alcohol consumption; for instance, the promotion of alternatives to drinking alcohol, where such a measure has the aim of minimizing alcohol-related harm (WHO, 2007). Box 8 describes the guiding principles for development and implementation of alcohol policies at all levels, as listed in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a). These principles reflect the multifaceted determinants of alcoholrelated harm and the concerted multisectoral actions required to implement effective interventions. Box 8. Guiding principles for development and implementation of alcohol policies at all levels (WHO, 2010a)

(a) Public policies and interventions to prevent and reduce alcohol-related harm should be guided and formulated by public health interests and based on clear public health goals and the best available evidence.

(b) Policies should be equitable and sensitive to national, religious and cultural contexts.

(c) All involved parties have the responsibility to act in ways that do not undermine the implementation of public policies and interventions to prevent and reduce harmful use of alcohol.

(d) Public health should be given proper deference in relation to competing interests and approaches that support that direction should be promoted.

(e) Protection of populations at high risk of alcohol-attributable harm and those exposed to the effects of harmful drinking by others should be an integral part of policies addressing the harmful use of alcohol.

(f) Individuals and families affected by the harmful use of alcohol should have access to affordable and effective prevention and care services.

(g) Children, teenagers and adults who choose not to drink alcoholic beverages have the right to be supported in their non-drinking behaviour and protected from pressures to drink.

(h) Public policies and interventions to prevent and reduce alcohol-related harm should encompass all alcoholic beverages and surrogate alcohol.^a

^a Surrogate alcohol refers to liquids usually containing ethanol and not intended for consumption as beverages, that are consumed orally as substitutes for alcoholic beverages with the objective of producing intoxication or other effects associated with alcohol consumption.

1.7.1 EVIDENCE OF EFFECTIVENESS

The health, safety and socioeconomic problems attributable to alcohol can be effectively reduced. A substantial body of knowledge has accumulated during recent years on the feasibility, effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of different policy options and interventions shown to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (e.g., Room et al., 2002; Babor 2003; Anderson & Baumberg, 2006; Chisholm et al., 2006; WHO, 2007; Anderson et al., 2009; Wagenaar et al., 2009; Babor et al., 2010; OECD, 2014). While most of the evidence comes from high-income countries, the number of studies in low-income and middle income countries is steadily increasing.

The accumulated research findings indicate that population-based policy options – such as the use of taxation to regulate the demand for alcoholic beverages, restricting their availability and implementing bans on alcohol advertising – are the "best buys" in reducing the harmful use of alcohol as they are highly cost-effective³ in reducing the alcohol-attributable deaths and disabilities at population level (Chisholm et al., 2004; Anderson et al., 2009; WHO, 2011b).

³ Cost-effective interventions are defined as those that generate an extra year of healthy life for a cost that falls below the average annual income or gross domestic product per person.

There is also strong evidence of effectiveness for certain measures against drink–driving. Setting low limits (0.02% to 0.05%) for blood alcohol concentration (BAC) and enforcing them by random breath testing (RBT) are effective not only in reducing road traffic injuries, but also in reducing alcohol consumption among drivers (Babor et al., 2010).

Health professionals have an important role in reducing the harmful use of alcohol by monitoring alcohol consumption in their patients and providing brief interventions, counselling and pharmacotherapy, as appropriate, in all cases of identified hazardous drinking or alcohol use disorders (Schuckit, 2009; Babor et al., 2010; WHO, 2010c; Moyer et al., 2013). Screening and brief interventions for hazardous and harmful drinking have a good cost-effectiveness profile, although their implementation requires more resources than are needed for population-based measures (Chisholm et al., 2004; Anderson et al., 2009).

There is some evidence of effectiveness of multicomponent community interventions (Holder et al., 2000; Wagenaar et al., 2000; Ramstedt et al., 2013) and regulating serving practices in bars and restaurants when properly implemented and enforced (Trolldal et al., 2012).

There are practical and often also normative limits, including vested interests and trade agreements, on the application of effective policies. Hence, successful planning and implementation of appropriate national, regional and international measures requires good scientific, technical and institutional capacity, as well as good market knowledge and insight, an appropriate legislative framework and active enforcement.

1.7.2 GLOBAL ACTION

The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) contains a set of guiding principles for the development and implementation of alcohol policies (see Box 8), sets priority areas for global action, recommends ten target areas for national action, and gives a strong mandate to WHO to strengthen action at all levels.

To ensure effective collaboration with and between Member States, WHO has facilitated establishment of the global network of WHO national counterparts for implementation of the Global strategy as well as a coordinating council for this purpose. At the inaugural meeting of the network, hosted by WHO in February 2011 and attended by national counterparts from 126 Member States, working mechanisms, plans and priority areas for implementation of the global strategy were established. WHO has supported the development of technical tools and training programmes according to the ten target areas for national action proposed in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol.

To strengthen national responses to alcohol-related public health problems, WHO cohosted a Global Alcohol Policy Conference "From the Global alcohol strategy to national and local action", held in Thailand in February 2012. The conference provided a global platform for information exchange, sharing experiences, building new partnerships to raise awareness of public health problems attributable to alcohol and advocating for implementation of the global strategy at all levels. WHO also co-sponsored a follow-up Global Alcohol Policy Conference in 2013 in the Republic of Korea, focusing on "Alcohol, civil society and public health: from local and national action to global change". The WHO Secretariat has worked closely with Member States, intergovernmental organizations and major partners within the United Nations system on promoting multisectoral action, building national capacity, identifying new partnership opportunities, and promoting effective and cost-effective approaches to reducing the harmful use of alcohol. Moreover, the WHO Secretariat has organized several consultations with nongovernmental organizations and professional associations to discuss their engagement in the implementation of the global strategy, and with economic operators on ways to reduce alcohol-related harm in their role as developers, producers, distributors, marketers and sellers of alcoholic beverages.

WHO has also supported capacity building workshops conducted at regional and country level in the African Region, the Region of the Americas, and the South-East Asia and Western Pacific regions. These workshops had a practical focus, working towards a country-specific roadmap that was both multisectoral and of immediate use in the countries concerned. The workshops also trained participants to roll out alcoholrelated activities locally, enabled countries to share case studies, strengthened regional networks and provided an opportunity to pilot-test new technical tools including modelling taxation and pricing, regulating availability of alcohol, and addressing advertising and marketing and legal provision. WHO has also taken several steps to facilitate production and dissemination of alcohol-related knowledge, as well as to monitor progress in implementing the Global strategy to reduce harmful use of alcohol. WHO has been refining mechanisms for data collection, data analysis and dissemination of findings (see section 1.8). WHO has also begun a global research initiative on alcohol, health and development and supports international research activities focused on harm to people other than the drinkers themselves (see Box 6), FASD and the relationship between the harmful use of alcohol and such communicable conditions as HIV infection and tuberculosis. Work is also in progress to make more information on alcohol and health available on the Internet, including web-based capacity-building materials and self-help interventions for hazardous and harmful drinking.

In addition to the global and cross-regional actions described above, endorsement of the Global strategy has prompted the development of strategies, action plans and programme activities in WHO's regions (see section 1.7.3) and in WHO Member States (see section 1.7.4 and chapter 4).

Moreover, Member States took their commitment to action to reduce alcohol-related harm to another level when, in September 2011, the United Nations (UN) General Assembly, for only the second time in its history, met to focus on a health issue, namely meeting the challenge of NCDs. Within this discussion, alcohol was one of four common risk factors identified – the others being tobacco use, unhealthy diet and lack of physical activity (see Box 9 for the Political Declaration). Also the UN Conference on Sustainable Development (General Assembly resolution 66/288) and the first report of the UN System Task Team on the Post-2015 UN Development Agenda (UN System Task Team, 2012) have acknowledged that addressing NCDs and related risk factors, including harmful use of alcohol, is a priority for social development and investment in people.

Box 9. Political Declaration of the High-level Meeting of the General Assembly on the Prevention and Control of Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs) (brief outline of selected sections)

The UN Political Declaration on NCDs, endorsed by Heads of State and Government in September 2011, acknowledges that the global burden and threat of NCDs constitutes one of the major challenges for development in the twenty-first century, which undermines social and economic development throughout the world and threatens the achievement of internationally agreed development goals. The Political Declaration recognizes that the most prominent NCDs are linked to common risk factors, namely tobacco use, harmful use of alcohol, an unhealthy diet and lack of physical activity and underlines the critical importance of reducing the level of exposure of individuals and populations to these risk factors while strengthening the capacity of individuals and populations to make healthier choices and follow lifestyle patterns that foster good health.

While the Political Declaration recognizes that governments have the primary role and responsibility in responding to the challenges of NCDs, it also reaffirms the leadership and coordination role of the World Health Organization in promoting and monitoring global action against NCDs.

With particular regard to reducing the harmful use of alcohol, the Political Declaration underlines the importance for Member States to continue implementation of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a), while recognizing the need to develop appropriate domestic action plans, in consultation with relevant stakeholders, for developing specific policies and programmes, including taking into account the full range of options as identified in the Global strategy, as well as raising awareness of the problems caused by the harmful use of alcohol, particularly among young people, and calls upon the World Health Organization to intensify efforts to assist Member States in this regard.

The Sixty-sixth WHA followed up on the Political Declaration by endorsing the WHO Global Action Plan for the prevention and control of NCDs 2013–2020 (WHO, 2013a). This action plan reinforces the implementation of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. Monitoring progress in implementing the action plan will follow the global monitoring framework, including 25 indicators and a set of nine voluntary global targets. One of these targets is at least a 10% relative reduction in the harmful use of alcohol, as appropriate, within each national context (see Box 10).
Box 10. Global monitoring framework for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases (NCDs) (WHO, 2013a)

The Political Declaration of the High-level Meeting of the United Nations General Assembly on the Prevention and Control of Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs) mandated the development of a global monitoring framework for the prevention and control of NCDs. The developed framework includes one alcohol-related voluntary global target and three alcoholrelated indicators of which one (alcohol-related morbidity and mortality) implies a group of indicators.

One alcohol-related voluntary global target: At least 10% relative reduction in the harmful use of alcohol, as appropriate, within the national context.

Three alcohol-related indicators: The relative reduction in the harmful use of alcohol could be expressed in reductions in three alcohol-related indicators, which are:

- 1. total (recorded and unrecorded) alcohol per capita (aged 15+ years) consumption within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol, as appropriate, within the national context
- age-standardized prevalence of heavy episodic drinking among adolescents and adults, as appropriate, within the national context
- 3. alcohol-related morbidity and mortality among adolescents and adults, as appropriate, within the national context.

The indicators of the global monitoring framework and the voluntary global targets provide overall direction for reporting on the progress achieved in prevention and control of NCDs. For achieving the voluntary target on alcohol, the Global Action Plan for the prevention and control of NCDs proposes that Member States reduce the harmful use of alcohol through the development and implementation, as appropriate, of comprehensive and multisectoral national policies and programmes as outlined in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol.

The global leadership, commitment and awareness associated with the WHO Global Action Plan for the prevention and control of NCDs 2013–2020 have also increased the level of global commitment to reducing the harmful use of alcohol. However, it is crucial to note that the consequences of harmful use of alcohol extend far beyond NCDs (see section 1.6).

The Mental Health Action Plan 2013–2020 was endorsed by the WHA in 2013 (WHA 66/8), with the goal to promote mental well-being, prevent mental disorders, provide care, enhance recovery, promote human rights and reduce the mortality, morbidity and disability affecting people with mental disorders. Implementation of the action plan will support and strengthen activities at all levels on the prevention and management of alcohol use disorders and associated mental health conditions (WHO, 2013c).

1.7.3 REGIONAL ACTION

Endorsement of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol prompted the development of strategies, action plans and programme activities in WHO's regions focusing on the 10 recommended target areas and the strategy's five objectives. A regional plan of action for the reduction of alcohol-related harm in the WHO Western Pacific Region 2009–2014 (WHO, 2009b) predated adoption of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. A regional strategy on reduction of the harmful use of alcohol was endorsed by the Regional Committee for Africa in 2010 (Resolution AFR/RC60/R2). The European action plan to reduce the harmful use of alcohol 2012–2020 (Document EUR/RC61/13), aligned with the Global strategy, was agreed upon by the Regional Committee for Europe in 2011 (Resolution EUR/RC61/R4). In the Region of the Americas, the plan of action (Document CD51/8, Rev.1) for implementation of the Global strategy was approved by the Pan American Health Organization's Directing Council (Resolution CD51.R14).

International networking at the regional level has also been enhanced by the continued functioning of the network of national counterparts in the WHO European Region, and by establishing the Pan American Network on Alcohol and Public Health in the WHO Region of the Americas and the networking of national counterparts in the WHO African Region and WHO Western Pacific Region.

1.7.4 NATIONAL POLICIES

There are some cross-border issues related to reducing the harmful use of alcohol, such as marketing, which cannot be resolved solely at the national level. Hence, regional and global action can support and complement national and local public health policies. However, harmful use of alcohol can only be reduced if effective actions are taken by Member States to protect their own populations. In other words, Member States have a primary responsibility for formulating, implementing, monitoring and evaluating public policies to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. A national alcohol policy will be made up of a set of individual policies, strategies and implementing actions. All countries will benefit from having a national strategy and appropriate legal frameworks to reduce harmful use of alcohol, regardless of the level of resources in the country. Depending on the characteristics of policy options and on national circumstances, some policy options can be implemented through non-legal frameworks, such as guidelines or voluntary restraints.

Successful implementation of national action requires sustained political commitment, effective coordination, sustainable funding and appropriate engagement of subnational governments as well as of civil society and economic operators. Many relevant decisionmaking authorities should be involved in the formulation and implementation of alcohol policies, such as the ministry of health and other relevant ministries, transportation authorities or taxation agencies. Governments need to establish, as appropriate, effective and permanent coordination structures comprising senior representatives of many ministries and other partners, to ensure a coherent approach to alcohol policies and a proper balance between policy goals in relation to harmful use of alcohol and other public policy goals. At the same time all the necessary measures should be taken to protect the formulation of health policies from distortion by commercial or vested interests, and, in the view of WHO, the alcohol industry has no role in the formulation of alcohol policies (Chan, 2013). Following endorsement of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol in 2010, an increasing number of countries have adopted a national alcohol policy or are in the process of developing or reformulating national policies for reducing the harmful use of alcohol (see chapter 4 for details). In addition to progress in the

development of written national alcohol policies, chapter 4 also describes a progress in adoption of countermeasures related to drink–driving, availability of alcohol and labelling of alcoholic beverages made since 2008. Several countries are in the process of considering an increase in the legal age for purchase of alcohol, introduction of a minimum price for a standard unit of alcohol and banning advertisement and promotion of alcoholic beverages. However, it is still true that a large proportion of countries, representing a high percentage of the global population, have weak alcohol policies and prevention programmes that do not effectively protect the health and safety of the population.

1.8 MONITORING

Effective monitoring is crucial in setting objectives for national plans to reduce harmful use of alcohol, evaluating success and making changes where needed. Hence, demand for global information on alcohol consumption (levels, patterns and context), alcohol-attributable harm (to drinkers, others and society at large) as well as related policy responses (existence, scale and timing) has increased. This is reflected in the fact that the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol lists monitoring and surveillance as one of the 10 areas for national action, and identifies production and dissemination of knowledge as one of the key components for global action (WHO 2010a). Moreover, inclusion of an alcohol target and indicators in the global monitoring framework for NCDs and their risk factors will further increase demand for high-quality global data on alcohol consumption and alcohol-related harm and attention to the WHO monitoring activities in this area.

In response to this increasing demand for global information, WHO is continuously developing its Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH, see Box 11; Poznyak et al., 2013) and has integrated it with the WHO Global Health Observatory and four regional information systems for the Region of the Americas, and the European, South-East Asia, and Western Pacific regions (http://www.who.int/gho/alcohol/en/index. html). The GISAH functions as one single data repository, with common data collection and data quality control procedures to prevent discrepancies between the global and regional information systems on alcohol and health.

GISAH and the Global Alcohol Database that preceded the development of GISAH have served as the basis for all WHO publications on alcohol since 1999, including the first Global status report on alcohol (WHO, 1999), the Global status report: alcohol and young people (WHO, 2001), the Global status report on alcohol (WHO, 2004b), the Global status report: alcohol policy (WHO, 2004c), as well as the last Global status report on alcohol and health (WHO, 2011a). GISAH data from 2010 will also be used as the baseline for reporting progress on alcohol-related indicators listed in the Global monitoring framework for NCDs (see Box 10).

The ultimate goal of the WHO global monitoring system on alcohol and health is strengthening the link between monitoring activities and policy development and evaluation. The WHO global surveys on alcohol and health, GISAH with integrated regional information systems, and regular global and regional status reports on alcohol and health comprise the central mechanism in WHO for monitoring implementation of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol at global, regional and country levels.

Box 11. The Global Information System on Alcohol and Health

The Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) is a comprehensive Internetbased platform to provide information on alcohol and health (http://www.who.int/gho/alcohol). Currently, GISAH encompasses more than 180 alcohol-related indicators for 194 WHO Member States and two Associate Members. Over time, indicators will be updated and improved and new ones added in order to assess the full range of issues related to alcohol and health. Data are arranged under a broad set of seven categories that contain a number of indicators chosen to assess the alcohol situation in WHO Member States as they relate to public health. These seven categories are:

- levels of alcohol consumption
- patterns of consumption
- harms and consequences
- economic aspects
- alcohol control policies
- prevention, research and treatment
- youth and alcohol.

The information system is the source for most of the data presented in this report.

The Global Survey on Alcohol and Health is an important data collection tool for GISAH. The latest survey was conducted by WHO in 2012 and the questionnaire developed for the survey was sent to all WHO Member States through WHO's six regional offices at the beginning of 2012. The 44 questions in the questionnaire were divided into three sections: section A addressed alcohol policy; section B addressed alcohol consumption; and section C addressed national monitoring and surveillance systems for alcohol and health. By early 2013, 177 WHO Member States had responded to the survey. This represents a response rate of 91.2% and overall global coverage of 97.2% of the world's population (see Appendix IV for details).

Other data sources for GISAH (see Appendix IV for details; Poznyak et al., 2013) include: government documents and national statistics; data from the Global burden of disease project; data from national and international surveys that include questions on alcohol consumption and related harm such as the WHO STEPS survey instrument (http://www.who. int/chp/steps/instrument/en/index.html); data in the public domain from economic operators in alcohol production and trade, including industry-supported organizations; published scientific articles; data from the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO) and other United Nations agencies; data from intergovernmental organizations such as Organization International de la Vigne et du Vin. The Centre for Addiction and Mental Health (CAMH) in Canada conducts passive surveillance of the relevant publications as well as of the grey literature. The WHO Secretariat convenes regular meetings with key providers of data on alcohol consumption to discuss and triangulate available data with the aim of achieving better estimates when national data are either unavailable or incomplete.

2. Alcohol consumption

2. ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

Icohol is consumed almost worldwide, but there are parts of the world where the majority of people, especially women are abstainers. This chapter reports on levels and patterns of alcohol consumption, including abstention rates in WHO regions and the world (see Appendix IV for a full list of WHO Member States included in this report by WHO region).

2.1 LEVELS OF CONSUMPTION

Levels of alcohol consumption can be measured using several indicators. Two of the most commonly used indicators are alcohol per capita consumption in liters of pure alcohol per year and alcohol consumption in grams of pure alcohol per person per day, and the latter indicator can be converted from the previous one (see Box 12).

Box 12. Alcohol per capita consumption (APC)

Alcohol per capita consumption (APC) is defined as the per capita amount of alcohol consumed in litres of pure alcohol in a given population.

Adult per capita consumption (15+ years) usually refers to per capita alcohol consumption in the population of those aged 15 years and older, but in this report the term "adult per capita consumption" is avoided as the population 15–19 years old is presented in this report as population of adolescents, also for consistency with the context of alcohol-related indicators included in the Global monitoring framework for the prevention and control of NCDs (see Box 10 in Chapter 1). In the international context limiting per capita alcohol consumption to the population 15+ years balances the fact that population distributions in developing countries are quite different from those in developed countries (i.e. developing countries have a much larger proportion of children and young people). Using per capita consumption for the whole population would mean that consumption among adults would be underestimated in those countries with many young people.

Total per capita (15+ years) consumption is defined as total (recorded plus estimated unrecorded) alcohol per capita (aged 15 years and older) consumption within a calendar year in litres of pure alcohol. In this report total APC in 2010 consists of the sum of average APC (15+) of recorded alcohol in 2008–2010 and an estimate of unrecorded per capita (15+) alcohol consumption (see Box 13) in 2010. Notably, the recorded APC data were adjusted for 29 countries where the number of tourists was at least equal to the number of inhabitants (see Appendix IV for methodology). There are different data sources and approaches for calculating APC and assessing distribution by alcoholic beverage, as discussed in Appendix IV. This report mostly uses official data sources such as tax or sales data, rather than data calculated from surveys, which is often imprecise and underreported. Aggregate data are weighted by population size in each country.

Grams of pure alcohol per day is another often used measure of alcohol consumption. In particular, this measure is used by a number of countries that have set guidelines for daily limits on alcohol consumption to minimize risks to health. Given the specific weight of alcohol of 0.793 g/cm³ (at 20 °C), per capita consumption in litres of pure ethanol per year can be converted into grams per day as follows:

g/day = APC x 1000 x 0.793/365 days

2.1.1 TOTAL PER CAPITA CONSUMPTION

As shown by the most recent WHO data, globally, individuals above 15 years of age drink on average 6.2 litres of pure alcohol per year (see Figure 2 for further details), which translates into 13.5 grams of pure alcohol per day. However, there is wide variation in total alcohol consumption across WHO regions and Member States (see Figure 2). The highest consumption levels continue to be found in the developed world, in particular in the WHO European Region (EUR) and the WHO Region of the Americas (AMR). Intermediate levels of consumption are found in the WHO Western Pacific Region (WPR) and the WHO African Region (AFR), while the lowest consumption levels are found in the WHO South-East Asia Region (SEAR) and particularly in the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region (EMR; see Figure 3 for data).





Differences in the levels of total consumption between regions of the world and between countries are the result of complex interactions between a wide range of factors. These include sociodemographic factors (see Chapter 1), prevalence rates of abstention (see section 2.2.1), level of economic development (see section 2.2.4.4), culture, such as predominance of Islam religion, and the preferred beverage types (see section 2.1.3). For example, only 5.4% of the population in the Eastern Mediterranean Region had consumed alcohol in the past 12 months, contributing to the fact that the Eastern Mediterranean Region's share of the total alcohol consumption in the world is significantly less than the population size might suggest. Conversely, the WHO European Region is home to 14.7% of the world's population aged 15+ years, but consumes more than a quarter (25.7%) of the total alcohol consumed worldwide.

2.1.2 UNRECORDED ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

Total APC as discussed above comprises two components, namely consumption of recorded and of unrecorded alcohol. Recorded alcohol is alcohol consumed as a beverage that is recorded in official statistics, such as data on alcohol taxation or sales (see Appendix IV for details by country). Unrecorded alcohol is alcohol consumed as a beverage but that is not accounted for in official statistics on alcohol taxation or sales (see Box 13).

Box 13. Unrecorded alcohol

Unrecorded alcohol refers to alcohol that is not taxed in the country where it is consumed because it is usually produced, distributed and sold outside the formal channels under government control. Unrecorded alcohol consumption in a country includes consumption of home-made or informally produced alcohol (legal or illegal), smuggled alcohol, alcohol intended for industrial or medical uses, and alcohol obtained through cross-border shopping (which is recorded in a different jurisdiction). Sometimes these alcoholic beverages are traditional drinks that are produced and consumed in the community or in homes. Home-made or informally produced alcoholic beverages are mostly fermented products made from sorghum, millet, maize, rice, wheat or fruits.

Unrecorded consumption also includes so-called surrogate alcohol, commonly ethanol that was not produced as beverage alcohol but is used as such, e.g. mouthwash, denatured alcohol, medicinal tinctures, aftershaves and perfumes.

There are different sources of relevant data and various approaches to estimating unrecorded alcohol consumption, as discussed in Appendix IV.

Worldwide almost a quarter (24.8%) of all alcohol consumed is consumed in the form of unrecorded alcohol (see Figure 3). In some countries, particularly within the WHO South-East Asia Region and the Eastern Mediterranean Region, unrecorded alcohol consumption makes up more than 50% of total alcohol consumption. For example, in some countries where alcohol is banned, as in some Islamic states in the Eastern Mediterranean Region, unrecorded alcohol amounts to 100% or almost 100% of total APC. Also, in lower middle and low-income countries in the WHO South-East Asia Region, particularly India, home-made spirits constitute a high proportion of total alcohol consumed (see section 2.2.4.4 for further data by income group).

The distribution of unrecorded alcohol consumption across WHO regions is approximately proportional to the distribution of the worldwide population across the regions. For example, in the WHO South-East Asia Region, which has 25.0% of the world's population, 26.4% of the worldwide unrecorded alcohol is consumed. In contrast, the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region only consumes 1.9% of all worldwide unrecorded alcohol despite being home to 7.6% of the world's adult population, because overall consumption of alcohol in the Eastern Mediterranean Region is very low (see Appendix I for data on unrecorded alcohol consumption by WHO Member State).

Figure 3. Total, unrecorded and recorded alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption in litres of pure alcohol by WHO region and the world, 2010



2.1.3 MOST CONSUMED ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

Geographical differences exist regarding the type of alcohol people consume – beer, wine, spirits or other alcoholic beverages (e.g. fortified wines, rice wine or other fermented beverages made of sorghum, millet or maize), as shown in the country profiles section of this report.

Globally, 50.1% of total recorded alcohol is consumed in the form of spirits, which are also the most consumed beverage type in the WHO South-East Asia and Western Pacific regions (see Figure 4). The second most consumed beverage type is beer, which accounts for 34.8% of all recorded alcohol consumed in the world. It is the most consumed type of beverage in the WHO Region of the Americas (55.3%). Only 8.0% of total recorded alcohol is consumed in the form of wine. However, consumption of wine represents one fourth of total consumption in the WHO European Region (25.7%) and one ninth of total consumption the WHO Region of the Americas (11.7%) notably due to the high share of wine consumption in Argentina and Chile. "Other" beverages only represent 7.1% of all consumption, but constitute the most popular beverage type in the African Region (51.6% of total recorded consumption).



Figure 4. Proportion (%) of recorded alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption consumed in the form of beer, wine, spirits and other types of beverages by WHO region and the world, 2010

2.2 PATTERNS OF DRINKING

2.2.1 ABSTENTION RATES

A majority of the world's adult population had abstained from drinking alcohol in the past 12 months. These individuals may be lifetime abstainers or former drinkers (see Box 14).

Box 14. Types of abstainers

Lifetime abstainers: people who have never consumed alcohol.

Former drinkers: people who have previously consumed alcohol but who have not done so in the previous 12-month period.

Past 12-month abstainers: people who did not drink any alcohol in the previous 12-month period. This includes former drinkers and lifetime abstainers.

In this report, rates of abstention refer to the percentage of people in a given population aged 15 years or older who are either lifetime abstainers, former drinkers or past 12-month abstainers (as specified separately in each case). Best estimates for abstention rates in 2010 are presented for 190 WHO Member States (and Associate Member States) based on the methodology discussed in Appendix IV.

Worldwide, 61.7% of the population (15+) had not drunk alcohol in the past 12 months, and 13.7% had ceased alcohol consumption (i.e. they have consumed alcohol earlier in life but not in the past 12 months). Almost half of the global adult population (48.0%) has never consumed alcohol (see Figure 5).



Figure 5. Proportion (%) of current drinkers, former drinkers and lifetime abstainers among the total population (15+ years) by WHO region and the world, 2010

There is considerable variation in prevalence of abstention across WHO regions (see Figure 5) and WHO Member States (see Figure 6). Comparing Figure 6 to Figure 2 (showing total APC) suggests that abstention rates are high in countries with low APC, because fewer drinkers add to the APC of that country or region.

Figure 6. Prevalence of past 12-month abstention (%; 15+ years), 2010



Worldwide, 22.2% of all past 12-month abstainers have consumed alcohol in an earlier period of their lives. Another trend suggested by Figure 5 is that the higher the proportion of past 12-month abstainers (lifetime abstainers plus former drinkers), the lower the proportion of former drinkers among abstainers. For example, 94.6% of the population in the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region are abstainers (i.e. past 12-month abstainers), but only 4.8% of abstainers in this region are former drinkers. In contrast, only 33.6% of the population in the WHO European Region are past 12-month abstainers, but 38.7% of all abstainers were former drinkers.

2.2.2 HEAVY EPISODIC DRINKING

Heavy episodic drinking (HED) is an indicator of the pattern of alcohol consumption (defined as 60 or more grams of pure alcohol on at least one single occasion at least monthly, see Box 1 in Chapter 1), which varies widely between countries (see Figure 7).





Table 1 shows, on the regional level, that higher APC is associated with higher prevalence of HED among drinkers and among the total population aged 15 years or older. For example, the WHO South-East Asia Region has an APC (15+ years) of 3.4 litres, while the prevalence of HED is 12.4% among drinkers (15+ years) and 1.6% in the total population aged 15 years or older. Compared to the WHO South-East Asia Region, the WHO Region of the Americas has higher APC (8.4 litres vs 3.4 litres), prevalence of HED among drinkers (22.0% vs 12.4%) and prevalence of HED in the total population aged 15 years or older (13.7% vs 1.6%).

While there is an association between total APC and prevalence of HED among the total population, there is no consistent association between total APC among drinkers and the prevalence of HED among drinkers. For example, in the WHO South-East Asia Region, drinkers consume on average 23.1 litres of pure alcohol per capita per year and the prevalence of HED among drinkers is 12.4%. In contrast in the WHO Region of the Americas, APC among drinkers (15+ years) is lower, 13.6 litres, yet the percentage of

HED among drinkers is higher, 22.0%. Also, it appears that both the WHO South-East Asia Region and the WHO African Region have a relatively low prevalence of HED (i.e. 12.4% and 16.4% respectively), but APC among drinkers aged 15 years or older reaches high levels (i.e. 23.1 litres and 19.5 litres).

Table 1. Total alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) and prevalence of heavy episodic drinking (%) in total population aged 15 years or older (15+ years) and among drinkers (15+ years) by WHO region and the world, 2010

	Among all	(15+ years)	Among drinkers only (15+ years)		
WHO region	Total APC	HED prevalence (percentage)	Total APC	HED prevalence (percentage)	
AFR	6.0	5.7	19.5	16.4	
AMR	8.4	13.7	13.6	22.0	
EMR	0.7	0.1	11.3	1.6	
EUR	10.9	16.5	16.8	22.9	
SEAR	3.4	1.6	23.1	12.4	
WPR	6.8	7.7	15.0	16.4	
World	6.2	7.5	17.2	16.0	

2.2.3 PATTERNS OF DRINKING SCORE

Measuring drinking patterns to account accurately for the impact of alcohol consumption on people's health and well-being is more complex than simply ascertaining the amount of alcohol consumed. In the 2000 Comparative Risk Assessment in the Global burden of disease study, a composite measure of drinking patterns – the patterns of drinking score (PDS) – was developed (Rehm et al., 2003b; see Box 15).

Box 15. Patterns of drinking score (PDS)

PDS reflect how people drink instead of how much they drink within a population. Strongly associated with the alcohol-attributable burden of disease in a country, PDS is measured on a scale from 1 (least risky pattern of drinking) to 5 (most risky pattern of drinking). The higher the score, the greater the alcohol-attributable burden of disease in population groups with the same level of consumption. Notably, different drinking patterns give rise to very different health outcomes in population groups with the same level of consumption.

PDS estimates are based on the following drinking attributes which are weighted differentially in order to provide the PDS on a scale from 1 to 5:

- the usual quantity of alcohol consumed per occasion;
- · festive drinking;
- proportion of drinking events when drinkers get drunk;
- proportion of drinkers who drink daily or nearly daily;
- drinking with meals;
- drinking in public places.

Two of these attributes make the pattern of drinking less risky, namely, the proportions of drinkers who drink with meals or drink daily or nearly daily .

Data for 2010 on the above measures stem from surveys (see Appendix IV for details).

There are only a few countries in the world with the lowest PDS, or the least risky patterns of drinking (Figure 8). These countries are in southern and western Europe. The highest PDS, i.e., the most risky patterns of drinking, have been found in Russia and Ukraine. The widest diversity of patterns can be found in the WHO European Region, and half of all countries worldwide have a score of 3. Less risky drinking patterns (with a score lower than 3) are mainly found in the upper middle and high-income countries, whereas more than 95% of low-income and lower middle income countries have a score of 3.





2.2.4 FACTORS IMPACTING ON ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

There are several major determinants that have an impact on levels and patterns of alcohol consumption. Some are individual risk factors and others are environmental factors, for example, availability of alcohol and the policy environment.

2.2.4.1 AGE

As discussed in Chapter 1, both young and old age can influence alcohol consumption. First we describe data collected on levels and patterns of alcohol consumption among adolescents (15 to 19-year-olds).

In general, regional differences in the proportions of abstainers and drinkers among 15 to 19-year-olds reflect those among the total population aged 15 years and older (compare Figure 5 and Figure 9). The WHO European Region and WHO Region of the Americas have the highest proportions of current drinkers among adolescents and the WHO South-East Asia Region and WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region the lowest.



Figure 9. Proportion (%) of current drinkers, former drinkers and lifetime abstainers among 15 to 19-year-olds by WHO region and the world, 2010

With regard to patterns of alcohol consumption, worldwide, monthly HED is slightly more prevalent among young people aged 15–19 years (11.7%) than among the total population aged 15 years or older (7.5%; see Figure 11). However, there are differences between WHO Member States (see Figure 10) and between WHO regions (see Figure 11). The highest rates of heavy drinking among adolescents are found in the WHO European Region, WHO Region of the Americas and WHO Western Pacific Region, and HED is more prevalent among adolescents than among the total population aged 15 years or older in all these WHO regions. In the WHO South-East Asia Region, HED is more prevalent in older age groups and in the WHO African Region, a similar proportion of HED is found among adolescents and among the total population aged 15 years or older. In the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region, HED is generally too low to draw any firm conclusions.



Figure 10. Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking among 15–19-year-olds (%), 2010





2.2.4.2 SEX

In all WHO regions, females are more often lifetime abstainers than males. Also, when females drink alcohol, they drink less on average and engage less often in HED (see Table 2). Thus, there are also substantial sex differences in the proportion of current drinkers among all people aged 15 years or older (males/females ratio between 1.3 and 4.3), and total APC among drinkers aged 15 years or older (males/females ratio between 1.7 and 3.2), particularly in the WHO South-East Asia Region. Across WHO regions, sex differences are smaller in the WHO African Region, WHO Region of the Americas and WHO European Region than they are in the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region, WHO South-East Asia Region and WHO Western Pacific Region. The biggest sex differences are found for prevalence of HED, with a ratio of 10.9 (i.e. almost 11 times more HED among males than among females) in the WHO South-East Asia Region and a ratio of 7.3 in the WHO Western Pacific Region. In interpreting these data, it may be important to note that the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region consists mostly of Islamic states and, as the population in the WHO South-East Asia Region is composed largely of the population of India and that in the WHO Western Pacific Region largely of the population of China, the consumption and drinking patterns in those countries have a large impact on the situation in the regions.

Table 2 also shows that total alcohol per capita consumption in 2010 among male and female drinkers worldwide was on average 21.2 litres and 8.9 litres of pure alcohol, respectively. Depending on the WHO region, this translates into 30–57 grams of pure alcohol per day for males and 10–29 grams of pure alcohol per day for females.

Table 2. Proportion (%) of current drinkers among all (15+ years), total APC among drinkers(15+ years; in litres of pure alcohol), and prevalence (%) of heavy episodic drinking (HED) amongdrinkers (15+ years) by sex, as well as corresponding ratios, by WHO region and the world, 2010

		on of current ; all (15+ yea		Total APC among drinkers (15+ years)		Prevalence of HED among drinkers (15+ years) (%)			
WHO region	Males	Females	Males/ females	Males	Females	Males/ females	Males	Females	Males/ females
AFR	40.2	19.6	2.1	22.4	13.2	1.7	20.3	8.3	2.4
AMR	70.7	52.8	1.3	18.0	8.0	2.3	29.4	12.3	2.4
EMR	7.4	3.3	2.2	14.0	4.8	2.9	2.0	0.5	3.7
EUR	73.4	59.9	1.2	22.7	10.1	2.3	31.8	12.6	2.5
SEAR	21.7	5.0	4.3	26.3	8.2	3.2	15.4	1.4	10.9
WPR	58.9	32.2	1.8	19.0	7.1	2.7	23.1	3.2	7.3
World	47.7	28.9	1.6	21.2	8.9	2.1	21.5	5.7	3.8

2.2.4.3 AGE AND SEX

In line with sex differences among adults, there are more current drinkers and fewer lifetime abstainers among adolescent males than among adolescent females in all WHO regions. Moreover, there are about three times more young males (16.8%) than females (6.2%) who engage in HED.

In general, the prevalence of HED among adolescents aged 15–19 years mirrors the prevalence among all (15+ years), with the highest heavy drinking rates among young people of both sexes found in the WHO European Region, WHO Region of the Americas, and WHO Western Pacific Region (see Table 3).

Table 3. Prevalence (%) of heavy episodic drinking among the total population aged 15 yearsand older (15+ years) and adolescents (15–19 years) and the corresponding adolescents-to-adults ratios by sex, WHO region and the world, 2010

		Males		Females			
WHO region	All (15+) (%)	Adolescents (%)	Adolescents/all	All (15+) (%)	Adolescents (%)	Adolescents/all	
AFR	9.3	10.3	1.1	2.1	2.2	1.0	
AMR	20.9	29.3	1.4	6.9	7.1	1.0	
EMR	0.1	0.1	0.8	0.0	0.0	2.4	
EUR	24.9	40.0	1.6	8.9	22.0	2.5	
SEAR	3.1	2.1	0.7	0.1	0.0	0.4	
WPR	14.0	18.3	1.3	1.3	6.1	4.8	
World	12.3	16.8	1.4	2.9	6.2	2.2	

2.2.4.4 ECONOMIC WEALTH

In general, the greater the economic wealth of a country, the more alcohol is consumed and the smaller the number of abstainers. As shown in Table 4, economic wealth is also associated with lower proportions of unrecorded APC of total APC and a higher prevalence of HED among drinkers. For example, in high-income countries only 8.5% of all alcohol consumed consists of unrecorded alcohol, whereas in low-income and lower middle income countries more than 40% of all alcohol consumed is unrecorded alcohol. One explanation for this association is that unrecorded alcohol is commonly cheaper than recorded alcohol.

Table 4. Total alcohol per capita consumption (APC) and unrecorded APC (in litres of pure alcohol) and the corresponding proportion (%) of unrecorded APC of total APC, as well as the prevalence (%) of current drinkers and of HED among current drinkers, all among the total population aged 15 years and older by income group and the world, 2010

Income group	Total APC	Unrecorded APC	Proportion of unrecorded APC of total APC (%)	Prevalence of current drinkers (%)	Prevalence of HED among drinkers (%)
Low income	3.1	1.4	44.3	18.3	11.6
Lower middle income	4.1	1.7	42.3	19.6	12.5
Upper middle income	7.3	1.8	24.2	45.0	17.2
High income	9.6	0.8	8.5	69.5	22.3
World	6.2	1.5	24.8	38.3	16.0

While the relationship between levels and patterns of alcohol consumption and economic wealth appears fairly straightforward at the global level (see Table 4), the associations described may not be equally true in all WHO regions (see Appendix I for further alcohol consumption-related data by WHO Member State as well as Appendix IV for a list of WHO Member States by World Bank income group).

2.2.4.5 ECONOMIC WEALTH AND SEX

Another factor that can be considered in combination with economic wealth is sex (Table 5). Sex differences in alcohol consumption are generally smaller in low- and high-income countries compared to middle income countries.

Table 5. Total alcohol per capita consumption (APC; in litres of pure alcohol), as well asprevalence (%) of current drinkers and of heavy episodic drinking (HED) among the totalpopulation aged 15 years and older by sex, income group and the world, 2010

	Proportio	on of current	drinkers	Total APC among drinkers			Prevalence of HED among drinkers		
Income group	Males (%)	Females (%)	Males/ females	Males	Females	Males/ females	Males (%)	Females (%)	Males/ females
Low income	24.9	11.9	2.1	18.4	8.9	2.1	14.5	5.4	2.7
Lower middle income	28.0	11.0	2.5	24.0	8.0	3.0	15.8	2.6	6.2
Upper middle income	57.3	32.5	1.8	20.5	8.5	2.4	24.0	4.9	4.9
High income	75.6	63.6	1.2	18.9	8.4	2.3	30.2	13.4	2.3
World	47.7	28.9	1.6	21.2	8.4	2.5	21.5	5.7	3.8

2.3 TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS

2.3.1 FIVE-YEAR CHANGE IN ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

The most prevalent tendency worldwide is an increase in recorded alcohol per capita consumption (see Figure 12). This trend is mainly driven by an increase in alcohol consumption in China and India, which could potentially be linked to active marketing by the alcohol industry and increased income in these countries. The five-year trend in the WHO African Region, WHO European Region and, particularly, the WHO Region of the Americas is mainly stable, although some countries in the WHO European Region and the WHO African Region report significant decreases in consumption.



Figure 12. Five-year change in recorded alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption, 2006–2010

Since the last Global status report on alcohol and health (WHO, 2011a), there have been some changes in levels and patterns of alcohol consumption at the regional level (see Table 6), although any direct comparisons between 2005 and 2010 for such indicators as unrecorded APC and prevalence of current drinkers should be treated with caution in view of the differences in available data and methods used for producing the estimates for these indicators for 2005 and 2010. Globally, total per capita consumption (15+ years) has slightly increased, with regional increases in consumption being reported in the WHO South-East Asia Region and the WHO Western Pacific Region. In contrast, there has been a decrease in per capita consumption in the WHO African Region, the WHO Region of the Americas and particularly in the WHO European Region (from 12.2 litres in 2005 to 10.9 litres in 2010). It is important to note that there has also been a documented decrease in adolescents' consumption in several countries in the WHO European Region (Hibell et al., 2012). In line with the markedly lower estimates of total APC among aged 15 years and older (15+ years) and among adolescents in the WHO European Region, the estimates of prevalence of current drinkers in this region for 2010 are lower than for 2005 (see Table 6). These changes in the WHO European Region and in the Western Pacific Region are the main driver of a global decrease in the estimated prevalence of current drinkers, despite a slight increase in all other WHO regions. Finally, as presented in Table 6, unrecorded alcohol per capita consumption in the WHO Region of the Americas and the WHO European Region is estimated at substantially lower levels for 2010 than in 2005, and this difference largely determines the lower figures for unrecorded alcohol consumption in the world in 2010.

	Total	APC	Unrecor	ded APC	Proportion of APC of tot		Prevalence drinke	of current rs (%)
WHO regions	2005	2010	2005	2010	2005	2010	2005	2010
AFR	6.2	6.0	1.9	1.8	31.4	29.3	29.2	29.8
AMR	8.7	8.4	2.0	1.2	23.1	14.4	58.3	61.5
EMR	0.7	0.7	0.4	0.4	56.2	54.5	3.5	5.4
EUR	12.2	10.9	2.7	1.9	21.9	17.1	68.8	66.4
SEAR	2.2	3.4	1.5	1.6	69	47.4	10.7	13.5
WPR	6.2	6.8	1.6	1.7	36.2	25.1	56.3	45.8
World	6.1	6.2	1.8	1.5	28.7	24.8	41.8	38.3

Table 6. Total alcohol per capita consumption (APC) and unrecorded APC (in litres of pure alcohol) and the proportion (%) of unrecorded APC of total APC, as well as the prevalence (%) of current drinkers, all among the total adult (15+ years) population by WHO region, 2005 and 2010

2.3.2 PROJECTIONS UP TO 2025

Up until 2025, alcohol per capita consumption (15+ years) is expected to continue to increase in half of the WHO regions (see Figure 13) unless effective policy responses reverse this trend. If this expected increase is not counterbalanced by substantial decreases in the other half of the WHO regions, alcohol per capita consumption globally is expected to increase. The highest increase is expected in the populations of the WHO Western Pacific Region, dominated by the population of China, with an increase in per capita consumption of 1.5 litres of pure alcohol by 2025. Recorded alcohol per capita

consumption is also expected to increase in the WHO Region of the Americas and the WHO South-East Asia Region. Alcohol consumption in the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region and the WHO African Region is expected to remain stable. Despite the expected decrease of alcohol consumption in the WHO European Region (by 0.6 litres per capita), it will remain the region with the highest per capita consumption in the world.



Figure 13. Total alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption by WHO region, 2010–2025

It should be noted that the above predictions refer to APC (i.e. the volume of alcohol consumed by each individual aged 15 years or older on average). Thus, although APC is not expected to increase in the WHO African Region in the next 10 years, the high growth rate of the adolescent and adult population will increase the number of potential consumers. Consequently, the total amount of alcohol consumed in the WHO African Region might also substantially increase. The same applies to the WHO South-East Asia Region, which will be influenced by the high population growth rate in its populous countries.

Note: Data for 2015, 2020 and 2025 are estimated: 95% confidence intervals will be made available by the Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH). See Appendix IV for details on the methodology.

3. Health consequences

3. HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

armful use of alcohol is one of the world's leading risk factors for morbidity, disability and mortality. It is a component cause of more than 200 disease and injury conditions as described in the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems (ICD) 10th Revision (WHO, 1992). Globally, alcohol consumption results in approximately 3.3 million deaths each year, and this number has already been adjusted to take into account the beneficial impact of low-risk patterns of alcohol consumption on some diseases. Of all deaths worldwide, 5.9% are attributable to alcohol consumption; this is greater than, for example, the proportion of deaths from HIV/AIDS (2.8%), violence (0.9%) or tuberculosis (1.7%). Also, 5.1% of the global burden of disease and injury is attributable to alcohol, as measured in disability-adjusted life years (DALYs).

This chapter describes the impact of alcohol consumption on population health status, including the consequences on the health status of drinkers and some of the health consequences for individuals other than the drinker (notably, fetal alcohol syndrome and some alcohol-attributable injuries). The causal links between alcohol and death, disease and injury, as well as the impact of harmful use of alcohol on economic development and society at large are discussed in chapter 1.

3.1 AGGREGATE HEALTH EFFECTS

Figure 14 gives an overview of the proportion of all global deaths and burden of disease caused by alcohol consumption, i.e. alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs, see Box 7 in chapter 1). In other words, this is the net impact of alcohol consumption on the health status of the world as a whole rather than the impact on individuals. As highlighted in chapter 1, associations with alcohol without a quantifiable causal link are not reported in this chapter.

As shown in Figure 14, alcohol impacts different disease and injury outcomes to various degrees. Besides alcohol use disorders (AUDs) and fetal alcohol syndrome (FAS), which are defined as being 100% attributable to alcohol, liver diseases (most prominently liver cirrhosis) have the highest AAF. As these diseases are relatively prevalent and are among the top 20 causes of death globally, alcohol-attributable liver disease is a major factor in global burden of disease (Rehm & Shield, 2013). Beyond AUDs, FAS and liver diseases, alcohol is related to many diseases and causes of death with relatively low AAFs. In other words, for most alcohol-attributable causes of death or burden of disease categories, less than 20% of the respective disease burden is attributable to alcohol. This has implications

	All global deaths (%)	All gobal DALYs ^a (%)	
Alcohol use disorders	100	100	Not attributable to alcohol
Fetal alcohol syndrome	100	100	Alcohol attributable
Liver cirrhosis	50	50	
Oral cavity and pharynx cancers	30	31	
Pancreatitis	25	27	
Laryngeal cancer	23	24	
Oesophageal cancer	22	23	
Interpersonal violence	22	20	
Self-harm	22	20	
Poisoning	18	14	
Other unintentional injuries ^b	17	14	
Falls	16	13	
Traffic injuries	15	13	
Drownings	13	10	
Tuberculosis	12	11	
Liver cancer	12	12	
Epilepsy	12	10	
Haemorrhagic stroke	11	11	
Fire	11	8	
Colorectal cancer	10	10	
Hypertensive heart disease	8	10	
Conduction disorders ^c	8	8	
Breast cancer	8	8	
Ischaemic heart disease	7	5	
Lower respiratory infections	4	2	
Pancreatic cancer	4	4	
Ischaemic stroke	4	4	
HIV/AIDS	1	1	
Preterm birth	0	0	
Diabetes mellitus	-2	-2	
	1 1		

Figure 14. Alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs) for selected causes of death, disease and injury, 2012

^a As measured in disability-adjusted life years,

^b includes smothering, asphyxiation, choking, animal or snakebites, hypothermia and hyperthermia,

^c and other dysrhythmias.

Note: For diabetes mellitus, the AAF was negative, meaning that, overall, alcohol consumption exerts a beneficial effect on this disease. Low-risk patterns of alcohol consumption also exert beneficial effects on some other diseases, e.g., ischaemic heart disease, but these effects are not strong enough for the overall AAF to be negative. For details on the methodology see Appendix IV.

for the public perception of alcohol as a risk factor. Most people are not aware of the health risks of alcohol consumption for diseases other than AUDs. This is especially true for the impact of alcohol on cancers: from 4% to about 25% of the disease burden due to specific cancers are attributable to alcohol worldwide. Alcohol consumption also contributes to about 10% of the disease burden due to tuberculosis, epilepsy, haemorrhagic stroke and hypertensive heart disease in the world.

3.1.1 ALCOHOL-ATTRIBUTABLE MORTALITY

In 2012, 5.9% of all global deaths were attributable to alcohol. Figure 15 shows the distribution of these 5.9% of global deaths by broad disease category. Notably, Figure 15 only shows alcohol-attributable deaths (5.9% of global deaths), not all global deaths (100%; as shown in Figure 14).

Figure 15. Distribution of alcohol-attributable deaths, as a percentage of all alcohol-attributable deaths by broad disease category, 2012



^a Including beneficial effects of low risk drinking patterns on some diseases.

Overall, about 3.3 million deaths in 2012 are estimated to have been caused by alcohol consumption. This corresponds to 5.9% of all deaths, or one in every twenty deaths in the world (7.6% for men, 4.0% for women). No particular broad disease category stands out. The highest numbers of deaths are from cardiovascular diseases, followed by injuries (especially unintentional injuries), gastrointestinal diseases (mainly liver cirrhosis) and cancers. The key reasons for the change in the total number and distribution of alcohol-attributable deaths across broad disease categories since the Global status report on alcohol and health 2011 are the new evidence on the role of alcohol consumption in mortality in the Russian Federation (Zaridze et al., 2009, 2014) and the inclusion of infectious diseases in this assessment. This inclusion is based on an improved knowledge of the causal relationship between alcohol consumption and the incidence and clinical outcomes of infectious diseases such as tuberculosis and pneumonia (see chapter 1).

There is wide geographical variation in alcohol-attributable deaths. As shown in Figure 16 and Figure 17, the proportion of alcohol-attributable deaths relative to all deaths, i.e., AAFs, is highest in the WHO European Region. This is not surprising, as alcohol consumption is also the highest in this WHO region. However, it is important to note that the high AAF figures in the WHO European Region are almost entirely driven by Eastern European countries, which report both high-risk levels and patterns of alcohol consumption. The lowest AAFs are recorded in the African and Eastern Mediterranean Regions. Low AAFs in the African Region are probably due to high premature mortality in this region, while low AAFs in the Eastern Mediterranean Region are due to high rates of abstinence in this region (see chapter 2).

Figure 16. Alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs) for all-cause deaths by WHO region and the world, 2012



Figure 17. Alcohol-attributable fractions for all-cause deaths (AAFs; %; all ages), 2012



3.1.2 ALCOHOL-ATTRIBUTABLE BURDEN OF DISEASE AND INJURY

In 2012, 5.1% of the global burden of disease and injury, as measured in DALYs (see Box 7 in Chapter 1), was attributable to alcohol. Figure 18 shows the distribution of these DALYs across eight broad disease categories.

Figure 18. Distribution of alcohol-attributable burden of disease, as a percentage of all alcohol-attributable DALYs by broad disease category, 2012



^a Including beneficial effects of low-risk drinking patterns on some diseases. Note: Percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

The relative effect of alcohol consumption on disease burden from neuropsychiatric disorders was far more pronounced than was its effect on mortality (compare Figure 18 with Figure 15). About a quarter of all alcohol-attributable DALYs were due to neuropsychiatric disorders compared with 4% for all alcohol-attributable deaths. This is mainly due to AUDs (see Box 4 in Chapter 1), which cause more disability than mortality compared to other chronic diseases (Shield et al., 2013). Figure 19 provides further information on the prevalence of AUDs, as well as its component parts, alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.



Figure 19. Prevalence of alcohol use disorders (AUDs^a) by WHO region and the world, 2010

^a The prevalence of AUDs is the sum of the prevalence of harmful use and alcohol dependence, in line with ICD-10 criteria (WHO, 1992).

As expected, there was substantial regional variability in the global alcohol-attributable burden of disease and injury similar to that observed for alcohol-attributable deaths (see Figure 20 and Figure 21). In the European Region and particularly in high-income countries within Europe, there is a much higher alcohol-attributable disease burden compared to alcohol-attributable deaths because of the disabling impact of AUDs.



Figure 20. Alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs) for all-cause DALYs by WHO region and the world, 2012



Figure 21. Alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs) for all-cause DALYs (AAFs; %; all ages), 2012

3.1.3 FACTORS IMPACTING ON HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

3.1.3.1 AGE

Alcohol consumption causes deaths relatively early in life. Figure 22 gives an overview of the proportion of deaths attributable to alcohol over the life course. Among all age groups starting from 15 years old, AAFs are highest in the European Region, followed by the Region of the Americas. For the age periods of 60 years and above, the proportion of alcohol-attributable deaths is lower than for early and mid-adulthood. Worldwide, AAFs are highest within the population aged 40–49 years.



Figure 22. Proportion of alcohol-attributable deaths (%) of total deaths by age group, 2012

3.1.3.2 SEX

While 5.9% of all global deaths in 2012 were attributable to alcohol, the percentage of alcohol-attributable deaths among males was higher (7.6%) than that of deaths among females (4.0%). This difference between the sexes is an indicator of the difference in drinking patterns between males and females, both in volume of alcohol consumed and in number of heavy drinking occasions. Table 7 gives an overview of global deaths attributable to alcohol consumption by sex. While no particular broad disease category stands out, there are sex differences between alcohol-attributable causes of death. For females, cardiovascular disease categories are most important, while for males injuries are the most common cause of alcohol-attributable deaths.

Table 7. Global alcohol-attributable deaths, distribution of deaths and alcohol-attributable fractions by sex and broad disease category, 2012

		ol-attributable de % of all global d		Distribution of all alcohol-attributable deaths across disease categories (%)		
Disease category	Both sexes ^a	Males	Females	Both sexes ^a	Males	Females
Cancers	410 000 (5.0)	306 000 (6.6)	103 000 (2.9)	12.5	13.6	10.0
Cardiovascular diseases and diabetes	1 098 000 (5.8)	497 000 (5.3)	600 000 (6.2)	33.4	22.1	58.2
Neuropsychiatric disorders	131 000 (7.8)	104 000 (13.4)	26 000 (2.9)	4.0	4.6	2.6
Gastrointestinal diseases	533 000 (23.6)	375 000 (28.1)	158 000 (17.2)	16.2	16.6	15.3
Infectious diseases	262 000 (2.8)	191 000 (3.8)	71 000 (1.6)	8.0	8.5	6.9
Unintentional injuries	563 000 (15.2)	514 000 (21.5)	49 000 (3.7)	17.1	22.8	4.8
Intentional injuries	285 000 (20.0)	265 000 (25.8)	21 000 (5.2)	8.7	11.7	2.0
Neonatal conditions	3 500 (0.1)	1 900 (0.1)	1 500 (0.1)	0.1	0.1	0.1
Net alcohol-attributable deaths ^a	3 285 000 (5.9)	2 255 000 (7.6)	1 031 000 (4.0)			100

^a May not be an exact sum of all the relevant deaths included in the table due to rounding.

There are also sex differences with respect to the global burden of disease and injury. While, overall, 5.1% of the global burden of disease and injury was attributable to alcohol (as measured in DALYs), it differed by sex: 7.4% for males and 2.3% for females (see Table 8).

Table 8. Global alcohol-attributable burden of disease (in thousands of DALYs) by sex and broad disease category, 2012

		ributable DALYs (t % of all global DA		Distribution of all alcohol-attributable DALYs across disease categories (%)			
Disease category	Both sexes ^a	Males	Females	Both sexes ^a	Males	Females	
Cancers	12 000 (5.4)	9 000 (7.2)	3 000 (3.0)	8.6	8.2	10.2	
Cardiovascular diseases and diabetes	22 000 (5.0)	12 000 (4.8)	10 000 (5.3)	15.5	10.6	33.6	
Neuropsychiatric disorders	34 000 (12.2)	29 000(20.6)	6 000 (3.9)	24.6	26.1	18.8	
Gastrointestinal diseases	19 000 (24.2)	14 000 (28.2)	5 000 (17.6)	13.6	12.5	17.6	
Infectious diseases	9 000 (1.6)	7 000 (2.4)	2 000 (0.8)	6.8	6.7	7.2	
Unintentional injuries	28 000 (12.5)	26 000 (17.2)	3 000 (3.4)	20.4	23.5	8.8	
Intentional injuries	14 000 (18.3)	13 000 (23.6)	1000 (4.3)	10.3	12.2	3.2	
Neonatal conditions	330 (0.1)	180 (0.1)	150 (0.1)	0.2	0.2	0.5	
Net alcohol-attributable DALYsª	139 000 (5.1)	110 000 (7.4)	29 230 (2.3)		100	100	

^a May not be an exact sum of all the relevant DALYs included in the table due to rounding.

There is also regional variation in health consequences of alcohol consumption by sex, as exemplified by sex differences in the prevalence of AUDs (see Figure 23). AUDs are significantly more prevalent among males, with the highest prevalence (12.6%) in the WHO European Region. In contrast, the highest prevalence among females (3.2%) is seen in the WHO Region of the Americas.



Figure 23. Prevalence (%) of alcohol use disorders (AUDs^a) by sex, WHO region and the world, 2010

^a The prevalence of AUDs is the sum of the prevalence of harmful use and alcohol dependence, in line with ICD-10 criteria (WHO, 1992)

3.1.3.3 ECONOMIC WEALTH

Modulating factors described in chapter 1 can impact not only on levels and patterns of alcohol consumption, but also alcohol-attributable deaths and DALYs. As shown in Figure 24, greater economic wealth is associated with higher alcohol-attributable burden of disease (as measured either as deaths or DALYs). In general, this mirrors the association between economic wealth and consumption levels discussed in chapter 2.



Figure 24. Alcohol-attributable deaths or DALYs by income group and the world, 2012

However, the relationship between economic development, alcohol consumption and alcohol-attributable burden of disease may be more complex than the above data suggest. As shown in Table 9, overall lower consumption in countries with lower economic wealth may in fact be associated with higher alcohol-attributable burden of disease per litre of pure alcohol consumed. This reflects the higher morbidity and mortality risks in countries with lower economic wealth, but is also partially due to more risky patterns of consumption that are usually observed in less wealthy countries.

The main exception to this trend is Eastern Europe, which has higher disease burden per litre consumed than might be expected from the economic development. Also, the African Region has a somewhat lower alcohol-attributable burden of disease than might be expected.

WHO region	GDP-PPP per capita	Deaths	Deaths per 100 000	DALYs	DALYs per 100 000	Total APC	Deaths/ 100 000 per litre of APC	DALYs/ 100 000 per litre of APC
AFR	2 748	304 851	34.2	16 057 861	1 799	6.0	5.7	298.9
AMR	25 837	302 856	31.7	18 410 183	1 924	8.4	3.8	229.1
EMR	6 816	35 208	5.7	1 602 886	262	0.7	8.2	373.2
EUR except Eastern Europe	27 217	291 864	41.6	13 263 791	1 889	9.3	4.5	203.1
Eastern Europeª	16 962	933 434	463.0	26 970 549	13 377	14.8	31.3	903.9
SEAR	3 657	634 539	34.6	29 319 164	1 599	4.0	8.7	399.8
WPR	10 393	767 196	41.6	32 892 690	1 783	8.4	5.0	212.3
World	12 060	3 285 349	46.5	139 010 600	1 967	6.8	6.8	289.3

Table 9. Economic developmer	t and alcohol-attributable deaths an	IN INTERPORT IN THE OF APC , 2012

APC, alcohol per capita consumption in litres of pure alcohol among the total adult (15+ years) population; DALYs, disability-adjusted life years; GDP-PPP, gross domestic product converted to international dollars using purchasing power parity rates.

Total APC are predicted estimates for 2012. ^a The Russian Federation, Belarus, Moldova and the Ukraine

3.2 TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS

A comparison of alcohol-attributable burden of disease data presented in the present report and the Global status report on alcohol and health 2011 (WHO, 2011a) is not possible due to methodological variations. However, the comparable estimates of the global burden of disease attributable to different risk factors in 1990 and 2010 (Lim et al., 2012) suggest that, globally, alcohol-attributable deaths and DALYs have increased. According to this study, this increase has changed the estimated ranking of harmful use of alcohol as a leading cause of death and disability from eighth place in 1990 to fifth in 2010. Moreover, the available data suggest that harmful use of alcohol ranks as the leading risk factor for death and disability in large parts of the world as well as for persons aged 15–49 years. These findings highlight the need for continued and increased efforts to reduce the harmful use of alcohol using evidence-based population level intervention strategies (see Chapter 4 for national level alcohol policies and interventions).
4. Alcohol policy and interventions

 \bigcap

4. ALCOHOL POLICY AND INTERVENTIONS

Icohol policies are developed with the aim of reducing harmful use of alcohol and the alcohol-attributable health and social burden in a population and in society. Such policies can be formulated at the global, regional, multinational, national and subnational level (see chapter 1). Successful alcohol policies outline comprehensive policy responses covering areas such as availability, marketing, pricing, drink–driving, prevention interventions and treatment in health-care systems. Policy should also have a clear focus on implementation and evaluation. Enforcement of alcohol policies often requires legislative support, although some policy options can be implemented through non-legal frameworks such as guidelines.

This chapter focuses on alcohol policies at the national level. The ten target areas for national action recommended by the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) form the outline of this chapter. For each area, the existence of one or more alcohol policies at country level serves to indicate the degree of implementation of the global alcohol strategy (see Appendix IV for further details on definitions, data sources and methodology).

4.1 LEADERSHIP, AWARENESS AND COMMITMENT

As highlighted in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol, sustainable action to reduce harmful use of alcohol requires leadership at the national level, awareness of the issues and commitment. National governments face important decisions about implementation of evidence-based interventions, and their leadership in this area is critical (Casswell & Thamarangsi, 2009). The choice of interventions requires awareness of political, economic and social influences in order to select feasible options for sustainable action.

Many WHO Member States have demonstrated increased leadership and commitment to reducing harmful use of alcohol over the past years, also influenced by the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (see Box 16, Box 17 and Box 18, for selected case examples).

Box 16. South Africa: establishment of an Inter-Ministerial Committee to reduce alcoholrelated harm

The Cabinet of the Republic of South Africa decided in 2010 to establish a committee at the highest possible level to urgently devise and implement strategies and programmes to reduce alcohol-related harm. An Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) under the Chairpersonship of the Minister of Social Development was thus established. This Committee consists of 13 ministers (the Ministers of Health, Correctional Services, Basic and Higher Education, Science and Technology, Economic Development, Finance, Transport, Sports and Recreation, Trade and Industry, Justice and Constitutional Development and the South African Police Service). The Minister in the Presidency is also represented to ensure coordination and involvement at the highest level of government. While there have been some advocates of an "individual responsibility" approach to addressing alcohol-related harm, the committee have taken a "public health" approach to alcohol-related harm since the beginning of their work together.

Different ministries represented on the Inter-Ministerial Advisory Committee have taken responsibility for different aspects of the overall goal of reducing alcohol-related harm. For example since the advent of the IMC the South African Police Service have very significantly increased their activities in shutting down unlicensed outlets (which are very prominent in South Africa); the Department of Transport have augmented both their campaigns against drinking and driving and the policing of drink–driving; those responsible for social development have embarked on a process of increasing access to rehabilitation services and so forth. In addition the committee has focused extensively on whether the government should introduce a zero limit on drinking and driving (responsibility of the Ministry of Transport), increase the age of legal drinking to 21 years (the responsibility of the Ministry of Trade and Industry) and whether to ban all alcohol advertising and sponsorship by the alcohol industry.

The impacts of the Inter-Ministerial Committee are now beginning to be felt – although it is probably too soon for the work of this committee to have resulted in significant actual reductions in alcohol-related harm. Notwithstanding, this approach of involving different government ministers in a single structure where, at a high level, they can plan strategies on how best to reduce the impacts of alcohol in society and where all departments can contribute to reducing alcohol-related harm as part of a "whole of government" approach has the potential to reduce alcohol-related harm considerably.

Box 17. Belarus: an example of leadership and commitment to reducing harmful use of alcohol

In 2011 the State programme for national action to prevent harmful use of alcohol 2011–2015, developed by the Ministry of Health in collaboration and consultation with relevant stakeholders, was adopted. The main objectives of this programme are to reduce alcohol-attributable crime, road crashes, injuries at work, deaths due to alcohol poisoning, cases of alcohol psychoses and dependence, as well as harmful use of alcohol among young people. New policies and initiatives that have been implemented since the adoption of the State programme include significantly strengthening laws on drink–driving, banning alcohol marketing on television and radio between 07:00 and 22:00, increasing the excise duty on specific alcohol products as well as increasing fines and strengthening police control of home producers. These measures have already delivered some rapid results, namely a decrease in recorded APC from 2011 to 2012 by 6.5% and from 2012 to 2013 by 11.4%, as well as a marked drop in criminal offences committed while under the influence of alcohol.

Box 18. Mongolia: "Leadership makes change" – a case example

In the past 3 years, under the committed leadership of the president, a national movement has started to influence regulations on production, sale, distribution and availability of alcohol with the aim of prevention and control of alcohol-related harm. The main actor in this process is a national network of 80 governmental and nongovernmental organizations, which has been established to implement an "Alcohol Free Mongolia" initiative that aims to increase public awareness, formulate policies, establish a legal environment to reduce the harmful use of alcohol and strengthen implementation of the regulation. Also, a revised Law on Alcohol Prevention and Control has been proposed, including a total ban on alcohol advertising, increased liability, and strengthened administrative and deterrence systems for infringements of the law. Once it is approved, the Division of Alcohol and Tobacco Control, within the newly established National Center for Public Health, will take the lead in monitoring and implementing this law and other national policies.

The two indicators included in the Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 on leadership, awareness and commitment were: development of national alcohol policies and presence of awareness-raising activities.

4.1.1 WRITTEN NATIONAL ALCOHOL POLICIES

The first key indicator in the Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012, on leadership, awareness and commitment is the presence of a written national alcohol policy, which is crucial for demonstrating commitment. National alcohol policies can be separate policy documents or may form part of national public health policies.

Overall, 66 of WHO's Member States had written national alcohol policies in 2012 (39% of reporting countries; see Figure 25). The proportion of countries with written national alcohol policies varies across regions from 20% of reporting countries in the WHO African Region to 64% of reporting countries in the WHO European Region.

Figure 25. Existence of a written national alcohol policy, by WHO region and number of countries, 2012



(n = 169 reporting countries)

Of the 66 countries with national policies, 30 have adopted these policies formally through the national government, 18 through the national parliament, 13 through a specific ministry and five through another national body. Most commonly (in 51 countries), the national alcohol policies have been integrated into a written substance abuse policy. Sixty-two countries described their national alcohol policy as multisectoral, most frequently including the health, transport and/or road safety, education, and law enforcement sectors. Of the countries with national alcohol policies, 44 reported that health sectors had the main coordinating responsibility.

4.1.2 NATIONWIDE AWARENESS-RAISING ACTIVITIES

The second key indicator on leadership, awareness and commitment is the presence of nationwide awareness-raising activities about alcohol. These are far more common than written national policies, with 138 countries reporting at least one such activity in the past three years (see Figure 26). Awareness-raising targeting drink–driving was most common and was reported by 128 countries.

Figure 26. Nationwide awareness-raising activities in the past three years by type, by number of countries, 2012



(n = 169 reporting countries, except 161 for drink-driving and 159 for drinking by young people)

4.2 HEALTH SERVICES' RESPONSE

Health services play a critical role in tackling alcohol-attributable harm (see chapters 1 and 3) by developing and delivering prevention and treatment services (NICE, 2010a,b; WHO, 2010c,d; Drummond et al., 2011). For example, screening and brief intervention with referral to treatment (SBIRT) has been shown to be both effective and cost-effective in a variety of settings (Babor et al., 2007; Kaner et al., 2007; Humeniuk et al, 2012; Task Force on Community Preventive Services 2012). Hence, the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol suggests several policy options and interventions related to development and delivery of prevention and treatment services, as well as health services

Awareness-raising activity

capacity development in a way that is commensurate with the magnitude of the public health problems caused by harmful use of alcohol:

- increasing capacity of health and social welfare systems to deliver prevention, treatment and care for alcohol-use and alcohol-induced disorders and comorbid conditions, including support and treatment for affected families and support for mutual help or self-help activities and programmes;
- supporting initiatives for screening and brief interventions for hazardous and harmful drinking at primary health care and other settings; such initiatives should include early identification and management of harmful drinking among pregnant women and women of child-bearing age;
- improving capacity for prevention of, identification of, and interventions for individuals and families living with fetal alcohol syndrome and a spectrum of associated disorders;
- development and effective coordination of integrated and/or linked prevention, treatment and care strategies and services for alcohol-use disorders and comorbid conditions, including drug-use disorders, depression, suicides, HIV/AIDS and tuberculosis;
- securing universal access to health including through enhancing availability, accessibility and affordability of treatment services for groups of low socioeconomic status;
- provision of culturally sensitive health and social services as appropriate.

Box 19 provides a country example of implementation of national guidelines on alcohol interventions.

Box 19. United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (UK): an example of national guidelines on alcohol interventions in health services

In collaboration with the Department of Health, the National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) has published national guidelines on management of alcohol use and alcohol use disorders (AUDs) in the UK (Drummond et al., 2011). This guidance builds on the conceptual framework for alcohol treatment delivery developed by the Institute of Medicine in 1990 (Institute of Medicine, 1990), which recognizes a spectrum of severity of AUD, as well as on systematic reviews of effectiveness of interventions (for example, Raistrick et al, 2006; WHO, 2010c). The spectrum of AUD severity is from hazardous and harmful use of alcohol through to severe alcohol dependence, and the range of interventions appropriate to address this range of severity is from primary prevention for people not yet experiencing alcohol problems through to more intensive specialist treatment for those with alcohol dependence.

Another role of the health sector (in accordance with the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol; WHO, 2010a) is to take the lead in informing society about the public health and social consequences of harmful use of alcohol, advocating effective societal responses, and supporting communities to take effective action to reduce alcohol-related harm. In doing so, health services should reach out to, mobilize and involve a broad range of players outside the health sector.

Finally, the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol suggests that health services can also play a role in the establishment and maintenance of a system of registration and monitoring of alcohol-attributable morbidity and mortality, with regular reporting mechanisms. For instance, health service personnel can monitor alcohol-specific conditions such as alcohol use disorders, alcohol psychoses, and alcohol poisoning, as well as conditions closely associated with alcohol use such as liver disease, alcohol-related road traffic crashes and suicides. Countries can build these components into a national system for monitoring the health consequences of alcohol consumption.

More information on indicators related to health services' responses can be found in the Atlas on resources for the prevention and treatment of substance use disorders (WHO, 2010b) (available at: http://www.who.int/substance_abuse/publications/treatment/). A new wave of data collection for the Atlas survey started in April 2014 and will yield new data in the coming years. Most countries are expected to continue to report a substantial unmet need for alcohol-related prevention and treatment services.

4.3 COMMUNITY ACTION

Governments and other stakeholders can support and empower communities to use their local knowledge and cultural expertise to adopt effective approaches to prevent and reduce harmful use of alcohol (e.g. Ramstedt et al., 2013). Through community action, communities can work to change behaviour at the population level. Controlled trials of community action projects using multicomponent approaches to reduce physical availability of alcohol and increase enforcement of laws on under-age purchase and drink–driving have found these community-based approaches to be effective in reducing alcohol-related harm (Holder et al., 2000; Wagenaar et al. 2000; Leifman et al., 2013). See Box 20 for a country example of community action and a health services response.

Box 20. Zambia: an example of community action and a health services response

Starting in 2006, Zambia has undergone an alcohol policy development process, including legislative reforms, in order to mitigate the impact of harmful use of alcohol on the general population. This work has included the development and enactment of the Liquor Licensing Act of 2011. One key stakeholder in the community-level enforcement of regulations related to this law is the newly established civil society group known as the Zambia Network Against Harmful Use of Alcohol (ZNAHUA). ZNAHUA also plays an important role in the facilitation of a multistakeholder, coordinated system aimed to reduce the harmful use of alcohol in line with the Ministry of Health Sector Wide Approaches (SWAp) mechanisms. One notable achievement of the efforts in Zambia is the training of 360 health workers in the management of conditions due to use of alcohol and other drugs. Nevertheless, given the drastically increased demand for alcohol-related services in recent years, the biggest challenges remain the availability of trained human resources and the necessary infrastructure.

The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) suggests several policy options and interventions for community action, namely:

- supporting rapid assessments in order to identify gaps and priority areas for interventions at the community level;
- facilitating increased recognition of alcohol-related harm at the local level and promoting appropriate effective and cost-effective responses to the local determinants of harmful use of alcohol and related problems;
- strengthening capacity of local authorities to encourage and coordinate concerted community action by supporting and promoting the development of municipal policies to reduce harmful use of alcohol, as well as their capacity to enhance partnerships and networks of community institutions and nongovernmental organizations;
- providing information about effective community-based interventions, and building capacity at community level for their implementation;
- mobilizing communities to prevent the selling of alcohol to, and consumption of alcohol by, under-age drinkers, and to develop and support alcohol-free environments, especially for youth and other at-risk groups;
- providing community care and support for affected individuals and their families;
- developing or supporting community programmes and policies for subpopulations at particular risk, such as young people, unemployed persons and indigenous populations, specific issues like the production and distribution of illicit or informal alcohol beverages, and events at community level such as sporting fixtures and town festivals.

The Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 contained one question related to community action, namely: in which ways does the national government support community action? Of the 167 reporting countries, 108 reported government support for community action. As shown in Figure 27, support most often took the form of training programmes, and community programmes and policies for subgroups at particular risk. Slightly less commonly, governments supported community action by providing technical tools tailored to communities, or funds specifically designated to encourage and facilitate community action.



Figure 27. Government support for community action by type of support and by number of countries, 2012

4.4 DRINK-DRIVING COUNTERMEASURES

Drink–driving countermeasures are cost-effective strategies to reduce harmful use of alcohol and the burden of alcohol-attributable traffic crashes, which are more likely when drivers have blood alcohol concentrations (BACs) above 0.04% (Bloomberg et al., 2009).

The establishment of maximum BAC limits for drivers and the enforcement of drink–driving policies with sobriety checkpoints and random breath testing is a cost-effective strategy, and can reduce traffic crashes by roughly 20% (Peek-Asa, 1999; Elder et al., 2002). As described in section 4.11, drink–driving countermeasures are increasingly common among WHO Member States (WHO, 2013b).

The two indicators included in the Global survey on alcohol and health 2012 on drinkdriving policies and countermeasures were BAC limits set at the national level for the general population, for youth, and for operators of commercial vehicles, as well as the methods used by countries to ascertain driver BACs.

4.4.1 BAC LIMITS

(n = 167 reporting countries)

Data on the maximum permissible BAC at the national level were available from 177 countries, including two countries with subnational policies. As shown in Figure 28 and Figure 29, the maximum permissible BAC for drivers in the general population most commonly lies between 0.05–0.07% (61 countries) or 0.08–0.15% (46 countries). Eighteen countries reported not having any limit and 25 countries reported zero as the permissible BAC at the national level for drivers, meaning that they did not tolerate any drinking of alcohol-containing beverages associated with driving, and any blood alcohol levels detectable by routine methods are not permitted for drivers in the general population.

BAC limits for young/novice and commercial drivers were most commonly also above 0.05%. However, a greater number of countries had maximum permissible BAC limits below 0.05% for young/novice and commercial drivers than for the general population (see Figure 29).



Figure 28. Blood alcohol concentration (BAC) limits for drivers in the general population, 2012

Figure 29. Blood alcohol concentration (BAC) limits for the general population, young drivers and commercial drivers, by number of countries, 2012^a



^a Includes countries that have BAC levels set at zero and countries that have a total ban.

In addition to the national-level data presented in Figure 29 for 2012, two countries reported subnational policies, and for one country (Tokelau) this survey question was inapplicable, because the country has no cars. Moreover, 18 countries had no BAC limits for the general population, 19 countries had no BAC limits for youth and 18 countries had no BAC limits for commercial drivers.

4.4.2 METHODS USED TO ASCERTAIN DRIVER BACs

The Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 asked countries to report on the presence of sobriety checkpoints and/or random breath testing to ascertain drivers' BACs. The definition used for sobriety checkpoints in this context was "checkpoints or roadblocks established by the police on public roadways to control for drink–driving". The definition used for random breath testing was "that any driver can be stopped by the police at any time to test the breath for alcohol consumption."

Of the reporting countries with policies setting a maximum BAC limit, breath testing was the most common method of assessing compliance with the limit (130 countries) although some countries used blood or urine analysis and observational assessments (see Figure 30). Forty-eight countries reported conducting random breath tests at roadside checkpoints, while 17 countries had sobriety checkpoints but did not use random breath testing and sobriety checkpoints, while 40 countries reported using neither strategy.

Figure 30. Methods of enforcing the maximum legal BAC, by number of countries, 2012



(*n* = 165 countries reporting on sobriety checkpoints and 166 countries reporting on random breath testing)

WHO received data from 146 countries on perceived level of enforcement of their policies on maximum BAC limits, on a scale from zero to ten, where zero indicated not enforced and ten indicated fully enforced. As shown in Figure 31, the average perceived level of enforcement among all reporting countries was 5.8, which suggests significant room for improvement.



(n = 146 reporting countries)



4.5 REGULATING AVAILABILITY OF ALCOHOL

Strategies regulating availability of alcohol are very cost-effective policy options to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. Examples of evidence-based strategies to reduce the availability of alcohol include regulating the density of alcohol outlets (Campbell et al., 2009), limiting the days and hours when alcohol sales are permitted (see Box 21; Hahn et al., 2010; Middleton et al., 2010), and national minimum legal age at which alcohol can be purchased or consumed (Elder et al., 2007).

Box 21. Peru: a subnational example of regulating the hours during which alcohol can be sold

In January 2007, a local ban in the district municipality of La Victoria in Lima on the sale of alcohol from Sundays to Wednesdays up to midnight and from Thursdays to Sundays up to 03:00 was established. A comparison of data from this district with those from a district without a ban two years after the enactment of the ban showed that violent incidents had decreased by almost half in La Victoria and this was correlated with the number of hours during which it was permitted to sell alcohol. Homicides and suicides also decreased in La Victoria.

In December 2011, a similar ban was established in the entire Metropolitan area of Lima. Concurrently, the national police began an intensive action campaign for zero tolerance to driving under the influence of alcohol. A year later, the number of violent deaths had decreased by 11%, homicides by 19%, and the number of victims of alcohol-attributable traffic crashes by 28%.

This report provides the most recent data on five policy areas recommended by the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol:

- a licensing system on retail sales, or public health oriented government monopolies on the production and/or sale of alcohol;
- regulating the number and location of on-premise and off-premise alcohol outlets, expressed as efforts to reduce alcohol outlet density;
- regulating days and hours of retail sales;
- establishing an appropriate minimum age for purchase or consumption of alcoholic beverages;
- setting policies regarding drinking in public places.

The Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 included a variety of questions linked to all five of these policy areas.

4.5.1 NATIONAL CONTROL OF PRODUCTION AND SALE OF ALCOHOL

One evidence-based strategy to reduce the availability of alcohol is government control of alcohol distribution and sales to restrict the availability of alcohol at the population level. There are two basic models for achieving such restrictions: monopoly and licensing (Babor et al., 2010).

Most reporting countries use licensing systems: 126 reported requiring licences for the production of alcoholic beverages, while 22 countries do not require such licences. For the retail sales of alcohol, 136 countries require licences whereas 26 do not.

Governments may also exercise monopoly control over the alcohol market, at the level of the producer, distributor and/or retailer. Monopolies over production are most common for beer (32 countries), while monopolies over retail sales are most common for wine (34 countries).

Some countries employ a combination of licensing and monopoly systems. In 32 countries, there is a licensing system and a monopoly over beer production. Licensing systems for beer production exist in 106 countries. The prevalence of countries with licensing and monopoly systems by beverage type is shown in Figure 32.

Figure 32. Prevalence (%) of licensing and monopoly systems at the level of production and retail sales by beverage type and by number of countries, 2012





4.5.2 RESTRICTIONS ON ON-PREMISE AND OFF-PREMISE SALES OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

A second independent evidence-based strategy for reducing availability includes restricting hours and days when sales are allowed and regulating the density of establishments permitting alcohol consumption on their premises (known as "on-premise" outlets, such as bars and restaurants), and establishments selling alcohol only for consumption away from their premises (known as "off-premise" outlets; Campbell et al., 2009; Hahn et al., 2010; Middeton et al., 2010).

Less than 30% of reporting countries (39–47 countries, depending on the premise and beverage type) indicated the existence of regulations on outlet density and/or days of sale (see Table 10). Regulations on hours of sale are more common than regulations on outlet density and days of sale. About 50% of reporting countries (73–90 countries depending on the premise and beverage type) indicated that they had regulations on opening hours.

The WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region had the highest prevalence of countries with outlet density regulations – for on- and off-premise consumption – and the WHO European Region had the lowest. Restrictions on on-premise hours of sales were most prevalent in the WHO Region of the Americas and the WHO South-East Asia Region, while the WHO Western Pacific and WHO South-East Asia Regions had the highest prevalence of restrictions on off-premise hours of sales. Regulations on days of sales of spirits on-premise were most common in the WHO South-East Asia Region, while the WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region had the highest prevalence of regulations on days of sales of sales off-premise (see Table 10).

Table 10. Number of reporting countries with on-premise and off-premise regulations by type of regulation, by beverage type and by WHO region and the world, 2012

		On-premise		Off-premise			
	WHO regions	Beer	Wine	Spirits	Beer	Wine	Spirits
	AFR	12	12	12	10	10	10
	AMR	10	10	10	8	8	8
~	EMR	3	3	3	4	4	4
Density	EUR	6	6	6	7	8	8
-	SEAR	5	5	4	4	4	4
	WPR	7	7	8	8	9	9
	World	43	43	43	41	43	43
	AFR	24	24	24	17	17	17
	AMR	24	23	24	17	17	17
	EMR	2	2	2	3	3	3
Hours	EUR	18	19	20	18	19	20
-	SEAR	6	6	6	5	5	5
	WPR	13	13	14	13	14	15
	World	87	87	90	73	75	77
	AFR	5	5	5	8	8	8
	AMR	13	13	13	10	10	10
	EMR	2	2	2	4	4	4
Days	EUR	6	6	6	9	10	10
	SEAR	5	5	5	5	5	5
	WPR	8	8	8	10	10	10
	World	39	39	39	46	47	47

 $(n = 168 \text{ countries that reported on on-premise regulations and 167 countries that reported on off-premise regulations})^a$

^a The numbers of reporting countries by WHO region were 45 for AFR, 33 for AMR, 6 for EMR, 53 for EUR, 9 for SEAR and 22 for WPR.

4.5.3 NATIONAL MINIMUM PURCHASE OR CONSUMPTION AGE

Minimum legal purchase age (MLPA) limits are effective in reducing alcohol consumption among youth (Wagenaar et al., 2005), and older age limits are more likely to effectively deter youth drinking than younger age limits (Wechsler and Nelson, 2010). Age restrictions can apply to the consumption of alcohol on-premise or off-premise. This report will focus on the on-premise minimum legal purchase age limits because more countries have onpremise than off-premise regulations.

In 2012, 15 countries reported having no on-premise age limits pertaining to beer sales and consumption, and 16 had no age limit for wine and spirits (see Figure 33). Twenty-one countries had no off-premise age restrictions for any beverage types. Among the countries that have legal purchase ages for alcohol, the ages range from 10 years to 25 years, but the most common age limit is 18 years: 115 countries have an on- or off-premise legal purchase age for at least one beverage set at 18 years. Fifteen countries set the MLPA at 16 years, while in 7 countries it is 20 years and in 14 countries the minimum age limit is set at 21 years.

Figure 33. Minimum age limits for on-premise sales of beer, wine and spirits, by number of reporting countries, 2012



(n = 166 reporting countries)

4.5.4 RESTRICTIONS ON DRINKING IN PUBLIC

To reduce alcohol consumption, some countries also have restrictions on alcohol consumption in public places (see Figure 34). Countries were most likely to restrict consumption in educational buildings (129 countries), followed by health-care establishments (119 countries). They were least likely to ban alcohol consumption at leisure events (58 countries).

Figure 34. Restrictions on alcohol consumption in public places, by number of countries, 2012

 $(n = 168 \text{ reporting countries, except 167 reporting countries for public transport, leisure events, religious places as well as parks, streets, etc.)$



4.5.5 RESTRICTIONS ON PURCHASE OF ALCOHOL AT PETROL STATIONS

Reducing the availability of alcohol at petrol stations is a strategy some countries employ to reduce the number of people drinking and driving. From 2008 to 2012, there was an increase in the percentage of countries that reported banning the sale of all types of alcoholic beverages at petrol stations: for beer, 46 countries reported a ban (31.1%) in 2008 compared to 61 countries (36.8%) in 2012; for wine, 46 countries had banned sales (31.7%) in 2008 as opposed to 64 countries (38.6%) in 2012; and 50 countries had banned spirits sales (34.3%) in 2008 while 65 (39.2%) did so in 2012.

4.6 MARKETING RESTRICTIONS

Numerous longitudinal studies have found that young people who are exposed to alcohol marketing are more likely to start drinking, or if already drinking, to drink more (Anderson et al., 2009). Alcohol marketing may also have a substantial effect on alcohol consumption in lower and middle income countries, which have young populations, high rates of adult (and particularly female) abstinence, and emerging marketplaces for alcohol (Babor et al., 2010; Jernigan, 2013).

The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol recommends setting up regulatory or co-regulatory frameworks, preferably with a legislative basis, to regulate the content and volume of direct or indirect marketing, sponsorships, promotions in connection with

Box 22. South Africa: an example of marketing restrictions

In South Africa, the established Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) (see Box 16) reviewed extensive inputs and evidence on alcohol marketing and alcohol-related harm and then mandated the Minister of Health to draft legislation banning all advertising and sponsorships and other marketing on the basis of this evidence. The draft Bill was ratified by the Cabinet to be published for public comment for a period of three months. In addition a Regulatory Impact Assessment is being conducted on the impacts of this legislation.

The IMC realize that combating alcohol-related harm requires a range of measures rather than a single "silver bullet". Policies acting in conjunction with each other usually produce greater impact than the sum of the parts. For example raising the age of legal drinking, introducing a policy of zero tolerance for drinking and driving and introducing education campaigns against alcohol-related harm in schools while at the same time permitting the glamourization and encouragement of alcohol through advertising is likely to have less impact on drinking behaviours, in both the short and longer term. It is realized that government should not give or permit mixed messages through commission or omission by neglecting to control marketing while introducing other measures.

activities targeting young people, and new forms of alcohol marketing techniques such as social media. Box 22 describes a country example of initiative to reduce alcohol-related harm by considering a ban on all alcohol marketing and sponsorships.

The indicators included in the Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 on marketing restrictions were the prevalence of restrictions on advertising for alcoholic beverages and the overall restrictiveness of advertising regulation, regulation of product placements on television and at sporting events as well as regulation of promotions below cost.

4.6.1 REGULATIONS ON ALCOHOL ADVERTISING

The Global survey on alcohol and health 2012 asked countries to report on national restrictions on advertising for three alcoholic beverage types (beer, wine and spirits) across ten media types (national television, private television, national radio, local radio,

print, billboards, point of sale, cinema, Internet and social media). Marketing restrictions range from no restrictions to total bans, across all media types. In this report marketing restrictions are described in detail for beer only; however, the restrictions across media types were consistent for wine and spirits, and the relevant information is available in GISAH.

Figure 35 shows the prevalence of restrictions on advertising for beer by media type; these are most prevalent for national television, but the majority of countries have no restrictions on beer marketing in any of the ten media types. The greatest number of countries reported no restrictions on social media, suggesting that regulation in many countries has fallen behind the pace of technological innovation in marketing. In 2012, 159 countries reported on alcohol marketing restrictions across all media and beverage types. Of the reporting countries, 39.6% had no restrictions, while 10.1% imposed total bans.

Figure 35. Restrictions on advertising for beer, by percentage of countries, 2012

 $(n = 166 \text{ reporting countries, except 157 countries reporting on social media, 164 countries reporting on point of sale, 165 countries reporting on private television, and 167 countries reporting on national radio, local radio and print)$



Box 23. Statutory regulation of alcohol marketing score

Another way of assessing the level of restrictiveness across countries is to sum the degree of restriction on alcohol advertising across all three beverage types. Using a scale first used in the Global status report on alcohol and health 2011 (WHO, 2011a), Figure 27 shows the distribution of countries across five levels of restrictiveness. The scale was further tested in a sensitivity analysis using both the 2002 and 2008 data (Esser and Jernigan, personal communication). Analysing restrictiveness in nine media types (social media were excluded in order to be able to compare to the 2008 data), countries received two points for a total statutory ban, one point for a partial statutory ban and zero points for no restrictions. In light of substantial evidence of their ineffectiveness (Jernigan, et al., 2005; Jones et al., 2008; Rhoades and Jernigan, 2013; Smith et al., 2013), self-regulation or voluntary restrictions were considered equivalent to no regulations in this analysis and received no points.

Figure 36. Stringency of overall statutory regulation of alcohol marketing, by percentage of countries, 2008 and 2012



(n = 136 reporting countries in 2008 and 159 reporting countries in 2012)

4.6.2 REGULATION ON ALCOHOL PRODUCT PLACEMENT

In addition to restrictions on alcohol advertising, countries also reported on their regulation of alcohol marketing in the form of product placement on television and at sporting events, as well as whether they had implemented bans on sale of alcohol below cost. Of the WHO Member States that reported on this in 2012 (n = 168), 39.3% (n = 66) had implemented either a total or partial ban on product placement of beer on television, 56.6% (n = 95) reported no regulation, and 4.2% (n = 7) reported industry self-regulation (see Figure 37).



Figure 37. Type of regulation of beer product placements on television, by percentage of countries, 2012 (n = 168 reporting countries)

As shown in Figure 38, nearly a quarter of reporting countries (24.0%, n = 40) had a total or partial ban on beer company sponsorships of sporting events, while 11.4% (n = 19) relied on industry self-regulation, and 64.6% (n = 108) had no regulation.





4.6.3 REGULATION ON ALCOHOL SALES PROMOTIONS

Figure 39 shows prevalence of regulation of beer sales promotions below cost, which are most commonly not restricted.



Figure 39. Regulation of beer sales promotions below cost, 2012 (*n* = 169 reporting countries)

4.6.4 METHODS OF DETECTING MARKETING INFRINGEMENTS

The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) also recommends setting up effective administrative and deterrence systems for infringement of marketing restrictions. While 148 Member States reported some kind of restriction of alcohol marketing or product placement, 98 countries have a method of detecting marketing infringements, and some use more than one method: 60 countries use active surveillance by government, a nongovernmental organization or an independent body; 61 use a complaint system; and 45 rely on case by case reporting. Penalties for violations of marketing restrictions range from warnings to imprisonment in the most severe cases; however, the most common mode of enforcement is through fines imposed on the offending party.

4.7 PRICING

A large body of literature has found raising the price of alcohol to be effective in reducing harmful use of alcohol among drinkers in general as well as among youth; the same literature has documented that as the price of alcohol increases, alcohol-attributable morbidity and mortality decline (Wagenaar et al., 2009; 2010; Elder et al., 2010).

The Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) recommends that Member States establish a system for specific domestic taxation which may take into account the alcohol content of the beverage, accompanied by an effective enforcement system. It also encourages countries to review prices regularly in relation to inflation and income levels; ban or restrict sales below cost and other price promotions; and establish minimum prices for alcohol where applicable. This report presents data on prevalence of specific taxation for alcohol, as well as how many countries adjust those taxes for inflation, employ minimum pricing, and ban low-cost selling and volume discounts.

4.7.1 EXCISE TAX

Figure 40 shows that the majority of countries have alcohol excise taxes; however, few countries are using the other price strategies highlighted in the Global strategy, such as adjusting taxes to keep up with inflation and income levels, imposing minimum pricing policies, or banning below-cost selling or volume discounts.

Figure 40. Implementation of selected price and tax measures, by region and percentage of reporting countries, 2012

(n = 165 reporting countries, except 160 countries reported on inflation adjustment and 167 countries reported on excise taxes)



4.8 REDUCING NEGATIVE CONSEQUENCES OF DRINKING

The recommendations of the Global strategy to reduce harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) include enacting management policies relating to responsible serving of alcoholic beverages, and providing consumer information about, and labelling of, alcoholic beverages to indicate the harm related to alcohol. While the evidence for their effectiveness is not yet strong (Babor et al., 2010; Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2010), these strategies are showing some promising results (e.g., Trolldal et al., 2012).

4.8.1 RESPONSIBLE BEVERAGE SERVICES TRAINING

Forty-five of 167 reporting countries indicated that they provide responsible beverage service (RBS) training for people who serve alcoholic beverages. Enforcement agencies organize the training in 17 countries, and the private sector takes the lead in 18 countries. Elsewhere, sectors such as tourism and hospitality take responsibility for offering RBS training.

4.8.2 LABELS ON ALCOHOL CONTAINERS

As Figure 41 shows, labels describing the alcohol content (i.e, percentage of pure alcohol), are the type most frequently reported by countries. These are required in 116 countries. Less common are warning labels on advertisements for alcohol (required in 41 countries), and health and safety warning labels on bottles or containers (mandatory in 31 countries). In countries with such warning labels, examples of wording commonly used on warning labels are "Excessive consumption of alcohol is harmful to health" (common in countries in South America) and messages about not selling to under-age customers, such as "Not for sale to persons under the age of 18 years" (common in African and South American countries).

Figure 41. Required warning and health-related information on labels, by number of countries, 2012

 $(n = 167 \text{ reporting countries, except 164 countries reported on consumer information labels, 165 countries reported on standard drink size labels and 166 countries reported on alcohol content labels)$



4.9 ADDRESSING ILLICIT AND INFORMAL PRODUCTION

Illicit and informally produced alcohol accounts for nearly a quarter of the alcohol consumed globally (see chapter 2). Unrecorded alcoholic beverages are generally less costly than recorded alcohol. As a result, unrecorded alcohol is commonly consumed by persons of lower social and economic status and may be associated with increased levels of alcohol consumed (Rehm et al., 2014).

Among the recommendations of the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a) in this area are developing and strengthening tracking and tracing systems for illicit alcohol, regulating sales of informally produced alcohol and bringing it into the taxation systems, and ensuring necessary cooperation and exchange of relevant information on combating illicit alcohol among authorities at the national and international levels. Box 24 presents a country example of increased tracking of alcohol as part of a federal law amendment.

Box 24. Russian Federation: an example of increased tracking of alcohol as part of a federal law amendment

In 2011, the President of the Russian Federation signed an amendment to the federal law on production and sales of alcohol-containing products. This amendment included strengthened restrictions on the availability of alcohol and marketing of alcoholic beverages. In particular, it increased the responsibility of citizens, officials and legal entities to ensure minors are not sold alcoholic beverages, with criminal consequences for doing so repeatedly. The law also established a series of measures to reduce negative consequences of drinking, such as regulations related to the size of consumer packaging of alcohol and mandatory stamps on alcohol containers.

Moreover, the federal law is aimed at strengthening the protection against illegal production and trafficking of alcoholic beverages, for example through establishment of an automated traffic control system for ethanol and alcohol-containing products on the territory of the Russian Federation. The law also introduced stricter rules for obliging entities such as pharmacies to declare the extent of their use of ethanol for medical purposes in a timely fashion.

4.9.1 INCLUSION OF INFORMAL OR ILLICIT PRODUCTION IN NATIONAL ALCOHOL POLICIES

Of the countries with written national alcohol policies, 69% have a national policy to address informal or illicit production and 67% have a national policy regarding sales of informal or illicit alcohol (see Figure 42). The existence of such policies varies by region: about 45% of the countries in the South-East Asian Region have such policies compared to 81% of the countries in the European Region.

Figure 42. National legislation to prevent illegal production and/or sale of informally produced alcoholic beverages, by region and percentage of countries, 2012



 $(n = 168 \text{ reporting countries for illegal production};^{a} n = 167 \text{ reporting countries for illegal sale})$

^a The numbers of reporting countries by WHO region were 45 for AFR, 34 for AMR, 6 for EMR, 53 for EUR, 9 for SEAR and 21 for WPR; ^b the numbers of reporting countries by WHO region were the same with the exception of 33 for AMR.

4.9.2 METHODS USED TO TRACK ILLICIT OR INFORMAL ALCOHOL

Some countries include questions on illicit and informally produced alcohol in their national systems for monitoring alcohol consumption. Seven countries obtain a regular estimate of illicit and informally produced alcohol based on expert opinion, 8 base regular estimates on research focused on unrecorded alcohol consumption, 5 use indirect estimates from government data on confiscated or seized alcohol, and 12 use indirect estimates from survey data. Nine countries use a combination of at least two of these methods to track illicit and informal alcohol production.

4.10 MONITORING AND SURVEILLANCE

Monitoring and surveillance are critical to measuring the success and delivery of efforts to reduce alcohol-related harm as recommended in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a).

Both the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol and the Global monitoring framework for noncommunicable diseases (see chapter 1, WHO, 2013a) encourage Member States to establish effective frameworks for monitoring and surveillance activities, including periodic national surveys on alcohol consumption and related harm.

4.10.1 NATIONAL SURVEYS ON ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

Of all WHO Member States, 109 have had at least one national survey of alcohol consumption among adults since 2000. Ninety-three of those countries have also had national surveys on alcohol consumption among youth since 2000, while 16 countries reported that they have only had surveys of youth consumption.

4.10.2 LEGAL DEFINITION OF AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE

Defining clearly what constitutes an alcoholic beverage is critical for monitoring and surveillance systems as well as for determining when alcohol policies, such as restrictions on production, sales and consumption, will apply. Legal definitions of alcoholic beverages exist in 106 reporting countries. Among Member States with established legal definitions, the specific definition varies (Figure 43). Fifty-four countries define alcoholic beverages as anything containing between 0 and 1% alcohol. One country – Belarus – defined alcoholic beverages as any beverage containing 7% or more of pure alcohol. However, for the most part there were no differences by region, with regional averages for such definitions ranging from 0.8% in the Region of the Americas to 1.3% in the European Region.



Figure 43. Legal definition of an alcoholic beverage in terms of percentage of pure alcohol by volume, by number of countries, 2012

^a Two countries listed in this category reported a minimum alcohol content of 1.2% for spirits and wine, but 0.5% for beer.

4.10.3 NATIONAL MONITORING SYSTEMS

Of the WHO Member States, 71 reported having a national system for monitoring the health consequences of alcohol consumption and 4 indicated they have subnational monitoring systems. The national systems for monitoring most commonly collect data on alcohol consumption (55 countries) and related health consequences (54 countries), and less commonly monitor social consequences (25 countries) and alcohol policy responses (11 countries).

4.11 TRENDS

Between 2008 and 2012, WHO Member States made changes in alcohol policies, particularly in the following five areas of action recommended by the Global strategy to reduce harmful use of alcohol:

- Ieadership, awareness and commitment
- drink–driving countermeasures
- regulating availability
- Marketing restrictions
- reducing negative consequences of drinking.

The key, positive changes in national alcohol policy development are that a higher percentage of reporting countries indicated that they had written national alcohol policies and stricter BAC limits in 2012 than in 2008. Notably, 12 countries reported having adopted their national alcohol policy since 2010, the year when the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol was endorsed (five countries reported having adopted a national policy in 2010, six in 2011 and one in 2012).

Also, in 2012 a greater proportion of reporting countries had regulations on outlet density (at least off-premise), on the hours during which sales of alcohol are permitted, on minimum ages at which it is legal to purchase alcohol, on alcohol sales at petrol stations and on displaying national warning labels on advertisements than in 2008.

In contrast, a smaller proportion of reporting countries indicated regulations on days of sale, product placement on public television, company sponsorship of sporting events, and sales promotions below cost.



COUNTRY PROFILES

Algeria

Total population: 37 063 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 66% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.7	0	.7	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0	.3	→
Total	1.0	1.0		→
Total males / females		1.6	0.4	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.7	5.5
Females (15+)	0.1	2.2
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	4.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	11.8	9.7	6.5	21.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.1	12.6	0.4	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1975/2008) / No		
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes		
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18		
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18		
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.8
Females (15+)	8.5
Both sexes (15+)	10.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	75.0	87.6	81.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.5	7.4	9.5	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	86.5	95.0	90.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY $< 1 \ 2 \ 3 \ 4 \ 5 > MOST RISKY$				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	1.4	1.4	
Females	<0.1	<0.1	
Both sexes	0.8	0.7	
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No	
National government support for community action	No	
National monitoring system(s)	No	

Angola

Total population: 19 549 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 52% > Population in urban areas: 59% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.8	5	.9	*
Unrecorded	1.6	1	.6	→
Total	5.4	7.5		*
Total males / females		12.0	3.0	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Population

7.6

1.0

Drinkers only

15.8

4.1

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.1
Females (15+)	12.9
Both sexes (15+)	20.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	37.8	65.6	52.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	10.8	12.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	52.0	76.4	64.4	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Both sexes (15+) 4.2 11.8 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	60.1	21.6	68.9	60.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	60.6	17.8	21.3	5.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life	lost (YLL)	score*,	2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	3.6
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.9	2.1
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.06 / 0.06 / 0.06
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Benin

Total population: 9 510 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 42% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.2	1	.1	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	2.2	2	.1	→
Total males / females		3.4	0.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	34.8	71.1
Females (15+)	10.1	33.6
Both sexes (15+)	22.3	56.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	65.6	25.2	25.9	46.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	47.2	19.5	9.4	2.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	7.0
Females (15+)	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	5.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	42.0	60.0	51.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	10.0	9.5		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	51.0	70.0	60.6		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY $< 1 \ column{2}{2} \ 3 \ 4 \ 5 > MOST RISKY$					

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.7	3.7
Females	1.7	0.8
Both sexes	5.2	2.2
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Botswana

Total population: 1 969 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 66% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.6	5.	4 ^t	→
Unrecorded	3.0	3.0		→
Total	8.6	8.4		→
Total males / females		14.3	2.5	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.	.0	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	12.8	22.6
Females (15+)	1.5	5.8
Both sexes (15+)	7.2	17.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	19.3	9.2	60.5	51.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	32.6	21.0	35.4	6.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	⊺<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2010/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.3
Females (15+)	9.5
Both sexes (15+)	20.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	27.8	54.7	41.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.6	73.5	58.5	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 6 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.1	4.2
Females	1.5	0.7
Both sexes	5.8	2.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Burkina Faso

Total population: 15 540 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 54% > Population in urban areas: 26% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.5	4	.3	→
Unrecorded	2.5	2	.5	→
Total	7.0	6	.8	→
Total males / females		11.2	2.8	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	27.1	55.1
Females (15+)	8.9	32.4
Both sexes (15+)	17.7	46.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	76.0	32.3	65.0	58.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	61.1	30.3	12.0	2.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.7
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	18.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	36.6	64.2	50.8
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	8.4	11.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	50.8	72.6	62.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.8	1.4
Females	0.2	<0.1
Both sexes	1.5	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Burundi

Total population: 9 233 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 56% > Population in urban areas: 11% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	6.5	6	.3	→
Unrecorded	3.0	3.	.0	→
Total	9.5	9.	.3	→
Total males / females		13.9	4.8	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	26.5
Females (15+)	15.0
Both sexes (15+)	22.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	30.9	58.5	44.9
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	9.4	12.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	47.5	67.9	57.9
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	6.0	11.4
Females (15+)	0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	3.0	7.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	58.0	30.3	72.1	68.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.8	11.9	15.3	5.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST			

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\star}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.4	3.9
Females	1.9	0.9
Both sexes	5.5	2.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No
Cabo Verde

Total population: 488 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 68% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.6 ^t	4	.0	*
Unrecorded	2.9	2.9		→
Total	6.5	6.9		→
Total males / females		11.2	2.7	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.0	16.4
Females (15+)	2.0	6.9
Both sexes (15+)	4.9	12.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	25.3	3.8	54.8	55.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	40.2	13.6	6.3	1.2
10 400 000 111 (45)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

fears of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012 LEAST No information available MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.0
Females (15+)	9.4
Both sexes (15+)	17.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.7	62.7	48.9
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.5
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	51.3	71.1	61.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> most risky

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.7	3.7
Females	1.7	0.8
Both sexes	5.1	2.2
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Cameroon

Total population: 20 624 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 58% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.0	5.	.8	*
Unrecorded	2.6	2.	.6	→
Total	7.6	8.	.4	*
Total males / females		13.3	3.5	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.0
Females (15+)	10.4
Both sexes (15+)	19.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	30.0	57.4	43.8
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	9.4	13.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	46.7	66.8	56.8
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 🔞 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	17.3	32.5
Females (15+)	6.9	20.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.1	27.9

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	85.2	31.9	68.0	63.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.2	14.9	14.3	3.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes No / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.5	4.0
Females	1.9	0.9
Both sexes	5.7	2.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Central African Republic

Total population: 4 350 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 59% > Population in urban areas: 39% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.6	1	.8	*
Unrecorded	1.7	2	.0	*
Total	3.3	3	.8	*
Total males / females		5.7	1.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	3.2	10.3
Females (15+)	0.3	2.2
Both sexes (15+)	1.7	7.9

 $^{\ast}\mbox{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	52.7	19.0	44.5	50.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	30.5	8.1	4.2	1.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	15 / 15 / 15
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.3
Females (15+)	15.6
Both sexes (15+)	17.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	53.2	78.1	65.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	69.1	87.6	78.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.5	2.3
Females	0.7	0.3
Both sexes	3.1	1.3
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Chad

Total population: 11 721 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 51% > Population in urban areas: 28% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.4	0	.4	→
Unrecorded	4.0	4.0		→
Total	4.4	4.4		→
Total males / females		7.1	1.8	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	37.5
Females (15+)	24.7
Both sexes (15+)	33.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	64.0	83.2	73.7		
Former drinkers* (15+)	17.1	9.4	13.2		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	81.1	92.6	86.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.4	7.2
Females (15+)	0.1	2.0
Both sexes (15+)	0.7	5.7

 $^{\ast}\mathrm{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	76.3	25.5	56.0	53.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	44.8	18.2	20.8	5.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	1.4
Females	<0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Comoros

Total population: 683 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 28% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.3	0	0.1	
Unrecorded	0.1	0.1		→
Total	0.4	0.2		→
Total males / females		0.4	0.1	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.6	9.4
Females (15+)	0.1	1.5
Both sexes (15+)	0.9	7.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	32.9	19.1	5.6	32.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	58.6	25.4	1.3	0.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	2.1
Females (15+)	1.5
Both sexes (15+)	1.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	66.2	86.0	76.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.5	7.4	12.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	82.7	93.4	88.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	1.4
Females	<0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Congo

Total population: 4 112 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 62% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	2.0	1	.7	×
Unrecorded	2.2	2	.2	→
Total	4.2	3	.9	→
Total males / females		6.2	1.6	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.7
Females (15+)	10.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	48.9	75.0	62.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	9.6	9.3
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	57.9	84.6	71.3
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	6.0	14.2
Females (15+)	0.4	2.7
Both sexes (15+)	3.2	11.1

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	47.4	23.5	47.8	49.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	30.8	9.6	5.9	1.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 0	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1917/1960) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes No / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.1	1.3
Females	0.4	0.2
Both sexes	1.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Côte d'Ivoire

Total population: 18 977 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 51% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.5	4	.0	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2	.0	→
Total	6.5	6.0		→
Total males / females		9.8	1.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	4.5	12.5
Females (15+)	0.3	2.6
Both sexes (15+)	2.4	10.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	91.9	34.4	62.2	52.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	38.3	17.2	10.0	2.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1964/1999) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	27.6
Females (15+)	18.2
Both sexes (15+)	25.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	53.8	83.0	67.9		
Former drinkers* (15+)	10.6	6.8	8.8		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	64.4	89.8	76.7		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY					

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	12.6	5.3
Females	3.4	1.6
Both sexes	8.1	3.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Democratic Republic of the Congo

Total population: 62 191 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 55% > Population in urban areas: 35% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.7	2	.3	*
Unrecorded	1.3	1	.3	→
Total	3.0	3.6		*
Total males / females		5.8	1.5	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.0
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	12.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

Drinkers only

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	49.7	75.6	62.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	9.6	9.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	58.7	85.1	72.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Population

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Malaa (1E .)	F 7	10.7
Males (15+)	5.7	13.7
Females (15+)	0.4	2.6
Both sexes (15+)	3.0	10.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	50.6	24.1	50.3	50.5	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.2	10.3	5.8	1.5	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1968/2008) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.4	3.1
Females	0.9	0.4
Both sexes	4.1	1.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.01 / 0.01 / 0.01
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Equatorial Guinea

Total population: 696 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 61% > Population in urban areas: 40% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.3	5	.8	*
Unrecorded	0.8	0	.8	→
Total	9.1	6	.6	*
Total males / females		10.1	2.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.6	16.9
Females (15+)	1.4	4.9
Both sexes (15+)	5.1	12.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	53.9	18.2	51.2	53.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	21.4	7.5	7.7	2.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2010/2011) / Yes (partial)
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.9
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	16.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	35.1	63.2	48.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	8.4	11.4
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	49.3	71.7	60.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 2 🕄 4 5	> MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.0	3.8
Females	1.6	0.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.15/0.15/0.15
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Eritrea

Total population: 5 741 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 22% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.8	0	.5	→
Unrecorded	0.6	0	.6	→
Total	1.4	1	.1	*
Total males / females		1.8	0.3	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	3.9
Females (15+)	0.8
Both sexes (15+)	2.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	45.7	56.3	51.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	7.0	4.3	5.6
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	52.7	60.6	56.7
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.8	1.7
Females (15+)	0.0	<0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	0.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	50.0	25.2	14.5	30.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	61.1	18.0	0.8	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	r < 1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.3	1.4
Females	0.3	0.2
Both sexes	1.8	0.8
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Ethiopia

Total population: 87 095 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 56% > Population in urban areas: 17% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.9	0	.7	→
Unrecorded	3.5	3	.5	→
Total	4.4	4.2		→
Total males / females		6.2	2.2	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.0	4.8
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.5	3.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	42.7	21.8	55.1	55.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.7	13.8	9.4	3.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, Yes No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.1
Females (15+)	19.9
Both sexes (15+)	26.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	62.3	79.9	71.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	17.1	9.1	13.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	79.4	89.0	84.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.7	1.5
Females	0.6	0.3
Both sexes	2.1	0.9
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Gabon

Total population: 1 556 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 61% > Population in urban areas: 86% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.8	8	.9	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2	.0	→
Total	8.8	10).9	*
Total males / females		17.3	4.6	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	33.3
Females (15+)	15.0
Both sexes (15+)	26.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	24.8	50.9	37.9
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	18.7	21.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	48.0	69.7	58.9
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	9.0	17.3
Females (15+)	1.6	5.3
Both sexes (15+)	5.3	12.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	45.5	23.1	67.0	60.0	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	36.4	14.6	32.5	7.9	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.3	3.9
Females	1.8	0.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Gambia

Total population: 1 681 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 54% > Population in urban areas: 58% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.4	2	.4	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1.0		→
Total	3.4	3.4		→
Total males / females		5.5	1.4	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.0	6.4
Females (15+)	0.1	1.6
Both sexes (15+)	0.6	5.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	50.9	19.5	51.4	36.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.3	18.3	11.6	3.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2	3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	34.2
Females (15+)	22.6
Both sexes (15+)	30.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	82.4	93.2	87.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	1.5	0.7	1.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	83.9	93.9	89.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.7	1.4
Females	0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.9	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Ghana

Total population: 24 263 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 61% > Population in urban areas: 51% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.5	1	.8	*
Unrecorded	1.5	3	.0	*
Total	3.0	4	.8	*
Total males / females		7.8	1.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.6
Females (15+)	13.9
Both sexes (15+)	20.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	51.0	76.5	64.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.6
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	66.9	86.0	76.7
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 6 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Males (15+) 3.9

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

0.5

2.1

Drinkers only

11.7

3.6

92

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	62.2	34.2	57.2	54.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females		18.0	6.3	1.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of	life	lost	(YLL)	score*.	2012
			(/	,	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.9	2.5
Females	0.8	0.4
Both sexes	3.3	1.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Guinea

Total population: 10 876 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 35% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
0.3	0	.2	→		
0.5	0.5		→		
0.8	0.7		→		
	1.4	0.1			
6.2	6	.0			
	2003–2005 0.3 0.5 0.8	2003–2005 2008- 0.3 0 0.5 0 0.8 0 1.4	2003-2005 2008-2010 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.8 0.7 1.4 0.1		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	2.7	21.8
Females (15+)	0.6	12.7
Both sexes (15+)	1.7	19.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	57.0	23.9	19.4	28.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.2	13.2	1.0	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	3	4	5 > моз	τ

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.1
Females (15+)	1.5
Both sexes (15+)	8.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	75.0	90.0	82.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	12.5	5.0	8.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	87.5	95.0	91.3
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic bevera	iges but have no	t done so in the p	past 12 months.
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY	No information avail	able MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	1.4
Females	<0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Guinea-Bissau

Total population: 1 587 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 30% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	2.7	2	.5	→
Unrecorded	1.1	1	.5	*
Total	3.8	4	.0	→
Total males / females		6.4	1.7	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.6
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	13.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	47.1	73.6	60.5		
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	10.1	9.5		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	56.1	83.7	70.0		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	6.8	15.4
Females (15+)	0.7	4.1
Both sexes (15+)	3.7	12.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	65.4	22.7	42.3	50.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	67.2	17.1	2.7	0.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.8	1.4
Females	0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.9	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.15/0.15/0.15
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Kenya

Total population: 40 909 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 22% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Average 2003—2005			Change
1.6	1	.8	*
2.5	2	.5	→
4.1	4	.3	→
	7.4	1.3	
6.2	6	.0	
	2003–2005 1.6 2.5 4.1	2003–2005 2008- 1.6 1 2.5 2 4.1 4 7.4 7.4	1.6 1.8 2.5 2.5 4.1 4.3 7.4 1.3

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	2.4	7.4
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	1.2	5.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.8	18.0	59.3	49.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	52.3	9.1	6.5	1.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2010/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.8
Females (15+)	9.6
Both sexes (15+)	18.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	51.8	77.1	64.6
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	67.7	86.7	77.3
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.8	2.4
Females	0.8	0.4
Both sexes	3.2	1.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Lesotho

Total population: 2 009 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 62% > Population in urban areas: 27% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	2.1	2.	.8	*
Unrecorded	3.7	3.	.7	→
Total	5.8	6.	.5	*
Total males / females		10.8	2.5	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.6
Females (15+)	13.4
Both sexes (15+)	21.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	44.4	71.2	58.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.1	11.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	58.0	81.3	70.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	7.1	16.9
Females (15+)	0.8	4.1
Both sexes (15+)	3.8	12.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	30.6	11.5	56.3	53.0	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	40.2	18.6	25.9	5.9	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.5	3.2
Females	1.1	0.5
Both sexes	4.2	1.8
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Liberia

Total population: 3 958 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 48% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.5	3	.1	*
Unrecorded	1.6	1	.6	→
Total	5.1	4.7		→
Total males / females		7.5	2.0	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	18.3	43.9
Females (15+)	4.9	26.3
Both sexes (15+)	11.5	38.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	54.7	23.0	52.7	52.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	46.7	17.8	6.8	1.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.1
Females (15+)	10.6
Both sexes (15+)	15.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	50.8	75.2	63.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	7.6	6.3	6.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	58.4	81.5	70.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.4	3.1
Females	1.1	0.5
Both sexes	4.2	1.8
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Madagascar

Total population: 21 080 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: 30% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	0.7	0	.8	→
Unrecorded	0.5	1	.0	*
Total	1.2	1	.8	*
Total males / females		2.9	0.7	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.4
Females (15+)	9.9
Both sexes (15+)	12.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	61.5	83.4	72.6		
Former drinkers* (15+)	17.1	9.6	13.3		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 78.7 92.9 85.9					
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	15.4	72.2
Females (15+)	3.0	43.0
Both sexes (15+)	9.2	64.8

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	27.5	22.1	38.6	44.5	
Road traffic accidents, males / females 39.7 16.7 11.7		11.7	2.9		
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.8	1.6
Females	0.4	0.2
Both sexes	2.1	0.9
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Malawi

Total population: 15 014 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 54% > Population in urban areas: 20% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.3	1	.5	*
Unrecorded	0.5	1	.0	*
Total	1.8	2	.5	*
Total males / females		4.5	0.5	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	14.6	51.4
Females (15+)	1.4	13.1
Both sexes (15+)	7.9	40.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	52.9	28.8	42.6	40.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.6	15.0	11.6	1.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
---------------------------------------	--------------------------

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.9
Females (15+)	4.6
Both sexes (15+)	12.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	55.8	79.8	67.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	71.7	89.4	80.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 🔞 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.1	2.1
Females	0.6	0.3
Both sexes	2.8	1.2
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Total population: 13 986 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 53% > Population in urban areas: 36% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.5	0	.6	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	1.0	1	.1	*
Total males / females		2.2	0.0	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	36.4
Females (15+)	2.8
Both sexes (15+)	29.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	91.1	96.0	93.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	2.9	2.4	2.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	94.0	98.4	96.2	
*Pareans who used to drink alcoholic hoverages but have not done so in the part 12 menths				

*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	2.5
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	2.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	64.1	30.6	31.5	18.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	55.3	27.0	6.4	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

Voare	of	lifo	lact	/VE	۱۰	core*.	2012
rears	01	iiie	IOSU	(YLL	JS	core".	7017

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.5	1.4
Females	<0.1	0.0
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Mauritania

Total population: 3 609 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 59% > Population in urban areas: 41% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.0	0	.0	→
Unrecorded	0.1	0	.1	→
Total	0.1	0	.1	→
Total males / females		0.2	0.0	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	1.3
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	1.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	36.3	17.0	3.5	19.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	66.1	21.7	0.0	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages:	
Hours, days / places, density	Total ban
Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	6.6
Females (15+)	1.4
Both sexes (15+)	4.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	94.0	96.0	95.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	3.0	2.4	2.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	97.0	98.4	97.7
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.6	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

3 4 5 > MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Mauritius

Total population: 1 231 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 79% > Population in urban areas: 42% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.8	2	.6	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	3.8	3	.6	→
Total males / females		5.9	1.4	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.2
Females (15+)	7.2
Both sexes (15+)	11.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	41.8	69.4	55.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.8	12.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 55.4 80.2 68.0				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	21.2	47.6
Females (15+)	5.1	25.6
Both sexes (15+)	13.0	40.7

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	30.9	6.4	51.7	49.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	29.7	4.0	15.5	3.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	3.3
Females	1.2	0.6
Both sexes	4.5	1.9
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Mozambique

Total population: 23 967 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 55% > Population in urban areas: 38% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Average 2003–2005			Change
1.5	1	.3	*
0.8	1.0		→
2.3	2.3		→
	3.5	1.1	
6.2	6	.0	
	2003–2005 1.5 0.8 2.3	2003-2005 2008- 1.5 1 0.8 1 2.3 2 3.5 3.5	2003–2005 2008–2010 1.5 1.3 0.8 1.0 2.3 2.3 3.5 1.1

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.7	6.2
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.8	4.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	37.6	25.9	32.4	46.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	32.9	22.3	1.8	0.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	3	4	5 > MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.0
Females (15+)	11.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	57.3	80.7	69.6		
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.6		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	73.2	90.3	82.1		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.8	2.0
Females	0.6	0.3
Both sexes	2.6	1.1
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.06 / 0.06 / 0.06
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Namibia

Total population: 2 179 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 62% > Population in urban areas: 38% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.1	6	.8	*
Unrecorded	3.7	4	.0	→
Total	8.8	10.8		*
Total males / females		16.7	5.4	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	34.0
Females (15+)	18.3
Both sexes (15+)	27.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.2	61.8	48.7		
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.3		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	50.8	70.2	61.0		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)	22.8	46.4
Females (15+)	7.0	23.6
Both sexes (15+)	14.5	37.2

Population

Drinkers only

5 > MOST

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.1	6.5	68.8	64.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.3 18.9		18.9 66.1	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4
*Decod on clockel attributeble years of life lost	

sed on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.8	3.7
Females	1.7	0.8
Both sexes	5.1	2.2
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Total population: 15 894 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 50% > Population in urban areas: 17% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.1	0	.1	→
Unrecorded	0.2	0.2		→
Total	0.3	0.3		→
Total males / females		0.5	0.1	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.3	3.6
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.6
Both sexes (15+)	0.2	2.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	48.0	20.2	5.5	24.0	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	51.4 23.5		0.1	0.0	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	3	4	5 > моз	δT

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	5.9
Females (15+)	4.4
Both sexes (15+)	5.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	90.0	94.8	92.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	1.5	3.0	2.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.5	97.8	94.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	1.4
Females	<0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Nigeria

Total population: 160 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 56% > Population in urban areas: 50% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	9.8	9.	.1	→
Unrecorded	2.5	1.	.0	*
Total	12.3	10	.1	*
Total males / females		14.9	5.1	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.6
Females (15+)	17.7
Both sexes (15+)	23.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	26.1	52.5	39.2
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	41.9	71.3	56.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 6 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.3	19.4
Females (15+)	2.0	6.8
Both sexes (15+)	6.7	15.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	79.2	29.2	69.3	68.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females		25.8	12.7	4.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

Years of	life los	t (YLL)	score*.	2012
		- (- ==/	,	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.8	1.0
Females	0.4	<0.1
Both sexes	2.1	0.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Rwanda

Total population: 10 837 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 55% > Population in urban areas: 19% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	6.8	6	.8	→
Unrecorded	3.0	3.0		→
Total	9.8	9.8		→
Total males / females		15.1	5.0	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	30.2	54.3
Females (15+)	10.9	31.2
Both sexes (15+)	20.1	45.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	28.5	19.0	74.3	69.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	39.5	17.4	30.3	10.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	27.2
Females (15+)	14.3
Both sexes (15+)	22.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	28.7	55.8	42.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	9.4	12.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.5	65.2	55.3	
$^{\star}\mbox{Persons}$ who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.9	4.2
Females	2.0	1.0
Both sexes	5.8	2.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Sao Tome and Principe

Total population: 178 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 62% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.8	4.	.2	*
Unrecorded	2.9	2.	.9	→
Total	8.7	7.	.1	*
Total males / females		11.5	2.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.3
Females (15+)	10.4
Both sexes (15+)	18.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	36.4	64.2	50.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	8.4	11.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	50.6	72.6	61.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

8.2

1.8

4.9

Drinkers only

16.5

6.5

12.8

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	_	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	_	_	_	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST			MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
8.8	3.7		
1.6	0.8		
5.1	2.2		
3.3	1.4		
	8.8 1.6 5.1		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Senegal

Total population: 12 951 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 56% > Population in urban areas: 42% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.3	0	.3	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0	.3	→
Total	0.6	0	.6	→
Total males / females		1.1	0.1	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.4	3.9
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	0.2	3.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	54.5	15.6	13.2	26.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.1	31.3	0.2	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	10.7
Females (15+)	7.1
Both sexes (15+)	10.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	85.0	95.0	90.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	3.5	4.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	90.2	98.5	94.5	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	1.4
Females	<0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Seychelles

Total population: 91 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 78% > Population in urban areas: 55% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	6.2 ^t	4.	.1 ^t	*		
Unrecorded	1.0	1.5		*		
Total	7.2	5.6		*		
Total males / females		8.7	2.4			
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0				

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population Drinkers of		
Males (15+)	39.1	70.9	
Females (15+)	7.9	24.1	
Both sexes (15+)	23.7	53.8	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
	—	—	—	
	—	—	—	
LEAST			MOST	
	ASI — LEAST	ASDR*		

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2003/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.8
Females (15+)	7.2
Both sexes (15+)	12.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.6	46.9	34.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.8		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.8	67.2	55.8		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	,		
Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
9.8	4.1		
1.9	0.9		
5.9	2.6		
3.3	1.4		
	9.8 1.9 5.9		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Sierra Leone

Total population: 5 752 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 38% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	6.7	6	.7	→
Unrecorded	3.0	2.0		*
Total	9.7	8.7		*
Total males / females		14.0	3.6	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population Drinkers		
Males (15+)	12.6	22.7	
Females (15+)	4.7	13.6	
Both sexes (15+)	8.6	19.2	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	102.5	52.6	69.7	63.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	45.5	21.1	13.4	3.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.3
Females (15+)	10.4
Both sexes (15+)	19.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	29.0	56.1	42.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	9.4	12.5	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.7	65.5	55.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.9	1.4
Females	0.5	<0.1
Both sexes	2.7	0.7
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales No / No romotion	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

South Africa

Total population: 51 452 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 62% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	7.6	8	.2	→
Unrecorded	2.5	2.	.9	*
Total	10.1	11	.0	→
Total males / females		18.4	4.2	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	32.8
Females (15+)	16.0
Both sexes (15+)	27.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	28.0	54.9	42.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.7	73.7	59.4	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 3 5 > MOST RISKY

Females (15+) 3.7

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

17.8

10.4

Drinkers only

31.7

13.9

25.6

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

		ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	25	.2	8.9	68.4	59.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	47	.7	16.2	52.2	11.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	1	EAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1999/2007) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•	
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.0	4.2
Females	1.5	0.7
Both sexes	5.6	2.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / Yes
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

South Sudan

Total population: 9 941 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 57% > Population in urban areas: — > Income group (World Bank): —

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	—	—	—
Unrecorded	—	_	_
Total	—	_	—
Total males / females			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	—		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	
Females (15+)	
Both sexes (15+)	_

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	—	—	_
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—	—
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months		—	_
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic bevera	ages but have no	t done so in the p	past 12 months.
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY	No information avail	able MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	—	—
Both sexes (15+)	—	—

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	45.3	29.3	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.8	15.9	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

Per 100 000 population (15+).

LEAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	_	_
Females	_	
Both sexes	_	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+). **Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Swaziland

Total population: 1 193 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 61% > Population in urban areas: 21% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.4	4.	7 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.0	1.0		*
Total	5.4	5.7		→
Total males / females		10.6	1.1	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	12.0	21.9
Females (15+)	2.5	7.4
Both sexes (15+)	7.1	16.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	38.8	37.6	53.5	45.4	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	27.4	15.2	32.2	3.3	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.4
Females (15+)	3.3
Both sexes (15+)	13.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	29.7	56.8	43.7		
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	9.4	12.5		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	45.4	66.2	56.1		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•		
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	9.7	4.1	
Females	2.0	0.9	
Both sexes	5.7	2.5	
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No
Total population: 6 306 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 43% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.0	1	.3	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1.0		→
Total	2.0	2.3		*
Total males / females		3.8	0.9	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	35.0	51.0
Females (15+)	14.1	24.6
Both sexes (15+)	24.3	38.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	61.8	23.6	22.2	41.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	32.6	10.0	9.3	2.4
*Por 100,000 population (15.)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST <	0	2	3	4	5 >

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	5.5
Females (15+)	1.6
Both sexes (15+)	3.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	28.1	37.9	33.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	3.3	4.8	4.1		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	31.4	42.7	37.2		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•	,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	12.2	5.2
Females	3.3	1.6
Both sexes	7.7	3.3
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Uganda

Total population: 33 987 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 51% > Population in urban areas: 13% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	8.9	8	.3	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1.5		*
Total	9.9	9.8		→
Total males / females		14.4	5.2	
WHO African Region	6.2	6	.0	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	25.6
Females (15+)	19.6
Both sexes (15+)	23.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	27.9	54.9	41.4		
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.3		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.7	73.7	58.7		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😣 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Males (15+)	6.8	12.1
Females (15+)	0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	3.4	8.3

Population

Drinkers only

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	67.8	50.1	72.2	68.8		
Road traffic accidents, males / females	65.8	25.6	15.7	5.6		
*Per 100 000 population (15+).						
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	8 4 5	> MOST		

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.0	4.2
Females	1.5	0.7
Both sexes	5.8	2.5
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

United Republic of Tanzania

Total population: 44 973 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 55% > Population in urban areas: 26% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	4.8	5	.7	*		
Unrecorded	2.0	2.0		2.0		→
Total	6.8	7.7		*		
Total males / females		11.4	4.0			
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	21.2	40.6
Females (15+)	7.4	23.3
Both sexes (15+)	14.2	34.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	35.1	25.0	67.4	65.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	40.8	29.9	19.0	6.8
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of	f life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	8	4	5 >	MOS	Γ

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	21.9
Females (15+)	12.7
Both sexes (15+)	18.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	31.2	58.7	45.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	9.4	13.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	47.8	68.1	58.1		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•	,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.3	3.9
Females	1.9	0.9
Both sexes	5.5	2.4
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Zambia

Total population: 13 217 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 53% > Population in urban areas: 36% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	2.4	2	.5	→
Unrecorded	1.5	1.5		→
Total	3.9	4.0		→
Total males / females		6.5	1.6	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.5
Females (15+)	9.6
Both sexes (15+)	13.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	46.4	73.1	59.8		
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	10.1	9.5		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	55.4	83.2	69.4		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	4.4	9.8
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	2.2	7.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	45.8	29.4	53.9	52.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.7	20.4	5.1	1.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	345	> MOST

ieais	01	me	1051	(TLL)	score	, 2012	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes No / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
7.9	3.4
1.0	0.5
4.5	1.9
3.3	1.4
	7.9 1.0 4.5

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Zimbabwe

Total population: 13 077 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 59% > Population in urban areas: 38% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005			Change
Recorded	4.1	4	4.7	
Unrecorded	1.0	1.0		→
Total	5.1	5.7		7
Total males / females		10.8	0.8	
WHO African Region	6.2	6.0		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	21.5	42.8
Females (15+)	6.3	22.2
Both sexes (15+)	13.7	35.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	40.8	16.9	51.0	40.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.4	5.8	47.7	3.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Year	rs of	life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	21.6
Females (15+)	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	14.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	35.6	63.3	49.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	8.4	11.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	49.7	71.7	61.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 2 3 🕘 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence			
Males	9.0	3.8			
Females	1.6	0.8			
Both sexes	5.2	2.2			
WHO African Region	3.3	1.4			

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

Antigua and Barbuda

Total population: 87 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 30% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	5.8 ^t	4.	.9 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0.4		→
Total	6.3	5	.4	*
Total males / females		7.7	3.1	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.3	15.5
Females (15+)	2.3	3.7
Both sexes (15+)	6.7	10.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	10.6
Females (15+)	5.1
Both sexes (15+)	8.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.3	22.1	15.3
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.9	39.6	33.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 2 🚯 4 5	> MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.0	3.8
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	10 / 10 / 10
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	10 / 10 / 10
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Argentina

Total population: 40 374 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 92% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	7.6	8	.3	→
Unrecorded	2.0	1	.0	*
Total	9.6	9	.3	→
Total males / females		13.6	5.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.5
Females (15+)	10.9
Both sexes (15+)	15.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.7	29.7	21.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	30.0	51.7	41.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	24.0	34.2
Females (15+)	0.8	1.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.0	20.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.8	10.3	62.9	63.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	26.4	7.6	12.5	4.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1997/2009) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.0	4.8
Females	2.5	1.2
Both sexes	5.7	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Bahamas

Total population: 360 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 78% > Population in urban areas: 84% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.4 ^t	6.	.3 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.6	0	.5	→
Total	9.0	6	.9	*
Total males / females		10.1	3.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	9.8	14.5
Females (15+)	1.3	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	5.4	9.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	17.2	4.3	49.0	45.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	21.2	9.9	4.9	1.7

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

LEAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1932/2006) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.9
Females (15+)	9.0
Both sexes (15+)	12.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.2	34.2	24.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	32.5	56.6	45.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic bevera	ages but have no	t done so in the p	oast 12 months.
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 😢 3 4 5 :	> Most risky

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• •,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.1	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.6	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Barbados

Total population: 280 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 81% > Population in urban areas: 44% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.3 ^t	6.	.3 ^t	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	6.8	6	.8	→
Total males / females		9.8	4.0	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	23.9	31.9
Females (15+)	5.3	8.5
Both sexes (15+)	14.5	21.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	13.3	4.2	56.8	52.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	15.3	2.9	9.9	3.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST No information available MOST
*Pacad on alaphal attributable years of life last	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, Yes / No, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.1
Females (15+)	6.3
Both sexes (15+)	10.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	6.5	18.0	12.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 25.1 37.6 31.4				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.3	3.8
Females	3.1	1.7
Both sexes	5.7	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Belize

Total population: 309 000> Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 65% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.3 ^t	6	.8	7
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.7	7
Total	6.3	8	.5	7
Total males / females		14.5	2.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	4.6	10.2
Females (15+)	0.1	1.1
Both sexes (15+)	2.4	8.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	49.1	13.8	58.8	27.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.1	5.0	21.4	3.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

^Per	100 000	population (15+).	

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	32.1
Females (15+)	21.2
Both sexes (15+)	29.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	41.0	81.3	61.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	6.8	10.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	54.6	88.0	71.4	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 \bigcirc 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.3	5.2
Females	2.0	1.0
Both sexes	6.1	3.1
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Bolivia (Plurinational State of)

Total population: 10 157 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 64% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.6	3	.8	*
Unrecorded	2.5	2	.1	*
Total	5.1	5	.9	*
Total males / females		9.1	2.7	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.5
Females (15+)	6.6
Both sexes (15+)	11.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	16.4	38.0	27.3		
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 37.6 58.7 48.3					
$^{\ast}\mbox{Persons}$ who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	7.8	12.4
Females (15+)	0.7	1.7
Both sexes (15+)	4.2	8.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	64.5	36.2	47.8	54.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.9	12.0	7.7	2.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	1 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	•	
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.1	3.9
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.6	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No (0.05 public transport)
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Brazil

Total population: 195 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 87% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	6.8	7.	.2	→
Unrecorded	3.0	1	.5	*
Total	9.8	8	.7	*
Total males / females		13.6	4.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	20.7	29.9
Females (15+)	5.2	11.1
Both sexes (15+)	12.7	22.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	28.8	5.8	62.6	60.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	52.5	11.3	18.0	5.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 G >

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2003/2007) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.6
Females (15+)	8.9
Both sexes (15+)	15.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	12.4	30.8	21.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	30.7	42.3		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

······································				
	Alcohol use disorders** Alcohol			
Males	8.2	3.9		
Females	3.2	1.8		
Both sexes	5.6	2.8		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Canada

Total population: 34 126 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 84% > Population in urban areas: 81% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	7.8	8.	.2	→
Unrecorded	2.0	2.0		→
Total	9.8	10.2		→
Total males / females		15.1	5.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.8
Females (15+)	7.4
Both sexes (15+)	13.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.7	13.3	11.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.0	12.7	11.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	19.7	9.7 26.1 22.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

 * Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

25.0

10.9

17.8

Drinkers only

31.2

14.7

23.1

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	10.6	5.1	62.5	63.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	11.0	4.1	13.8	4.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Subnational
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Subnational
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.2	6.0
Females	3.6	2.3
Both sexes	6.8	4.1
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Subnational / 0.00 / Subnational
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Chile

Total population: 17 151 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 78% > Population in urban areas: 89% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.8	7.	.6	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2	.0	→
Total	8.8	9.	.6	→
Total males / females		13.9	5.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	9.8	13.5
Females (15+)	0.1	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	4.9	7.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	31.2	9.0	66.3	66.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.8	5.6	9.2	3.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2010/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.2
Females (15+)	9.3
Both sexes (15+)	14.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.7	23.2	16.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	27.3	40.6	34.1
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 Least risky < 1 2 3 4 5 > most risky

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.5	4.3	
Females	1.5	0.8	
Both sexes	5.0	2.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4	

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Colombia

Total population: 46 445 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 75% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.2	4	.2	→
Unrecorded	2.0	2	.0	→
Total	6.2	6	.2	→
Total males / females		9.1	3.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.2
Females (15+)	9.4
Both sexes (15+)	12.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	18.9	42.1	30.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	40.1	62.6	51.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.3	13.8
Females (15+)	0.2	0.6
Both sexes (15+)	4.1	8.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.0	5.4	56.0	54.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	es 35.8 7.4 23.2		9.0	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 🕘 5	> MOST

tears of	ine iost	(TLL) SC	core [~] , z	2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes(2007/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.7	4.5
Females	3.3	1.9
Both sexes	5.9	3.2
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.04 / 0.04 / 0.04
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Costa Rica

Total population: 4 670 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 64% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008—2010		Change
Recorded	4.1	4	.4	→
Unrecorded	1.4	1.0		*
Total	5.5	5.4		→
Total males / females		7.5	3.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	12.6	20.4
Females (15+)	2.4	6.0
Both sexes (15+)	7.6	14.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.8	5.0	46.0	53.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	27.5	5.6	32.0	13.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Pasad on alaphal attributable years of life last	

ed on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.1
Females (15+)	7.8
Both sexes (15+)	10.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	16.8	38.8	27.6		
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	38.0	59.5	48.6		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.7	4.4		
Females	2.8	1.5		
Both sexes	5.8	3.0		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Cuba

Total population: 11 282 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 75% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.4	4	.2	→
Unrecorded	1.1	1.0		→
Total	5.5	5.2		→
Total males / females		8.8	1.6	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8.4		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.3
Females (15+)	3.0
Both sexes (15+)	8.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	9.6	25.3	17.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	22.0	20.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	28.3	47.3	37.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	10.9	15.2
Females (15+)	1.8	3.3
Both sexes (15+)	6.3	10.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.8	4.2	50.4	44.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	12.6	3.3	5.2	0.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
ears of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012 LEAST < 1 2 🔞 4 5 > MOST				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1985/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	3.8
Females	3.1	1.7
Both sexes	5.5	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Dominica

Total population: 71 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+)



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	7.5 ^t	6.	6 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	8.0	7.1		*
Total males / females		10.2	4.1	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8.4		

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	41.5	59.4
Females (15+)	14.3	29.6
Both sexes (15+)	27.7	46.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	_	_	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.6
Females (15+)	8.4
Both sexes (15+)	12.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.7	29.5	20.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	30.0	51.5	41.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.1	3.8
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.6	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Dominican Republic

Total population: 10 017 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 69% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.7	6	.2	→
Unrecorded	0.6	0.7		→
Total	6.3	6.9		→
Total males / females		9.8	4.0	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8.4		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.7
Females (15+)	9.1
Both sexes (15+)	12.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.9	35.5	25.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	20.7	19.5	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 33.2 56.2 44.				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	24.7	37.0
Females (15+)	8.2	18.6
Both sexes (15+)	16.4	29.6

 $^{*}\mathrm{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	19.7	16.2	53.1	48.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females		23.0	10.0	3.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	8 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.2	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.7	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Ecuador

Total population: 15 001 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.8	4	.2	*
Unrecorded	5.4	3	.0	*
Total	9.2	7.	.2	*
Total males / females		11.1	3.4	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	7.1	12.0
Females (15+)	0.5	1.5
Both sexes (15+)	3.8	8.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR* A		AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	32.6	18.4	46.9	55.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	61.4	15.1	8.8	2.4
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

I CI	100.00	o populai	.011 (13+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 🔮 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.8
Females (15+)	9.4
Both sexes (15+)	15.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	19.8	43.6	31.8
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	41.0	64.2	52.7
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.0	3.9	
Females	3.1	1.8	
Both sexes	5.6	2.8	
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.01	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales No / promotion		
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes	
National government support for community action	No	
National monitoring system(s)	No	

El Salvador

Total population: 6 218 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 68% > Population in urban areas: 64% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.6	2	.2	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	\rightarrow
Total	3.6	3	.2	*
Total males / females		5.0	1.7	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.0
Females (15+)	5.1
Both sexes (15+)	7.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.3	45.5	34.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.5	65.8	56.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	16.0	28.8
Females (15+)	4.7	13.6
Both sexes (15+)	9.8	22.4

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	57.0	19.4	33.9	47.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females		12.7	37.6	13.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	ī<1 2	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	•	
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	3.9
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.2	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Grenada

Total population: 105 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 72% > Population in urban areas: 39% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+)



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Average 2003—2005			Change
10.5 ^t	11	.9 ^t	*
0.5	0	.7	→
11.0	12.5		*
	17.9	7.3	
9.2	8	.4	
	2003–2005 10.5 ¹ 0.5 11.0	2003–2005 2008- 10.5 ⁱ 11 0.5 0 11.0 12 17.9 17.9	2003–2005 2008–2010 10.5 ^t 11.9 ^t 0.5 0.7 11.0 12.5 17.9 7.3

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.0	13.3
Females (15+)	1.0	2.8
Both sexes (15+)	4.5	9.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	_	_	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	29.9
Females (15+)	19.6
Both sexes (15+)	25.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	18.7	42.5	30.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	39.9	63.0	51.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.0	3.9	
Females	3.1	1.8	
Both sexes	5.5	2.8	
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4	

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Guatemala

Total population: 14 342 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 49% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.4	2	.2	→
Unrecorded	1.6	1	.6	→
Total	4.0	3	.8	→
Total males / females		7.5	0.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.9
Females (15+)	1.7
Both sexes (15+)	9.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	22.8	47.9	36.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	46.1	68.2	57.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 (3) 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	13.0	24.1
Females (15+)	4.5	14.2
Both sexes (15+)	8.5	20.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	69.4	24.3	49.2	40.8	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.9	5.3	32.7	2.4	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	3.9
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.4	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Guyana

Total population: 786 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 62% > Population in urban areas: 29% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		Average Chang 008–2010			
Recorded	7.3	7.	.1	→		
Unrecorded	2.0	1	*			
Total	9.3	8	*			
Total males / females		11.7	4.7			
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8.4				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	10.7	15.2
Females (15+)	1.7	3.4
Both sexes (15+)	6.1	10.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	104.0	20.7	64.0	53.5	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	81.8	23.2	7.3	2.8	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012				LEAST <	12	3	4	5 >	MOST					
						<i>.</i>								

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.7
Females (15+)	9.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.5	28.8	20.3
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	29.8	50.8	40.5
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

······································				
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.6	3.9		
Females	3.3	1.9		
Both sexes	5.9	2.9		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Haiti

Total population: 9 896 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 64% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	6.1	5.	.9	→
Unrecorded	0.6	0.	.6	→
Total	6.7	6.	.4	→
Total males / females		10.1	2.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.0
Females (15+)	6.7
Both sexes (15+)	11.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.1	33.8	24.2
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	32.4	56.2	44.6
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	10.0	14.8
Females (15+)	1.4	3.2
Both sexes (15+)	5.6	10.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	24.7	15.2	53.6	46.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	20.0	20.0 11.7 5.4 1		1.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	1<1 2	345	> MOST

5 01	me iost	(TLL) SCOR	e", 2012	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,_/, //

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	•••••••••••••	
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.4	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.7	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	—

Honduras

Total population: 7 621 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 63% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.1	3	.0	→
Unrecorded	1.4	1	.0	*
Total	4.5	4	.0	*
Total males / females		5.7	2.3	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.0	13.6
Females (15+)	0.2	0.6
Both sexes (15+)	4.1	8.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	26.3	14.7	37.5	49.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	38.9	14.8	22.0	8.8
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

I CI	100 000	population	(10+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.7
Females (15+)	6.4
Both sexes (15+)	8.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	19.7	43.5	31.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	40.9	64.1	52.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•	,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.0	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.07 / 0.07 / 0.07
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Jamaica

Total population: 2 741 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.5	3	.4	→
Unrecorded	1.5	1	.5	→
Total	5.0	4	.9	→
Total males / females		7.1	2.8	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.5
Females (15+)	7.8
Both sexes (15+)	10.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	20.0	44.1	32.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.5	21.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.3	64.6	54.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	tterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.9	21.0
Females (15+)	2.1	5.9
Both sexes (15+)	6.9	15.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.8	2.9	41.0	43.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	23.3	7.7	5.2	1.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST

16912 01	1116 1031	(ILL) SCOLE	, 2012	
				-

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	6.5	2.5
Females	1.8	0.5
Both sexes	4.1	1.5
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Mexico

Total population: 118 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 78% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.1	5	.5	→
Unrecorded	3.4	1	.8	*
Total	8.5	7.	.2	*
Total males / females		12.4	2.6	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	19.7	28.5
Females (15+)	5.3	11.4
Both sexes (15+)	12.1	21.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	54.7	16.6	65.5	51.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	26.7	6.5	45.2	9.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1984/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.0
Females (15+)	5.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	12.8	31.3	22.6		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.5		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	31.1	53.7	43.1		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence						
Males	5.2	2.4						
Females	0.5	0.3						
Both sexes	2.7	1.3						
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4						

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	Subnational
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Nicaragua

Total population: 5 822 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 65% > Population in urban areas: 57% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.8	3	.5	→
Unrecorded	1.6	1	.5	→
Total	5.4	5	.0	→
Total males / females		8.7	1.5	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.3
Females (15+)	3.8
Both sexes (15+)	10.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	18.1	41.0	29.8		
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	39.3	61.5	50.7		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY					

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	24.8	40.9
Females (15+)	2.5	6.6
Both sexes (15+)	13.4	27.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	64.4	22.8	53.9	46.3	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	45.9	9.5	51.7	8.6	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

Year	s of	life	lo	ost	: (YL	L)	1	SC	core*,	201	12			
															_

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.0	3.9
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

anama

Total population: 3 678 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 75% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.8	7.	.2	*
Unrecorded	1.0	0	.8	→
Total	6.8	8	.0	*
Total males / females		11.2	4.7	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.2	16.0
Females (15+)	0.4	0.8
Both sexes (15+)	5.8	9.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	13.7	15.4	63.1	58.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	30.2	6.5	30.1	12.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
+Description all all attribute bla second of life land	

Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.0
Females (15+)	9.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.4	28.8	20.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	29.7	50.8	40.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• • • ,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.2	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.7	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Paraguay

Total population: 6 460 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 66% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	6.3	7	.3	*
Unrecorded	1.5	1	.5	→
Total	7.8	8	.8	*
Total males / females		12.4	5.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	17.3
Females (15+)	9.9
Both sexes (15+)	14.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	10.0	26.0	17.9	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	28.3	48.0	38.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

46.4

21.3

33.9

Drinkers only

64.7

41.0

54.8

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	24.7	6.4	57.8	60.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females 58.6 12.5 29.3		11.7		
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST

ical.	5 01	me	1031	(11	L) 30010	, 2012	
						e 11 e - 1	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011/ —) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.4	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.8	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Total population: 29 263 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 77% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.4	6	.1	*
Unrecorded	4.0	2	.0	*
Total	8.4	8	.1	→
Total males / females		12.4	3.8	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	23.6	35.3
Females (15+)	3.6	8.1
Both sexes (15+)	13.5	24.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	35.2	17.7	57.0	61.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females		13.5	21.5	6.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.6
Females (15+)	8.6
Both sexes (15+)	14.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.8	35.3	25.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	20.7	19.5	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	33.1	56.0	44.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

······································				
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	12.2	7.9		
Females	3.3	1.9		
Both sexes	7.7	4.9		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Puerto Rico

Total population: — > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): — > Population in urban areas: — > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.4	4	.9	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0	.5	→
Total	5.7	5	.4	→
Total males / females		7.2	3.4	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	
Females (15+)	—
Both sexes (15+)	—

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	_	_	_
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—	—
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	—	—	—
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic bevera	ages but have no	t done so in the p	ast 12 months.
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY	No information availa	able MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	_	
Both sexes (15+)	_	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	_			
Road traffic accidents, males / females	_	—	_	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST N	lo informati	ion availab	le MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,/, //

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	—	—
Females	—	—
Both sexes	—	_
WHO Region of the Americas	—	—

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	_

Saint Kitts and Nevis

Total population: 52 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 32% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+)



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.8 ^t	7.	7 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	9.3	8	.2	*
Total males / females		11.8	4.7	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	33.3	61.6
Females (15+)	10.4	33.1
Both sexes (15+)	21.6	50.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	_	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	21.9
Females (15+)	15.0
Both sexes (15+)	19.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	22.8	48.2	35.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	46.0	68.5	57.5
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 😢 3 4 5 :	> Most risky

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	•	,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.0	3.8
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.5	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Saint Lucia

Total population: 177 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 28% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	11.5 ^t	10	.1 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0.	.2	→
Total	12.0	10	.4	*
Total males / females		15.1	5.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.6	13.7
Females (15+)	1.2	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	4.8	9.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16/16/16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No No / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	24.0
Females (15+)	14.0
Both sexes (15+)	19.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	15.9	37.3	26.9		
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	37.1	58.0	47.8		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY		

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	3.8
Females	3.1	1.8
Both sexes	5.4	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines

Total population: 109 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 49% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.0 ^t	6	.3	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.3	→
Total	5.5	6.6		*
Total males / females		9.2	3.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	9.9	14.6
Females (15+)	1.3	3.1
Both sexes (15+)	5.7	10.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	_	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	_	—	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.6
Females (15+)	8.9
Both sexes (15+)	11.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	13.9	33.9	23.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	32.2	56.3	44.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	:1 🕗 3 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.2	3.8		
Females	3.1	1.8		
Both sexes	5.7	2.8		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16/16/16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, No No / No / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Suriname

Total population: 525 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 69% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.0	5	.6	*
Unrecorded	0.9	1	.0	→
Total	5.9	6	.6	*
Total males / females		9.4	3.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.1
Females (15+)	9.3
Both sexes (15+)	12.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	16.2	37.9	27.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	37.4	58.6	48.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	:1 2 🕄 4 5:	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.5	13.6
Females (15+)	1.2	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	4.8	9.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	A	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	21.8	6.0	52.4	50.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.7	37.7 7.9		2.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEA	least < 1 2 ❸ 4 5 >		> MOST

Tuan	5 01 1	nc	1031	1	1	-/	30010	,	201	2	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.2	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.7	2.8
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Trinidad and Tobago

Total population: 1 328 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 79% > Population in urban areas: 14% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	5.8	6.4		7
Unrecorded	0.5	0.3		→
Total	6.3	6.7		→
Total males / females		9.7	3.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	31.3	50.4
Females (15+)	9.9	24.4
Both sexes (15+)	20.4	39.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	17.3	5.1	58.9	54.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	28.8	13.6	12.6	4.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	0	4	5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.6
Females (15+)	9.6
Both sexes (15+)	13.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes				
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	16.7	38.9	28.0				
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0				
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	37.9	59.6	48.9				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.							

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 🕗 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.1	3.8		
Females	3.1	1.8		
Both sexes	5.6	2.8		
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4		

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

United States of America

Total population: 312 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 80% > Population in urban areas: 82% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aveı 2008-		Change
Recorded	8.5	8	.7	→
Unrecorded	1.0	0.	.5	*
Total	9.5	9.	.2	→
Total males / females		13.6	4.9	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.1
Females (15+)	7.8
Both sexes (15+)	13.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	6.2	17.4	12.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 24.8 37.0 31.1				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	23.2	30.9
Females (15+)	10.9	17.3
Both sexes (15+)	16.9	24.5

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.9	7.1	60.6	62.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.6	7.0	12.4	4.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST		> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21/21/21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Subnational Subnational

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.7	6.9
Females	4.2	2.6
Both sexes	7.4	4.7
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / Subnational / 0.04
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Uruguay

Total population: 3 372 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 92% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.1	6	.6	→
Unrecorded	2.0	1	.0	*
Total	8.1	7.6		→
Total males / females		11.3	4.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8	.4	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	14.7	20.9
Females (15+)	4.7	9.8
Both sexes (15+)	9.4	16.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	13.0	2.4	54.1	60.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	39.4	9.4	7.6	2.6
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	0	4 5	5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.1
Females (15+)	8.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.6	29.6	21.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.3		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	29.9	51.7	41.3		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY					

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	3.8
Females	2.9	1.7
Both sexes	5.3	2.7
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)

Total population: 29 043 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 93% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	7.3	7.	.7	\rightarrow
Unrecorded	1.4	1.3		→
Total	8.7	8.9		→
Total males / females		12.7	5.2	
WHO Region of the Americas	9.2	8.4		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.1
Females (15+)	10.7
Both sexes (15+)	15.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.8	29.6	20.7		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	30.1	51.6	40.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only	
Males (15+)	38.1	54.6	
Females (15+)	10.5	21.8	
Both sexes (15+)	24.3	41.1	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	26.8	3.7	61.7	58.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	85.9	16.6	66.9	27.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1966/2005) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.3	3.9
Females	3.2	1.8
Both sexes	5.7	2.9
WHO Region of the Americas	6.0	3.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Afghanistan

Total population: 28 398 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 51% > Population in urban areas: 23% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.0	0	.0	→
Unrecorded	0.0	0	.7	→
Total	0.0	0	.7	→
Total males / females		1.2	0.1	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	2.7
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	1.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	26.4	19.0	22.9	17.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	53.6	14.5	1.4	0.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 🚺 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	25.3
Females (15+)	6.0
Both sexes (15+)	18.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	90.0	95.0	92.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	3.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	95.1	97.6	96.3
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.6	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Bahrain

Total population: 1 252 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 80% > Population in urban areas: 89% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	3.9	2.	.0 ^t	*		
Unrecorded	0.1	0.1		→		
Total	4.0	2.1		*		
Total males / females		2.7	1.0			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7			

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	0.8
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	0.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.4	5.2	13.5	15.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	29.0	7.8	0.7	0.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	r < 1 2	2345	> MOST

*Based on	alcohol-attributable	vears of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.6
Females (15+)	13.9
Both sexes (15+)	21.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	83.6	89.4	85.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	3.5	4.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	88.8	92.9	90.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.8	0.4
Females	0.3	0.1
Both sexes	1.2	0.3
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Djibouti

Total population: 834 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 66% > Population in urban areas: 76% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	1.4	1	.1	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0.2		→
Total	1.9	1.3		*
Total males / females		2.4	0.3	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.2	2.1
Females (15+)	0.0	<0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	1.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	35.1	26.6	34.5	37.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.6	19.4	3.6	0.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least <	0	2	3	4	5 >	> MOS	ST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	28.5
Females (15+)	8.9
Both sexes (15+)	23.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	81.6	87.4	84.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	10.0	9.4	9.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.6	96.8	94.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.1	0.3
Females	0.2	0.1
Both sexes	0.7	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Egypt

Total population: 78 076 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 68% > Population in urban areas: 43% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.2	0	.2	→
Unrecorded	0.1	0	.2	→
Total	0.3	0.4		→
Total males / females		0.7	0.0	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Population

0.1

<0.1

<0.1

Drinkers only

0.6

0.2

0.5

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	8.6
Females (15+)	0.9
Both sexes (15+)	6.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	86.2	93.1	89.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	3.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.4	95.7	93.5
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	122.3	67.8	4.3	8.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	31.6	8.0	0.1	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost	

cohol-attributable years o

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2002/2008) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/21/21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/21/21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
0.4	0.2
<0.1	<0.1
0.2	0.1
0.3	0.2
	disorders** 0.4 <0.1 0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes /
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Iran (Islamic Republic of)

Total population: 74 462 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 76% > Population in urban areas: 71% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.0	0	.0	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1.0		→
Total	1.0	1.0		→
Total males / females		1.7	0.3	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.5
Females (15+)	0.0	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	8.7	5.6	12.3	9.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	85.7	24.1	3.4	0.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density	Total ban
Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	26.9
Females (15+)	17.8
Both sexes (15+)	24.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	90.8	95.7	93.2		
Former drinkers* (15+)	2.9	2.4	2.6		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	93.7	98.1	95.8		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.5	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Total population: 30 962 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 59% > Population in urban areas: 66% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	0.2	0	.2	→
Unrecorded	0.2	0	.3	→
Total	0.4	0.5		→
Total males / females		0.9	0.1	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.7
Females (15+)	2.1
Both sexes (15+)	9.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	87.7	93.9	90.8
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	3.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	92.8	96.4	94.6
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

 Males (15+)
 <0.1</th>

 Females (15+)
 <0.1</td>

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Both sexes (15+)

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

<0.1

Drinkers only

0.5

0.2

0.4

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.2	6.2	7.8	8.5	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	80.5	29.7	0.3	0.0	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	T < 1 2	345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.6	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Jordan

Total population: 6 455 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 65% > Population in urban areas: 79% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0.2		→
Total	0.8	0.7		→
Total males / females		1.2	0.2	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.5
Females (15+)	0.0	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	20.1	11.2	7.9	13.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	46.9	17.8	0.5	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.5
Females (15+)	10.9
Both sexes (15+)	15.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	91.4	94.3	92.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	1.5	3.4	2.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	92.9	97.8	95.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.6	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.4	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Kuwait

Total population: 2 992 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 98% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	0.0	0.	.0	→		
Unrecorded	0.1	0.1		→		
Total	0.1	0.1		→		
Total males / females		0.2	0.0			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7				

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	1.5
Females (15+)	0.5
Both sexes (15+)	1.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	75.4	85.8	79.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	10.8	11.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	86.6	96.6	90.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.6	4.7
Females (15+)	0.1	1.7
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	4.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	A	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	2.7	4.1	3.6	24.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	29.8	4.8	0.2	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEA	ST < 1 2	2345	> MOST

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
0.5	0.3
0.1	0.1
0.4	0.2
0.3	0.2
	disorders** 0.5 0.1 0.4

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	_

Lebanon

Total population: 4 341 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 76% > Population in urban areas: 87% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.8	1	.9	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	2.3	2.4		→
Total males / females		3.9	0.8	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	0.9
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	0.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	8.2	3.6	17.3	19.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	31.2	13.4	8.3	2.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.9
Females (15+)	11.1
Both sexes (15+)	23.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	72.8	85.2	78.8
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.5	7.4	11.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	87.3	92.6	89.9
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY			

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	0.6
Females	0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.8	0.3
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

> MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Libya

Total population: 6 041 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 78% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.0	0	.0	→
Unrecorded	0.1	0	.1	→
Total	0.1	0	.1	→
Total males / females		0.1	0.0	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	3.2
Females (15+)	1.2
Both sexes (15+)	2.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	93.9	97.0	95.4
Former drinkers* (15+)	3.0	1.4	2.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	96.9	98.4	97.6
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.4	44.8
Females (15+)	0.5	28.7
Both sexes (15+)	0.9	39.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.0	9.2	1.2	4.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	76.2 26.6		0.5	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	345	> MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density	Total ban
Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.5	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Morocco

Total population: 31 642 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 72% > Population in urban areas: 58% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	0.5	0	.5	→		
Unrecorded	1.0	0.5		*		
Total	1.5	0.9		→		
Total males / females		1.9	0.0			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.6
Females (15+)	0.0	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	25.6	23.0	15.2	15.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.6	13.4	1.4	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per	100	000	popu	lation	(15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST <	< 1	2	34	5 >	MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.1
Females (15+)	3.2
Both sexes (15+)	17.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes			
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	80.8	92.0	86.6			
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.0	5.2	8.0			
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.7	97.2	94.6			
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.						

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.7	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.4	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	—

<mark>0 m</mark> a n

Total population: 2 803 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 73% > Income group (World Bank): High income

Beer Wine Spirits Other All

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

20 ------

5 0 1970 1975 11 1985 1 ЦЦ. 2000 2005 1980 1995 2010 1960 1965 1990 Year

Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.7	0	.7	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0.2		→
Total	1.0	0.9		→
Total males / females		1.2	0.4	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Population

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

Drinkers only

0.6

0.2

0.5

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.5
Females (15+)	11.7
Both sexes (15+)	15.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	87.3	94.0	89.9		
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	4.2		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	92.5 96.6 94.1				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	A	ASDR*		(%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.3	20.3	9.0	10.6	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	61.6	17.2	0.6	0.1	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEA	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST			

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2002/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.5	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.4	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Pakistan

Total population: 173 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 65% > Population in urban areas: 36% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	0.0	0.0		→		
Unrecorded	0.1	0.0		→		
Total	0.1	0.1		→		
Total males / females		0.1 0.0				
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.2	2.9
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	2.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	37.4	33.0	2.4	14.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	40.8	8.6	0.1	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1973/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	1.8
Females (15+)	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	1.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	89.6	94.8	92.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	3.9		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	94.7	97.3	96.0		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.5	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Qatar

Total population: 1 750 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 96% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.8	0.	9 ^t	→
Unrecorded	0.4	0	.6	→
Total	1.2	1.5		*
Total males / females		1.8	0.4	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.5
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.7	8.9	24.6	13.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.9	8.9	10.4	1.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012 LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	24.1
Females (15+)	11.1
Both sexes (15+)	22.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	87.3	94.0	88.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	4.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	92.5	96.6	93.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.3	0.2
Females	0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.1
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Saudi Arabia

Total population: 27 258 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 82% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	0.1	0	.1	→		
Unrecorded	0.2	0.1		→		
Total	0.3	0.2		→		
Total males / females		0.3	0.1			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.5
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	13.4	7.6	2.8	8.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	50.9	10.2	0.0	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least <	< 0	2	3	4	5 >	> MOS	ST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (—/—) / —
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	4.3
Females (15+)	2.7
Both sexes (15+)	3.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	87.3	94.0	90.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	4.1		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	92.5	96.6	94.2		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.4	0.4
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Somalia

Total population: 9 636 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 52% > Population in urban areas: 37% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.0	0	.0	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	0.5	0.5		→
Total males / females		0.9	0.1	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0.7		

Population

0.2

0.0

0.1

Drinkers only

2.1

<0.1

1.6

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	10.7
Females (15+)	4.2
Both sexes (15+)	9.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	90.0	95.0	92.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	1.5	2.6	2.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.5	97.5	94.6
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	31.3	18.6	12.8	18.7	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	36.9	14.2	0.3	0.0	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	r < 1 2	2345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.6	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	_

Sudan

Total population: 35 652 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 40% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.6	1	.7	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	2.6	2.7		→
Total males / females		4.8	0.6	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.5	3.5
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.3	2.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	41.1	27.5	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	53.5	22.7	_	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012 LEAST < 1 2

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	33.5
Females (15+)	7.1
Both sexes (15+)	24.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	69.2	82.6	75.9		
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.5	9.6	13.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	85.7	92.2	88.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 🔞 4 5 > MOST RISKY					

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.7	0.3
Females	0.3	0.1
Both sexes	1.0	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

3 4 5 > MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Total ban
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Syrian Arab Republic

Total population: 21 533 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 64% > Population in urban areas: 56% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

20 Beer Wine Spirits Other All Litres of pure alcohol 15 10 5 0 1975 1985 1970 1980 1990 1995 2000 1960 1965 2005 2010 Year

Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.2	1	.0	×
Unrecorded	0.3	0.3		→
Total	1.4	1.2		*
Total males / females		2.3	0.1	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Population

0.1

< 0.1

Drinkers only

0.8

0.2

0.6

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	21.5
Females (15+)	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	16.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	78.3	88.3	83.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	7.4	9.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	89.4	95.7	92.5	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Both sexes (15+) < 0.1 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	7.5	3.9	14.2	20.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	49.5	8.8	1.5	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.	

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.8	0.3
Females	0.1	<0.1
Both sexes	0.5	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban / No	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No	
National government support for community action	No	
National monitoring system(s)	No	

Tunisia

Total population: 10 632 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.2	1	.3	→
Unrecorded	0.2	0.2		→
Total	1.4	1.5		→
Total males / females		3.0	0.0	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	0.6
Females (15+)	0.0	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.4	8.2	20.5	14.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.3	10.5	12.0	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of I	ife lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, — Yes / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	35.1
Females (15+)	1.0
Both sexes (15+)	26.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	80.5	91.9	86.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.0	5.2	8.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	91.4	97.1	94.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 😢 3 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.9	0.3
Females	0.2	0.1
Both sexes	0.5	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	— / No
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

United Arab Emirates

Total population: 8 442 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 84% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.9	2.	.8 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.6	1.5		*
Total	2.5	4.3		7
Total males / females		5.5	0.8	
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7	

t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.2	1.2
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	0.2	1.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	16.6	12.4	41.1	14.8	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.2	7.3	31.7	3.7	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	_/_ _/_/_

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	34.4
Females (15+)	17.8
Both sexes (15+)	32.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	80.8	94.4	84.4		
Former drinkers* (15+)	3.2	1.0	2.6		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	84.0	95.4	87.0		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
0.7	0.3
0.1	0.1
0.5	0.3
0.3	0.2
	disorders** 0.7 0.1 0.5

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Yemen

Total population: 22 763 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 58% > Population in urban areas: 32% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change		
Recorded	0.1	0	.1	→		
Unrecorded	0.2	0.2		0.2		→
Total	0.3	0.3		→		
Total males / females		0.4	0.1			
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region total	0.7	0	.7			

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Females (15+)	0.0	0.2
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	0.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	31.7	23.2	3.7	10.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	59.2	17.4	0.1	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	3	4	5 >	> MOS	Т

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Total ban
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages:	
Hours, days / places, density	Total ban
Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	8.3
Females (15+)	1.9
Both sexes (15+)	6.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	89.5	94.7	92.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.2	2.6	3.9		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	94.6	97.2	95.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	0.5	0.3
Females	0.1	0.1
Both sexes	0.3	0.2
WHO Eastern Mediterranean Region	0.3	0.2

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	—
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Albania

Total population: 3 150 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	4.5	4.	9 ^t	→
Unrecorded	2.1	2	.1	→
Total	6.6	7.	7.0	
Total males / females		10.6	3.4	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.3	18.4
Females (15+)	1.6	3.3
Both sexes (15+)	6.4	11.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	6.6	8.9	61.6	52.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	21.6	8.5	10.5	3.3
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	8	4	5 > моз	Т

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2002/2011) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	17.4
Females (15+)	7.3
Both sexes (15+)	13.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	17.5	31.2	24.4		
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	22.4	21.8		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	38.7	53.6	46.2		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

endence				

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Andorra

Total population: 78 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 88% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	18.0 ^t	12	.4 ^t	*
Unrecorded	1.4	1	.4	→
Total	19.4	13.8		*
Total males / females		19.5	8.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	6.9	9.4
Females (15+)	0.9	1.3
Both sexes (15+)	3.8	5.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	_	_	_	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	_	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*. 2012	east N	o informati	on availab	le MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	26.6
Females (15+)	13.0
Both sexes (15+)	20.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.0	17.1	12.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.6	36.7	31.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	5.6
Females	1.9	1.4
Both sexes	5.2	3.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Armenia

Total population: 2 963 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 79% > Population in urban areas: 64% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.6	3	.8	→
Unrecorded	1.3	1	.5	7
Total	4.9	5.3		→
Total males / females		8.0	2.6	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	37.9	45.1
Females (15+)	2.3	5.3
Both sexes (15+)	20.1	31.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	46.5	17.0	39.7	51.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	36.9	6.1	24.4	7.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

^Per	100 000	population	(15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.6
Females (15+)	5.8
Both sexes (15+)	8.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.0	38.0	23.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	8.0	18.0	13.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	16.0	56.0	36.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.6	5.5	
Females	1.9	1.4	
Both sexes	5.3	3.4	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

> MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.04 / 0.04 / 0.04
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Austria

Total population: 8 402 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 68% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	10.3 ^t	9.	.7 ^t	→
Unrecorded	0.6	0	.6	→
Total	10.9	10).3	→
Total males / females		15.4	6.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	53.0	65.4
Females (15+)	28.9	39.0
Both sexes (15+)	40.5	52.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	22.2	6.9	61.4	61.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	10.6	3.0	18.8	7.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

Years of life lost	t (YLL) score*	2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16/16/16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16/16/16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.0
Females (15+)	8.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.0	22.0	18.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.0	4.0	4.5
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	19.0	26.0	22.6
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	14.1	7.5
Females	4.7	2.5
Both sexes	9.2	4.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.01 / 0.01
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Azerbaijan

Total population: 9 095 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	0.8	1	.3	7
Unrecorded	3.3	1	.0	*
Total	4.1	2.3		*
Total males / females		3.6	1.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	20.2	34.2
Females (15+)	1.3	4.2
Both sexes (15+)	10.4	23.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	37.4	27.4	22.4	45.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	24.5	6.9	14.4	4.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	6.1
Females (15+)	3.6
Both sexes (15+)	5.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	25.1	51.4	38.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.3
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	40.9	70.1	56.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.7	5.5	
Females	1.9	1.4	
Both sexes	5.2	3.4	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Belarus

Total population: 9 491 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 75% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	11.2	14	.4	*
Unrecorded	3.9	3.	.2	*
Total	15.1	17	.5	*
Total males / females		27.5	9.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.9
Females (15+)	12.8
Both sexes (15+)	22.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	6.5	18.0	12.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.5	11.0	8.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	11.0	29.0	20.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

 * Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

47.8

7.5

25.9

Drinkers only

53.7

10.5

327

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	43.8	25.5	51.0	72.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	25.9	6.5	53.5	49.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2000/2011)/ Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	29.8	19.6
Females	5.5	3.8
Both sexes	16.6	11.0
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Belgium

Total population: 10 941 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 97% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	11.0	10).5	→
Unrecorded	1.0	0.5		*
Total	12.0	11.0		→
Total males / females		15.0	6.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	47.7	56.5
Females (15+)	21.7	27.0
Both sexes (15+)	34.3	41.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.2	6.1	69.0	70.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	15.1	3.7	19.5	7.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 ❹ 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2008/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	17.8
Females (15+)	7.8
Both sexes (15+)	12.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	3.8	8.6	6.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.8	11.0	11.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	15.6	19.6	17.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,	
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.8	4.7	
Females	3.0	1.6	
Both sexes	5.8	3.1	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	Yes	

Bosnia and Herzegovina

Total population: 3 846 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 49% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	4.6	4	.6	→
Unrecorded	2.5	2.	.5	→
Total	7.1	7.1		→
Total males / females		13.1	1.4	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.1
Females (15+)	3.0
Both sexes (15+)	12.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	12.8	31.3	22.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	31.1	53.7	42.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

Both sexes (15+) 6.2 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

11.7

10

Drinkers only

17.0

2.3

10.8

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	24.0	9.1	67.5	45.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	19.9	11.8	12.0	1.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	sī<12	3 4 5	> MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEA

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
8.6	5.5		
1.9	1.4		
5.2	3.4		
7.5	4.0		
	8.6 1.9 5.2		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.00 / 0.00	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	No	
Bulgaria

Total population: 7 389 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 87% > Population in urban areas: 71% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	10.4	10).3	→
Unrecorded	1.2	1	.1	→
Total	11.6	11	.4	→
Total males / females		17.9	5.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population Drinkers	
Males (15+)	27.0	36.6
Females (15+)	12.7	20.6
Both sexes (15+)	19.6	29.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.4	7.4	74.8	59.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.0	5.7	25.7	7.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 🚯 5 > most
*Descel an alsolation while while many of life last	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, Yes / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	24.3
Females (15+)	8.7
Both sexes (15+)	16.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.7	21.0	14.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.3	38.4	32.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	,
Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
12.0	6.4
2.3	1.2
7.0	3.7
7.5	4.0
	12.0 2.3 7.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Croatia

Total population: 4 338 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 58% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	11.5	10	.2 ^t	*
Unrecorded	2.5	2.0		*
Total	14.0	12.2		*
Total males / females		17.7	7.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	20.5	22.4
Females (15+)	2.0	2.8
Both sexes (15+)	10.8	13.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	37.7	8.1	76.1	64.0	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	20.6	4.2	20.3	7.8	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most				

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2010/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.3
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	15.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	4.0	11.8	8.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.2	17.9	11.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	8.2	29.7	19.5	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	5.6
Females	1.9	1.4
Both sexes	5.1	3.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Cyprus

Total population: 1 104 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 70% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	7.7 ^t	8.	2 ^t	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1.0		→
Total	8.7	9.2		→
Total males / females		12.5	5.7	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	42.0	45.4
Females (15+)	9.4	12.1
Both sexes (15+)	26.0	30.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	8.5	3.3	57.9	64.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	21.5	3.2	15.8	7.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 🕄

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2004/2008) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	17 / 17 / 17
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	17 / 17 / 17
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.5
Females (15+)	7.4
Both sexes (15+)	10.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	3.3	9.7	6.4
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.2	13.0	8.5
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	7.5	22.7	15.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.8	4.7		
Females	2.6	1.4		
Both sexes	5.8	3.1		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

4 5 > MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Czech Republic

Total population: 10 554 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 74% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	11.8	11	.8	→
Unrecorded	1.5	1.2		*
Total	13.3	13.0		→
Total males / females		18.6	7.8	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	20.2
Females (15+)	9.0
Both sexes (15+)	14.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	2.5	2.6	2.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.8	10.8	8.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	8.3	13.4	10.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 6 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	53.5	58.4
Females (15+)	24.9	28.8
Both sexes (15+)	38.9	43.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	23.7	9.4	77.7	72.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females		4.0	36.3	15.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most		

10013 01	1110 1031	, 2	012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2002/2010) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• •,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.5	4.5
Females	1.3	0.7
Both sexes	4.8	2.6
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Denmark

Total population: 5 551 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 87% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	11.4	10).4	→		
Unrecorded	2.0	1.0		*		
Total	13.4	11.4		*		
Total males / females		16.1	6.9			
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	37.8	41.0
Females (15+)	19.5	22.9
Both sexes (15+)	28.5	32.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	20.2	8.9	66.1	69.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.5	2.6	6.4	2.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

CI	100	000	population	(13+).

Years of	life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 3 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	17.5
Females (15+)	8.1
Both sexes (15+)	12.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	1.9	7.0	4.5
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.8	8.0	6.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	7.7	15.0	11.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 month			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• • • • • •
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.1	4.3
Females	3.0	1.6
Both sexes	5.5	2.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Estonia

Total population: 1 299 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 69% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	11.8 ^t	9.	5 ^t	*
Unrecorded	1.8	0.8		*
Total	13.6	10.3		*
Total males / females		16.2	5.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	40.1	56.8
Females (15+)	9.3	15.4
Both sexes (15+)	23.3	35.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	21.8	10.9	39.6	71.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	10.7	2.1	44.9	44.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	least < 1 2 3 4 G > most		

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.9
Females (15+)	8.7
Both sexes (15+)	15.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	11.0	22.0	17.0		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	17.4	17.8		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	29.3	39.4	34.8		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	18.6	9.9
Females	3.2	1.7
Both sexes	10.2	5.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02/0.02/0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Finland

Total population: 5 368 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 85% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	9.7	10).0	→
Unrecorded	2.8	2	.3	*
Total	12.5	12.3		→
Total males / females		17.5	7.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	51.8	69.8
Females (15+)	22.0	35.4
Both sexes (15+)	36.5	53.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	28.5	10.0	73.0	72.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	8.7	2.6	22.4	8.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

|--|

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2003/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.6
Females (15+)	11.8
Both sexes (15+)	18.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.2	20.4	14.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	25.9	37.8	32.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	11.5	6.1		
Females	2.8	1.5		
Both sexes	7.0	3.7		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

France

Total population: 63 231 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 85% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

30 Beer Wine Spirits Other All 25 Litres of pure alcohol 20 15 10 5 0 1985 1970 1975 1980 1995 2000 2005 1960 1965 1990 2010 Year

Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	13.0	11	.8	→
Unrecorded	0.4	0.4		→
Total	13.4	12.2		→
Total males / females		17.8	7.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.4
Females (15+)	7.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	0.9	3.0	2.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	2.6	3.7	3.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	3.5	6.7	5.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	42.2	43.7
Females (15+)	17.7	19.0
Both sexes (15+)	29.4	31.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	16.4	5.2	73.1	71.9
had traffic accidents, males / females 11.9 2.7		18.9	7.4	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most		> MOST

tears of	ine iost i	(TLL) Score	, ZUIZ

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2008/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.8	4.7
Females	2.5	1.3
Both sexes	5.5	2.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05 (0.02 public transport)	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	Yes	

Georgia

Total population: 4 389 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 53% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	3.1	5	.4	7
Unrecorded	2.5	2.3		→
Total	5.6	7.7		7
Total males / females		12.6	3.4	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.4
Females (15+)	18.1
Both sexes (15+)	21.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	28.0	71.0	51.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	10.1	12.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.8	81.1	63.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	18.9	33.7
Females (15+)	0.6	3.3
Both sexes (15+)	9.0	25.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	33.8	9.4	64.8	53.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	29.4	5.4	19.0	4.6
*Por 100 000 population (15.)				

^Per	100 000	population	(15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 🔮 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.5	4.3
Females	0.8	0.2
Both sexes	3.9	2.1
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Germany

Total population: 83 017 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 87% > Population in urban areas: 74% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	11.8	11	.3	→
Unrecorded	1.0	0.	.5	*
Total	12.8	11.8		→
Total males / females		16.8	7.0	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	20.4
Females (15+)	8.9
Both sexes (15+)	14.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	4.3	6.6	5.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.5	14.9	14.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	17.8	21.5	19.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	19.4	23.6
Females (15+)	5.9	7.6
Both sexes (15+)	12.5	15.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	18.8	7.8	70.3	70.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.8	2.3	12.4	4.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS"	r<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2003/2012) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.8	4.7
Females	2.1	1.1
Both sexes	5.4	2.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Greece

Total population: 11 110 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	9.0	8	.3	→
Unrecorded	1.8	2.0		7
Total	10.8	10.3		→
Total males / females		14.6	6.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	47.6	66.4
Females (15+)	22.8	37.5
Both sexes (15+)	34.9	52.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.6	5.4	64.1	63.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	25.9	5.6	18.4	7.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1	2	3	4	5 > моз	T
				_			_

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2006/2008) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	20.4
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	15.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes			
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	9.7	19.5	14.7			
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1			
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	28.3	39.1	33.8			
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.						

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• •/
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	4.2
Females	2.5	1.3
Both sexes	5.1	2.7
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Hungary

Total population: 10 015 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 68% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	13.1	11	.3	*
Unrecorded	4.0	2.	0	*
Total	17.1	13	.3	×
Total males / females		20.4	7.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	23.8
Females (15+)	9.1
Both sexes (15+)	16.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	3.6	9.4	6.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.0	12.8	12.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	14.6	22.2	18.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

Both sexes (15+) 26.3 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

44.5

10.3

Drinkers only

52.1

13.2

32.3

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	57.0	16.8	76.9	66.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	12.7	3.6	32.8	11.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEA	ज <12	34 6	> MOST

rears of	lite lost	(YLL) SCO	ore^, 20	12

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	31.0	16.5
Females	6.0	3.2
Both sexes	17.7	9.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

lceland

Total population: 318 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 79% > Population in urban areas: 93% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Average 2003–2005			Change
6.0 ^t	6.	6 ^t	*
0.4	0	.5	→
6.4	7	.1	*
	9.8	4.3	
11.9	10).9	
	2003–2005 6.0 ^t 0.4 6.4	2003–2005 2008- 6.0 ¹ 6. 0.4 0 6.4 7. 9.8 9.8	2003-2005 2008-2010 6.0 ^t 6.6 ^t 0.4 0.5 6.4 7.1 9.8 4.3

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	32.9	44.6
Females (15+)	14.4	23.3
Both sexes (15+)	23.7	34.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	3.3	0.8	46.2	64.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.9	2.3	12.3	5.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.3
Females (15+)	7.0
Both sexes (15+)	10.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.5	20.6	14.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 26.2 38.1 32.1					
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	5.6	3.0		
Females	1.7	0.9		
Both sexes	3.7	2.0		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

lreland

Total population: 4 468 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 79% > Population in urban areas: 62% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	13.4	11	.4 ^t	*
Unrecorded	1.0	0	.5	*
Total	14.4	11.9		*
Total males / females		16.8	7.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	53.0	62.4
Females (15+)	25.5	33.1
Both sexes (15+)	39.0	48.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	12.5	7.8	66.7	68.3	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.4	2.7	19.8	8.4	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1996/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.8
Females (15+)	9.3
Both sexes (15+)	14.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	3.7	9.5	6.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.3	13.5	12.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	15.0	23.0	19.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.9	5.8
Females	3.4	1.8
Both sexes	7.1	3.8
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Israel

Total population: 7 420 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 92% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.3	2	.5	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.3	→
Total	2.8	2	.8	→
Total males / females		4.0	1.7	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	12.4	18.9
Females (15+)	3.2	8.3
Both sexes (15+)	7.7	14.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	5.3	3.1	28.2	42.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	8.0	2.1	4.8	1.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST <	1 🛛	34	5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2009/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	6.9
Females (15+)	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	5.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	30.0	52.0	41.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.3	9.1	6.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	34.3	61.1	48.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	,
Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
8.5	5.4
1.9	1.3
5.1	3.3
7.5	4.0
	8.5 1.9 5.1

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.01 / 0.01
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Italy

Total population: 60 509 000 >> Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% >> Population in urban areas: 68% >> Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010						Change
Recorded	8.1	6	.5	*				
Unrecorded	2.4	0.2		×				
Total	10.5	6.7		×				
Total males / females		9.7	3.9					
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9						

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.9
Females (15+)	7.2
Both sexes (15+)	9.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes			
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	13.0	37.5	25.7			
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.6	7.7	6.7			
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	18.6	45.2	32.4			
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.						

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.0	9.8
Females (15+)	0.7	1.3
Both sexes (15+)	4.2	6.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	10.9	4.7	42.8	51.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	13.0 2.8		3.9 1.5	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST

Year	's of	life	lo	ost	t (Yl	_L)	SC	ore'	÷, i	201	2		
						_					_		

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2001/2010) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	aloolaolo alla aloolloi aop	011100 (/0/) 2010
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.3	0.7
Females	0.8	0.4
Both sexes	1.0	0.5
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0
who European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Kazakhstan

Total population: 15 921 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 59% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	Change	
Recorded	6.4	6	6.8	
Unrecorded	4.9	3.5		*
Total	11.3	10.3		→
Total males / females		15.7 5.5		
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population Drinke		
Males (15+)	15.0	30.4	
Females (15+)	1.4	4.7	
Both sexes (15+)	7.8	19.9	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	82.6	43.9	70.8	65.6	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.6	12.2	24.2	8.2	
*Per 100 000 population (15+)					

гei	100 00	J population	(10+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 🗿 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1997/—) / —
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	31.8
Females (15+)	18.0
Both sexes (15+)	26.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.0	61.0	48.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	50.6	69.4	60.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 (4) 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.9	5.5		
Females	1.9	1.4		
Both sexes	5.2	3.3		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Kyrgyzstan

Total population: 5 334 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 35% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.2	2	.4	*
Unrecorded	1.9	1.9		→
Total	5.1	4.3		*
Total males / females		6.7	2.0	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.6
Females (15+)	7.4
Both sexes (15+)	11.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.0	64.0	49.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	50.6	72.4	61.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	14.6	29.6
Females (15+)	1.2	4.3
Both sexes (15+)	7.7	20.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	99.3	44.2	47.3	54.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	43.0	13.2	11.9	3.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

rears of	lite lost ((YLL) score	°, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	5.3
Females	1.9	1.3
Both sexes	5.2	3.3
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Latvia

Total population: 2 091 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 68% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	9.0	10).5	7
Unrecorded	3.0	1	.8	*
Total	12.0	12	2.3	→
Total males / females		19.7	6.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	26.5
Females (15+)	10.1
Both sexes (15+)	18.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.2	20.2	14.3
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	25.8	37.6	32.3
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	30.3	40.9
Females (15+)	13.2	21.2
Both sexes (15+)	20.9	30.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.1	11.1	43.8	72.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females		4.6	46.9	42.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*
Alcohol use disorders** Alcohol dependence

	Alcollol use disolders	Alconol dependence
Males	14.3	7.6
Females	2.5	1.3
Both sexes	7.7	4.1
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2005/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.02 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Lithuania

Total population: 3 068 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	11.9	12	.9	→
Unrecorded	3.0	2.5		*
Total	14.9	15.4		→
Total males / females		24.4	7.9	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	33.3
Females (15+)	13.5
Both sexes (15+)	23.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.0	24.0	16.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.6	41.4	34.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	50.6	69.0
Females (15+)	25.0	42.7
Both sexes (15+)	36.6	56.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	53.9	19.7	50.6	74.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.4	3.9	49.7	46.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	ī<1 2	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1995/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	16.7	8.9
Females	3.0	1.6
Both sexes	9.2	4.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.04 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Luxembourg

Total population: 508 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 85% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	12.3	11.4		→
Unrecorded	1.0	0.5		*
Total	13.3	11.9		*
Total males / females		16.8	7.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	36.9	38.8
Females (15+)	11.4	12.3
Both sexes (15+)	24.0	25.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		ASDR*		ASDR* AAF		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	12.3	6.0	71.5	71.5			
Road traffic accidents, males / females	9.0	3.3	16.8	7.1			
*Per 100 000 population (15+)							

гei	100	000	popu	Iduon	(10+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 🔮 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, Yes No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	17.6
Females (15+)	7.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	0.8	2.5	1.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.2	4.6	4.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 5.0 7.1 6.				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence			
Males	8.8	4.7			
Females	2.3	1.2			
Both sexes	5.5	2.9			
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0			

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Malta

Total population: 425 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 84% > Population in urban areas: 95% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	5.0 ^t	6.	.6 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.4	0	.4	→
Total	5.4	7.0		*
Total males / females		9.7	4.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	38.0	53.6
Females (15+)	15.7	31.3
Both sexes (15+)	26.8	44.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	8.6	1.6	52.8	60.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	8.1	2.2	14.0	5.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	17 / 17 / 17
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	17 / 17 / 17
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.7
Females (15+)	8.4
Both sexes (15+)	11.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	10.7	27.6	19.2
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.0	20.2
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	29.0	49.7	39.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.7	2.5
Females	1.3	0.7
Both sexes	3.0	1.6
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Monaco

Total population: 37 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 100% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	—		—
Unrecorded	—		—
Total	—		—
Total males / females			
WHO European Region	_		

alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	—
Females (15+)	—
Both sexes (15+)	

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	—	—	—
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—	—
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	—	—	—

*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.

LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	_	_
Females (15+)	_	
Both sexes (15+)	_	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	
Road traffic accidents, males / females		—	—	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	—	
Females	—	
Both sexes	—	
WHO European Region	_	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

POLICI	ES AN	ID INT	ERVEN	TIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / Yes

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.049 / 0.049 / 0.049
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Montenegro

Total population: 620 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 81% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	—	4.9 ^t		_
Unrecorded	—	3.9		_
Total	—	8.7		_
Total males / females		13.5	4.1	
WHO European Region	—	10.9		

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population Drinkers		
Males (15+)	13.2	18.3	
Females (15+)	1.5	2.6	
Both sexes (15+)	7.2	11.1	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	_
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.7
Females (15+)	7.0
Both sexes (15+)	13.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	9.1	24.1	16.8		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	27.8	41.5	34.8		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	5.5
Females	1.9	1.4
Both sexes	5.2	3.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Netherlands

Total population: 16 615 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 83% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010				Change
Recorded	9.6	9	.4	→		
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→		
Total	10.1	9.9		→		
Total males / females		14.0	6.0			
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9				

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	10.5	11.3
Females (15+)	1.3	1.6
Both sexes (15+)	5.9	6.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	5.7 2.5		63.8	67.9	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	6.8	2.2	6.3	2.6	
*Por 100,000 population (15.)					

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	0	4 5	5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2007/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	15.1
Females (15+)	7.1
Both sexes (15+)	11.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	2.4	5.2	3.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.6	11.2	8.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	7.1	16.4	11.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	1.7	0.9		
Females	0.8	0.4		
Both sexes	1.2	0.7		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.02 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Norway

Total population: 4 891 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 81% > Population in urban areas: 79% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.2	6	.7	→
Unrecorded	1.6	1	.0	*
Total	7.8	7.7		→
Total males / females		10.8	4.7	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	11.6
Females (15+)	5.9
Both sexes (15+)	9.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	2.7	8.3	5.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.2	13.0	8.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	6.9	21.2	14.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010
Population

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	17.4	18.7
Females (15+)	6.5	8.3
Both sexes (15+)	11.9	13.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

		ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	4	1.6	2.6	52.4	63.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females		5.8	1.6	7.5	3.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

iears or	IIIe Iost	(TLL)	score	, 2012	
					_

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1998/2012) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, No No / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	12.0	7.4
Females	4.2	2.3
Both sexes	8.1	4.9
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02/0.02/0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Poland

Total population: 38 199 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	9.3	10).9	7
Unrecorded	3.7	1.6		*
Total	13.0	12.5		→
Total males / females		19.8	5.8	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	10.1	16.0
Females (15+)	0.9	2.1
Both sexes (15+)	5.3	10.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	28.8	10.4	76.5	59.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.5	4.9	25.8	7.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1996/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	31.5
Females (15+)	14.0
Both sexes (15+)	24.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	15.8	37.8	27.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.7	21.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	48.3			
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	14.5	7.7
Females	2.6	1.4
Both sexes	8.3	4.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Portugal

Total population: 10 590 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 61% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	12.3	11	.0	*
Unrecorded	2.1	1	.9	→
Total	14.4	12.9		*
Total males / females		18.7	7.6	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	27.1
Females (15+)	16.4
Both sexes (15+)	22.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	12.6	31.7	22.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	30.9	54.0	43.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	30.1	43.6
Females (15+)	11.5	24.9
Both sexes (15+)	20.4	35.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	20.0	4.1	72.6	69.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	17.2	4.8	19.9	7.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2000/2010) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.2	4.9
Females	2.6	1.4
Both sexes	5.8	3.1
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Republic of Moldova

Total population: 3 573 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 47% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	3.8 ^t	6	.3	7
Unrecorded	10.0	10).5	→
Total	13.8	16	6.8	7
Total males / females		25.9	8.9	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	49.4	67.6
Females (15+)	17.1	28.4
Both sexes (15+)	32.2	48.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	98.5	71.9	47.7	72.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	25.4	6.3	49.1	43.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 >

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2007/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	35.4
Females (15+)	14.8
Both sexes (15+)	25.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.2	22.3	15.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.9	39.7	33.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 (3) 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.9	5.5	
Females	1.9	1.4	
Both sexes	5.2	3.3	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Romania

Total population: 21 861 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 57% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.8	10).4	*
Unrecorded	4.0	4.0		→
Total	12.8	14.4		*
Total males / females		22.6	6.8	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.7
Females (15+)	10.9
Both sexes (15+)	21.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.6	20.7	14.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.2	38.1	32.4	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY $< 1 \ 2 \ 3 \ 4 \ 5 >$ MOST RISKY				

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

13.8

1.7

7.5

Drinkers only

18.7

2.7

11.1

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	65.0	29.8	77.8	60.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.9	4.7	27.4	7.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2005/2010) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.8	2.0
Females	1.1	0.6
Both sexes	2.4	1.3
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Russian Federation

Total population: 144 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 73% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	Change	
Recorded	11.4	11	.5	→
Unrecorded	4.7	3.6		*
Total	16.1	15.1		→
Total males / females		23.9	7.8	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	29.8	39.8
Females (15+)	10.3	16.6
Both sexes (15+)	19.1	28.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	48.7	26.1	48.0	74.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	33.2	9.6	49.2	45.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 6 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2009/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	32.0
Females (15+)	12.6
Both sexes (15+)	22.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	6.5	18.5	13.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	25.2	38.0	32.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 6 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	31.0	16.5	
Females	6.2	3.3	
Both sexes	17.4	9.3	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	

San Marino

Total population: 31 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 94% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	—	_	—
Unrecorded	—	_	—
Total	—	_	_
Total males / females			
WHO European Region	—		





Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	
Females (15+)	—
Both sexes (15+)	

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	_	—	
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—	—
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	—	—	_
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score. 2010	LEAST RISKY	No information availa	able MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	_	_
Both sexes (15+)	_	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

		SDR*	AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females			—	_	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	_	—	—	—	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		No informa	tion availat	ole MOST	

*Based on alconol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2006/2011) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	—	—
Females	—	—
Both sexes	—	—
WHO European Region	—	—

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Serbia

Total population: 9 647 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 56% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.1	9	.6	7
Unrecorded	1.1	2.9		7
Total	9.2	12.6		*
Total males / females		19.7	5.9	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	13.4	18.4
Females (15+)	1.6	2.7
Both sexes (15+)	7.3	11.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	16.3	3.8	77.0	59.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	16.8	3.6	23.5	6.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

	 -	-	-	-	-		-	-		-	· -	-	· ·	

Year	rs of	life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	27.0
Females (15+)	9.9
Both sexes (15+)	19.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes				
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.6	23.0	16.0				
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0				
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	27.2	40.5	34.0				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.							

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		,
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.7	5.5
Females	1.9	1.3
Both sexes	5.2	3.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Slovakia

Total population: 5 433 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 55% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	10.7	11	.4	→
Unrecorded	3.0	1	.7	*
Total	13.7	13.0		→
Total males / females		20.5	6.1	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	28.8
Females (15+)	10.0
Both sexes (15+)	19.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	10.3	21.9	16.3
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	17.4	17.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	28.7	39.3	34.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	41.3	57.9
Females (15+)	16.8	27.7
Both sexes (15+)	28.6	43.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	39.3	12.0	78.2	67.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	14.5	4.2	35.3	9.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	ī<12	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2006/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	19.1	10.2
Females	2.1	1.1
Both sexes	10.3	5.5
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Slovenia

Total population: 2 054 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 50% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	12.4	10).6	*
Unrecorded	3.0	1	.0	*
Total	15.4	11	.6	*
Total males / females		16.3	7.0	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	22.4
Females (15+)	11.2
Both sexes (15+)	17.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.4	20.2	14.4		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	17.4	18.0		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	27.1	37.7	32.4		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	13.1	18.0
Females (15+)	1.6	2.6
Both sexes (15+)	7.3	10.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	41.9	13.2	72.2	60.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	12.4	2.7	15.5	6.5
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1	2	3	4	6>	MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	19.7	10.5
Females	3.8	2.0
Both sexes	11.6	6.2
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2000/2008) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No / No Yes / Yes / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Spain

Total population: 46 182 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 77% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	10.9	10	0.0	→
Unrecorded	1.4	1	.2	*
Total	12.3	11.2		→
Total males / females		15.9	6.7	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	21.6
Females (15+)	10.6
Both sexes (15+)	16.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.0	17.1	12.6		
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.6	36.7	31.7		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	19.7	26.8
Females (15+)	7.3	11.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.4	19.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	14.2	3.9	65.2	63.9	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.6	1.8	17.0	6.7	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST	

rears of	lite lost	(YLL)	score	°, 2012	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes(1985/2009) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 16
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^{\ast}

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.3	1.2
Females	0.4	0.2
Both sexes	1.3	0.7
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.03 / 0.03	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	Yes	
Sweden

Total population: 9 382 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 85% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	6.7	7	.2	→
Unrecorded	3.6	2.0		*
Total	10.3	9	.2	*
Total males / females		12.9	5.5	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	33.2	44.2
Females (15+)	14.5	23.2
Both sexes (15+)	23.8	34.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	7.2	3.0	64.2	65.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	4.5	1.5	14.8	5.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Year	s of	life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	1<1	23	4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2001/2011) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	17.1
Females (15+)	8.8
Both sexes (15+)	13.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	6.2	17.8	12.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	24.9	37.3	31.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• •/
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	12.6	6.7
Females	5.3	2.8
Both sexes	8.9	4.7
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Switzerland

Total population: 7 831 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 85% > Population in urban areas: 74% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	10.6	10	0.2	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.	.5	→
Total	11.1	10).7	→
Total males / females		15.2	6.4	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.5
Females (15+)	7.5
Both sexes (15+)	12.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	3.8	7.6	5.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	4.1	7.3	5.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	7.9	14.9	11.5
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	25.8	28.0
Females (15+)	12.0	14.1
Both sexes (15+)	18.7	21.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.9	4.5	67.4	69.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	7.1	2.0	12.5	5.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

16412 01	1116 1031	(ILL) SCOLE	, 2012	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes(2008/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	16 / 16 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	13.5	7.2
Females	2.6	1.4
Both sexes	8.0	4.2
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Tajikistan

Total population: 7 627 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 64% > Population in urban areas: 26% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.4	0	.3	→
Unrecorded	3.0	2	.5	*
Total	3.4	2	.8	*
Total males / females		4.3	1.4	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	1.9	13.7
Females (15+)	0.1	1.2
Both sexes (15+)	1.0	10.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASI	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	39.4	45.1	44.7	48.9
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.5	9.2	4.7	1.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

*Per 100 000 population (15+).

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1	0	3	4

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2012/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	31.1
Females (15+)	28.3
Both sexes (15+)	30.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	75.0	90.0	82.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	5.2	8.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months 86.1 95.2 90.7				
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

		• • • •
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.3	0.7
Females	0.3	0.1
Both sexes	0.8	0.4
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

5 > MOST

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

Total population: 2 102 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 59% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	5.0	3.	.9	*
Unrecorded	2.9	2.8		→
Total	7.9	6.7		×
Total males / females		10.2	3.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10	.9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.8
Females (15+)	7.1
Both sexes (15+)	11.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	13.0	32.1	22.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	31.3	54.4	42.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

 Both sexes (15+)
 6.5
 11.4

 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.
 30 days.

Population

12.0

10

Drinkers only

17.4

2.3

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	16.6	4.4	63.8	49.7	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	12.3	4.6	11.4	3.6	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	< 1 2	3 4 5	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2008/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

······································			
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence	
Males	8.6	5.5	
Females	1.9	1.4	
Both sexes	5.3	3.4	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Turkey

Total population: 72 138 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 70% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	1.4	1	1.4	
Unrecorded	2.0	0.6		*
Total	3.4	2.0		*
Total males / females		4.4	0.5	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.3	1.6
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	0.2	1.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	8.5	4.2	22.3	10.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	23.5	6.0	4.2	0.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

^Per	100 000	population (15+).	

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 ❷ 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No (beer), Yes (wine, spirits)

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.7
Females (15+)	8.2
Both sexes (15+)	17.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	65.9	92.4	79.6
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.6	2.0	6.7
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	77.5	94.4	86.2
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 6 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

······································				
	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	4.5	1.3		
Females	1.0	0.4		
Both sexes	2.7	0.8		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Turkmenistan

Total population: 5 042 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 50% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	2.3	2	.2	→
Unrecorded	2.3	2	.2	→
Total	4.7	4	.3	→
Total males / females		7.6	1.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.6
Females (15+)	8.4
Both sexes (15+)	11.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.9	70.0	46.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.1	15.0	14.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	35.0	85.0	60.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

11.7 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

23.6

0.4

Drinkers only

36.4 2.6

29.8

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	94.9	66.9	47.9	49.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	36.9	7.4	16.9	2.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	⊺<1 2	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2000/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / —

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.6	5.3
Females	1.9	1.3
Both sexes	5.2	3.3
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Ukraine

Total population: 46 050 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 86% > Population in urban areas: 69% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	6.8	8.9		7
Unrecorded	7.5	5.0		*
Total	14.3	13.9		→
Total males / females		22.0	7.2	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	35.2	47.9
Females (15+)	12.1	18.9
Both sexes (15+)	22.6	33.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	56.7	23.7	47.3	74.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females		5.1	48.2	45.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+)				

۰.	C1	100	000	population	(101).	

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 3 > most
+ Description of a share of the state of the state of the state	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.0
Females (15+)	11.2
Both sexes (15+)	20.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	7.9	16.4	12.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	26.5	35.9	31.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 6 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	9.3	4.2		
Females	1.1	0.5		
Both sexes	4.9	2.2		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02 / 0.02 / 0.02	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	Yes	

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

Total population: 62 066 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 80% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	11.5	10).4	→
Unrecorded	1.7	1.2		*
Total	13.2	11.6		*
Total males / females		16.5	6.9	
WHO European Region	11.9	10.9		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.9
Females (15+)	8.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	12.0	18.0	15.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	1.0	1.0	1.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	13.0	19.0	16.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY Patterns of drinking score, 2010

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Populat	ion Drinkers only
Males (15+)	35.5	40.8
Females (15+)	20.9	25.8
Both sexes (15+)	28.0	33.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	16.0	8.0	72.1	68.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females 5.9 1.8		1.8	16.6	6.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	3 4 5	> MOST

rears of	lite lost ((YLL) score	°, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010* Alcohol use disorders** Alcohol dependence

	Alconol use disorders	Alconor dependence	
Males	16.3	8.7	
Females	6.0	3.2	
Both sexes	11.1	5.9	
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Subnational / —
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Uzbekistan

Total population: 27 769 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 36% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.9	2	.4	7
Unrecorded	1.9	2.1		7
Total	3.8	4.6		7
Total males / females		7.9	1.3	
WHO European Region	11.9	10).9	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	20.4	33.9
Females (15+)	0.4	2.6
Both sexes (15+)	10.2	27.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	62.6	52.4	57.6	51.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	23.4	6.1	16.2	2.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Y

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011/—) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.1
Females (15+)	9.0
Both sexes (15+)	12.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	25.0	70.0	47.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.0	15.0	15.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	40.0	85.0	62.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence		
Males	8.6	5.3		
Females	1.9	1.3		
Both sexes	5.2	3.3		
WHO European Region	7.5	4.0		

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Bangladesh

Total population: 151 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 68% > Population in urban areas: 28% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.0	0	0.0	
Unrecorded	0.2	0.2		→
Total	0.2	0.2		→
Total males / females		0.3	0.0	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.5		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.1	1.9
Females (15+)	<0.1	1.1
Both sexes (15+)	<0.1	1.8

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	29.1	24.5	5.9	0.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	25.4	7.3	1.9	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.2
Females (15+)	5.4
Both sexes (15+)	9.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	90.7	99.7	95.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	5.7	0.1	2.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	96.5	99.8	98.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.3	1.2
Females	0.3	0.2
Both sexes	0.8	0.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Bhutan

Total population: 717 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 35% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.8	0	.4	→
Unrecorded	0.3	0	.3	→
Total	1.1	0	.7	→
Total males / females		1.2	0.1	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3	.5	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	8.0
Females (15+)	2.2
Both sexes (15+)	6.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	70.3	88.4	78.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.5	7.4	11.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	84.7	95.8	89.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

 Males (15+)
 1.2

 Females (15+)
 <0.1</td>

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Both sexes (15+)

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

0.7

Drinkers only

8.0

0.5

6.6

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	34.4	28.3	10.2	32.4	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	19.0	16.9	1.0	0.1	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	T < 0 2	2345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.7	1.3
Females	0.5	0.2
Both sexes	1.7	0.8
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08/0.08/0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	—

Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Total population: 24 501 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 60% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.2	3	.2	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	3.7	3.	.7	→
Total males / females		7.4	0.4	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3	.5	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	9.2	29.9
Females (15+)	0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	4.5	21.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	49.9	16.9	57.5	40.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	18.0	7.7	10.9	0.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least <	< 1 2	8 4	5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,/, //

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	24.1
Females (15+)	3.5
Both sexes (15+)	17.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	53.3	78.3	66.3		
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.6		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	69.2	87.9	78.9		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.1	2.4
Females	0.9	0.4
Both sexes	2.9	1.4
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	—
National monitoring system(s)	—

India

Total population: 1 210 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 30% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.6	2	.2	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2	.2	*
Total	3.6	4.3		*
Total males / females		8.0	0.5	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3	.5	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	32.1
Females (15+)	10.6
Both sexes (15+)	28.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	59.3	90.0	74.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	5.2	10.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	75.2	95.2	84.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

3.2

< 0.1

1.7

Drinkers only

12.9

0.7

11.0

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	39.5	19.6	62.9	33.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	41.0	11.4	33.1	2.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	⊺<12	3 4 5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Subnational
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Subnational
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.5	3.8
Females	0.6	0.4
Both sexes	2.6	2.1
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Indonesia

Total population: 241 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 44% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.1	0	.1	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	0.6	0.6		→
Total males / females		1.1	0.1	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3	.5	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	4.9	42.8
Females (15+)	0.3	6.2
Both sexes (15+)	2.6	31.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	52.7	16.6	16.0	30.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.4	13.6	3.6	0.2
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.4
Females (15+)	1.7
Both sexes (15+)	7.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	74.2	90.0	82.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.5	5.2	9.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	88.6	95.2	91.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.3	1.3
Females	0.3	0.2
Both sexes	0.8	0.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Zero tolerance
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Maldives

Total population: 326 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 70% > Population in urban areas: 40% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.4 ^t	0.	7 ^t	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	0.9	1.2		→
Total males / females		2.3	0.1	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.5		

^tTourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.8	6.0
Females (15+)	0.1	1.3
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	4.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	7.0	6.5	28.8	36.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	1.9	1.8	1.9	0.1
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Vooro	ot lut	o loot	(V)	o o o r o X	2012
itals			(ILL)	score*	. 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Total ban
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	16.6
Females (15+)	3.6
Both sexes (15+)	13.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	71.5	88.7	80.1		
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.5	7.4	10.9		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	86.0	96.1	91.0		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY	No information avail	able MOST RISKY		

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.2	1.5
Females	0.7	0.3
Both sexes	1.9	0.9
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Myanmar

Total population: 51 931 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 74% > Population in urban areas: 34% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	0.1	0	0.1	
Unrecorded	0.5	0.6		→
Total	0.6	0.7		→
Total males / females		1.4	0.0	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.5		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.2	1.5
Females (15+)	0.0	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	1.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	87.7	14.9	20.0	29.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.9	13.8	0.5	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*,	2012	least < 1 2	3 4 5 > MOST
	6 H 6 H - H		

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes / Yes Yes / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.4
Females (15+)	1.1
Both sexes (15+)	8.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	76.5	91.1	84.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	5.2	8.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	87.6	96.2	92.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.7	1.3
Females	0.5	0.2
Both sexes	1.5	0.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.07 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Nepal

Total population: 26,846,000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 63% > Population in urban areas: 19% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.2	0	.2	→
Unrecorded	2.2	2	.0	→
Total	2.4	2	.2	→
Total males / females		4.4	0.2	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3	.5	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	36.2
Females (15+)	6.6
Both sexes (15+)	28.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	76.8	91.2	84.4	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	5.2	8.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	87.9	96.4	92.4	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY			> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.8	6.6
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.5
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	5.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	32.2	22.5	44.9	28.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	38.9	18.1	15.0	0.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No Yes / Yes / —

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.5	1.2
Females	0.5	0.2
Both sexes	1.5	0.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Sri Lanka

Total population: 20 759 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 75% > Population in urban areas: 14% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.8	2	.2	7
Unrecorded	0.4	1	.5	7
Total	2.2	3.	.7	7
Total males / females		7.3	0.3	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.	.5	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.8	3.1
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.3
Both sexes (15+)	0.4	2.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	37.3	5.3	57.0	37.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	26.8	8.0	20.3	0.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 ❹ 5 > MOST
*Pasad on alashal attributable years of life last	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / No / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	26.7
Females (15+)	2.9
Both sexes (15+)	20.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	56.9	80.5	69.1
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.6
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	72.8	90.1	81.7
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 😢 4 5 > MOST RISKY			

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.6	4.9
Females	0.6	0.6
Both sexes	3.0	2.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	_

Thailand

Total population: 66 402 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 81% > Population in urban areas: 34% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	6.1	6	.4	→
Unrecorded	0.7	0.7		→
Total	6.8	7.1		→
Total males / females		13.8	0.8	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.5		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	30.3
Females (15+)	5.2
Both sexes (15+)	23.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	42.5	75.5	59.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	12.1	9.6	10.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	54.6	85.1	70.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	erns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 \odot 4 5 > MOST RISKY			

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	2.2	4.7
Females (15+)	0.1	0.5
Both sexes (15+)	1.1	3.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	28.2	8.7	67.2	40.5
Road traffic accidents, males / females	70.3	18.5	24.9	1.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1 2	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2008/2009) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, No No / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010^*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.1	3.4
Females	1.0	0.3
Both sexes	5.0	1.8
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Timor-Leste

Total population: 1 079 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 53% > Population in urban areas: 28% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	0.4	0.1	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5	→
Total	0.9	0.6	→
Total males / females		1.0 0.1	
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.9	3.5	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.2	1.4
Females (15+)	0.0	0.1
Both sexes (15+)	0.1	1.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	17.8	9.6	17.0	31.4
Road traffic accidents, males / females	46.1	18.3	0.3	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	< 1	2	34	5	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	9.5
Females (15+)	2.6
Both sexes (15+)	8.0

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	77.9	91.7	84.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	11.1	5.2	8.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	89.0	96.9	92.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	2.4	1.2
Females	0.5	0.2
Both sexes	1.5	0.7
WHO South-East Asia Region	2.2	1.7

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Australia

Total population: 22 404 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 81% > Population in urban areas: 89% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	10.0	10).4	→
Unrecorded	0.1	1	.8	*
Total	10.1	12	2.2	*
Total males / females		17.3	7.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	16.8	19.1
Females (15+)	5.1	6.3
Both sexes (15+)	10.9	13.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2010 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	6.8	2.8	72.8	70.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	10.4	3.9	11.9	4.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Decod on clockel attributeble upper of life lost	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2001 / 2006) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	19.7
Females (15+)	9.0
Both sexes (15+)	14.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	5.9	14.0	10.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	6.1	5.9	6.0	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	12.0	19.9	16.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 📀 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	5.0	2.2
Females	2.1	0.8
Both sexes	3.5	1.5
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Brunei Darussalam

Total population: 401 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 76% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.1	0	.6	→
Unrecorded	0.2	0.3		→
Total	0.3	0.9		→
Total males / females		1.6	0.1	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Population

1.0

0.1

0.6

Drinkers only

4.3

0.7

2.7

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	7.0
Females (15+)	0.7
Both sexes (15+)	4.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes		
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	60.0	72.0	66.0		
Former drinkers* (15+)	17.1	10.1	13.6		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	77.1	82.1	79.6		
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.					

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

		ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.7	'	8.0	16.6	26.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	20.	8	9.9	0.6	0.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score* 2012		N	o informat	ion availab	le MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	Total ban
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Total ban Total ban

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	3.1	1.4
Females	0.6	0.3
Both sexes	1.8	0.8
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Total ban
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Total ban
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Cambodia

Total population: 14 365 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 68% > Population in urban areas: 20% > Income group (World Bank): Low income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008—2010		Change
Recorded	1.6	2	.2	*
Unrecorded	3.0	3.3		*
Total	4.6	5.5		*
Total males / females		9.6	1.7	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	2.8	5.7
Females (15+)	0.2	0.7
Both sexes (15+)	1.4	3.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	19.1	7.5	65.4	50.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	28.7	9.8	10.2	2.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Pacad on alaphal attributable years of life last	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011, —) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	19.9
Females (15+)	5.7
Both sexes (15+)	14.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.8	62.4	49.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	51.5	70.9	61.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.6	5.0
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.4	2.7
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

C hina

Total population: 1 370 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 82% > Population in urban areas: 47% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	3.2	5.	.0	*
Unrecorded	1.7	1	.7	→
Total	4.9	6.7		*
Total males / females		10.9	2.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Population

14.2

0.7

Drinkers only

24.3

2.5

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.7
Females (15+)	7.6
Both sexes (15+)	15.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	25.8	52.3	38.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	18.7	17.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	41.6	71.1	55.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 🕗 3 4 5	> MOST RISKY	

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 7.6 17.3 *Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Both sexes (15+)

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	9.9	5.8	73.0	59.8	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	30.5	15.6	22.2	4.4	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	ST < 1 2	3 4 5	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / Yes / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	9.3	4.5
Females	0.2	0.1
Both sexes	4.9	2.4
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.02/0.02/0.02
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Cook Islands

Total population: 20 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 75% > Income group (World Bank): ----

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+)



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	3.2 ^t	5.	9 ^t	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	3.7	6.4		*
Total males / females		10.5	2.1	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	—	—
Both sexes (15+)	_	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

FAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.9
Females (15+)	6.1
Both sexes (15+)	14.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.0	45.6	33.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.2	65.9	54.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	5.2
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Total population: 861 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 71% > Population in urban areas: 52% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

Beer

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).

20 Wine Spirits Other All Litres of pure alcohol 15 10 5 0 1985 I Ч. I. 111 1970 1975 1995 2000 2005 1960 1965 1980 1990 2010 Year

Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.4 ^t	2	.0	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	2.4	3	.0	*
Total males / females		5.5	0.5	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6.8		

t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	17.5	34.4
Females (15+)	4.1	12.9
Both sexes (15+)	10.9	26.4

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	17.2	8.1	36.1	35.3
Road traffic accidents, males / females	11.4	4.8	12.3	1.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / No, Yes No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	10.9
Females (15+)	1.5
Both sexes (15+)	7.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	32.4	60.1	46.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	49.0	68.5	58.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	5.3
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

apan

Total population: 127 000 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 87% > Population in urban areas: 67% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	7.8	7.	.0	*
Unrecorded	0.2	0	.2	→
Total	8.0	7.2		*
Total males / females		10.4	4.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	28.1	36.9
Females (15+)	7.5	12.0
Both sexes (15+)	17.5	25.3

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	10.5	3.2	49.3	55.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	6.4	2.0	10.4	3.7
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Pacad on alaphal attributable years of life last	

ased on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2000 /) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes/Yes/Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	20 / 20 / 20
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	13.7
Females (15+)	6.7
Both sexes (15+)	10.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	5.0	18.5	12.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.6	19.6	19.1	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	23.6	38.1	31.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 📀 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.6	2.1
Females	1.0	0.2
Both sexes	2.8	1.1
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Kiribati

Total population: 98 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 44% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.3	1	.0	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2.0		→
Total	3.3	3.0		→
Total males / females		5.5	0.4	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.8
Females (15+)	2.4
Both sexes (15+)	9.6

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	43.5	70.9	57.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.1	11.9	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	57.1	80.9	69.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	10 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 \odot 4 5 > most risky			

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

4.6

0.4

2.5

Drinkers only

10.8

2.0

8.1

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females		—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females		—		—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		LEAST N	o informat	ion availab	ole MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21/21/21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21/21/21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	5.3
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Lao People's Democratic Republic

Total population: 6 396 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 63% > Population in urban areas: 33% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008—2010		Change
Recorded	5.7	6	.2	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1.1		*
Total	6.7	7.3		→
Total males / females		12.5 2.3		
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	22.5	37.9
Females (15+)	7.0	19.0
Both sexes (15+)	14.6	30.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	31.9	12.7	72.6	51.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.5	16.9	26.3	5.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2011/2012) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / No / No
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No Yes / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	20.9
Females (15+)	6.2
Both sexes (15+)	15.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	19.3	42.8	31.3
Former drinkers* (15+)	21.2	20.5	20.9
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	40.5	63.3	52.1
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.6	5.0
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.5	2.8
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Malaysia

Total population: 28 276 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 72% > Population in urban areas: 72% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.5	0.	.3 ^t	→
Unrecorded	0.3	1	.0	*
Total	0.8	1	.3	*
Total males / females		2.5	0.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	0.6	3.4
Females (15+)	<0.1	0.4
Both sexes (15+)	0.3	2.5

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	11.1	5.4	30.8	28.6	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	50.7	17.1	1.3	0.1	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MOST	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2006/ —) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	13.5
Females (15+)	2.8
Both sexes (15+)	10.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	73.1	89.2	81.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	8.4	4.1	6.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	81.5	93.3	87.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.1	1.8
Females	0.8	0.4
Both sexes	2.4	1.1
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Marshall Islands

Total population: 52 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 72% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded*	—	—	—
Unrecorded	—		—
Total	_		—
Total males / females			
WHO Western Pacific Region	—		

*Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	—	
Both sexes (15+)	_	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	_	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

FAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,/, //

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	—
Females (15+)	—
Both sexes (15+)	_

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	—	—	_	
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—		
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	_	—	—	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY No information available MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	—	
Females	—	
Both sexes	_	
WHO Western Pacific Region	_	

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	_

Micronesia (Federated States of)

Total population: 104 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 63% > Population in urban areas: 23% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	3.2	2	.3	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	4.2	3.3		*
Total males / females		6.0	0.5	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	12.0
Females (15+)	1.6
Both sexes (15+)	8.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	33.1	60.7	46.7	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	49.7	69.1	59.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5:	> MOST RISKY	

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

20.8

4.5

12.8

Drinkers only

41.4

14.6

31.4

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females		—	_	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females		_	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		least N	lo informat	ion availab	le Most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21/21/21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / No, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.6	5.0
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.5	2.8
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	Yes / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Mongolia

Total population: 2 713 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 73% > Population in urban areas: 62% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	2.1	4.9	*
Unrecorded	2.0	2.0	→
Total	4.1	6.9	*
Total males / females		11.7 2.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	40.1	70.8
Females (15+)	14.3	40.8
Both sexes (15+)	27.0	59.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	78.8	47.6	71.7	59.8
Road traffic accidents, males / females	34.5	7.0	35.1	6.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost	

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2003/2012) / Yes
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes No / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	20.8
Females (15+)	6.2
Both sexes (15+)	15.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	20.2	44.3	32.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.5	21.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	43.5	64.9	54.3	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.8	4.8
Females	2.1	0.9
Both sexes	6.4	2.8
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No	
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes	
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No	
National government support for community action	Yes	
National monitoring system(s)	Yes	

Nauru

Total population: 10 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 100% > Income group (World Bank): —

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Unrecorded	2.5	2	.5	→
Total	3.5	3	.5	→
Total males / females		5.9	1.1	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	14.2
Females (15+)	7.7
Both sexes (15+)	12.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	49.6	75.7	62.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	9.0	9.6	9.3	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	58.6	85.3	71.9	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

32.7

Drinkers only

79.1

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females		—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females			—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST N	lo informat	ion availab	le most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No / —
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,_/, //

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	5.3
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	_
New Zealand

Total population: 4 368 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 80% > Population in urban areas: 86% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	8.9	9	.3	→
Unrecorded	0.5	1.6		*
Total	9.4	10.9		*
Total males / females		15.7	6.3	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6.8		

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	7.4	8.7
Females (15+)	1.7	2.3
Both sexes (15+)	4.5	5.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	4.2	2.0	69.1	68.7
Road traffic accidents, males / females	13.6	7.0	7.5	2.9
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Pacad on alaphal attributable years of life last	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (1996/2007) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, Yes / Yes, No No / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	18.6
Females (15+)	8.5
Both sexes (15+)	13.7

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	8.0	14.0	11.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	7.2	11.5	9.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	15.2	25.5	20.5	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	10 LEAST RISKY < 1 (2) 3 4 5 > most risky			

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	4.5	1.9
Females	2.0	0.9
Both sexes	3.2	1.4
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.00 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / Yes
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Niue

Total population: 1 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 38% > Income group (World Bank): —

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	7.8	7	.0	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	8.8	8.0		→
Total males / females		13.3	2.6	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	24.2
Females (15+)	8.0
Both sexes (15+)	18.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.9	46.9	34.2	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	45.1	67.1	56.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky < 1 2 \odot 4 5 $>$ most risky			

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

38.2

12.8

25.7

Drinkers only

69.6

39.0

58.3

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	_		_	_
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	_	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST N	lo informat	ion availab	le MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	5.2
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Palau

Total population: 20 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 83% > Income group (World Bank): Upper middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Avei 2008-		Change
Recorded	7.2 ^t	6.	9 ^t	→
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	8.2	7.	.9	→
Total males / females		13.2	2.6	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	—	—
Females (15+)	—	—
Both sexes (15+)	—	—

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASE)R*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	_	_	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	19.7
Females (15+)	6.0
Both sexes (15+)	14.4

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.5	34.9	24.7
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	22.4	20.3
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	32.9	57.3	45.0
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.9	5.3
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+). **Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	21 / 21 / 21
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.10 / 0.00 / 0.00
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	No

Papua New Guinea

Total population: 6 859 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 61% > Population in urban areas: 13% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.5	1	.5	→
Unrecorded	2.0	1	.5	*
Total	3.5	3	.0	*
Total males / females		5.1	1.0	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	10.8
Females (15+)	4.4
Both sexes (15+)	8.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	39.3	67.0	53.0
Former drinkers* (15+)	14.1	10.8	12.5
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	53.4	77.7	65.4
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.			
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	least risky <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5:	> MOST RISKY

 $^{\ast}\text{Consumed}$ at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

17.3

1.8

9.6

Drinkers only

37.1

8.0

27.8

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	67.0	32.4	36.7	43.1
Road traffic accidents, males / females	37.0	7.5	12.2	2.3
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Vaars of life lost (VLL) score* 2012	LEAS	-1 0	345	> MOST
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<1 2	345	> MO

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.7	5.1
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.6	2.9
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+). **Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) No / No / No when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in % Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product Yes / Yes placement Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales No / Yes promotion Legally required health warning labels on alcohol No / No advertisements / containers National government support for community action No National monitoring system(s) No

Philippines

Total population: 93 444 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 65% > Population in urban areas: 49% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	4.4	4	.6	→
Unrecorded	2.0	0	.9	*
Total	6.4	5	.4	*
Total males / females		9.2	1.7	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	3.5	6.3
Females (15+)	0.3	0.8
Both sexes (15+)	1.9	4.2

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	35.0	9.7	66.7	49.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.8	6.1	9.9	2.0
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most
*Decod on clockel attributeble upper of life lost	

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	16.7
Females (15+)	5.2
Both sexes (15+)	12.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	21.5	46.2	34.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.7	66.5	55.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.7	5.2
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.6	2.9
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	Yes / Yes
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Republic of Korea

Total population: 48 454 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 84% > Population in urban areas: 83% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+)

Females (15+)

Both sexes (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Aver 2008-		Change
Recorded	9.3	9.	.8	→
Unrecorded	3.0	2.	.5	*
Total	12.3	12	.3	→
Total males / females		21.0	3.9	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	37.6
Females (15+)	11.5
Both sexes (15+)	27.5

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	20.9	45.7	33.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	23.2	20.3	21.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.2	66.0	55.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

 * Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

Population

12.1

0.1

6.0

Drinkers only

21.6

0.3

13.4

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	20.6	4.4	70.5	51.0
Road traffic accidents, males / females	22.1	6.9	25.6	3.6
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	<12	34 6	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	Yes (2006/—) / No
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	19/19/19
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	19/19/19
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / No, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	10.3	7.8
Females	2.2	1.7
Both sexes	6.2	4.7
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.05 / 0.05 / 0.05
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / Yes
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Samoa

Total population: 186 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 62% > Population in urban areas: 20% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005	Avei 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	3.8	2.	6 ^t	*
Unrecorded	1.0	1	.0	→
Total	4.8	3.6		*
Total males / females		6.6	0.6	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	29.1	52.5
Females (15+)	3.7	10.9
Both sexes (15+)	16.8	37.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	_	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	_		_	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	11.8
Females (15+)	1.6
Both sexes (15+)	8.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	28.8	56.1	42.1	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.8	9.4	12.7	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	44.6	65.5	54.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 (3) 4 5 > most risky

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	5.2
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+). **Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,/, //

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	0.04 / 0.04 / 0.04
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	
National monitoring system(s)	_

Singapore

Total population: 5 079 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 83% > Population in urban areas: 100% > Income group (World Bank): High income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	0.0 ^t	1.	.5 ^t	*
Unrecorded	1.0	0	.5	*
Total	1.0	2	.0	*
Total males / females		2.8	1.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	8.6	12.8
Females (15+)	0.4	1.3
Both sexes (15+)	4.4	8.9

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	AS	DR*	AAF	(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	5.4	3.2	32.2	37.6
Road traffic accidents, males / females	9.8	2.6	3.7	0.8
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAS	T<1 2	345	> MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, No / Yes, No No / Yes / No

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	4.7
Females (15+)	2.4
Both sexes (15+)	3.9

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	14.3	54.0	34.5	
Former drinkers* (15+)	18.3	12.9	15.6	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	32.6	66.9	50.1	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 😢 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	1.4	0.7
Females	0.4	0.2
Both sexes	0.9	0.5
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.08 / 0.08 / 0.08
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Solomon Islands

Total population: 526 000> Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 59% > Population in urban areas: 19% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.1	1	.2	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	1.6	1.7		→
Total males / females		3.1	0.3	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	27.6	62.2
Females (15+)	5.2	26.2
Both sexes (15+)	16.4	51.0

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	32.1	16.1	24.2	36.2
Road traffic accidents, males / females	35.6	17.2	17.7	1.4
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

Years of I	ife lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,_/, //

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	7.0
Females (15+)	1.3
Both sexes (15+)	5.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	42.0	69.3	55.6	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.8	12.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	55.6	80.1	67.8	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 3 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.7	5.1
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.6	2.9
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/_
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/_
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Tokelau

Total population: — > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): — > Population in urban areas: — > Income group (World Bank): —

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010	Change
Recorded	—	—	—
Unrecorded	—	_	_
Total	—	_	_
Total males / females			
WHO Western Pacific Region	—		

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	
Females (15+)	—
Both sexes (15+)	

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	—	—	—
Former drinkers* (15+)	—	—	—
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	_	_	_

*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.

Patterns of drinking score, 2010

least risky < 1 2 3 4 5 > most risky

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	_	_
Females (15+)		_
Both sexes (15+)	—	_

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)		
Liver cirrhosis, males / females			—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females		_	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012		LEAST N	lo informat	ion availab	le most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	No / No / No
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	—	—
Females	—	—
Both sexes	—	—
WHO Western Pacific Region		

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Tonga

Total population: 104 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 63% > Population in urban areas: 23% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961-2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Average 2008–2010		Change
Recorded	1.2 ^t	1	.1	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0.5		→
Total	1.7	1.6		→
Total males / females		3.0	0.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	12.0	26.2
Females (15+)	2.1	10.3
Both sexes (15+)	6.9	21.1

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—	—	—	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

FAST No information available MOST

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, 2010



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	6.5
Females (15+)	1.1
Both sexes (15+)	4.8

Abstainers (%), 2010

Patterns of drinking score, 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	40.7	68.4	54.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.8	12.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	54.3	79.2	67.0	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.7	5.1
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.5	2.8
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.03 / 0.03 / 0.03
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

Tuvalu

Total population: 10 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 69% > Population in urban areas: 50% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

Males (15+) Females (15+)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-		Change
Recorded	1.4	1	.0	*
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	1.9	1	.5	*
Total males / females		2.5	0.5	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	7.3
Females (15+)	3.4
Both sexes (15+)	6.1

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	50.1	75.9	62.8	
Former drinkers* (15+)	15.9	9.6	12.8	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	65.9	85.5	75.6	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010 LEAST RISKY < 1 2 🔞 4 5 > MOST RISKY				

Population

Drinkers only

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		(%)
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	—	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females		—	—	_
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	lo informat	ion availab	le most

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No /
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18/18/18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	Yes, Yes / Yes, Yes Yes / Yes / Yes

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.8	5.2
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.7	3.0
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	No / No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	No / No
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	Yes
National monitoring system(s)	Yes

Vanuatu

Total population: 236 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 62% > Population in urban areas: 26% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010 Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003—2005		rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.0 ^t	0	.9	→
Unrecorded	0.5	0	.5	→
Total	1.5	1.	.4	→
Total males / females		2.5	0.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

^t Tourist consumption deducted when at least as many tourists as inhabitants.

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	11.5	26.1
Females (15+)	3.5	18.0
Both sexes (15+)	7.5	23.6

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012 $\,$

	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	—	_	—	—
Road traffic accidents, males / females	—		_	—
*Per 100 000 population (15+).				

LEAST No information available MOST

Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life los

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), $2010\,$

Males (15+)	5.7
Females (15+)	1.0
Both sexes (15+)	4.3

Abstainers (%), 2010

Patterns of drinking score, 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	42.2	69.8	56.0	
Former drinkers* (15+)	13.6	10.8	12.2	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	55.8	80.6	68.2	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				

LEAST RISKY < 1 2 📀 4 5 > MOST RISKY

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	7.7	5.1
Females	1.4	0.7
Both sexes	4.6	2.9
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

*12-month prevalence estimates (15+).

**Including alcohol dependence and harmful use of alcohol.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	_/_
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	_/_/_
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	,/, //

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in %	_/_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	_/_
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	_/
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	_/
National government support for community action	_
National monitoring system(s)	_

Viet Nam

Total population: 89 047 000 > Population aged 15 years and older (15+): 77% > Population in urban areas: 30% > Income group (World Bank): Lower middle income

ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION: LEVELS AND PATTERNS

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 1961–2010

Data refer to litres of pure alcohol per capita (15+).



Alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol)

	Average 2003–2005	Ave 2008-	rage -2010	Change
Recorded	1.2	2	.0	*
Unrecorded	2.7	4	.6	*
Total	3.8	6	.6	*
Total males / females		12.1	0.2	
WHO Western Pacific Region	5.4	6	.8	

Recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption (in litres of pure alcohol) by type of alcoholic beverage, $2010\,$



Total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, drinkers only (in litres of pure alcohol), 2010

Males (15+)	27.4
Females (15+)	0.9
Both sexes (15+)	17.2

Abstainers (%), 2010

	Males	Females	Both sexes	
Lifetime abstainers (15+)	34.9	62.9	49.3	
Former drinkers* (15+)	16.6	8.4	12.4	
Abstainers (15+), past 12 months	51.5	71.4	61.7	
*Persons who used to drink alcoholic beverages but have not done so in the past 12 months.				
Patterns of drinking score, 2010	LEAST RISKY <	< 1 2 🔞 4 5 :	> MOST RISKY	

Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking* (%), 2010

	Population	Drinkers only
Males (15+)	2.6	5.5
Females (15+)	0.2	0.8
Both sexes (15+)	1.4	3.7

*Consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days.

HEALTH CONSEQUENCES: MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY

Age-standardized death rates (ASDR) and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAF), 2012

	ASI	ASDR*		AAF (%)	
Liver cirrhosis, males / females	39.3	9.2	71.7	37.7	
Road traffic accidents, males / females	51.3	9.3	36.2	0.7	
*Per 100 000 population (15+).					
Years of life lost (YLL) score*, 2012	LEAST	least < 1 2 3 4 5 > most			

*Based on alcohol-attributable years of life lost.

POLICIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Written national policy (adopted/revised) / National action plan	No / —
Excise tax on beer / wine / spirits	Yes / Yes / Yes
National legal minimum age for off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
National legal minimum age for on-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (beer / wine / spirits)	18 / 18 / 18
Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages: Hours, days / places, density Specific events / intoxicated persons / petrol stations	No, No / Yes, No No / No / No

Prevalence of alcohol use disorders and alcohol dependence (%), 2010*

	Alcohol use disorders**	Alcohol dependence
Males	8.7	5.9
Females	0.9	0.1
Both sexes	4.7	2.9
WHO Western Pacific Region	4.6	2.3

National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (general / young / professional), in $\%$	0.00 / 0.00 / 0.00 (0.05 for motorcycles)
Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising / product placement	Yes / Yes
Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship / sales promotion	No / No
Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements / containers	No / No
National government support for community action	No
National monitoring system(s)	No

APPENDIX I ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

Table I.1. Total, recorded and unrecorded alcohol per capita consumption (APC), 2010 (in liters of pure alcohol;15+ years population)

							Recorded	Unrecorded
AFR	Both sexes	95% CI	Iotal APC (record Males	ed + unrecorded) 95% Cl	Females	95% CI	APC ¹ Both sexes ²	APC Both sexes ²
AF K Algeria	1.0	95% CI 0.9–1.1	1.6	95% CI 1.4–1.8	0.4	95% CI 0.4–0.5	0.7	0.3
Angola	7.5	6.6-8.3	12.0	10.7–13.4	3.0	2.7–3.4	5.9	1.6
Benin	2.1	1.8-2.5	3.4	2.8-4.0	0.9	0.7–1.0	1.1	1.0
Botswana	8.4	7.1–9.7	14.3	12.1-16.4	2.5	2.1–2.9	5.4	3.0
Burkina Faso	6.8	5.8–7.9	14.3	9.5–12.9	2.8	2.1-2.9	4.3	2.5
Burundi	9.3	8.0–10.6	13.9	9.5-12.9	4.8	4.1–5.5	6.3	3.0
Cabo Verde	6.9	5.8-8.0		9.3–13.1	2.7	4.1-5.5 2.3-3.2	4.0	2.9
			11.2					
Cameroon	8.4	7.2-9.5	13.3	11.5-15.2	3.5	3.0-3.9	5.8	2.6
Central African Republic	3.8	3.0-4.5	5.7	4.6-6.8	1.9	1.6-2.3	1.8	2.0
Chad	4.4	3.2-5.7	7.1	5.1-9.1	1.8	1.3-2.4	0.4	4.0
Comoros	0.2	0.2-0.3	0.4	0.3-0.4	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.1	0.1
Congo	3.9	3.1-4.7	6.2	5.0-7.5	1.6	1.3-1.9	1.7	2.2
Côte d'Ivoire	6.0	5.1-6.8	9.8	8.4–11.3	1.9	1.6–2.1	4.0	2.0
Democratic Republic of the Congo	3.6	3.1–4.2	5.8	4.9–6.7	1.5	1.3–1.7	2.3	1.3
Equatorial Guinea	6.6	6.0-7.2	10.1	9.2-11.0	2.9	2.6-3.1	5.8	0.8
Eritrea	1.1	0.8–1.3	1.8	1.5-2.2	0.3	0.2-0.4	0.5	0.6
Ethiopia	4.2	3.0-5.3	6.2	4.5-7.9	2.2	1.6-2.8	0.7	3.5
Gabon	10.9	9.7-12.1	17.3	15.4-19.1	4.6	4.1-5.0	8.9	2.0
Gambia	3.4	2.9–3.8	5.5	4.8-6.3	1.4	1.2-1.6	2.4	1.0
Ghana	4.8	3.8-5.8	7.8	6.1–9.5	1.9	1.5-2.4	1.8	3.0
Guinea	0.7	0.6-0.9	1.4	1.1–1.7	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.2	0.5
Guinea-Bissau	4.0	3.4-4.6	6.4	5.4-7.4	1.7	1.4-1.9	2.5	1.5
Kenya	4.3	3.4-5.2	7.4	5.8-8.9	1.3	1.0-1.5	1.8	2.5
Lesotho	6.5	5.2-7.8	10.8	8.6-12.9	2.5	2.0-3.0	2.8	3.7
Liberia	4.7	4.0-5.4	7.5	6.4-8.6	2.0	1.7–2.3	3.1	1.6
Madagascar	1.8	1.4-2.1	2.9	2.3-3.4	0.7	0.6-0.8	0.8	1.0
Malawi	2.5	2.1-2.9	4.5	3.8-5.2	0.5	0.4-0.6	1.5	1.0
Mali	1.1	0.9–1.3	2.2	1.8-2.6	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.6	0.5
Mauritania	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.2	0.1–0.3	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.1
Mauritius	3.6	3.2-4.1	5.9	5.1-6.7	1.4	1.2-1.6	2.6	1.0
Mozambique	2.3	1.9–2.6	3.5	2.9–4.1	1.1	0.9–1.3	1.3	1.0
Namibia	10.8	9.1-12.5	16.7	14.2-19.3	5.4	4.6-6.3	6.8	4.0
Niger	0.3	0.2–0.4	0.5	0.4–0.6	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.1	0.2

		Total APC (recorded + unrecorded)									
AFR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²			
Nigeria	10.1	9.2-10.9	14.9	13.6-16.2	5.1	4.6-5.5	9.1	1.0			
Rwanda	9.8	8.5-11.2	15.1	13.0-17.2	5.0	4.3-5.7	6.8	3.0			
Sao Tome and Principe	7.1	5.9-8.2	11.5	9.6-13.4	2.9	2.4-3.3	4.2	2.9			
Senegal	0.6	0.5-0.7	1.1	0.8–1.3	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.3	0.3			
Seychelles	5.6	4.9-6.3	8.7	7.6–9.8	2.4	2.1–2.7	4.1	1.5			
Sierra Leone	8.7	7.7–9.8	14.0	12.3-15.6	3.6	3.2-4.0	6.7	2.0			
South Africa	11.0	9.6-12.4	18.4	16.1-20.8	4.2	3.7-4.7	8.2	2.9			
Swaziland	5.7	5.1-6.3	10.6	9.5-11.7	1.1	1.0-1.2	4.7	1.0			
Togo	2.3	1.9–2.7	3.8	3.1-4.4	0.9	0.8–1.1	1.3	1.0			
Uganda	9.8	8.8-10.8	14.4	13.0-15.9	5.2	4.6-5.7	8.3	1.5			
United Republic of Tanzania	7.7	6.7–8.7	11.4	10.0-12.9	4.0	3.5–4.6	5.7	2.0			
Zambia	4.0	3.4-4.7	6.5	5.5-7.5	1.6	1.4-1.9	2.5	1.5			
Zimbabwe	5.7	5.1-6.3	10.8	9.7-12.0	0.8	0.7–0.9	4.7	1.0			

Data not available.
CI, confidence intervals.
Excludes tourist consumption.
95% CI available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

			Total ABC (record	ed + unrecorded)			Recorded APC ¹	Unrecorded APC
AMR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% Cl	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²
Antigua and Barbuda	5.4	4.9–5.8	7.7	7.1-8.3	3.1	2.8–3.3	4.9	0.4
Argentina	9.3	8.5-10.1	13.6	12.4–14.8	5.2	4.8-5.7	8.3	1.0
Bahamas	6.9	6.3–7.4	10.1	9.3–10.9	3.9	3.6-4.2	6.3	0.5
Barbados	6.8	6.3–7.4	9.8	9.0-10.6	4.0	3.6-4.3	6.3	0.5
Belize	8.5	7.6–9.4	14.5	12.9–16.2	2.5	2.3–2.8	6.8	1.7
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	5.9	5.0–6.7	9.1	7.7–10.4	2.7	2.3–3.1	3.8	2.1
Brazil	8.7	7.8–9.7	13.6	12.1–15.0	4.2	3.7–4.6	7.2	1.5
Canada	10.2	9.1-11.3	15.1	13.4-16.7	5.5	4.9-6.1	8.2	2.0
Chile	9.6	8.5–10.7	13.9	12.3–15.5	5.5	4.9-6.1	7.6	2.0
Colombia	6.2	5.3-7.1	9.1	7.8–10.4	3.5	3.0-4.0	4.2	2.0
Costa Rica	5.4	4.8-6.0	7.5	6.7–8.3	3.2	2.8-3.5	4.4	1.0
Cuba	5.2	4.6-5.8	8.8	7.8–9.8	1.6	1.4-1.7	4.2	1.0
Dominica	7.1	6.5-7.6	10.2	9.4-11.0	4.1	3.7-4.4	6.6	0.5
Dominican Republic	6.9	6.3–7.5	9.8	8.9–10.6	4.0	3.6-4.3	6.2	0.7
Ecuador	7.2	6.0-8.4	11.1	9.2-12.9	3.4	2.8-3.9	4.2	3.0
El Salvador	3.2	2.8-3.7	5.0	4.3-5.7	1.7	1.5-2.0	2.2	1.0
Grenada	12.5	11.6-13.5	17.9	16.6-19.3	7.3	6.7–7.8	11.9	0.7
Guatemala	3.8	3.2-4.5	7.5	6.2-8.7	0.5	0.5-0.6	2.2	1.6
Guyana	8.1	7.4-8.9	11.7	10.6-12.8	4.7	4.2-5.1	7.1	1.0
Haiti	6.4	5.9-7.0	10.1	9.3-11.0	2.9	2.7–3.2	5.9	0.6
Honduras	4.0	3.5-4.5	5.7	5.0-6.4	2.3	2.0-2.6	3.0	1.0
Jamaica	4.9	4.2-5.5	7.1	6.1-8.0	2.8	2.4-3.1	3.4	1.5
Mexico	7.2	6.3-8.1	12.4	10.9-13.9	2.6	2.3-3.0	5.5	1.8
Nicaragua	5.0	4.3-5.6	8.7	7.5–9.8	1.5	1.3-1.6	3.5	1.5
Panama	8.0	7.3–8.7	11.2	10.3-12.2	4.7	4.3-5.1	7.2	0.8
Paraguay	8.8	7.9–9.7	12.4	11.1–13.7	5.2	4.6-5.7	7.3	1.5
Peru	8.1	7.1–9.1	12.4	10.9–14.0	3.8	3.3–4.3	6.1	2.0
Puerto Rico	5.4	—	7.2	—	3.4	—	4.9	0.5
Saint Kitts and Nevis	8.2	7.6–8.8	11.8	10.9–12.8	4.7	4.3-5.1	7.7	0.5
Saint Lucia	10.4	9.7–11.1	15.1	14.1-16.1	5.9	5.5-6.3	10.1	0.2
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	6.6	6.1–7.1	9.2	8.5–9.9	3.9	3.6–4.2	6.3	0.3
Suriname	6.6	6.0–7.3	9.4	8.5-10.4	3.9	3.5–4.2	5.6	1.0
Trinidad and Tobago	6.7	6.2–7.2	9.7	9.0-10.4	3.9	3.6-4.2	6.4	0.3
United States of America	9.2	8.5–9.8	13.6	12.6–14.7	4.9	4.5–5.3	8.7	0.5
Uruguay	7.6	6.8-8.3	11.3	10.2-12.3	4.2	3.8–4.6	6.6	1.0
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	8.9	8.1–9.8	12.7	11.4–13.9	5.2	4.7–5.7	7.7	1.3

Data not available.
CI, confidence intervals.
Excludes tourist consumption.
95% CI available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

			Total APC (record	ed + unrecorded)			Recorded APC ¹	Unrecorded APC
EMR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²
Afghanistan	0.7	0.5–0.9	1.2	0.8-1.6	0.1	0.1-0.2	0.0	0.7
Bahrain	2.1	1.9-2.2	2.7	2.5-2.9	1.0	0.9–1.1	2.0	0.1
Djibouti	1.3	1.2-1.5	2.4	2.2-2.6	0.3	0.3–0.3	1.1	0.2
Egypt	0.4	0.3–0.5	0.7	0.6-0.9	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.2	0.2
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	1.0	0.7–1.3	1.7	1.2–2.2	0.3	0.2–0.4	0.0	1.0
Iraq	0.5	0.4-0.6	0.9	0.7-1.1	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.2	0.3
Jordan	0.7	0.6-0.8	1.2	1.0-1.3	0.2	0.2-0.3	0.5	0.2
Kuwait	0.1	0.1-0.2	0.2	0.1-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.1
Lebanon	2.4	2.1–2.7	3.9	3.5-4.4	0.8	0.7–0.9	1.9	0.5
Libya	0.1	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.1
Morocco	0.9	0.8-1.1	1.9	1.5-2.2	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.5	0.5
Oman	0.9	0.8-1.0	1.2	1.1-1.4	0.4	0.4-0.4	0.7	0.2
Pakistan	0.1	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.0
Qatar	1.5	1.3-1.8	1.8	1.5-2.1	0.4	0.3-0.4	0.9	0.6
Saudi Arabia	0.2	0.2-0.3	0.3	0.3-0.4	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.1	0.1
Somalia	0.5	0.3–0.7	0.9	0.6-1.2	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.0	0.5
Sudan	2.7	2.3–3.1	4.8	4.1-5.5	0.6	0.5–0.6	1.7	1.0
Syrian Arab Republic	1.2	1.1-1.4	2.3	2.0-2.5	0.1	0.1-0.1	1.0	0.3
Tunisia	1.5	1.3-1.6	3.0	2.7-3.3	0.0	0.0-0.0	1.3	0.2
United Arab Emirates	4.3	3.6-4.9	5.5	4.7-6.3	0.8	0.7–0.9	2.8	1.5
Yemen	0.3	0.2-0.3	0.4	0.3-0.6	0.1	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.2

Data not available.
 Cl, confidence intervals.
 Excludes tourist consumption.
 95% Cl available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

			Total APC (record	ded + unrecorded)			Recorded APC ¹	Unrecorded APC
EUR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²
Albania	7.0	6.0-7.9	10.6	9.2–12.1	3.4	2.9–3.8	4.9	2.1
Andorra	13.8	12.6-15.0	19.5	17.8-21.2	8.2	7.5–9.0	12.4	1.4
Armenia	5.3	4.6-6.0	8.0	7.0–9.1	2.6	2.2–2.9	3.8	1.5
Austria	10.3	9.9–11.5	15.4	14.2-16.6	6.3	5.8-6.8	9.7	0.6
Azerbaijan	2.3	1.9–2.7	3.6	3.0-4.2	1.1	0.9–1.3	1.3	1.0
Belarus	17.5	15.6-19.4	27.5	24.6-30.5	9.1	8.1-10.1	14.4	3.2
Belgium	11.0	9.6-11.4	15.0	13.7–16.3	6.3	5.7–6.8	10.5	0.5
Bosnia and Herzegovina	7.1	6.0-8.1	13.1	11.2-15.1	1.4	1.2-1.6	4.6	2.5
Bulgaria	11.4	10.4-12.4	17.9	16.4-19.5	5.3	4.9–5.8	10.3	1.1
Croatia	12.2	10.9-13.4	17.7	15.9-19.6	7.1	6.4–7.8	10.2	2.0
Cyprus	9.2	8.4-10.0	12.5	11.4–13.6	5.7	5.2–6.2	8.2	1.0
Czech Republic	13.0	11.9-14.1	18.6	17.0-20.1	7.8	7.1-8.4	11.8	1.2
Denmark	11.4	10.5-12.4	16.1	14.8–17.5	6.9	6.3–7.4	10.4	1.0
Estonia	10.3	9.4-11.1	16.2	14.9-17.5	5.3	4.9-5.7	9.5	0.8
Finland	12.3	10.9-13.6	17.5	15.6-19.4	7.3	6.5-8.1	10.0	2.3
France	12.2	11.4-13.1	17.8	16.5-19.0	7.1	6.6-7.6	11.8	0.4
Georgia	7.7	6.6–8.7	12.6	10.9–14.3	3.4	3.0-3.9	5.4	2.3
Germany	11.8	10.9-12.6	16.8	15.6-18.0	7.0	6.5-7.5	11.3	0.5
Greece	10.3	9.2-11.4	14.6	13.0–16.2	6.2	5.5–6.8	8.3	2.0
Hungary	13.3	12.0-14.6	20.4	18.3-22.4	7.1	6.4-7.8	11.3	2.0
Iceland	7.1	6.5–7.6	9.8	9.0–10.6	4.3	4.0-4.7	6.6	0.5
Ireland	11.9	11.0-12.8	16.8	15.6-18.0	7.1	6.6-7.7	11.4	0.5
Israel	2.8	2.6-3.0	4.0	4.2-4.9	1.7	_	2.5	0.3
Italy	6.7	6.2-7.2	9.7	9.0-10.4	3.9	3.7-4.2	6.5	0.2
Kazakhstan	10.3	8.8–11.8	15.7	13.4–18.0	5.5	4.7–6.3	6.8	3.5
Kyrgyzstan	4.3	3.6-5.0	6.7	5.5-7.8	2.0	1.7-2.4	2.4	1.9
Latvia	12.3	11.1-13.5	19.7	17.7–21.6	6.3	5.7–6.9	10.5	1.8
Lithuania	15.4	13.8-17.0	24.4	21.9-26.9	7.9	7.1–8.7	12.9	2.5
Luxembourg	11.9	11.0-12.7	16.8	15.6-18.0	7.2	6.7–7.7	11.4	0.5
Malta	7.0	6.4-7.5	9.7	9.0-10.5	4.2	3.9-4.5	6.6	0.4
Monaco	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Montenegro	8.7	7.2-10.2	13.5	11.2-15.9	4.1	3.4-4.8	4.9	3.9
Netherlands	9.9	9.2–10.7	14.0	13.0-15.0	6.0	5.5-6.4	9.4	0.5
Norway	7.7	7.0-8.4	10.8	9.8-11.8	4.7	4.2-5.1	6.7	1.0
Poland	12.5	11.3–13.7	19.8	18.0-21.7	5.8	5.3–6.3	10.9	1.6
Portugal	12.9	11.6-14.2	18.7	16.9-20.5	7.6	6.8-8.3	11.0	1.9
Republic of Moldova	16.8	13.2–20.5	25.9	20.3–31.5	8.9	7.0–10.9	6.3	10.5
Romania	14.4	12.5-16.3	22.6	19.7-25.6	6.8	5.9–7.6	10.4	4.0
Russian Federation	15.1	13.3–16.9	23.9	21.1–26.8	7.8	6.9–8.7	11.5	3.6
San Marino	—	_	—	_	—	_	_	—
Serbia	12.6	11.1–14.1	19.7	17.3–22.0	5.9	5.2–6.6	9.6	2.9
Slovakia	13.0	11.8-14.3	20.5	18.6-22.5	6.1	5.5–6.7	11.4	1.7
Slovenia	11.6	10.6-12.6	16.3	15.0–17.7	7.0	6.4–7.6	10.6	1.0
Spain	11.2	10.2-12.2	15.9	14.5-17.3	6.7	6.1–7.3	10.0	1.2

		Recorded APC ¹	Unrecorded APC					
EUR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²
Sweden	9.2	8.1-10.2	12.9	11.4-14.4	5.5	4.9-6.2	7.2	2.0
Switzerland	10.7	9.9-11.5	15.2	14.1-16.3	6.4	5.9-6.9	10.2	0.5
Tajikistan	2.8	2.0-3.6	4.3	3.1-5.5	1.4	1.0-1.7	0.3	2.5
The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	6.7	5.6–7.8	10.2	8.5–11.9	3.2	2.7–3.8	3.9	2.8
Turkey	2.0	2.0-2.8	4.4	3.7–5.2	0.5	0.4-0.5	1.4	0.6
Turkmenistan	4.3	3.5-5.1	7.6	6.1-9.0	1.3	1.0-1.5	2.2	2.2
Ukraine	13.9	11.8-16.0	22.0	18.7-25.4	7.2	6.1-8.3	8.9	5.0
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	11.6	10.6–12.6	16.5	15.0–17.9	6.9	6.3–7.5	10.4	1.2
Uzbekistan	4.6	3.7-5.4	7.9	6.5–9.2	1.3	1.1-1.6	2.4	2.1

Data not available.
Cl, confidence intervals.
1 Excludes tourist consumption.
2 95% Cl available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

		Total APC (recorded + unrecorded)								
SEAR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²		
Bangladesh	0.2	0.1-0.2	0.3	0.2-0.4	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.2		
Bhutan	0.7	0.6-0.8	1.2	1.0-1.4	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.4	0.3		
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	3.7	3.4-4.1	7.4	6.7–8.1	0.4	0.4–0.5	3.2	0.5		
India	4.3	3.5-5.1	8.0	6.5–9.4	0.5	0.4–0.6	2.2	2.2		
Indonesia	0.6	0.4-0.7	1.1	0.8–1.4	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.1	0.5		
Maldives	1.2	1.0-1.4	2.3	1.9–2.7	0.1	0.1–0.2	0.7	0.5		
Myanmar	0.7	0.5-0.9	1.4	1.0-1.8	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.6		
Nepal	2.2	1.6-2.8	4.4	3.1-5.6	0.2	0.2-0.3	0.2	2.0		
Sri Lanka	3.7	3.1-4.3	7.3	6.1-8.5	0.3	0.2-0.3	2.2	1.5		
Thailand	7.1	6.5–7.7	13.8	12.6-14.9	0.8	0.7–0.9	6.4	0.7		
Timor–Leste	0.6	0.4–0.7	1.0	0.7–1.3	0.1	0.1–0.1	0.1	0.5		

Data not available.
Cl, confidence intervals.
1 Excludes tourist consumption.
2 95% Cl available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

			Total APC (record	led + unrecorded)			Recorded APC ¹	Unrecorded APC
WPR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ²	Both sexes ²
Australia	12.2	11.0-13.4	17.3	15.6–19.1	7.2	6.5–7.9	10.4	1.8
Brunei Darussalam	0.9	0.8-1.0	1.6	1.4-1.8	0.1	0.1-0.1	0.6	0.3
Cambodia	5.5	4.3-6.6	9.6	7.6–11.7	1.7	1.3–2.0	2.2	3.3
China	6.7	5.8-7.5	10.9	9.5-12.3	2.2	1.9-2.5	5.0	1.7
Cook Islands	6.4	5.8–6.9	10.5	9.7-11.4	2.1	1.9-2.2	5.9	0.5
Fiji	3.0	2.6-3.5	5.5	4.7-6.3	0.5	0.4-0.5	2.0	1.0
Japan	7.2	6.7–7.7	10.4	9.7–11.2	4.2	3.9-4.4	7.0	0.2
Kiribati	3.0	2.3–3.7	5.5	4.2-6.7	0.4	0.3-0.6	1.0	2.0
Lao People's Democratic Republic	7.3	6.5–8.0	12.5	11.2–13.7	2.3	2.1–2.5	6.2	1.1
Malaysia	1.3	1.0-1.6	2.5	1.9-3.1	0.2	0.1-0.2	0.3	1.0
Marshall Islands	—	—	—	—	—	_	_	—
Micronesia (Federated States of)	3.3	2.8–3.8	6.0	5.2-6.8	0.5	0.4–0.6	2.3	1.0
Mongolia	6.9	6.0-7.8	11.7	10.2-13.3	2.2	1.9-2.5	4.9	2.0
Nauru	3.5	2.7-4.3	5.9	4.5-7.3	1.1	0.9-1.4	1.0	2.5
New Zealand	10.9	9.8-12.0	15.7	14.2-17.3	6.3	5.7-6.9	9.3	1.6
Niue	8.0	7.3–8.8	13.3	12.0-14.5	2.6	2.4-2.9	7.0	1.0
Palau	7.9	7.2–8.7	13.2	12.0-14.5	2.6	2.3–2.8	6.9	1.0
Papua New Guinea	3.0	2.5-3.6	5.1	4.1-6.0	1.0	0.8-1.2	1.5	1.5
Philippines	5.4	4.9-6.0	9.2	8.3-10.1	1.7	1.6-1.9	4.6	0.9
Republic of Korea	12.3	10.9-13.7	21.0	18.6-23.3	3.9	3.5-4.3	9.8	2.5
Samoa	3.6	3.2-4.1	6.6	5.7–7.4	0.6	0.5-0.6	2.6	1.0
Singapore	2.0	1.7-2.2	2.8	2.8-3.6	1.2	0.7-0.9	1.5	0.5
Solomon Islands	1.7	1.5-1.9	3.1	2.7-3.5	0.3	0.2-0.3	1.2	0.5
Tokelau	—	—	—	_	—	_	—	—
Tonga	1.6	1.4–1.8	3.0	2.6-3.4	0.2	0.2-0.3	1.1	0.5
Tuvalu	1.5	1.3–1.7	2.5	2.1-2.8	0.5	0.4-0.6	1.0	0.5
Vanuatu	1.4	1.1–1.6	2.5	2.1–2.9	0.2	0.2-0.2	0.9	0.5
Viet Nam	6.6	5.0-8.1	12.1	10.1-16.4	0.2	0.2-0.3	2.0	4.6

Data not available.
Cl, confidence intervals.
Excludes tourist consumption.
95% Cl available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

	Distr	ibution of rec	orded consum	otion ²	Total consumption (drinkers only) ³	Average daily intake⁴	Projections of total alcohol consumption ⁵		
AFR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	20207	20257
Algeria	62.6	35.5	0.0	2.0	10.9	23.5	0.6	0.6	0.6
Angola	64.3	13.7	17.4	4.7	20.9	45.1	7.6	7.5	7.4
Benin	54.6	21.7	7.2	16.5	5.4	11.7	2.2	2.3	2.3
Botswana	56.0	11.8	11.5	20.7	20.2	43.8	7.7	7.4	7.3
Burkina Faso	10.0	3.0	3.1	83.8	18.0	39.2	7.4	7.6	7.8
Burundi	24.5	0.0	0.1	75.4	22.0	48.0	9.8	9.9	9.9
Cabo Verde	44.4	1.2	0.2	54.2	17.9	38.6	7.2	7.6	7.9
Cameroon	63.9	22.1	13.8	0.2	19.3	42.0	7.7	7.4	7.2
Central African Republic	16.2	0.6	2.1	81.1	17.5	37.8	3.8	3.8	3.7
Chad	66.3	3.4	3.8	26.5	33.9	71.8	4.4	4.4	4.4
Comoros	23.3	22.2	54.6	0.0	1.9	4.5	0.2	0.2	0.2
Congo	78.4	9.8	10.9	0.8	13.6	29.3	3.9	3.7	3.6
Côte d'Ivoire	16.1	3.0	0.4	80.5	25.6	54.8	6.5	6.7	6.9
Democratic Republic of the Congo	24.0	0.7	2.0	73.3	12.9	28.0	3.4	3.3	3.2
Equatorial Guinea	27.8	72.2	0.0	0.0	16.5	36.0	8.1	8.6	9.0
Eritrea	63.6	0.0	0.1	36.3	2.5	5.2	1.4	1.4	1.4
Ethiopia	49.7	0.6	8.2	41.4	26.5	57.1	4.3	4.3	4.3
Gabon	68.3	11.9	19.8	0.1	26.5	57.7	11.8	12.3	12.7
Gambia	5.6	0.7	0.3	93.5	30.9	64.1	3.2	3.0	2.8
Ghana	30.0	9.7	2.9	57.3	20.6	43.9	5.4	5.7	5.9
Guinea	78.9	16.3	3.7	1.1	8.4	17.9	0.7	0.7	0.8
Guinea–Bissau	19.6	14.9	22.4	43.0	13.4	28.9	4.3	4.3	4.4
Kenya	56.1	1.8	21.6	20.4	18.9	41.2	4.0	3.8	3.6
Lesotho	51.3	0.2	18.9	29.6	21.7	47.0	6.4	6.4	6.5
Liberia	10.8	1.0	88.1	0.0	15.8	33.9	5.2	5.6	5.9
Madagascar	56.0	9.5	34.5	0.0	12.5	27.2	1.9	1.9	1.9
Malawi	9.1	1.2	13.4	76.2	12.8	27.6	2.5	2.6	2.6
Mali	13.3	1.5	2.1	83.1	29.3	59.4	1.0	1.0	1.0
Mauritania	—	—	—	—	4.8	9.3	0.1	0.1	0.1
Mauritius	66.2	12.3	21.3	0.2	11.3	24.5	4.0	4.1	4.2
Mozambique	63.0	7.3	25.4	4.3	12.6	27.0	2.0	1.9	1.9
Namibia	96.7	0.3	0.9	2.1	27.7	59.7	11.8	12.4	12.9
Niger	46.0	13.2	40.7	0.0	5.6	11.4	0.3	0.4	0.4
Nigeria	8.0	0.4	0.9	90.7	23.1	50.1	11.3	10.9	11.3
Rwanda	11.1	0.0	0.4	88.4	22.0	48.0	10.0	10.0	10.1
Sao Tome and Principe	23.5	60.2	16.3	0.0	18.5	40.2	6.8	6.5	6.2
Senegal	55.1	41.3	3.6	0.0	10.2	21.7	0.5	0.5	0.5
Seychelles	67.0	22.2	10.8	0.0	12.7	27.6	6.7	7.5	7.9
Sierra Leone	6.4	0.5	0.7	92.3	19.5	42.4	8.2	7.9	7.9
South Africa	48.1	17.8	16.7	17.4	27.1	58.5	11.5	11.9	12.1

Table 1.2. Other key indicators on levels of alcohol consumption, 2010 (both sexes¹; 15+ years), and projections

	Distribution of recorded consumption ²				Total consumption (drinkers only) ³	Average daily intake ⁴	Projections of total alcohol consumption ⁵			
AFR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	20207	20257	
Swaziland	33.6	0.8	0.7	65.0	13.0	28.1	6.4	6.6	6.5	
Togo	48.9	26.9	2.4	21.8	3.7	8.0	1.9	1.7	1.6	
Uganda	9.4	0.1	1.9	88.6	23.7	51.7	10.5	10.7	10.8	
United Republic of Tanzania	11.0	0.2	1.8	87.0	18.4	39.9	8.1	8.1	8.1	
Zambia	22.7	2.9	13.6	60.7	13.1	28.7	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Zimbabwe	23.7	1.7	6.8	67.7	14.6	31.4	4.8	4.6	4.4	

Data not available.
Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption; 15+ years).
Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Average daily intake of alcohol per capita, 2010 (in grams of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So rotidence intervals (CI) for both sexes, females and males available on GISAH.
95% CI available from GISAH.

					Total consumption (drinkers	Average daily			
	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consum	otion ²	only) ³	intake⁴	Projections	of total alcohol c	onsumption⁵
AMR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	2020 ⁷	20257
Antigua and Barbuda	36.4	16.4	47.0	0.3	8.0	17.8	3.2	3.3	3.5
Argentina	40.7	48.0	5.5	5.8	15.8	33.1	7.6	6.6	5.8
Bahamas	34.0	14.6	50.4	1.0	12.5	27.4	4.2	4.1	4.0
Barbados	39.7	10.2	49.3	0.8	10.0	22.3	6.5	6.5	6.6
Belize	67.6	2.0	30.3	0.1	29.8	62.1	8.3	8.5	8.6
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	76.8	3.8	19.3	0.1	11.3	24.4	5.8	5.9	6.0
Brazil	59.6	4.0	36.3	0.1	15.1	33.1	9.1	9.6	10.1
Canada	51.2	22.0	26.8	0.0	13.2	28.9	10.3	10.5	10.7
Chile	29.9	40.7	29.4	0.0	14.6	31.1	9.3	9.3	9.2
Colombia	66.1	1.1	32.5	0.3	12.9	27.8	6.6	6.8	6.9
Costa Rica	59.3	4.7	35.5	0.5	10.5	22.7	5.1	5.4	5.6
Cuba	38.8	2.2	58.9	0.0	8.3	18.5	5.5	5.8	6.0
Dominica	13.7	7.1	77.9	1.2	12.0	26.4	6.6	6.3	6.0
Dominican Republic	54.5	2.7	42.7	0.1	12.4	27.1	7.6	8.3	8.9
Ecuador	67.3	1.2	31.5	0.0	15.2	32.6	6.1	5.7	5.6
El Salvador	41.7	1.7	56.6	0.0	7.3	15.8	3.5	3.7	3.8
Grenada	29.3	4.3	66.2	0.2	25.9	56.0	10.4	9.4	8.4
Guatemala	41.9	1.6	56.3	0.2	9.1	19.5	3.9	3.9	3.9
Guyana	23.0	0.3	76.6	0.1	13.7	29.9	8.6	9.0	9.4
Haiti	0.2	0.2	99.6	0.0	11.6	25.1	5.9	5.7	5.6
Honduras	40.1	1.1	58.7	0.0	8.4	18.2	4.0	4.1	4.2
Jamaica	42.0	4.9	51.4	1.6	10.6	23.1	5.1	5.3	5.4
Mexico	75.7	1.5	22.2	0.5	12.7	27.5	6.8	6.7	6.7
Nicaragua	38.8	0.5	60.6	0.0	10.1	22.0	4.6	4.4	4.2
Panama	69.2	4.6	26.0	0.2	13.4	28.9	7.7	8.0	8.3
Paraguay	51.1	18.2	28.8	2.0	14.2	31.1	9.6	10.2	10.8
Peru	46.8	6.1	47.1	0.0	14.6	31.5	5.2	4.4	3.9
Puerto Rico	66.6	6.7	26.4	0.3	—	—	—	—	—
Saint Kitts and Nevis	44.0	7.4	48.0	0.6	19.3	41.3	7.0	7.4	7.8
Saint Lucia	29.7	12.6	56.1	1.5	19.9	43.4	10.4	10.9	11.2
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	33.4	3.0	63.1	0.5	11.8	25.7	7.2	7.6	8.0
Suriname	40.0	2.3	57.2	0.5	12.8	27.8	6.5	6.3	6.1
Trinidad and Tobago	54.0	2.0	43.8	0.3	13.2	28.8	6.6	6.7	6.9
United States of America	50.0	17.3	32.7	0.0	13.3	28.7	9.0	9.0	9.0
Uruguay	30.6	59.9	9.5	0.0	12.9	27.2	7.0	6.8	6.6
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	75.6	0.8	23.4	0.2	15.1	32.8	8.3	8.1	7.9

Data not available.
Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption; 15+ years).
Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Average daily intake of alcohol per capita, 2010 (in grams of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Spore confidence intervals (CI) for both sexes, females and males available on GISAH.
95% CI available from GISAH.

	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consum	otion ²	Total consumption (drinkers only) ³	Average daily intake⁴	Projections of total alcohol consumption⁵			
EMR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	2020 ⁷	20257	
Afghanistan	—	_	_	—	18.9	38.3	1.0	1.2	1.3	
Bahrain	36.6	6.3	57.0	0.1	21.2	46.6	2.4	2.7	2.9	
Djibouti	23.2	5.3	71.5	0.0	23.2	49.4	0.9	0.8	0.7	
Egypt	53.8	5.4	40.3	0.5	6.0	11.8	0.3	0.4	0.4	
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	—	—	—	—	24.8	52.1	1.0	1.0	1.0	
Iraq	76.1	1.0	22.9	0.0	9.1	20.1	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Jordan	22.4	2.1	75.4	0.1	15.2	32.4	0.7	0.7	0.7	
Kuwait	58.1	10.8	30.7	0.4	1.3	2.9	0.1	0.1	0.1	
Lebanon	18.2	29.1	52.4	0.3	23.9	51.5	2.2	1.9	1.7	
Libya	—	—	—	—	2.5	5.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Morocco	43.5	36.5	19.9	0.0	17.1	36.6	0.7	0.6	0.5	
Oman	54.6	3.3	42.2	0.0	15.5	32.4	0.9	0.9	1.0	
Pakistan	—	—	—	—	1.2	3.0	0.1	0.1	0.1	
Qatar	1.2	13.9	84.6	0.3	22.7	48.7	1.3	1.4	1.4	
Saudi Arabia	0.0	1.9	97.9	0.2	3.9	8.0	0.2	0.2	0.3	
Somalia	—	—	—	—	9.2	19.2	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Sudan	8.0	0.0	13.5	78.5	24.1	51.9	2.7	2.7	2.8	
Syrian Arab Republic	8.5	27.9	63.5	0.0	16.3	35.3	1.4	1.5	1.6	
Tunisia	68.6	27.7	3.7	0.0	26.2	56.3	1.2	1.2	1.1	
United Arab Emirates	10.3	2.9	86.7	0.0	32.8	70.9	4.3	4.6	4.8	
Yemen	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	6.1	13.2	0.2	0.2	0.2	

- Data not available.

Data not available.
Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption; 15+ years).
Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita, 2010 (in grams of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in GISAH.
Soft (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in GISAH.

1 2 3 4 5

					Total consumption (drinkers	Average daily			
	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consum	otion ²	only) ³ Liters of pure	intake⁴ Grams of pure	Projections	of total alcohol c	onsumption ⁵
EUR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	alcohol	alcohol ⁶	20157	20207	20257
Albania	31.8	19.8	48.4	0.0	13.0	27.5	6.6	6.9	7.2
Andorra	34.6	45.3	20.1	0.0	20.1	42.9	9.1	6.7	5.0
Armenia	9.7	5.3	84.9	0.0	8.3	17.9	5.5	5.8	6.1
Austria	50.4	35.5	14.0	0.0	13.8	29.6	8.5	8.7	8.8
Azerbaijan	28.7	7.6	63.3	0.0	5.2	11.1	2.1	2.1	2.1
Belarus	17.3	5.2	46.6	30.9	22.1	48.0	17.1	16.8	16.9
Belgium	49.2	36.3	14.4	0.1	12.8	27.7	10.8	10.3	9.9
Bosnia and Herzegovina	73.3	9.7	17.0	0.0	12.3	26.2	7.5	7.8	8.1
Bulgaria	39.3	16.5	44.1	0.1	16.9	36.8	11.3	11.8	12.1
Croatia	39.5	44.8	15.4	0.2	15.1	33.3	11.7	11.2	10.8
Cyprus	40.9	24.7	33.7	0.7	10.8	23.3	9.1	9.1	9.2
Czech Republic	53.5	20.5	26.0	0.0	14.6	32.5	14.1	14.2	14.3
Denmark	37.7	48.2	14.1	0.0	12.9	35.2	10.2	9.3	8.5
Estonia	41.2	11.1	36.8	10.9	15.7	34.1	9.4	9.9	10.5
Finland	46.0	17.5	24.0	12.6	18.1	38.4	11.9	12.3	12.7
France	18.8	56.4	23.1	1.7	12.9	27.9	11.6	10.6	9.7
Georgia	17.0	49.8	33.2	0.1	21.2	43.3	6.7	6.6	6.6
Germany	53.6	27.8	18.6	0.0	14.7	31.7	10.6	9.8	9.0
Greece	28.1	47.3	24.2	0.4	15.6	33.1	9.3	8.8	8.2
Hungary	36.3	29.4	34.3	0.0	16.3	36.4	12.4	11.6	11.0
Iceland	61.8	21.2	16.5	0.5	10.4	22.1	6.9	7.4	7.7
Ireland	48.1	26.1	18.7	7.7	14.7	31.7	10.9	10.0	9.2
Israel	44.0	6.2	49.5	0.3	5.4	10.8	3.1	3.3	3.5
Italy	23.0	65.6	11.5	0.0	9.9	20.7	6.1	5.6	5.1
Kazakhstan	31.8	3.1	65.1	0.0	26.2	53.8	8.2	7.2	6.6
Kyrgyzstan	22.6	4.2	72.9	0.3	11.3	23.2	3.9	3.7	3.5
Latvia	46.9	10.7	37.0	5.4	18.1	39.5	10.6	9.6	9.1
Lithuania	46.5	7.8	34.1	11.6	23.6	51.0	16.2	16.8	17.5
Luxembourg	36.2	42.8	21.0	0.0	12.7	27.6	11.2	10.2	9.4
Malta	39.4	32.7	27.2	0.7	11.5	24.0	7.2	7.7	8.2
Monaco	—	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Montenegro	10.9	47.0	41.7	0.4	13.4	_	11.5	13.3	15.1
Netherlands	46.8	36.4	16.9	0.0	11.2	24.4	9.6	9.4	9.1
Norway	44.2	34.7	19.0	2.1	9.0	19.5	7.0	7.1	7.3
Poland	55.1	9.3	35.5	0.0	24.2	50.7	11.5	11.9	12.3
Portugal	30.8	55.5	10.9	2.8	22.6	47.1	12.5	11.9	11.4
Republic of Moldova	30.4	5.1	64.5	0.0	25.4	55.1	17.4	17.7	17.9
Romania	50.0	28.9	21.1	0.0	21.3	46.3	12.9	12.4	12.0
Russian Federation	37.6	11.4	51.0	0.0	22.3	48.3	14.5	15.0	15.5
San Marino	—	—	—	—	_	—	—	—	—
Serbia	51.5	23.9	24.6	0.0	19.0	41.2	12.9	12.6	12.2
Slovakia	30.1	18.3	46.2	5.5	19.8	42.8	12.5	12.5	12.6
Slovenia	44.5	46.9	8.6	0.0	17.2	37.4	10.9	10.4	9.9

	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consum	ption ²	Total consumption (drinkers only) ³	Average daily intake⁴	Projections	of total alcohol c	onsumption ⁵
EUR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	20207	2025 ⁷
Spain	49.7	20.1	28.2	1.8	16.4	35.0	10.6	10.1	9.6
Sweden	37.0	46.6	15.1	1.4	13.3	28.4	8.7	8.8	8.9
Switzerland	31.8	49.4	17.6	1.2	12.1	26.2	10.4	10.1	9.8
Tajikistan	10.2	1.1	88.7	0.0	30.3	51.5	2.4	2.2	2.1
The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	47.4	39.9	12.6	0.0	11.7	24.9	5.7	5.2	4.7
Turkey	63.6	8.6	27.9	0.0	17.3	37.8	2.4	2.4	2.4
Turkmenistan	15.4	26.1	58.4	0.0	11.0	23.3	5.0	5.4	5.7
Ukraine	40.5	9.0	48.0	2.6	20.3	44.2	11.8	11.3	11.3
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	36.9	33.8	21.8	7.5	13.8	29.8	12.0	12.2	12.5
Uzbekistan	18.3	6.3	75.4	0.0	12.2	25.7	4.8	5.1	5.4

Data not available.
 Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
 Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption; 15+ years).
 Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).

A verage daily intake of alcohol per capita, 2010 (in grams of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
95% confidence intervals (Cl) for both sexes, females and males available on GISAH.
95% Cl available from GISAH.

	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consum	ption ²	Total consumption (drinkers only) ³	Average daily intake ⁴	Projections	of total alcohol c	onsumption ⁵
SEAR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	Liters of pure alcohol	Grams of pure alcohol ⁶	20157	2020 ⁷	2025 ⁷
Bangladesh	_	_	_	—	9.0	17.6	0.2	0.2	0.2
Bhutan	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	6.9	14.9	1.1	1.3	1.4
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	5.1	0.0	94.9	0.0	17.9	38.5	4.4	4.6	4.7
India	6.8	0.1	93.1	0.0	28.7	62.7	4.6	4.7	4.9
Indonesia	84.5	0.1	15.3	0.0	7.1	15.9	0.6	0.6	0.6
Maldives	29.1	29.4	41.2	0.0	13.8	28.8	1.0	1.1	1.2
Myanmar	82.6	5.7	11.8	0.0	8.9	18.4	0.7	0.8	0.8
Nepal	47.7	0.9	51.4	0.0	28.8	61.8	2.1	2.1	2.1
Sri Lanka	13.0	0.1	85.2	1.7	20.1	43.6	4.5	4.9	5.2
Thailand	27.0	0.4	72.6	0.0	23.8	51.9	8.3	8.9	9.5
Timor—Leste	9.3	75.9	14.8	0.0	8.0	16.8	1.2	0.9	0.6

1 Data not available.

Data not available.
Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
95% confidence intervals (CI) for both sexes, females and males available on GISAH.
95% CI available from GISAH.

	B [.] .	/			Total consumption (drinkers	Average daily	5	<i>.</i>	
	Distr	ibution of reco	orded consump		only) ³ Liters of pure	intake⁴ Grams of pure	Projections	of total alcohol c	consumption ³
WPR	% Beer	% Wine	% Spirits	% Other	alcohol	alcohol ⁶	20157	20207	2025 ⁷
Australia	44.0	36.7	12.5	6.8	14.5	31.3	12.6	13.2	13.5
Brunei Darussalam	89.8	2.3	7.2	0.7	4.3	7.6	0.8	0.8	0.7
Cambodia	45.7	0.8	53.5	0.0	14.2	31.0	6.1	6.6	7.1
China	27.8	3.0	69.2	0.0	15.1	32.7	7.6	7.9	8.3
Cook Islands	0.0	22.6	77.4	0.0	14.1	30.4	4.8	5.3	5.9
Fiji	67.7	0.9	31.1	0.2	7.3	15.8	3.2	3.3	3.3
Japan	19.2	4.1	52.0	24.7	10.4	22.4	7.5	7.9	8.3
Kiribati	36.9	2.2	60.9	0.0	9.6	20.6	2.9	2.9	2.9
Lao People's Democratic Republic	35.6	0.0	64.4	0.0	15.2	33.1	7.5	7.8	8.1
Malaysia	76.2	2.0	21.8	0.1	10.5	22.8	1.7	1.8	1.9
Marshall Islands	_	—	—	—	—	—	_	—	—
Micronesia (Federated States of)	47.0	14.1	38.9	0.0	8.1	17.4	3.5	3.9	4.3
Mongolia	27.6	2.8	69.6	0.0	15.1	32.4	7.8	8.8	9.9
Nauru	85.4	14.6	0.0	0.0	12.5	27.0	3.0	2.9	2.8
New Zealand	38.2	33.9	15.2	12.5	13.7	29.4	11.2	11.6	11.8
Niue	47.0	1.7	51.3	0.0	18.2	39.2	7.7	7.5	7.4
Palau	77.7	5.9	16.4	0.0	14.4	31.1	—	—	—
Papua New Guinea	51.3	0.9	47.7	0.0	8.8	19.2	3.1	3.2	3.3
Philippines	26.9	0.3	72.7	0.0	12.3	26.5	5.6	6.1	6.5
Republic of Korea	25.0	1.6	2.9	70.5	27.5	54.9	10.9	11.3	11.5
Samoa	70.9	16.6	12.5	0.0	8.1	17.6	—	—	_
Singapore	70.1	13.5	14.7	1.7	3.9	7.9	2.9	2.6	2.5
Solomon Islands	81.1	2.1	16.7	0.0	5.2	11.4	1.6	1.7	1.7
Tokelau	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
Tonga	57.9	7.6	34.3	0.1	4.8	10.3	2.1	2.4	2.5
Tuvalu	10.0	15.5	74.5	0.0	6.1	13.3	1.3	1.2	1.2
Vanuatu	40.5	22.8	36.7	0.0	4.3	9.1	1.2	1.1	1.0
Viet Nam	97.3	0.6	2.1	0.0	17.2	37.7	8.7	10.0	11.0

Data not available.
Data by sex available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) for total consumption (drinkers only) and average daily intake.
Recorded alcohol per capita consumption by type of alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, spirits, other), 2010 (as a percentage of recorded alcohol per capita consumption; 15+ years).
Total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption, drinkers only, 2010 (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Average daily intake of alcohol per capita, 2010 (in grams of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
Projections of total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in litres of pure alcohol; 15+ years).
So for total (recorded + unrecorded) alcohol per capita consumption (in GISAH.
So for available from GISAH.

Table I.3. Prevalence of heavy episodic drinking (HED) by sex and by age, 2010 (as percent of total adult or adolescent population¹)

		Age-s <u>tanda</u>	rdized H <u>E</u>	D, 15+ years	pop <u>ulation</u>			HE	D, 1 <u>5-19 v</u>	/ears populat	ion	
	Both						Both					
AFR	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Algeria	0.4	0.0–0.9	0.7	0.0–1.7	0.1	0.0–0.4	0.1	0.0–0.4	0.2	0.0–0.6	0.0	0.0–0.3
Angola	4.0	2.5-5.4	7.5	4.7–10.3	0.6	0.0–1.4	4.2	2.0-6.3	6.4	3.8–9.1	1.9	0.4–3.4
Benin	22.4	19.3–25.6	35.4	30.4-40.3	9.8	6.7–13.0	3.2	1.3-5.0	4.9	2.6–7.2	1.4	0.2–2.7
Botswana	6.4	4.6-8.3	11.6	8.2-15.0	1.2	0.0–2.3	4.6	2.4-6.9	7.1	4.4-9.9	2.1	0.6–3.7
Burkina Faso	18.4	15.5–21.3	29.6	24.8–34.4	8.7	5.7–11.7	3.7	1.7–5.7	5.7	3.2–8.2	1.7	0.3–3.1
Burundi	3.3	2.0-4.7	6.7	4.0-9.3	0.1	0.0-0.4	4.0	1.9-6.1	6.2	3.6-8.8	1.8	0.4–3.3
Cabo Verde	5.2	3.6–6.9	8.8	5.8–11.8	2.0	0.5–3.4	3.8	1.7–5.8	5.8	3.3–8.3	1.7	0.3–3.1
Cameroon	12.3	9.8–14.8	17.8	13.7-21.9	6.8	4.1–9.5	4.4	2.2-6.5	6.0	3.4-8.5	2.7	1.0-4.5
Central African Republic	1.7	0.7–2.6	3.2	1.3–5.1	0.2	0.0–0.6	3.2	1.3–5.1	5.0	2.7–7.3	1.5	0.2–2.8
Chad	0.9	0.2-1.6	1.6	0.3-3.0	0.1	0.0-0.6	3.1	1.2-4.9	4.7	2.4–7.0	1.4	0.1–2.6
Comoros	0.9	0.2-1.5	1.7	0.3–3.0	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.3
Congo	3.1	1.8-4.4	6.0	3.5-8.6	0.3	0.0-0.8	3.4	1.4-5.3	5.2	2.8-7.6	1.5	0.2-2.8
Côte d'Ivoire	2.7	1.5-3.9	4.9	2.6-7.2	0.3	0.0-0.8	14.4	10.7-18.1	21.4	17.0-25.8	7.3	4.5-10.1
Democratic Republic of the Congo	2.9	1.6-4.2	5.7	3.2-8.1	0.2	0.0-0.8	13.7	10.1–17.4	19.9	15.6–24.2	7.6	4.7–10.4
Equatorial Guinea	4.7	3.1–6.3	8.2	5.3–11.1	0.9	0.0–1.8	5.4	3.0-7.8	8.3	5.4-11.3	2.5	0.8-4.2
Eritrea	0.5	0.0-1.0	1.0	0.0-2.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	5.8	3.3-8.3	8.6	5.6-11.6	2.9	1.1-4.7
Ethiopia	0.6	0.0-1.2	1.2	0.0-2.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	3.1	1.2-4.9	4.7	2.5-7.0	1.4	0.1–2.6
Gabon	5.0	3.3-6.6	8.9	5.8-11.9	1.0	0.0-2.1	16.8	12.9-20.7	26.1	21.4-30.9	7.3	4.5-10.0
Gambia	0.7	0.1-1.3	1.3	0.1–2.5	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.0	0.0-0.3
Ghana	2.3	1.2-3.5	4.3	2.2-6.5	0.5	0.0-1.2	3.3	1.4-5.2	5.1	2.7–7.4	1.5	0.2–2.8
Guinea	1.9	0.9–2.9	3.3	1.4-5.2	0.6	0.0–1.5	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.3
Guinea–Bissau	4.0	2.5-5.5	7.5	4.7-10.3	0.7	0.0–1.5	3.4	1.4-5.3	5.2	2.8–7.6	1.5	0.2–2.8
Kenya	1.4	0.5–2.3	2.8	1.0-4.5	0.0	0.0-0.1	3.3	1.4-5.2	5.1	2.7–7.4	1.5	0.2–2.8
Lesotho	3.4	2.0-4.8	6.5	3.8-9.1	0.6	0.0-1.4	3.5	1.5-5.4	5.3	2.9–7.7	1.6	0.2–2.9
Liberia	11.7	9.3-14.2	18.9	14.8-23.1	4.7	2.5-7.0	3.5	1.5-5.4	5.3	2.9–7.7	1.6	0.2-2.9
Madagascar	8.8	6.7-11.0	15.5	11.6-19.3	2.4	0.8–4.0	3.1	1.2-4.9	4.8	2.5-7.1	1.4	0.1–2.7
Malawi	8.2	6.2-10.3	15.6	11.8–19.4	1.1	0.0–2.3	3.2	1.3-5.1	4.9	2.6–7.3	1.4	0.2–2.7
Mali	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.3
Mauritania	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.3
Mauritius	12.0	9.5-14.4	20.4	16.2-24.7	3.7	1.7–5.7	3.9	1.9-6.0	6.1	3.5-8.6	1.8	0.4–3.2
Mozambique	0.9	0.2-1.6	2.0	0.5-3.4	0.0	0.0-0.1	3.1	1.3-5.0	4.9	2.6-7.2	1.4	0.2–2.7
Namibia	12.8	10.3-15.3	20.9	16.6-25.2	5.4	3.0-7.8	4.4	2.2-6.6	6.8	4.1-9.5	2.0	0.5-3.6
Niger	0.2	0.0-0.5	0.3	0.0-1.0	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.0	0.0-0.3
Nigeria	7.0	5.0-8.9	12.0	8.5-15.5	1.9	0.4–3.4	14.6	11.1-18.2	26.5	21.8-31.3	2.2	0.6–3.7
Rwanda	18.9	15.9–21.8	30.0	25.2-34.8	8.8	5.8–11.7	4.1	2.0-6.2	6.4	3.8–9.1	1.9	0.4–3.4
Sao Tome and Principe	5.3	3.6-7.0	9.3	6.2-12.4	1.8	0.4–3.2	3.7	1.7-5.7	5.7	3.2-8.2	1.7	0.3–3.1
Senegal	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.3
Seychelles	22.3	19.1-25.4	37.2	32.2-42.2	5.9	3.5-8.4	4.9	2.6-7.2	7.5	4.7-10.3	2.2	0.6–3.8
Sierra Leone	8.8	6.6-10.9	13.1	9.5–16.8	4.6	2.3–6.8	4.1	2.0-6.3	6.4	3.8–9.0	1.9	0.4–3.4
South Africa	9.8	7.6–12.1	17.5	13.4-21.5	2.9	1.1-4.7	4.9	2.6-7.2	7.6	4.8-10.5	2.3	0.7–3.9

1 HED data for drinkers only as well as other indicators related to patterns of alcohol consumption available from Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH).

		Age-standa	ardized HE	D, 15+ years	population		HED, 15–19 years population					
AFR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Swaziland	6.2	4.4-8.0	10.8	7.5–14.2	1.9	0.4–3.3	4.0	1.9-6.1	6.1	3.6-8.7	1.8	0.4–3.3
Togo	24.4	21.2-27.7	36.1	31.1-41.1	13.8	10.2-17.5	3.2	1.3-5.0	4.9	2.6-7.2	1.4	0.2–2.7
Uganda	3.8	2.4-5.3	7.6	4.8-10.4	0.1	0.0-0.3	4.5	2.3-6.7	6.9	4.2-9.6	2.1	0.5-3.6
United Republic of Tanzania	14.1	11.5–16.7	22.3	17.9–26.6	6.1	3.6-8.6	4.0	1.9–6.0	6.1	3.5–8.7	1.8	0.4–3.2
Zambia	2.5	1.3-3.7	5.0	2.7-7.4	0.0	0.0-0.2	3.4	1.4-5.3	5.2	2.8-7.6	1.5	0.2-2.9
Zimbabwe	12.0	9.5-14.5	19.7	15.4-23.9	4.7	2.4-7.0	3.7	1.7-5.8	5.8	3.3-8.3	1.7	0.3–3.1

		Age-standa	rdized HE	D, 15+ years	population			HE	D, 15–19 y	ears populat	ion	
	Both						Both					
AMR	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Antigua and Barbuda	6.4	4.5–8.2	11.3	7.9–14.6	1.5	0.2–2.8	13.8	10.2-17.3	22.7	18.2–27.2	4.7	2.4–6.9
Argentina	12.0	9.6-14.5	24.1	19.6-28.7	0.8	0.0–1.8	15.1	11.5-18.8	26.5	21.8-31.3	3.4	1.5-5.3
Bahamas	5.1	3.4–6.8	9.5	6.4–12.6	0.9	0.0–1.8	12.9	9.4–16.4	21.5	17.1–25.9	4.2	2.1–6.4
Barbados	14.2	11.6-16.9	24.3	19.8–28.9	3.8	1.8–5.9	19.2	15.1-23.2	30.6	25.7-35.6	6.6	3.9–9.3
Belize	2.2	1.1–3.3	4.3	2.2–6.5	0.1	0.0–0.4	7.0	4.4–9.7	13.3	9.6–16.9	0.7	0.0–1.6
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	3.9	2.5–5.4	7.5	4.7–10.3	0.4	0.0–1.1	8.7	5.7–11.6	14.5	10.7–18.3	2.7	0.9–4.4
Brazil	12.2	9.7–14.6	20.0	15.8-24.3	4.5	2.3–6.7	21.7	17.5–25.9	35.0	29.9–40.2	8.0	5.1-10.9
Canada	17.2	14.4-20.1	26.7	22.0-31.3	7.6	4.8-10.4	33.2	28.2-38.1	42.4	37.1-47.7	23.5	18.9–28.0
Chile	4.8	3.2-6.5	9.7	6.5-12.8	0.1	0.0-0.3	27.3	22.9-31.8	43.2	37.9–48.6	10.9	7.5–14.2
Colombia	4.0	2.5-5.5	8.2	5.2–11.1	0.1	0.0-0.6	11.0	7.7–14.3	18.3	14.1-22.4	3.5	1.5-5.4
Costa Rica	7.0	5.4-8.5	12.2	8.7-15.7	1.5	0.2-2.8	9.4	6.3–12.4	14.1	10.4-17.9	4.3	2.1-6.5
Cuba	6.4	4.5-8.2	11.3	7.9–14.7	1.3	0.1–2.5	8.4	5.5-11.3	14.0	10.2-17.7	2.5	0.9–4.2
Dominica	25.4	22.2-28.7	41.3	36.3-46.4	9.7	6.6-12.8	16.9	13.0-20.8	25.9	21.2-30.6	7.7	4.8-10.5
Dominican Republic	14.6	11.9–17.3	24.0	19.5–28.5	5.3	2.9–7.6	16.7	12.8-20.5	27.4	22.6-32.2	5.7	3.2-8.2
Ecuador	3.6	2.2-5.1	7.0	4.3-9.7	0.3	0.0–1.0	10.6	7.4–13.9	17.7	13.6-21.8	3.3	1.4-5.3
El Salvador	8.9	6.8-11.1	16.3	12.4-20.2	2.9	1.2-4.7	6.3	3.7-8.9	10.6	7.3–13.9	1.9	0.4–3.3
Grenada	4.2	2.7–5.7	7.6	4.8-10.5	0.7	0.0–1.6	12.2	8.8-15.6	20.3	16.0-24.6	3.9	1.8-6.0
Guatemala	7.6	5.6-9.6	13.3	9.6-16.9	2.8	1.0-4.5	5.9	3.4-8.4	10.1	6.8-13.3	1.8	0.4–3.2
Guyana	5.5	3.8-7.2	9.9	6.7-13.0	1.1	0.0–2.1	17.9	13.9–21.8	28.7	23.9–33.6	6.1	3.5-8.6
Haiti	5.0	3.4–6.7	9.4	6.3-12.5	0.9	0.0–1.9	12.7	9.3–16.2	21.3	16.9-25.6	4.2	2.0-6.3
Honduras	4.1	2.6-5.6	8.1	5.2-11.0	0.1	0.0-0.5	7.1	4.4-9.8	11.9	8.4–15.4	2.1	0.6–3.7
Jamaica	6.5	4.6-8.4	11.8	8.4-15.3	1.4	0.1–2.7	6.9	4.2-9.6	11.6	8.1-15.0	2.1	0.5-3.6
Mexico	10.9	8.6-13.3	19.6	15.4-23.8	3.3	1.4–5.2	12.0	8.7-15.4	22.6	18.1–27.1	1.4	0.2–2.7
Nicaragua	12.1	9.7-14.6	23.3	18.8-27.8	1.6	0.2-2.9	24.9	20.5-29.3	38.5	33.3-43.7	11.1	7.7–14.5
Panama	5.7	4.0-7.5	11.2	7.8–14.5	0.2	0.0-0.8	22.6	18.4-26.8	36.3	31.1-41.4	8.4	5.4-11.3
Paraguay	30.3	26.9-33.8	43.0	37.9-48.1	17.3	13.3–21.4	19.5	15.5-23.6	31.7	26.7-36.7	6.9	4.2-9.7
Peru	12.2	9.8-14.7	22.1	17.8-26.4	2.2	0.7–3.8	13.0	9.5-16.6	20.2	15.9–24.5	5.6	3.2-8.1
Puerto Rico	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
Saint Kitts and Nevis	—	—	—	—	—	—	14.2	10.5-17.9	21.2	16.8–25.5	7.1	4.3-9.8
Saint Lucia	4.6	3.0-6.2	8.5	5.5-11.5	0.8	0.0–1.8	12.4	8.9-15.8	20.7	16.4-25.1	3.9	1.8-6.0
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	5.3	3.6–7.0	9.6	6.5–12.8	0.9	0.0–1.9	17.5	13.6–21.4	28.7	23.8–33.5	6.1	3.5–8.6
Suriname	4.6	3.0-6.1	8.2	5.3-11.2	0.8	0.0-1.8	14.4	10.8-18.1	23.8	19.2-28.4	4.8	2.5-7.1
Trinidad and Tobago	18.7	15.8-21.7	30.7	25.9–35.6	6.7	4.0-9.3	25.4	21.1-29.8	40.7	35.4-45.9	9.9	6.7–13.1
United States of America	16.2	13.4–19.0	24.7	20.2–29.3	7.5	4.7–10.3	19.8	15.7–23.9	30.9	25.9–35.9	8.2	5.2–11.1
Uruguay	9.5	7.3–11.7	14.8	11.0-18.6	4.6	2.3–6.8	15.1	11.4–18.8	25.0	20.3-29.6	4.8	2.5-7.1
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	22.1	19.0–25.3	37.8	32.7–42.9	6.5	3.9–9.1	24.0	19.6-28.3	38.3	33.1–43.5	9.1	6.0-12.1

		Age-standa	ardized HEI	D, 15+ years	population			HE	D, 15–19 y	ears populat	tion	
EMR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Afghanistan	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0–0.1
Bahrain	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Djibouti	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Egypt	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.0–0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0–0.1
Iraq	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Jordan	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Kuwait	0.4	0.0-0.8	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Lebanon	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.6	0.0-1.4	0.9	0.0-1.9	0.3	0.0-0.8
Libya	0.9	0.2-1.6	1.2	0.1-2.4	0.4	0.0-1.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Morocco	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Oman	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Pakistan	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Qatar	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	1.5	0.2–2.8	2.0	0.5-3.5	0.6	0.0–1.4
Saudi Arabia	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Somalia	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Sudan	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.6	0.0-1.4	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.8	0.0-1.7	0.2	0.0-0.7
Syrian Arab Republic	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
Tunisia	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1
United Arab Emirates	0.2	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.0	0.0-0.1	1.1	0.0–2.1	1.4	0.1-2.7	0.4	0.0–1.1
Yemen	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.0	0.0-0.1

Barb Barb <t< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>Age-standa</th><th>rdized HE</th><th>D, 15+ years</th><th>population</th><th></th><th></th><th>HE</th><th>D, 15—19 y</th><th>ears populat</th><th>ion</th><th></th></t<>			Age-standa	rdized HE	D, 15+ years	population			HE	D, 15—19 y	ears populat	ion	
Alaaria 6.4 6.4-a2 1.7 8.1-5 1.0 0.0-2 1.5 7.2-5.9 9.50 9.7-3.5 1.3.0 9.7-170 Andrar 2.0 7.5-3 7.3.0 3.3 3.2-4.3.4 2.2 0.5-1 3.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 1.5 0.5-2.5 0.5 0.5-2.5 0.5 0.5-2.5 0.5 0.5-2.5 0.5 0.5-2.5 0.5 0.5-2.5		Both						Both					
Andorra 4.2 2.6-57 7.5 4.7-10 0.7 0.0-16 31.8 26-367 4.20 36.7-32 2.0 16.7-23 Armenia 0.30 17.3 33.3 32.4 2.2 0.6 3.3 0.26 15.7	EUR	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
nmenia20317.3-23.338.332.4-34.42.20.6-38.20616.3-24.92.42.6-32.21.18.6-164Aarthaige1038.0-12.513015.7-241120.0-2.817.513.5-2.82.61.0.52.7-3.3Belars2053.703.7-2412.7-241.20.7-2017.513.62.0.418.6-47.42.2.317.9-28.8Belars2053.7-32.72.4.52.44.7-201.5.1.5.62.4.418.7.412.019.2-28.8Belars2053.7-32.72.4.51.6.7-21.71.61.7-25.32.5.71.6.7-3.71.2.81.2.71.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.81.2.71.2.71.2.81.2.7 <td>Albania</td> <td>6.4</td> <td>4.6-8.2</td> <td>11.7</td> <td>8.3–15.0</td> <td>1.0</td> <td>0.0–2.1</td> <td>21.5</td> <td>17.2–25.9</td> <td>29.6</td> <td>24.7–34.5</td> <td>13.3</td> <td>9.7–17.0</td>	Albania	6.4	4.6-8.2	11.7	8.3–15.0	1.0	0.0–2.1	21.5	17.2–25.9	29.6	24.7–34.5	13.3	9.7–17.0
Airtaira 385 38.4-21 53.5 48.1-58. 26.1 92-280 34.6 96-9-37 14.9 36-9-72 27.0 27-31.7 Arrehajom 105 12-21.9 15.7 1.2 0.0-2.3 17.5 13.5-16.8 43.1 987-983 105 72-388 Belans 365 12.7 43.5 17.5 13.5-16.4 43.0 0.55.0 65.7 0.57.8 72-38.8 Besina 37.3 16.5 17.4 12.0 16.7-53.3 25.3 37.3 12.8 12.7-33.8 12.8 12.7-33 12.8 12.7-33 12.8 12.7-13 22.0 22.7-31.3 37.43 12.8 12.7-13 22.0 22.7-31.3 12.8 12.7-12 23.0 22.7-13 32.0 37.5-17.5 32.0 45.5 33.0 45.6 33.7 45.6 33.0 14.7-20 25.0 22.7-33.3 12.8 12.7-14 12.0 22.7-33 45.6 33.0 14.7-14 42.7 37.7-13	Andorra	4.2	2.6-5.7	7.5	4.7–10.3	0.7	0.0–1.6	31.8	26.9-36.7	42.0	36.7-47.3	21.0	16.6-25.3
Arechajan 103 8.0-12.5 199 15.7-21.1 12 0.0-2.3 17.5 13.5-21.6 21.3 13.7-38.0 10.5 7.2-3.8 Belans 255 23.2-9.9 47.6 42.3-5.9 7.2 45-10.0 35.5 28.3-38.4 40.0 37.4-0.8 7.2-8.8 Belgina and Berzegina 33.7 30.7-32 49.6 43.3-59. 7.6 15.2-12 69.0 15.7-25.3 28.5 23.7-38.4 16.0 7.3-13 Belgina 109 16.0-21.9 28.0 23.2-32.8 96.0 61.7-12 26.9 24.3-13.8 36.0 33.3-43.8 18.1 14.2-23 Orpina 25.4 21.1-26 42.4 37.2-47.5 7.1 43.9.8 26.0 25.4 23.4-33.8 14.5 14.5 Orpina 28.1 25.7-25.8 18.1 10.12.0 10.0 23.4-33.8 10.1 10.2-2.2 38.8 13.4 26.5-37.8 10.1 20.1-27.1 Creatine 28.1 27.5-28 18.1 11.9-10.8 18.1 14.2-23.8 18.1 14.2 20.2-27.8 31.8 20.4-27.8 20.4 40.5-28.8 20.1-27.1 20.1-27.1 20.1-27.1 20.1-27.1 20.10.1 <	Armenia	20.3	17.3–23.3	38.3	33.2-43.4	2.2	0.6–3.8	20.6	16.3-24.9	27.4	22.6–32.2	12.1	8.6-15.6
Belars 265 23.2-9.9 47.6 42.3-92.9 7.2 4.5-10.0 3.5. 28.6-38.4 40.0 38.7-19.2 12.2 13.6-21.6 15.6-21.6 5.4.4 40.5-50.2 6.5. 6.6-7.08 7.2 15.2-21.6 Boinsand 6.5 4.7-3.4 12.4 8-15.9 0.7 0.0-1.7 21.0 15.7-25.3 28.5 2.1-3.3 2.3 7.0-4.7 1.0 7.3-13.9 Buigaria 18.9 16.0-21.9 2.0 2.2-2.8 9.6 6.5-12.7 2.6.9 2.4-3.3 4.3.8 8.0 4.6-5.74 5.0 2.7-4.7 Cache Republic 36.5 2.9-4.02 4.5 4.92.79.9 1.5 4.2.9 2.5.4 3.8 2.0 4.6-5.74 2.6 2.4.3.5 3.0 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2 2.0-2.2	Austria	38.5	34.8-42.1	53.5	48.1–58.8	23.6	19.2-28.0	34.6	29.6-39.7	41.9	36.6-47.2	27.0	22.2–31.7
beigun 33.7 30.1-3/2 49.6 44.3-50 17.5 13.6-216 45.4 40.5-02 65.7 60.6-70.8 24.2 19.6-24.8 Bomicagonal 6.5 47-84 12.4 89-159 0.7 0.0-17 21.0 16.7-253 28.5 23.7-33.4 12.8 9.2-13.3 Bouigaia 119 9.4-14.3 22.3 17.9-67 1.5 0.2-2.8 24.1-33.6 28.6 3.3-43.8 1.6 1.5 2.7 Corenk Pegunic 35.5 27.12.5 4.19 29.1-2.5 1.1 4.2-2.5 1.1 1.4 1.4 2.2 3.1 2.5-3.6 2.6 2.7.7.7 Extoma 24.8 21.5-28.0 1.4 3.2-2.7 3.5 3.8.41.9 4.4 4.0.52.8 2.1 3.0.5 Finnanc 23.8 21.5-28.0 1.4 10.7-1.8 3.8 4.2.9 2.8 2.1.9.1 3.8 3.2.7 3.8 3.1.9 3.2.3 3.1.0 3.2.3 3.2.2 3.8 <td>Azerbaijan</td> <td>10.3</td> <td>8.0-12.5</td> <td>19.9</td> <td>15.7–24.1</td> <td>1.2</td> <td>0.0–2.3</td> <td></td> <td>13.5-21.6</td> <td>24.3</td> <td>19.7–28.9</td> <td>10.5</td> <td>7.2–13.8</td>	Azerbaijan	10.3	8.0-12.5	19.9	15.7–24.1	1.2	0.0–2.3		13.5-21.6	24.3	19.7–28.9	10.5	7.2–13.8
Bensia and Herzegowi 6.5 A.7.84 124 8.9-15.9 0.7 0.0-1.7 12.0 15.7-25.3 28.5 23.7-33.4 12.8 9.2-13.3 Belgaria 11.9 9.4-14.3 22.3 1.79-26.7 1.5 0.2-2.8 28.8 2.1-3.6 3.6 3.3-43.8 1.6 1.5 Cypus 25.4 2.2-2.8 4.2 3.2-3.75 7.1 4.3-9.8 2.6 2.5-3.28 3.1 2.5-3.25 4.1 3.62-3.6 2.6-3.62 2.6 2.7-7.4 Cech Republic 24.3 2.5-3.25 4.1 3.62-4.6 1.6 1.6-1.22 5.0 3.6-3.63 2.6 2.6-3.73 4.6 2.6-2.8 2.6 2.7-3.7 Finand 24.3 2.5-3.25 4.14 3.60-4.7 1.6 1.2-4.20 2.6 4.6-3.7 4.6 4.6-3.7 4.6 4.6-3.7 4.6 4.6-3.7 4.6 4.6-3.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 <td< td=""><td>Belarus</td><td>26.5</td><td>23.2–29.9</td><td>47.6</td><td>42.3-52.9</td><td>7.2</td><td>4.5-10.0</td><td>33.5</td><td></td><td>44.0</td><td></td><td>22.3</td><td>17.9–26.8</td></td<>	Belarus	26.5	23.2–29.9	47.6	42.3-52.9	7.2	4.5-10.0	33.5		44.0		22.3	17.9–26.8
Herzegovina 6.5 4.7-8.4 12.4 6.7-10 0.0 1.0	Belgium	33.7	30.1–37.2	49.6	44.3–55.0	17.6	13.6-21.6	45.4	40.5–50.2	65.7	60.6–70.8	24.2	19.6–28.8
Contaia1199.4-1.4322.317.9-2.671.50.2-2.828.824.1-3.6.38.63.3-4.3.818.714.5-22.9Cypus25.422.1-2.8.642.437.2-4.7.57.14.3-9.829.625.4-3.3.85.046.6-57.45.02.7-7.4Crech Rupblic36.532.9-0.254.549.2-58.818.114.1-22.028.023.2-3.2.831.326.3-3.6.324.620.0-29.2Denmark24.825.7-3.2.541.966.416.012.69.881.9-19.642.737.5-47.952.246.9-57.632.621.5-37.7Estonia24.825.7-3.36.544.363.2-6.014.863.2-6.3031.867.3-6.837.232.0-42.426.321.5-31.0France29.826.4-3.3.345.440.2-50.614.410.7-18.148.543.2-53.950.745.3-56.046.340.9-51.6Germary31.310.7-15.819.115.0-25.316.814.7-22.924.520.9-39.345.921.9-39.345.940.9-51.6Gerea33.600.5-17.410.0-27.350.645.551.847.5-56.441.135.8-6.414.9Hugay25.422.1-28.744.439.9-39.211.07.7-14.446.240.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.135.8-6.4Hugay25.528.837.1-1519.219.315.2-25.531.326.4-36.145.945.2		6.5	4.7–8.4	12.4	8.9–15.9	0.7	0.0–1.7	21.0	16.7–25.3	28.5	23.7–33.4	12.8	9.2–16.3
Cypns 254 21286 42.4 37.2-47.5 7.1 4.3-98 296 25.4-38.8 5.0 6.5-7.4 5.0 2.7-7.4 Czech Republic 36.5 32.9-40.2 5.45 92.69.8 18.1 1.41-20. 28.0 23.2-38.8 13.1 26.3-36.8 22.4 4.5.9 2.6.7 2.5.8 Denmark 25.7 23.23 6.14 6.0-12.2 8.0 3.1.4.19 4.7.4 2.0.2.8 2.0.	Bulgaria	18.9	16.0-21.9	28.0	23.2-32.8	9.6	6.5-12.7	26.9	22.4-31.3	42.3	37.0-47.7	10.6	7.3–13.9
Czech Republic 36.5 32.9-402 54.5 49.2-598 18.1 14.1-220 28.0 23.2-328 31.3 25.3-36.3 24.6 20.0-292 Denmark 29.1 25.7-32.5 41.9 36.9-47.0 15.8 11.9-196 42.7 37.5-47.9 52.2 46.9-57.6 32.6 27.6-37.7 Estonia 28.8 21.5-28.0 41.4 36.2-46.6 9.1 6.0-12.2 36.9 31.8-41.9 47.4 42.0-52.8 25.0 21.0-35. Finland 35.9 32.3-39.6 53.6 48.3-58.9 17.9 13.9-22.0 31.8 26.9-33.8 40.9-51.6 600-3.0 41.9-55.8 63.1 57.9-68.3 40.9-51.6 Georgia 9.3 10.7-15.8 21.3 17.0-25.6 50.0 2.7-7.3 50.6 45.5-58.8 63.1 57.9-68.3 7.5.9 2.2-4.91.9 13.3 16.4 16.9-16.0 Georgia 30.6 30.0-37.1 48.2 49.9-51.5 11.4 57.5.6 16.2-27.7 13.8	Croatia	11.9	9.4-14.3	22.3	17.9–26.7	1.5	0.2-2.8	28.8	24.1-33.6	38.6	33.3-43.8	18.7	14.5-22.9
Denmark 29.1 25.7-32.5 41.9 36.9-47.0 15.8 11.9-196 42.7 37.5-47.9 52.2 46.9-57.6 32.6 27.6-73.7 Estonia 24.8 21.5-280 41.4 362-466 9.1 6.0-12.2 36.9 31.8-41.9 47.4 42.0-52.8 25.0 21.3-30.6 Finand 25.9 26.4-33.3 45.4 402-50.6 14.4 10.7-18.1 48.5 432-53.9 50.7 45.3-60.0 45.3 40.9-51.6 Georga 33.3 10.7-15.8 21.3 17.0-25.8 50.0 2.7-7.3 50.6 45.5-55.8 63.1 57.9-8.3 31.3 1.5-2.42.9 Greece 33.6 30.3-7.1 45.4 42.9-3.5.5 18.8 14.7-12.9 2.50 2.0-2.90 34.2 2.9-3.8.3 31.4 1.5-1.4 Hugary 25.4 2.1-28.7 44.4 30.9-49.7 7.6 4.8-1.4 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0	Cyprus	25.4	22.1-28.6	42.4	37.2-47.5	7.1	4.3–9.8	29.6	25.4-33.8	52.0	46.6-57.4	5.0	2.7–7.4
Estonia24821.5-28.41.436.2-46.69.16.0-1236.931.8-41.947.442.0-52.825.821.1-305Finland35.932.3-39.653.648.3-58.917.913.9-22.031.826.9-36.837.232.0-42.426.321.5-31.0France29.826.4-33.345.440.2-50.614.410.7-18.148.543.2-53.960.745.3-56.046.340.9-51.6Gernany13.310.7-15.817.015.0-23.30.60.0-1.416.212.4-20.025.620.9-33.361.332.3-47.7Greece33.630.0-37.148.242.9-53.518.814.7-22.924.520.0-29.034.223.3-39.314.310.5-18.0Indgary25.421.2-8744.439.0-49.77.648.10.423.913.928.227.123.3-31.415.2-24.9Iceland20.917.744.439.0-49.77.648.10.423.913.928.621.123.410.5-18.0Israel7.55.9.512.69.1-16.22.40.8-1113.113.214.355.461.155.451.145.741.155.451.145.741.155.451.145.741.155.451.145.741.155.451.145.741.155.451.145.745.441.745.441.745.445.445.445.445.445.44	Czech Republic	36.5	32.9-40.2	54.5	49.2-59.8	18.1	14.1-22.0	28.0	23.2-32.8	31.3	26.3-36.3	24.6	20.0-29.2
Finland35.935.935.648.3 - 8.917.913.9 -2.031.826.9 -3.837.232.0 -4.226.321.5 -1.0France29.826.4 -3.345.440.2 - 5.014.410.7 - 18.148.543.2 - 5.350.745.3 - 5.046.340.9 - 5.1Georgia3.37.1 - 11.519.115.0 - 23.30.60.0 - 1.416.212.4 - 20.025.620.9 - 3.36.94.1 - 9.6Germany13.310.7 - 1.817.0 - 25.65.02.7 - 7.350.645.5 5.863.157.9 - 8.37.552.3 - 42.7Greec33.630.0 - 37.148.242.9 - 53.518.814.7 - 22.924.52023.034.221.3 - 3.110.5 - 18.1Hungary25.422.1 - 28.744.430.9 -39.211.07.1 - 14.446.240.9 -51.551.145.7 - 5.411.5 - 28.3Iceland26.552.82.841.5 - 51.912.69.1 - 16.213.315.2 - 28.531.32.6 - 48.115.113.2 - 28.513.445.2 - 48.516.2 - 28.5Israel7.55.5 - 5.12.69.1 - 16.213.410.1 - 13.1 - 18.918.514.2 - 27.113.02.6 - 36.114.516.2 - 28.5Israel7.75.7 - 9.714.710.9 - 18.513.00.1 - 2.513.414.2 - 22.424.420.42.0 - 16.212.4Israel7.65.6 - 5.614.510.8 - 18.311.0 -	Denmark	29.1	25.7-32.5	41.9	36.9-47.0	15.8	11.9–19.6	42.7	37.5-47.9	52.2	46.9-57.6	32.6	27.6-37.7
France29.826.4-33.345.440.2-50.614.410.7-18.148.543.2-53.950.745.3-50.946.340.9-51.6Georgia9.37.1-11.519.115.0-23.30.60.0-1416.212.4-20.025.620.9-30.36.94.1-9.6Germany13.310.7-15.821.317.0-25.65.02.7-7.350.645.5-55.863.157.9-68.337.532.3-42.7Greece33.630.0-37.148.242.9-53.518.814.7-2.224.520.0-29.034.229.1-39.314.310.5-18.0Hungary25.422.1-28.744.439.0-977.64.8-10.42.39193-28.57.12.2-3.1.920.516.2-24.9Iceland36.532.8-40.133.848.5-59.119.315.2-23.531.320.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.135.8-46.4Israel7.55.5-9.512.69.1-16.22.40.8-1.111.3-18.918.514.3-2.711.58.1-5.0Israel7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.513.30.1-2.62.3419.0-2.7931.92.6-9.614.610.8-18.4Kyrgystan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.311.10.0-2.318.314.2-2.4 <td>Estonia</td> <td>24.8</td> <td>21.5-28.0</td> <td>41.4</td> <td>36.2-46.6</td> <td>9.1</td> <td>6.0-12.2</td> <td>36.9</td> <td>31.8-41.9</td> <td>47.4</td> <td>42.0-52.8</td> <td>25.8</td> <td>21.1-30.5</td>	Estonia	24.8	21.5-28.0	41.4	36.2-46.6	9.1	6.0-12.2	36.9	31.8-41.9	47.4	42.0-52.8	25.8	21.1-30.5
Georgia9.37.1-11.519.115.0-23.30.60.0-1.416.212.4-20.025.62.0-3.36.94.1-9.6Germany13.310.7-15.821.317.0-25.65.02.7-7.35.0645.5-55.86.3157.9-68.337.532.3-42.7Greece33.630.0-37.148.242.9-53.518.814.7-22.924.520.0-29.034.229.1-33.110.516.2Ieland22.919.7-26.134.329.3-32.211.07.7-14.46.240.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.135.8-64.4Ireland36.532.8-40.153.848.5-9119.315.2-35.531.326.4-36.141.536.2-48.820.616.3-25.0Israel7.55.5-9512.69.1-16.22.40.8-41.115.1111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.581.1-50.1Italy4.73.1-638.85.7-11.80.60.0-1.40.2316.0-2.731.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Korgyztan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.511.10.12.313.314.2-2.713.00.16.10.8-18.4Lutvia21.614.5-2.410.913.10.1-2.623.416.0-2.427.427.427.417.515.2-169.4Latvia26.53.1.40.450.445.2-55724.310.7-2.810.414.225.713.2-1614.1Latvia26.5	Finland	35.9	32.3-39.6	53.6	48.3-58.9	17.9	13.9-22.0	31.8	26.9-36.8	37.2	32.0-42.4	26.3	21.5-31.0
Germany13.310.7-15821.317.0-25.65.02.7-7.350.645.5-55.863.157.9-68.337.532.3-42.7Greece33.630.0-37.148.242.9-53.518.814.7-22.924.520.0-29.034.229.1-39.314.310.5-18.0Hungary25.422.1-28.744.439.0-49.77.64.8-10.423.919.3-28.57.122.3-31.920.516.2-24.9Iceland22.919.7-26.134.329.3-39.211.07.7-14.446.240.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.158.46.4Ireland36.532.8-40.153.848.5-59.119.315.2-35.531.326.4-36.141.536.2-46.820.616.3-25.0Israel7.55.5-9.512.69.1-16.22.40.8-1.115.111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.58.1-15.0Italy4.73.1-6.38.85.7-11.80.60.0-1.420.316.0-24.527.222.4-31.913.09.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.513.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgystan7.65.6-9.616.310.8-18.311.00.1-2.931.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.813.49.416.214.913.414.1<	France	29.8	26.4-33.3	45.4	40.2-50.6	14.4	10.7-18.1	48.5	43.2-53.9	50.7	45.3-56.0	46.3	40.9-51.6
Greece 33.6 3037.1 48.2 42.9-53.5 18.8 14.7-2.9 24.5 20.0-29.0 34.2 21-33.7 14.3 10.5-18.0 Hungary 25.4 22.1-287 44.4 30.0-49.7 7.6 4.8-10.4 23.9 19.7-26.1 34.3 29.3-39.2 11.0 7.7-14.4 46.2 40.9-51.5 51.1 45.7-56.4 41.1 35.8-46.4 Ireland 36.5 32.8-01.0 53.8 48.5-59.1 19.3 15.2-23.5 31.3 26.4-36.1 41.5 36.2-46.8 20.6 16.3-25.0 Israel 7.5 5.5-9.5 12.6 9.1-16.2 2.4 0.8-41.1 11.3 11.3-18.9 18.5 14.3-22.7 11.5 8.1-16.0 Kazakhstan 7.7 5.7-9.7 14.7 10.9-18.5 1.3 0.1-2.6 2.4 10.9-17.9 14.9 10.8-18.3 11.4 0.72.9 14.9 14.1 7.7.0 14.7 14.4 14.7 14.4 14.7 14.4 14.9.4 10.1-1	Georgia	9.3	7.1–11.5	19.1	15.0-23.3	0.6	0.0–1.4	16.2	12.4-20.0	25.6	20.9–30.3	6.9	4.1–9.6
Hungary25422.1-28.744.439.0-49.77.64.8-10423.919.3-28.57.12.12.3-31.92.0.516.2-24.9lceland22.919.7-26.134.329.3-32.11.07.7-14.446.240.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.15.8-46.4lreland36.532.8-40.153.848.5-59.119.315.2-23.531.326.4-36.141.536.2-46.820.616.3-25.0lsrael7.55.5-9.512.69.1-16.22.40.8-4.111.111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.58.1-15.0ltay4.73.1-6.38.85.7-11.80.60.0-1.420.316.0-24.57.22.4-31.913.09.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgystan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-2.425.420.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Ltavia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-30.113.49.9-31.513.49.8-17.117.513.5-21.69.26.1-12.3Ltavia23.623.1-40.450.452.55.724.319.7-28.924.516.0-21.729.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.5Ltavia36.633.1-40.450.455.0-5.721.319.227.3-31.236.024.4-31.317.213.	Germany	13.3	10.7-15.8	21.3	17.0-25.6	5.0	2.7–7.3	50.6	45.5-55.8	63.1	57.9–68.3	37.5	32.3-42.7
Iceland22.919.7-26.34.329.3-39.211.07.7-14.446.240.9-51.551.145.7-56.441.135.8-46.4Ireland36.532.8-40.153.848.5-59.119.315.2-3.531.326.4-36.141.535.2-46.820.616.3-25.0Israel7.55.5-9.512.69.1-1622.40.8-41.115.111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.58.1-15.0Italy4.73.1-6.38.885.7-11.80.60.0-1.42.0316.0-24.52.7222.4-31.913.09.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kygyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-22.425.420.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Luwanbourg23.820.5-27.731.926.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.416.0-24.723.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.69.26.1-12.3Luwanbourg23.820.5-27.733.33143.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-31.136.431.2-41.521.97.7-56.3Monaco <td>Greece</td> <td>33.6</td> <td>30.0-37.1</td> <td>48.2</td> <td>42.9-53.5</td> <td>18.8</td> <td>14.7-22.9</td> <td>24.5</td> <td>20.0–29.0</td> <td>34.2</td> <td>29.1–39.3</td> <td>14.3</td> <td>10.5-18.0</td>	Greece	33.6	30.0-37.1	48.2	42.9-53.5	18.8	14.7-22.9	24.5	20.0–29.0	34.2	29.1–39.3	14.3	10.5-18.0
Ireland36.532.8-40.153.848.5-59.119.315.2-23.531.326.4-36.141.536.2-46.820.616.3-25.0Israel7.55.5-9.512.69.1-6.22.40.8-4.115.111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.58.1-15.0Italy4.73.1-6.38.885.7-11.80.60.0-1.420.316.0-24.527.22.4-31.910.08.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.92.6-9.6.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-22.42.5.42.0.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.8-17.117.513.5-16.9.26.1-2.3Lithuania36.73.1-40.450.445.2-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.722.918.4-27.421.01.5-2.63Mata26.523.2-29.833.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.91.7-5-2.63MonacoMontengro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.00.2-222.318.0-25.730.325.4-3.531.81.1-17.4Norway12.610.1-15	Hungary	25.4	22.1-28.7	44.4	39.0-49.7	7.6	4.8-10.4	23.9	19.3-28.5	27.1	22.3-31.9	20.5	16.2-24.9
Israel7.55.5-9.51.2.69.1-1622.40.8-4.115.111.3-18.918.514.3-22.711.58.1-15.0Italy4.73.1-6.38.885.7-11.80.60.0-1.420.316.0-24.527.222.4-31.913.09.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-22.425.420.7-30.911.17.7-14.4Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.531.49.8-17.117.513.5-21.69.26.1-21.3Lithuania36.731.44.450.445.2-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.722.918.4-27.421.713.6-21.621.2Mata26.523.2-29.833.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.917.5-26.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.135.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.238.032.8-35.331.431.1-17.4MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.222.318.0-25.723.430.325.4-33.331.4Norway12.613.4 <td>Iceland</td> <td>22.9</td> <td>19.7–26.1</td> <td>34.3</td> <td>29.3–39.2</td> <td>11.0</td> <td>7.7–14.4</td> <td>46.2</td> <td>40.9–51.5</td> <td>51.1</td> <td>45.7–56.4</td> <td>41.1</td> <td>35.8-46.4</td>	Iceland	22.9	19.7–26.1	34.3	29.3–39.2	11.0	7.7–14.4	46.2	40.9–51.5	51.1	45.7–56.4	41.1	35.8-46.4
Italy4.73.1-6.38.85.7-1.180.60.0-1.420.316.0-24.527.222.4-31.913.09.4-16.6Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.81.10.0-2.381.814.2-22.425.420.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.8-17.17.513.5-21.69.26.1-12.3Lithuania36.73.1-0.450.445.2-5.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.72.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.8Luxemborg23.820.5-27.038.33.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.52.1.917.5-6.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.135.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.23.8.032.8-43.22.6.121.4-30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.222.318.0-2.67.53.0.325.4-3.53.1.81.1.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-2.375.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.824.421.6-31.116.22.2.8Polad5.43.	Ireland	36.5	32.8-40.1	53.8	48.5-59.1	19.3	15.2-23.5	31.3	26.4-36.1	41.5	36.2-46.8	20.6	16.3-25.0
Kazakhstan7.75.7-9.714.710.9-18.51.30.1-2.623.419.0-27.931.926.9-36.914.610.8-18.4Kyrgyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-22.425.420.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.8-17.117.513.5-21.69.26.1-12.3Lithuania36.733.1-40.450.445.2-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.720.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.8Luxembourg23.820.5-27.038.333.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.917.5-26.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.130.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.238.032.8-43.226.121.4-30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.250.245.1-55.266.761.7-11.832.927.8-37.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-25.1Potad5.43.7-7.110.37.0-1.55.60.1-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-25.5Potad	Israel	7.5	5.5–9.5	12.6	9.1–16.2	2.4	0.8-4.1	15.1	11.3-18.9	18.5	14.3-22.7	11.5	8.1-15.0
Kyrgyzstan7.65.6-9.614.510.8-18.31.10.0-2.318.314.2-22.425.420.7-30.011.17.7-14.4Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.8-17.117.513.5-21.69.26.1-12.3Lithuania36.733.1-40.450.4452-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.722.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.8Luxembourg23.820.5-27.038.333.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.917.5-26.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.135.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.238.032.8-43.226.121.4-30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.250.245.1-55.266.761.7-71.832.927.8-37.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-25.5Potugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.3-37.825.520.830.113.212.	Italy	4.7	3.1-6.3	8.8	5.7-11.8	0.6	0.0-1.4	20.3	16.0-24.5	27.2	22.4-31.9	13.0	9.4-16.6
Latvia21.618.5-24.731.026.1-36.012.99.3-16.513.49.8-17.117.513.5-21.69.26.1-12.3Lithuania36.733.1-40.450.445.2-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.722.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.8Luxembourg23.820.5-27.038.333.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.917.5-26.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.135.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.238.032.8-43.226.121.4-30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.411.10.0-2.220.318.0-26.730.325.4-35.313.810.1-17.4Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.752.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.7-37.825.520.8-30.7Norway12.610.414.3-24.514.310.2-12.521.417.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Poland5.4 <th< td=""><td>Kazakhstan</td><td>7.7</td><td>5.7–9.7</td><td>14.7</td><td>10.9-18.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>0.1–2.6</td><td>23.4</td><td>19.0-27.9</td><td>31.9</td><td>26.9–36.9</td><td>14.6</td><td>10.8-18.4</td></th<>	Kazakhstan	7.7	5.7–9.7	14.7	10.9-18.5	1.3	0.1–2.6	23.4	19.0-27.9	31.9	26.9–36.9	14.6	10.8-18.4
Lithuania36.733.1-40.450.445.2-55.724.319.7-28.920.416.0-24.722.918.4-27.417.713.6-21.8Luxembourg23.820.5-27.038.333.1-43.49.06.0-12.129.324.5-34.136.431.2-41.521.917.5-26.3Mata26.523.2-29.840.135.0-45.212.38.9-15.832.227.3-37.238.032.8-43.226.121.4-30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.222.318.0-26.730.325.4-35.313.810.1-17.4Netherlands6.34.5-8.211.58.1-14.91.10.0-2.250.245.1-55.266.761.7-11.832.927.8-37.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.130.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4R	Kyrgyzstan	7.6	5.6-9.6	14.5	10.8-18.3	1.1	0.0–2.3	18.3	14.2-22.4	25.4	20.7-30.0	11.1	7.7–14.4
Luxembourg23.820.5–27.038.333.1–43.49.06.0–12.129.324.5–34.136.431.2–41.521.917.5–26.3Malta26.523.2–29.840.135.0–45.212.38.9–15.832.227.3–37.238.032.8–43.226.121.4–30.9Monaco	Latvia	21.6	18.5–24.7	31.0	26.1-36.0	12.9	9.3–16.5	13.4	9.8–17.1	17.5	13.5-21.6	9.2	6.1–12.3
Malta26.523.2–29.840.135.0–45.212.38.9–15.832.227.3–37.238.032.8–43.226.121.4–30.9MonacoMontenegro7.45.4–9.413.810.1–17.411.10.0–2.228.75.116.713.813.813.113.113.212.213.113.212.213.113.212.213.113.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.213.2 <td>Lithuania</td> <td>36.7</td> <td>33.1-40.4</td> <td>50.4</td> <td>45.2-55.7</td> <td>24.3</td> <td>19.7–28.9</td> <td>20.4</td> <td>16.0-24.7</td> <td>22.9</td> <td>18.4-27.4</td> <td>17.7</td> <td>13.6-21.8</td>	Lithuania	36.7	33.1-40.4	50.4	45.2-55.7	24.3	19.7–28.9	20.4	16.0-24.7	22.9	18.4-27.4	17.7	13.6-21.8
Monaco <th< td=""><td>Luxembourg</td><td>23.8</td><td>20.5–27.0</td><td>38.3</td><td>33.1-43.4</td><td>9.0</td><td>6.0–12.1</td><td>29.3</td><td>24.5-34.1</td><td>36.4</td><td>31.2-41.5</td><td>21.9</td><td>17.5–26.3</td></th<>	Luxembourg	23.8	20.5–27.0	38.3	33.1-43.4	9.0	6.0–12.1	29.3	24.5-34.1	36.4	31.2-41.5	21.9	17.5–26.3
Montenegro7.45.4-9.413.810.1-17.41.10.0-2.222.318.0-26.730.325.4-35.313.810.1-17.4Netherlands6.34.5-8.211.58.1-14.91.10.0-2.250.245.1-55.266.761.7-71.832.927.8-37.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.7-37.825.520.8-30.2Republic of Moldova32.228.7-35.849.143.9-54.416.512.5-20.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4Russian Federation19.316.3-22.329.624.7-34.59.96.7-13.129.825.0-34.639.834.5-45.019.515.2-23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6-9.614.010.3-17.71.10.0-2.226.822.2-31.536.231.0-41.317.213.1-21.2	Malta	26.5	23.2-29.8	40.1	35.0-45.2	12.3	8.9-15.8	32.2	27.3-37.2	38.0	32.8-43.2	26.1	21.4-30.9
Netherlands6.34.5-8.211.58.1-14.91.10.0-2.250.245.1-55.266.761.7-71.832.927.8-37.9Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Republic of Moldova32.228.7-35.849.143.9-54.416.512.5-20.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4Russian Federation19.316.3-22.329.624.7-34.59.96.7-13.129.825.0-34.639.834.5-45.019.515.2-23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6-9.614.010.3-17.71.10.0-2.226.822.2-31.536.231.0-41.317.213.1-21.2	Monaco	—	—	—	—	—	—		—	—	—	—	—
Norway12.610.1-15.119.515.4-23.75.22.8-7.621.417.1-25.826.421.6-31.116.212.2-20.1Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.7-37.825.520.8-30.2Republic of Moldova32.228.7-35.849.143.9-54.416.512.5-20.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4Russian Federation19.316.3-22.329.624.7-34.59.96.7-13.129.825.0-34.639.834.5-45.019.515.2-23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6-9.614.010.3-17.71.10.0-2.226.822.2-31.536.231.0-41.317.213.1-21.2	Montenegro	7.4	5.4-9.4	13.8	10.1-17.4	1.1	0.0-2.2	22.3	18.0-26.7	30.3	25.4-35.3	13.8	10.1-17.4
Poland5.43.7-7.110.37.0-13.50.60.0-1.521.717.3-26.124.920.3-29.618.414.2-22.5Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.7-37.825.520.8-30.2Republic of Moldova32.228.7-35.849.143.9-54.416.512.5-20.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4Russian Federation19.316.3-22.329.624.7-34.59.96.7-13.129.825.0-34.639.834.5-45.019.515.2-23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6-9.614.010.3-17.71.10.0-2.226.822.2-31.536.231.0-41.317.213.1-21.2	Netherlands	6.3	4.5-8.2	11.5	8.1-14.9	1.1	0.0-2.2	50.2	45.1-55.2	66.7	61.7-71.8	32.9	27.8–37.9
Portugal19.416.4-22.430.025.1-34.99.46.3-12.529.224.3-34.132.827.7-37.825.520.8-30.2Republic of Moldova32.228.7-35.849.143.9-54.416.512.5-20.522.418.1-26.830.825.8-35.714.010.3-17.7Romania7.95.8-9.914.510.7-18.21.20.0-2.437.732.9-42.655.450.1-60.819.215.0-23.4Russian Federation19.316.3-22.329.624.7-34.59.96.7-13.129.825.0-34.639.834.5-45.019.515.2-23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6-9.614.010.3-17.71.10.0-2.226.822.2-31.536.231.0-41.317.213.1-21.2	Norway	12.6	10.1-15.1	19.5	15.4-23.7	5.2	2.8-7.6	21.4	17.1-25.8	26.4	21.6-31.1	16.2	12.2-20.1
Republic of Moldova32.228.7–35.849.143.9–54.416.512.5–20.522.418.1–26.830.825.8–35.714.010.3–17.7Romania7.95.8–9.914.510.7–18.21.20.0–2.437.732.9–42.655.450.1–60.819.215.0–23.4Russian Federation19.316.3–22.329.624.7–34.59.96.7–13.129.825.0–34.639.834.5–45.019.515.2–23.7San Marino———————————Serbia7.65.6–9.614.010.3–17.71.10.0–2.226.822.2–31.536.231.0–41.317.213.1–21.2	Poland	5.4	3.7-7.1	10.3	7.0-13.5	0.6	0.0-1.5	21.7	17.3-26.1	24.9	20.3-29.6	18.4	14.2-22.5
Romania7.95.8–9.914.510.7–18.21.20.0–2.437.732.9–42.655.450.1–60.819.215.0–23.4Russian Federation19.316.3–22.329.624.7–34.59.96.7–13.129.825.0–34.639.834.5–45.019.515.2–23.7San MarinoSerbia7.65.6–9.614.010.3–17.71.10.0–2.226.822.2–31.536.231.0–41.317.213.1–21.2	Portugal	19.4	16.4-22.4	30.0	25.1-34.9	9.4	6.3-12.5	29.2	24.3-34.1	32.8	27.7-37.8	25.5	20.8-30.2
Russian Federation 19.3 16.3–22.3 29.6 24.7–34.5 9.9 6.7–13.1 29.8 25.0–34.6 39.8 34.5–45.0 19.5 15.2–23.7 San Marino	Republic of Moldova	32.2	28.7-35.8	49.1	43.9-54.4	16.5	12.5-20.5	22.4	18.1-26.8	30.8	25.8-35.7	14.0	10.3-17.7
Russian Federation 19.3 16.3–22.3 29.6 24.7–34.5 9.9 6.7–13.1 29.8 25.0–34.6 39.8 34.5–45.0 19.5 15.2–23.7 San Marino	Romania	7.9	5.8-9.9	14.5	10.7-18.2	1.2	0.0-2.4	37.7	32.9-42.6	55.4	50.1-60.8	19.2	15.0-23.4
Serbia 7.6 5.6–9.6 14.0 10.3–17.7 1.1 0.0–2.2 26.8 22.2–31.5 36.2 31.0–41.3 17.2 13.1–21.2	Russian Federation	19.3	16.3-22.3	29.6	24.7-34.5	9.9	6.7–13.1	29.8	25.0-34.6	39.8	34.5-45.0	19.5	
Serbia 7.6 5.6–9.6 14.0 10.3–17.7 1.1 0.0–2.2 26.8 22.2–31.5 36.2 31.0–41.3 17.2 13.1–21.2	San Marino	_	—	_	—	—	_	_	—	_	—	—	—
	Serbia		5.6-9.6		10.3-17.7		0.0-2.2		22.2-31.5		31.0-41.3	17.2	13.1-21.2
	Slovakia			41.4	36.1-46.7		8.4-15.1		21.2-30.5	34.3	29.2-39.4		13.0-21.0

		Age-standa	ardized HE	D, 15+ years	population			HE	D, 15–19 y	ears populat	ion	
EUR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Slovenia	7.8	5.8–9.9	14.0	10.3-17.7	1.2	0.0–2.4	28.9	24.2-33.7	38.6	33.4–43.8	18.7	14.5-22.9
Spain	13.2	10.6-15.7	20.3	16.0-24.6	5.9	3.4-8.4	28.4	23.7-33.1	37.9	32.7-43.2	18.3	14.1-22.4
Sweden	24.3	21.1-27.6	36.3	31.2-41.3	11.8	8.4–15.3	25.1	20.6–29.7	33.9	28.8-39.0	15.8	11.9–19.7
Switzerland	19.1	16.2-22.1	28.4	23.6-33.1	9.7	6.5-12.8	29.4	24.7-34.2	39.2	34.0-44.5	19.1	14.9-23.3
Tajikistan	1.0	0.2-1.7	1.9	0.4-3.3	0.1	0.0-0.3	16.4	12.5-20.3	22.8	18.3–27.3	9.7	6.6-12.9
The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	6.6	4.7-8.4	12.3	8.8–15.8	0.7	0.0–1.6	20.2	16.0-24.4	27.7	22.9–32.5	12.3	8.8–15.8
Turkey	0.2	0.0-0.5	0.3	0.0-1.0	0.0	0.0-0.2	17.8	13.8–21.8	24.7	20.1–29.3	10.7	7.4–14.0
Turkmenistan	11.6	9.2-14.0	23.5	19.0-28.0	0.4	0.0-1.0	18.2	14.2-22.3	25.3	20.6-30.0	11.0	7.7–14.4
Ukraine	23.2	20.0-26.4	35.6	30.5-40.7	11.8	8.3–15.2	25.8	21.2-30.4	34.8	29.7–39.9	16.3	12.4-20.3
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	27.1	23.7–30.4	37.2	32.1–42.4	16.8	12.8–20.7	40.5	35.4–45.6	52.0	46.6–57.4	28.4	23.6–33.2
Uzbekistan	10.2	7.9–12.5	20.4	16.1-24.7	0.4	0.0–1.0	18.4	14.3-22.5	25.4	20.7-30.1	11.1	7.7–14.5
		Age-standardized HED, 15+ years population						HED, 15–19 years population				
--	---------------	--	-------	----------	---------	---------	---------------	-----------------------------	-------	---------	---------	---------
SEAR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Bangladesh	0.0	0.0–0.2	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1
Bhutan	0.7	0.1–1.3	1.2	0.0-2.4	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.1	0.0-0.4
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	4.3	2.8–5.8	8.8	5.7–11.8	0.1	0.0–0.3	0.2	0.0–0.7	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.1	0.0–0.4
India	1.6	0.7–2.6	3.2	1.3-5.0	0.0	0.0-0.2	1.6	0.3–3.0	3.1	1.2-5.0	0.0	0.0-0.2
Indonesia	2.4	1.2-3.6	4.6	2.3-6.8	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.0	0.0-0.1
Maldives	0.4	0.0-0.8	0.7	0.0-1.6	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.0	0.0-0.1
Myanmar	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.0	0.0-0.1	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.2	0.0-0.8	0.1	0.0-0.4
Nepal	0.4	0.0-0.9	0.8	0.0-1.8	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.1	0.0-0.4
Sri Lanka	0.4	0.0–0.9	0.8	0.0-1.8	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.1	0.0-0.4
Thailand	1.1	0.3–1.9	2.3	0.7–3.8	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.2	0.0-0.8	0.4	0.0-1.0	0.1	0.0-0.5
Timor—Leste	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.0	0.0-0.0	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.1	0.0-0.4

CI, confidence intervals.

		Age-standa	ardized HE	D, 15+ years	population		HED, 15–19 years population					
WPR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI
Australia	10.1	7.8–12.4	17.5	13.4-21.5	2.7	1.0-4.3	19.6	15.3-23.8	22.7	18.2-27.2	16.2	12.2-20.2
Brunei Darussalam	0.5	0.0-1.1	0.9	0.0-1.9	0.1	0.0-0.4	15.2	11.4–19.0	22.4	17.9-26.9	7.5	4.7–10.4
Cambodia	1.2	0.4-2.1	2.4	0.7-4.0	0.2	0.0-0.4	9.9	6.7–13.1	14.8	11.0-18.6	4.7	2.4-7.0
China	7.5	5.5-9.5	13.9	10.2-17.6	0.2	0.0-1.6	12.0	8.6-15.5	17.7	13.6-21.8	5.7	3.2-8.2
Cook Islands							12.7	9.2–16.2	18.8	14.6-23.0	6.1	3.6-8.7
Fiii	10.0	7.7–12.2	16.7	12.8-20.7	2.9	1.1-4.7	20.7	16.3-25.0	25.1	20.4-29.8	16.0	12.0-19.9
Japan	18.4	15.4-21.3	30.0	25.1-34.8	6.6	3.9–9.2	16.8	12.9–20.7	24.7	20.0-29.3	8.5	5.5-11.5
Kiribati	2.4	1.2-3.5	4.4	2.2-6.6	0.3	0.0-0.8	9.4	6.3-12.5	14.1	10.3-17.8	4.4	2.2-6.6
Lao People's Democratic Republic	14.1	11.4–16.7	23.5	19.1–27.9	5.2	2.8–7.5	11.8	8.4–15.2	17.7	13.6–21.8	5.7	3.2–8.2
Malaysia	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.6	0.0-1.4	0.0	0.0-0.2	10.2	7.0-13.5	15.7	11.8-19.6	5.0	2.7-7.4
Marshall Islands	_	_	_	_	_	—	_	_	_	—	_	—
Micronesia (Federated States of)	11.4	9.0–13.8	19.5	15.3–23.7	3.1	1.2-4.9	10.1	6.9–13.3	15.1	11.3–18.9	4.8	2.5–7.1
Mongolia	26.6	23.2–29.9	40.2	35.0-45.3	13.6	9.9–17.2	9.5	6.4-12.6	14.3	10.5-18.0	4.6	2.3-6.8
Nauru	_	_	_	_	—		9.1	6.1-12.2	13.7	10.0-17.4	4.3	2.1-6.5
New Zealand	4.3	2.8-5.9	7.8	4.9-10.7	0.9	0.0-1.9	17.8	13.8-21.8	26.1	21.4-30.8	9.1	6.0-12.2
Niue	—	—	_	—	—		20.1	16.0-24.3	30.9	25.9-35.8	8.6	5.6-11.7
Palau	—	—	—	—	—	—	15.3	11.5-19.1	22.6	18.1–27.1	7.6	4.8-10.5
Papua New Guinea	8.7	6.5-10.8	15.9	12.0-19.8	1.2	0.0-2.4	18.0	13.9-22.0	25.0	20.4-29.7	10.5	7.2–13.8
Philippines	1.6	0.7–2.6	3.1	1.2-4.9	0.2	0.0-0.7	11.2	7.9–14.5	16.7	12.7–20.8	5.4	3.0-7.8
Republic of Korea	6.0	4.2-7.8	12.0	8.5-15.5	0.1	0.0-0.4	18.2	14.2-22.3	26.3	21.6-31.0	9.2	6.1–12.3
Samoa	15.8	13.0–18.5	27.9	23.1-32.6	2.7	0.9–4.4	10.5	7.3–13.8	15.6	11.7–19.5	5.0	2.6–7.3
Singapore	4.2	2.7-5.7	8.1	5.2-11.0	0.3	0.0-1.0	17.1	13.2-21.1	25.3	20.6-29.9	8.7	5.7-11.8
Solomon Islands	14.2	11.6-16.8	24.9	20.4–29.4	3.5	1.5–5.5	16.2	12.3–20.1	21.5	17.1–26.0	10.5	7.2–13.7
Tokelau	—	—	—	—	—		—	—	—	—	—	—
Tonga	6.2	4.4-8.0	11.0	7.7–14.3	1.5	0.2–2.8	9.6	6.5–12.8	14.5	10.7–18.2	4.6	2.3–6.8
Tuvalu	—	—	—	—	—	—	9.2	6.1–12.3	13.7	10.0-17.4	4.3	2.1-6.5
Vanuatu	6.5	4.6-8.3	10.5	7.3–13.8	2.4	0.8–4.0	9.3	6.3–12.4	14.3	10.5–18.1	4.5	2.3–6.7
Viet Nam	1.3	0.4-2.1	2.4	0.8-4.1	0.2	0.0-0.6	9.9	6.7–13.1	14.8	11.0-18.7	4.7	2.4-7.0

CI, confidence intervals.

APPENDIX II HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

 Table II.1 Prevalence of alcohol-use disorders (AUDs), alcohol dependence (AD) and harmful use of alcohol (HU), and alcohol-attributable fractions (AAFs) for deaths from all causes (in percent)

		Age	-standardized	prevalence of AU	IDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
AFR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Algeria	0.7	0.1–1.4	1.4	0.1–2.7	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	0.9
Angola	4.7	3.1–6.3	8.3	5.3-11.2	1.3	0.1–2.6	2.1	2.8	3.2
Benin	5.0	3.4–6.7	8.4	5.5-11.4	1.7	0.3–3.1	2.2	2.9	1.8
Botswana	5.6	3.8–7.3	9.6	6.5-12.8	1.5	0.2–2.8	2.5	3.3	3.9
Burkina Faso	1.4	0.5-2.3	2.7	1.0-4.5	0.2	0.0-0.7	0.7	0.8	3.4
Burundi	5.4	3.7–7.1	9.0	6.0-12.1	1.8	0.4–3.2	2.4	3.2	4.4
Cabo Verde	5.1	3.4–6.7	8.5	5.6-11.5	1.7	0.3–3.1	2.2	2.9	3.6
Cameroon	5.6	3.8–7.3	9.3	6.2-12.4	1.9	0.4-3.3	2.5	3.2	4.3
Central African Republic	3.0	1.7-4.3	5.4	3.0-7.8	0.7	0.0–1.6	1.3	1.7	1.8
Chad	0.7	0.1–1.3	1.4	0.1-2.6	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	2.3
Comoros	0.7	0.1–1.3	1.4	0.1-2.6	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	0.7
Congo	1.7	0.7–2.6	3.0	1.2-4.8	0.4	0.0-1.0	0.7	1.0	2.2
Côte d'Ivoire	7.9	5.9-10.0	12.2	8.7–15.7	3.3	1.4–5.2	3.5	4.6	3.6
Democratic Republic of the Congo	3.9	2.5–5.4	7.1	4.4–9.9	0.8	0.0–1.8	1.7	2.3	2.0
Equatorial Guinea	5.2	3.5-6.9	8.6	5.6-11.6	1.6	0.2-2.9	2.4	3.1	2.4
Eritrea	1.7	0.7–2.7	3.2	1.3-5.0	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.8	1.0	0.6
Ethiopia	2.1	1.0-3.2	3.6	1.6-5.6	0.6	0.0-1.5	0.9	1.2	3.2
Gabon	5.5	3.7–7.2	9.1	6.0-12.2	1.8	0.4–3.2	2.4	3.1	5.5
Gambia	0.9	0.2-1.6	1.7	0.3–3.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.7	0.2	2.5
Ghana	3.2	1.9-4.5	5.7	3.2-8.2	0.8	0.0–1.7	1.4	1.9	3.4
Guinea	0.7	0.1–1.3	1.4	0.1–2.6	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	1.0
Guinea-Bissau	0.9	0.2-1.6	1.7	0.3-3.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.7	0.2	1.8
Kenya	3.1	1.8-4.4	5.5	3.1-8.0	0.7	0.0-1.7	1.4	1.9	2.6
Lesotho	4.0	2.5-5.5	7.3	4.5-10.1	1.1	0.0-2.2	1.8	2.4	3.0
Liberia	4.1	2.6-5.6	7.2	4.4-9.9	1.0	0.0-2.1	1.8	2.4	3.0
Madagascar	2.0	1.0-3.1	3.7	1.7–5.7	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.9	1.2	2.4
Malawi	2.7	1.5-4.0	4.9	2.6-7.3	0.6	0.0–1.4	1.2	1.6	1.7
Mali	0.7	0.1-1.4	1.4	0.1–2.7	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	0.9
Mauritania	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.5	0.0–1.3	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.2	0.6
Mauritius	4.4	2.9-6.0	7.7	4.9-10.6	1.1	0.0-2.3	1.9	2.6	3.9
Mozambique	2.5	1.3–3.7	4.6	2.4-6.9	0.6	0.0-1.4	1.1	1.5	1.3
Namibia	4.9	3.3-6.5	8.5	5.5-11.5	1.7	0.3-3.1	2.2	2.9	6.9

		Age	-standardized p	prevalence of Al	JDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
AFR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Niger	0.7	0.1-1.4	1.4	0.1-2.6	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	0.3
Nigeria	2.1	1.0-3.1	3.7	1.7-5.7	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.5	1.6	4.2
Rwanda	5.5	3.8–7.2	9.4	6.3-12.6	1.9	0.5–3.4	2.5	3.3	5.6
Sao Tome and Principe	5.0	3.3-6.6	8.7	5.7-11.7	1.6	0.2-2.9	2.2	2.9	3.5
Senegal	0.7	0.1–1.3	1.4	0.1–2.7	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.7	0.0	1.0
Seychelles	5.8	4.0-7.6	9.4	6.3-12.5	1.9	0.4-3.4	2.6	3.4	4.7
Sierra Leone	2.6	1.4–3.8	4.7	2.4-7.0	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.7	2.0	4.5
South Africa	5.4	3.7–7.1	9.6	6.5-12.8	1.5	0.2-2.8	2.4	3.2	6.4
Swaziland	5.5	3.8–7.2	9.5	6.3-12.6	1.9	0.4-3.4	2.5	3.2	3.3
Тодо	7.4	5.4–9.3	11.8	8.4-15.3	3.2	1.3–5.1	3.3	4.3	1.5
Uganda	5.6	3.9–7.4	9.8	6.6-13.0	1.5	0.2–2.8	2.5	3.3	5.0
United Republic of Tanzania	5.4	3.7–7.1	9.0	6.0–12.1	1.8	0.4–3.2	2.4	3.2	4.1
Zambia	4.4	2.8-5.9	7.7	4.9-10.6	1.0	0.0-2.0	1.9	2.5	2.1
Zimbabwe	5.1	3.4–6.8	8.8	5.8-11.9	1.6	0.3–3.0	2.2	3.0	2.9

CI, confidence intervals.

		Age	-standardized	prevalence of AL	IDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
AMR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Antigua and Barbuda	5.6	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.7	2.2
Argentina	5.8	4.1–7.6	9.1	6.0-12.2	2.6	0.9-4.4	2.9	2.7	5.0
Bahamas	5.4	3.7–7.1	7.8	5.0-10.7	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	3.1
Barbados	5.8	4.0-7.5	8.2	5.3-11.2	3.2	1.3-5.1	2.8	2.9	3.3
Belize	5.9	4.1–7.7	10.0	6.8–13.1	1.9	0.5-3.4	3.1	3.0	6.8
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	5.4	3.7–7.2	7.9	5.0–10.7	3.1	1.2-4.9	2.9	2.7	4.6
Brazil	5.5	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	6.4
Canada	7.2	5.3–9.2	10.6	7.3–13.9	3.8	1.8-5.9	4.1	2.8	3.4
Chile	5.0	3.3–6.6	8.4	5.5-11.4	1.6	0.2-2.9	2.5	2.5	6.3
Colombia	5.7	4.0-7.5	8.4	5.5-11.4	3.2	1.3-5.1	3.2	2.7	4.4
Costa Rica	5.7	3.9–7.4	8.4	5.5-11.4	2.8	1.0-4.6	3.0	2.8	3.6
Cuba	5.7	3.9–7.4	8.1	5.2-11.0	3.2	1.3-5.1	2.8	2.7	2.9
Dominica	5.6	3.9–7.3	8.1	5.2-11.0	3.2	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	3.7
Dominican Republic	5.6	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	4.1
Ecuador	5.5	3.8–7.2	7.9	5.0-10.8	3.1	1.2-5.0	2.8	2.7	5.0
El Salvador	5.2	3.5-6.9	7.8	4.9-10.6	3.1	1.2-5.0	2.8	2.5	5.8
Grenada	5.5	3.7–7.2	7.8	4.9-10.7	3.1	1.2-5.0	2.8	2.6	4.8
Guatemala	5.3	3.6-7.0	7.8	4.9-10.6	3.1	1.2-4.9	2.8	2.5	5.3
Guyana	5.6	3.9–7.4	8.1	5.2-11.0	3.2	1.3-5.0	2.9	3.0	6.0
Haiti	5.6	3.9–7.3	8.2	5.3-11.2	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.9	2.9	2.9
Honduras	5.4	3.7–7.1	7.8	4.9-10.7	3.1	1.2-4.9	2.9	2.7	3.2
Jamaica	4.1	2.6-5.6	6.5	3.9-9.1	1.8	0.4-3.3	1.5	2.6	2.1
Mexico	2.7	1.4-3.9	5.1	2.8–7.5	0.5	0.0–1.2	1.3	1.5	6.8
Nicaragua	5.4	3.7–7.1	7.9	5.0-10.7	3.1	1.2-4.9	2.9	2.7	6.4
Panama	5.6	3.9–7.4	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	5.6
Paraguay	5.7	3.9–7.4	8.1	5.2-11.1	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.9	2.9	6.3
Peru	7.6	5.6-9.6	12.0	8.5-15.4	3.3	1.4–5.2	4.9	2.8	6.6
Puerto Rico	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
Saint Kitts and Nevis	5.5	3.8–7.2	8.0	5.1-10.8	3.1	1.3–5.0	2.8	2.7	3.7
Saint Lucia	5.4	3.7–7.1	7.8	4.9-10.7	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.6	4.3
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	5.6	3.9–7.4	8.0	5.1–10.9	3.1	1.3–5.0	2.8	2.9	3.5
Suriname	5.6	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.9	4.2
Trinidad and Tobago	5.6	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.2	1.3-5.0	2.8	2.8	3.4
United States of America	7.8	5.7–9.8	11.0	7.7–14.4	4.5	2.3–6.8	4.7	2.7	3.2
Uruguay	5.7	3.9–7.4	8.2	5.2-11.1	3.2	1.3-5.1	2.7	2.6	2.9
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	5.6	3.8–7.3	8.0	5.1-10.9	3.1	1.3–5.0	2.9	2.9	10.8

		Age	-standardized p	revalence of Al	JDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
EMR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Afghanistan	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.5	0.0–1.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.7
Bahrain	1.1	0.3–2.0	1.6	0.3–3.0	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.3	1.0	0.8
Djibouti	0.6	0.0-1.2	1.1	0.0-2.2	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.2	0.4	2.0
Egypt	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.0	0.0-0.2	0.1	0.1	0.8
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.4	0.0-1.2	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.1	0.8
Iraq	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.5	0.0–1.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.4
Jordan	0.4	0.0-0.8	0.6	0.0-1.4	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.2	0.4
Kuwait	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.1	1.1
Lebanon	0.8	0.1-1.5	1.4	0.1–2.7	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.3	0.5	1.5
Libya	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.4	0.0-1.2	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.1	0.3
Morocco	0.4	0.0-0.8	0.6	0.0-1.5	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.2	1.1
Oman	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.8
Pakistan	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.5
Qatar	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.3	0.0-0.9	0.1	0.0-0.3	0.1	0.1	3.1
Saudi Arabia	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.1	0.5
Somalia	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.3
Sudan	1.0	0.2-1.7	1.7	0.3-3.1	0.3	0.0-0.8	0.2	0.8	2.9
Syrian Arab Republic	0.4	0.0-0.9	0.8	0.0-1.8	0.1	0.0-0.4	0.2	0.3	0.7
Tunisia	0.5	0.0-1.0	0.9	0.0-1.9	0.2	0.0-0.6	0.2	0.3	1.7
United Arab Emirates	0.5	0.0-1.0	0.6	0.0-1.5	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.3	0.3	6.8
Yemen	0.3	0.0-0.7	0.5	0.0–1.3	0.1	0.0-0.5	0.2	0.1	0.5

		Age	-standardized	prevalence of Al	JDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
EUR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Albania	5.3	3.6–7.0	8.7	5.7–11.7	2.0	0.5–3.4	3.4	1.8	2.8
Andorra	5.7	3.9-7.4	9.1	6.0-12.1	2.2	0.6-3.7	3.4	1.8	3.9
Armenia	5.4	3.7–7.1	8.6	5.6-11.6	2.0	0.5–3.5	3.4	1.9	2.5
Austria	10.2	7.9–12.5	15.0	11.2-18.8	5.3	2.9–7.8	4.9	4.3	3.8
Azerbaijan	5.0	3.4–6.7	8.3	5.4-11.3	1.9	0.4–3.3	3.4	1.8	2.4
Belarus	17.5	14.6-20.4	29.8	25.0-34.6	6.0	3.5-8.5	11.0	5.5	34.7
Belgium	6.4	4.6-8.3	9.4	6.3–12.5	3.4	1.5–5.3	3.1	2.7	4.5
Bosnia and Herzegovina	5.5	3.8-7.3	9.0	5.9-12.1	2.1	0.6-3.6	3.4	1.8	4.1
Bulgaria	7.7	5.7–9.7	12.8	9.2–16.4	2.6	0.9–4.3	3.7	3.3	5.0
Croatia	5.6	3.9-7.4	9.0	6.0-12.1	2.2	0.6-3.8	3.4	1.7	5.6
Cyprus	6.0	4.2–7.7	8.9	5.9–12.0	2.8	1.0-4.5	3.1	2.7	2.1
Czech Republic	5.1	3.5-6.8	8.7	5.7-11.7	1.5	0.2-2.7	2.6	2.2	5.8
Denmark	6.0	4.2–7.8	8.6	5.6-11.6	3.4	1.4–5.3	2.9	2.6	4.8
Estonia	11.3	8.9–13.7	19.3	15.1-23.5	3.7	1.7–5.7	5.4	4.8	21.4
Finland	7.7	5.7–9.7	12.1	8.7–15.6	3.2	1.3–5.1	3.7	3.3	6.4
France	6.0	4.2-7.8	9.4	6.3-12.5	2.8	1.0-4.5	2.9	2.6	5.3
Georgia	4.1	2.6–5.6	7.7	4.8–10.5	0.9	0.0–1.9	2.1	1.8	4.6
Germany	6.1	4.3-7.9	9.7	6.6-12.9	2.4	0.8-4.1	2.9	2.5	4.4
Greece	5.7	4.0-7.5	8.6	5.6-11.6	2.8	1.0-4.6	2.7	2.4	3.9
Hungary	19.3	16.4-22.3	32.2	27.3-37.1	6.8	4.1-9.5	9.4	8.3	6.7
Iceland	3.8	2.4–5.3	5.8	3.3-8.3	1.8	0.4–3.2	2.0	1.7	2.1
Ireland	7.3	5.3-9.3	11.1	7.7–14.4	3.5	1.6-5.5	3.8	3.3	4.8
Israel	5.3	3.6–7.0	8.6	5.6-11.6	2.0	0.5–3.5	3.3	1.8	1.1
Italy	1.2	0.3-2.0	1.4	0.2–2.7	0.9	0.0-1.9	0.5	0.5	1.6
Kazakhstan	5.1	3.4–6.7	8.5	5.5-11.5	1.9	0.4–3.4	3.3	1.9	9.2
Kyrgyzstan	4.9	3.3-6.6	8.2	5.2-11.1	1.8	0.4-3.3	3.3	1.9	5.8
Latvia	8.6	6.5–10.8	14.9	11.1–18.6	2.9	1.1–4.7	4.1	3.6	24.4
Lithuania	9.9	7.7–12.2	17.0	13.0-21.0	3.4	1.5-5.3	4.9	4.3	30.9
Luxembourg	5.8	4.0-7.6	9.1	6.0–12.2	2.5	0.8-4.1	2.9	2.6	4.9
Malta	3.2	1.8-4.5	4.9	2.6-7.2	1.4	0.2-2.7	1.6	1.4	3.0
Monaco	_		_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Montenegro	5.4	3.7–7.1	8.8	5.8-11.9	2.0	0.5-3.6	3.4	1.8	_
Netherlands	1.3	0.4–2.2	1.8	0.4–3.2	0.8	0.0–1.8	0.7	0.6	2.7
Norway	8.7	6.5-10.8	12.6	9.1-16.1	4.6	2.3-6.8	4.9	3.2	2.0
Poland	8.7	6.6–10.8	14.6	10.9–18.4	2.9	1.1-4.6	4.4	3.9	7.0
Portugal	6.4	4.6-8.3	9.9	6.7–13.1	3.0	1.2-4.8	3.1	2.7	5.8
Republic of Moldova	5.3	3.6-7.0	8.8	5.8-11.8	2.0	0.5–3.5	3.3	1.9	33.1
Romania	2.6	1.4-3.8	3.9	1.8–5.9	1.2	0.1–2.4	1.3	1.1	8.9
Russian Federation	18.2	15.3-21.1	30.8	25.9-35.6	6.7	4.1–9.4	9.3	8.2	30.5
San Marino						—			
Serbia	5.5	3.7–7.2	8.9	5.9–11.9	2.1	0.5–3.6	3.4	1.8	4.4

		Age	-standardized p	prevalence of AL	IDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
EUR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Slovakia	10.6	8.3-13.0	19.1	15.0-23.3	2.2	0.6–3.8	5.5	4.8	7.7
Slovenia	12.6	10.1-15.1	20.5	16.2-24.8	4.3	2.1-6.4	6.2	5.4	7.9
Spain	1.4	0.5-2.3	2.4	0.8–4.0	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.7	0.6	3.6
Sweden	9.9	7.6–12.1	13.7	10.0-17.3	6.0	3.5-8.5	4.7	4.2	3.3
Switzerland	8.7	6.5-10.8	14.3	10.6-18.1	2.9	1.1-4.8	4.2	3.7	3.6
Tajikistan	0.8	0.1-1.4	1.3	0.1–2.5	0.2	0.0-0.8	0.4	0.4	3.3
The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	5.4	3.7–7.1	8.7	5.7-11.8	2.0	0.5–3.5	3.4	1.8	2.8
Turkey	2.6	1.4-3.9	4.4	2.2-6.6	0.9	0.0-2.0	0.8	1.8	1.3
Turkmenistan	4.9	3.3-6.5	8.1	5.2-11.1	1.8	0.4-3.2	3.3	1.9	4.9
Ukraine	5.2	3.6-6.9	9.5	6.4–12.7	1.3	0.1–2.5	2.2	2.6	34.4
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	12.1	9.6–14.6	17.5	13.4–21.5	6.7	4.0–9.4	5.9	5.2	3.4
Uzbekistan	5.0	3.3–6.6	8.2	5.2–11.1	1.8	0.4–3.3	3.3	1.9	4.9

		Age	-standardized p	revalence of Al	IDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
SEAR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Bangladesh	0.8	0.1–1.5	1.3	0.1–2.5	0.2	0.0–0.8	0.7	0.1	0.6
Bhutan	1.7	0.7–2.6	2.6	0.9-4.3	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.8	0.9	1.2
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	2.9	1.6-4.2	4.9	2.6–7.3	0.9	0.0–1.9	1.4	1.5	4.6
India	2.5	1.3-3.7	4.4	2.2-6.6	0.5	0.0–1.3	2.1	0.5	5.4
Indonesia	0.8	0.1–1.4	1.3	0.1–2.5	0.2	0.0-0.8	0.7	0.0	2.1
Maldives	1.9	0.9–2.9	3.2	1.3-5.1	0.6	0.0-1.5	0.9	1.0	1.9
Myanmar	1.5	0.6–2.4	2.5	0.9-4.2	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.7	0.8	2.0
Nepal	1.4	0.5–2.3	2.5	0.8-4.1	0.5	0.0-1.2	0.7	0.8	2.9
Sri Lanka	3.0	1.7-4.3	5.5	3.1–7.9	0.6	0.0–1.5	2.7	0.4	5.8
Thailand	4.9	3.3–6.6	9.0	5.9-12.1	1.0	0.0-2.1	1.8	3.2	6.8
Timor–Leste	1.4	0.5–2.3	2.4	0.7–4.0	0.5	0.0–1.2	0.7	0.8	1.2

		Δσe	-standardized (prevalence of Al	IDs ¹		Prevalence of AD ¹	Prevalence of HU ¹	AAFs for deaths from all causes ^{2,3}
WPR	Both sexes	95% CI	Males	95% CI	Females	95% CI	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes ⁴	Both sexes
Australia	3.7	2.3-5.2	5.2	2.8–7.6	2.3	0.7-3.9	1.5	2.0	3.2
Brunei Darussalam	1.7	0.7-2.7	2.9	1.1-4.7	0.5	0.0-1.3	0.8	1.0	1.3
Cambodia	4.3	2.7–5.8	7.5	4.7–10.3	1.4	0.1–2.7	2.7	1.6	5.0
China	4.8	3.2-6.4	9.1	6.0-12.2	0.2	0.0-0.7	2.4	2.5	6.3
Cook Islands	4.6	3.0-6.2	7.6	4.8-10.5	1.4	0.2–2.7	3.0	1.7	6.1
Fiji	4.5	3.0-6.1	7.5	4.7-10.4	1.4	0.1-2.7	3.0	1.7	1.4
Japan	3.3	1.9–4.6	5.3	2.9–7.7	1.2	0.1–2.4	1.1	1.7	3.2
Kiribati	4.5	2.9-6.1	7.6	4.7-10.4	1.4	0.1-2.7	3.0	1.7	2.0
Lao People's Democratic Republic	4.3	2.8–5.9	7.4	4.6–10.2	1.4	0.1–2.7	2.8	1.7	4.9
Malaysia	2.3	1.2-3.5	4.0	1.9-6.1	0.8	0.0-1.7	1.1	1.3	1.7
Marshall Islands	—	—	—	—	_	_	—	_	—
Micronesia (Federated States of)	4.4	2.8–5.9	7.3	4.5–10.0	1.4	0.1–2.7	2.8	1.7	2.1
Mongolia	6.1	4.3–7.9	10.3	7.1–13.6	2.0	0.5–3.5	2.8	3.6	10.5
Nauru	4.5	2.9-6.1	7.6	4.7-10.4	1.4	0.1–2.7	3.0	1.7	3.4
New Zealand	3.4	2.0-4.7	4.7	2.4-6.9	2.1	0.6-3.7	1.4	1.9	2.8
Niue	4.6	3.0-6.2	7.6	4.8-10.5	1.4	0.2-2.7	3.0	1.7	5.4
Palau	4.5	2.9-6.1	7.6	4.7-10.4	1.4	0.1-2.7	3.0	1.7	4.6
Papua New Guinea	4.4	2.9-6.0	7.4	4.6-10.2	1.4	0.1-2.6	2.9	1.7	3.1
Philippines	4.4	2.8-5.9	7.4	4.6-10.2	1.4	0.1–2.6	2.9	1.7	5.2
Republic of Korea	6.3	4.4-8.1	10.2	6.9–13.4	2.3	0.7-3.9	4.7	1.5	7.5
Samoa	4.6	3.0-6.2	7.6	4.7-10.4	1.4	0.2-2.7	3.0	1.7	2.0
Singapore	0.9	0.2-1.6	1.4	0.1-2.6	0.4	0.0-1.1	0.5	0.4	2.2
Solomon Islands	4.4	2.9-6.0	7.5	4.7-10.3	1.4	0.1–2.6	2.9	1.7	2.1
Tokelau	—	_		—	—	_	—	—	—
Tonga	4.5	2.9-6.1	7.6	4.8-10.5	1.5	0.2–2.7	2.8	1.7	1.1
Tuvalu	4.6	3.0-6.2	7.6	4.8-10.5	1.4	0.2-2.7	3.0	1.7	2.2
Vanuatu	4.4	2.9–6.0	7.5	4.7-10.3	1.4	0.1–2.7	2.9	1.7	1.6
Viet Nam	4.6	3.0-6.1	8.3	5.4–11.3	0.9	0.0-1.9	2.9	1.7	8.3

APPENDIX III INDICATORS RELATED TO ALCOHOL POLICY AND INTERVENTIONS

Table III.1. Additional indicators for the WHO regions, 2012

	Sociodemographic context		Traditional and local beverages	National monitoring systems				
AFR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses	
Algeria	1.5	73	_	No	No	No	No	
Angola	3.1	70	Beer from palm nut	No	No	No	No	
Benin	3.1	42	Shakparo, Burukutu, Palm wine, Tchoukoutou, Sodabi, Chibuku	No	No	No	No	
Botswana	1.3	84	Bojalwa, Khadi, Nyola, Chibuku	No	Yes	Yes	No	
Burkina Faso	2.9	29	Dolo, Bangui	No	No	No	No	
Burundi	2.7	67	—	No	No	No	No	
Cabo Verde	1.3	85	Grong	No	No	No	No	
Cameroon	2.2	71	Fitchuk, Guinea corn beer	No	No	No	No	
Central African Republic	1.7	55	—	No	No	No	No	
Chad	3.1	34	—	No	No	No	No	
Comoros	2.7	74	—	No	No	No	No	
Congo	2.5	_	-	No	Yes	No	No	
Côte d'Ivoire	1.7	55	Bandju, Dolo, Kue za, Koutoukou	No	No	No	No	
Democratic Republic of the Congo	2.8	67	Kasiksi, Mokoyo, Palm wine, Manoic brandy, Maize beer	No	No	No	No	
Equatorial Guinea	3.0	93	Kai-kai, Palm wine, Malamba	No	No	No	No	
Eritrea	3.6	67	Suwa, Mies, Zebib	No	No	No	No	
Ethiopia	2.3	30	Korefe, Shamit, Tej, Kati, Kala, Areki	No	No	No	No	
Gabon	2.0	88	Kai-kai, Maize wine, Cassava wine, Palm wine, Toutou, Musungu, Magrocom	No	No	No	No	
Gambia	2.9	46	Palm nut wine	No	No	No	No	
Ghana	2.4	67	Pito (nando, kokmbas, tago, dagarti), Palm wine, Akpeteshie	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Guinea	1.8	39	Palm wine, Wine from raffia	No	No	No	No	
Guinea-Bissau	2.0	52	Soum-soum	No	No	No	No	
Kenya	2.6	87	Kumi Kumi, Muratina	No	No	No	No	
Lesotho	1.0	90	Joala	No	No	No	No	
Liberia	3.4	59	—	No	No	No	No	
Madagascar	3.0	64	Gris, Taoka Grasy, Betsa, Roma, Trembo, Litchel	No	No	No	No	
Malawi	2.8	74	Kachasu, Chibuku, Chikokeyani	No	No	No	No	
Mali	3.1	26	-	No	No	No	No	
Mauritania	2.7	57	—	No	No	No	No	
Mauritius	0.8	88	—	No	No	No	No	
Mozambique	2.5	55	Cashew wine	No	No	No	No	
Namibia	1.9	89	Home brews, Mataku, Walende, Country wine	No	No	Subnational	No	
Niger	3.5	29		No	No	No	No	
Nigeria	2.5	61	Palm wine, locally fermented wine and gin	No	No	No	No	
Rwanda	2.7	71	—	No	No	No	No	
Sao Tome and Principe	1.6	89	-	No	No	No	No	
Senegal	2.7	50	Palm wine	Subnational	Subnational	No	No	

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale Any	Any duty paid, excise or tax stamps or		Random breath	Number of standard alcoholic drinks displayed on	Alcohol content displayed on
Total ban	monopoly ²	licensing ²	labels ³	Sobriety check-points	testing	containers	containers
No	No/Yes	No/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	No/No	No	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes
No	No/No	No/Yes	No	Yes	—	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	—	_
No	Yes/Yes	No/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	_	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	No	Yes	No	No
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	—	_	_	—
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	No/No		No	No	No	No
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes

	Sociodemogr	aphic context	Traditional and local beverages		National monit	toring systems	
AFR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Seychelles	0.9	92	Lapire, Baka, Kalou	No	No	No	No
Sierra Leone	3.5	41	Palm wine	No	No	No	No
South Africa	1.1	89	Umqombothi, Utchwala, Chibuku, Isizulu	Yes	Yes	No	No
Swaziland	1.1	87	Beer from marula fruit, Umqombutsi, Chibuku	No	No	No	No
Тодо	2.3	57	Sodobe, Tchouk	No	No	No	No
Uganda	3.2	73	Ajon, Omuramba, Kweete, Kidongo beer, Mwenge bigere	No	Yes	No	No
United Republic of Tanzania	2.8	73	Ulanzi, Tekawima, Pombe, Ujimbi, Kimpumu, Banana and Palm wine, Mbege, Komoni, Mnasi, Wanzuki, Morfru, Orubis/amarwa	No	No	No	No
Zambia	2.5	71	Chibuku, Kachasu, Akiki wine, Mosi, Katata, Gangata, Sipeso, Imbote	No	No	No	No
Zimbabwe	0.0	92	Homebrew beer, Kkachasu, Makumbi, Amaganu, Chibuku	Yes	Yes	No	No

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale	Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes

	Sociodemogr	aphic context	Traditional and local beverages		National moni	toring systems	
AMR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Antigua and Barbuda	1.3	99	_	No	No	No	No
Argentina	0.9	98	Home-produced wine	Yes	No	No	No
Bahamas	1.4	—	_	Yes	No	No	No
Barbados	0.2	—	_	No	No	No	No
Belize	2.2	—	Aguardientes	No	No	No	No
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	1.8	91	Chicha	No	No	No	No
Brazil	1.1	90	Cachaca, Aguardente de cana, Pinga or caninha, Home-produced light wines and spirits	Yes	Yes	No	No
Canada	1	—	—	Yes	No	No	No
Chile	1	99	Pisco and Home-produced wines	No	No	No	No
Colombia	1.5	93	Aguardientes, Guarapo, Chichia chirrinche, Anisados	No	Yes	No	No
Costa Rica	1.7	96	Guar and Home-produced aguardiente	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Cuba	0.1	100	_	Yes	Yes	No	No
Dominica	-0.3	—	—	No	No	No	No
Dominican Republic	1.4	88	—	No	No	No	No
Ecuador	1.6	84	Aguardientes, Anisados, Secos, Rompope, Chichi de jora, Chichi de yucca, Guarapo	No	No	No	No
El Salvador	0.4	84	Aguardientes	No	No	No	No
Grenada	0.3	—	_	Yes	Yes	No	No
Guatemala	2.5	74	Chicha, Aguardientes, Cuxa and Nahuala	No	No	No	No
Guyana	0.3	—	Piwari	No	Yes	Yes	No
Haiti	1.4	49	—	—	—	—	—
Honduras	2	84	Home-produced aguardientes	No	No	No	No
Jamaica	0.6	86	_	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Mexico	1.3	93	Aguardientes, Pulque, Ponche and Rompope	Yes	No	No	No
Nicaragua	1.3	78	Home-produced aguardientes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Panama	1.7	94	Home-produced aguardientes	No	No	No	No
Paraguay	1.9	95	Home-produced aguardientes and Abati	No	Subnational	Subnational	No
Peru	1.2	90	Aguardientes, Pisco, Chicha and Sora	Subnational	No	No	No
Puerto Rico	—	—	-	—	—	—	—
Saint Kitts and Nevis	1.3	—	-	No	No	No	No
Saint Lucia	1	—	—	No	No	No	No
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.1	_	-	No	No	No	No
Suriname	1.2	95	—	No	No	No	No
Trinidad and Tobago	0.4	99	Babash	No	No	No	No
United States of America	0.9	_	_	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Uruguay	0.1	98	Home-produced light wine	Yes	No	No	No
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	1.7	95	Corn liquor, Aguardientes, Guarapita and Home-produced rum	Yes	No	No	No

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale Any	Any duty paid, excise or tax stamps or		Random breath	Number of standard alcoholic drinks displayed on	Alcohol content displayed on
Total ban	monopoly ²	licensing ²	labels ³	Sobriety check-points	testing	containers	containers
No	No/No	No/No	—	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	—	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	_	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No		—		—	—	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	_	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes

	Sociodemogr	aphic context	Traditional and local beverages		National monit	toring systems	
EMR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Afghanistan	3.2	_	Homemade brandy (wine)	No	No	No	No
Bahrain	6.8	91	Arak	_	_	_	_
Djibouti	1.9	—	_	—	—	—	_
Egypt	1.8	66	Zebiba, Chine, Bouza	No	No	No	No
lran (Islamic Republic of)	1.2	85	_	No	No	No	No
Iraq	2.8	78	-	No	No	No	No
Jordan	2.5	92	Arak	No	No	No	No
Kuwait	3.4	94	-	—	—	—	_
Lebanon	1.2	90	Arak	—	—	—	_
Libya	1.9	89	-	—	—	—	_
Morocco	1.0	56	Mahia	—	—	—	_
Oman	2.1	87	—	No	Yes	No	No
Pakistan	1.8	56	_	No	Yes	Yes	No
Qatar	10.9	95	—	_	—	—	_
Saudi Arabia	3.1	86	_	_	—	—	_
Somalia	2.3	—	—	—	—	—	—
Sudan	2.4	70	Merisa	No	No	No	No
Syrian Arab Republic	2.4	84	Arak	No	No	No	No
Tunisia	1.0	78	Lagmi, Boukha	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
United Arab Emirates	9.1	90	_	—	—	—	—
Yemen	3.1	62	—	No	No	No	No

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale	Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	_	No	No	—	
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	_	Yes	No	_	_
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No
No	—	—	_	—	—	—	
No	—	—	_	—	—	—	
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	—	—	—	
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	_
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	No	No	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	—	—	—	_
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	—	—	—	—
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	No	No	—	_
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	No
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	—	Yes
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	No	No	—	_

	Sociodemographic context		Traditional and local beverages		National moni	toring systems	
EUR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Albania	0.4	96	Rakia, Anis	No	No	No	No
Andorra	2.7	_	_	No	No	No	No
Armenia	0.1	100	Fruit eaux de vie	No	No	No	No
Austria	0.5	—	Cherry liquor and Schnapps	No	No	No	No
Azerbaijan	1.2	100	_	No	No	No	Yes
Belarus	-0.5	100	Bormotukha and home-produced wines	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Belgium	0.5	_	_	Yes	No	No	No
Bosnia and Herzegovina	0.2	98	_	No	Subnational	No	No
Bulgaria	-0.7	98	Rakia and Mastika	Subnational	Subnational	Subnational	Subnational
Croatia	-0.2	99	Slivovica, Herbal liquor and Prosecco	Yes	Yes	No	No
Cyprus	1.6	98	Ouzo, Raki, Tsipouro and Zivania	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Czech Republic	0.2	—	Fruit eaux de vie	No	No	No	No
Denmark	0.4	—	_	Yes	Yes	No	No
Estonia	-0.2	100	_	Yes	No	No	No
Finland	0.4	—	Sahti, Kiliu and Pontikka	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
France	0.6	—	Eaux de vie, Marcs and Pastis	Yes	Yes	No	No
Georgia	-0.9	100	_	No	No	No	No
Germany	0.0	_	Korn and Obstwasser	Yes	Yes	No	No
Greece	0.3	97	Zivania, Ouzo and Tsiporod	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Hungary	-0.2	99	Fruit eaux de vie	Yes	No	No	No
lceland	1.3	_	Brennivin	Yes	No	Yes	No
Ireland	1.6	_	Poteen	No	No	No	No
Israel	2.1	_	_	No	No	No	No
Italy	0.6	99	Grappa	No	Yes	No	No
Kazakhstan	0.7	100	Home-produced wines	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Kyrgyzstan	0.7	99	Home-produced wines	No	No	No	No
Latvia	-0.6	100	_	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Lithuania	-0.5	100	-	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Luxembourg	1.5	—	_	Yes	Yes	No	No
Malta	0.5	92	_	No	No	No	No
Monaco	0.1	_	_	No	No	No	No
Montenegro	0.0	—	Rakia and home-produced wines	No	No	No	No
Netherlands	0.5	_	_	Yes	Yes	No	No
Norway	0.8	—	Home-produced spirits	Yes	Yes	No	No
Poland	0.0	100	_	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Portugal	0.3	95	Eaux de vie	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Republic of Moldova	-1.4	98	Tuica, Palenka and Grappa	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Romania	-0.3	98	Tuica, Palinca and Rachiu	Yes	No	No	No
Russian Federation	-0.3	100	Samogon	_	_	_	_
San Marino	1.6	—	_	No	No	No	No
Serbia	-0.3	_	Slivovica and Rakia	No	Yes	Yes	No
Slovakia	0.1	_	Domáca, Slivocica, Hruskovica, Jablkovica, Ceresnovica, Marhulovica, Eaux de vie	No	No	No	No

				Alcohol policy			
	National product	ion/sale	Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
No	No/No	Yes/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No No/No	Yes/No No/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes Yes	Yes	No No	Yes
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	Yes	No	No	No	No
No	Yes/No	No/No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/No	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No		
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes No
No No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No Yes	No Yes	No Yes	No No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes

	Sociodemogr	aphic context	Traditional and local beverages		National monit	toring systems	
EUR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Slovenia	0.2	100	Eaux de vie and Vinjak	Yes	Yes	No	No
Spain	1.3	98	Pacharan and Orujo	Yes	Yes	No	No
Sweden	0.6	—	_	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Switzerland	0.7	—	Home-produced wines, Eaux de vie and Bitters	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Tajikistan	1.1	100	Home-produced wines and spirits	No	Yes	No	No
The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	0.3	97	Rakia, Mastika and Eaux de vie	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Turkey	1.3	91	Raki and Cordials	No	No	No	No
Turkmenistan	1.1	100	Home-produced wines and spirits	No	No	No	No
Ukraine	-0.7	100	Home-produced wines, fruit wines, cordials and brandies	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	0.5	—	_	Subnational	Subnational	Subnational	No
Uzbekistan	1.0	99	Home-produced wines and spirits	No	No	No	No

Data source: United Nations, data range 2000–2010.
 Any monopoly/licensing for beer, wine, or spirits.
 Any duty paid, excise or tax stamps or labels for beer, wine, or spirits.

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale	Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
No	No/No	No/No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	No/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/Yes	No/No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	_	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	_	Yes	No	Yes

	Sociodemogr	aphic context	Traditional and local beverages		National moni	toring systems	
SEAR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Bangladesh	1.4	56	Cholai, Tari, Bangla Mad	No	No	No	No
Bhutan	2.4	53	Ara	—	_	—	_
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	0.6	100	_	—	—	—	—
India	1.5	63	Arak, Toddy, Apong, Palm wine, Zu, Rohi	Yes	No	No	No
Indonesia	1.2	92	Brem, Tuak, Arak, Lapan	Yes	Yes	No	No
Maldives	1.5	98	Raa	—	—	—	—
Myanmar	0.6	92	—	Yes	No	No	No
Nepal	2.1	59	Jad, Chang, Raksi	Yes	Yes	No	No
Sri Lanka	1.1	91	Arak, Toddy	_	_	_	_
Thailand	0.9	94	Satoh, Ou, Krauche, Lao Khao, Lao-Lao, Lao-Hai	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Timor-Leste	3.0	51	Mutin, Tua Sabu	No	No	No	No

				Alcohol policy			
		control of ion/sale	Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	—	Yes	—	—
No	—	—	—	—	_	_	—
No	No/No	Subnational	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes
Yes	Total ban	Total ban		—	—	—	
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No

	Sociodemographic context		Traditional and local beverages	Traditional and local beverages National monitoring systems			
WPR	Annual population growth rate ¹ (%)	Adult literacy rate ¹ (%)		Alcohol consumption	Health consequences	Social consequences	Alcohol policy responses
Australia	1.5	—	—	Yes	Yes	No	No
Brunei Darussalam	2	95	—	No	No	No	No
Cambodia	1.3	78	—	No	No	No	No
China	0.6	94	White liquors (mou-tai, wu-nia-yeh), Feng wines, Yellow wines, Rice wines, Fruit wines, Baiju	No	No	No	No
Cook Islands	1.3	—	-	No	Yes	Yes	No
Fiji	0.6	—	Home brews, Papaa hops and Malt	No	No	No	No
Japan	0.1	—	Sake and Shochu	Yes	No	No	No
Kiribati	1.7	—	Toddy or fermented coconut milk	No	No	No	No
Lao People's Democratic Republic	1.5	73	Rice wine and Corn whisky	No	No	No	No
Malaysia	1.9	92	Tuak, Tapai, Fruit wine, Perry, Vegetable wine, Honey wine/mead, Rice wine, Toddy, Fruit brandy, Samsu	No	Yes	No	No
Marshall Islands	0.4	—	—		—	—	—
Micronesia (Federated States of)	0.4	—	_	No	Yes	No	No
Mongolia	1.3	97	Koumiss and Airag	Yes	Yes	No	No
Nauru	0.2	—	_	—	—	—	—
New Zealand	1.2	—	—	Yes	Yes	No	No
Niue	-2.6	—	-	No	No	No	No
Palau	0.7	_	-	Subnational	Subnational	Subnational	No
Papua New Guinea	2.4	60	_	No	No	No	No
Philippines	1.9	95	Basi, Lamabanog, Tapuy and Tuba/ Lay-aw	No	No	No	No
Republic of Korea	0.5	—	Cheongju, Soju, Takju and Yakju	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Samoa	0.4	99	Fa'amufu and Pulu	—	—	—	—
Singapore	2.6	95	_	Yes	No	No	No
Solomon Islands	2.8	_	—	_	_	_	_
Tokelau	—	_	Toddy	No	No	No	No
Tonga	0.6	99	—	No	No	No	No
Tuvalu	0.4	—	—	No	Yes	Yes	No
Vanuatu	2.6	82	Kava		—	_	—
Viet Nam	1.1	93	Bia and Hoi	No	No	No	No

Data source: United Nations, data range 2000–2010.
 Any monopoly/licensing for beer, wine, or spirits.
 Any duty paid, excise or tax stamps or labels for beer, wine, or spirits.

				Alcohol policy			
	National control of production/sale		Any duty paid, excise			Number of standard alcoholic drinks	Alcohol content
Total ban	Any monopoly ²	Any licensing ²	or tax stamps or labels ³	Sobriety check-points	Random breath testing	displayed on containers	displayed on containers
No	No/No	No/No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Yes	Total ban	Total ban	—	Yes	Yes	—	—
No	No/No	Yes/No	—	No	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	—	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
No	No/No	No/No	—	Yes	No	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes
No	—	—	—	_	—	_	—
No	No/No	No/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	—	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	No/Yes	No/Yes		Yes	No	No	No
No	Yes/Yes	Yes/Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
No	—	—	_	_		_	_
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	—	—		—		—	—
No	—	—	—	—	_	No	No
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
No	—/Yes	—/Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
No	—	—	—	—	—	—	—
No	No/No	Yes/Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes

Table III.2. WHO Member States' definition of an alcoholic beverage

AFR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
Algeria	>0.5%
Angola	>0.5%
Benin	>0.5%
Botswana	>0.5%
Burkina Faso	No
Burundi	No
Cabo Verde	>0.5%
Cameroon	No
Central African Republic	No
Chad	>5.2%
Comoros	No
Congo	No
Côte d'Ivoire	>0.5%
Democratic Republic of the Congo	>0.5%
Equatorial Guinea	1.0% or more
Eritrea	>0.5%
Ethiopia	No
Gabon	No
Gambia	No
Ghana	>0.5%
Guinea	No
Guinea-Bissau	No
Kenya	0.5% or more
Lesotho	No
Liberia	>0.5%
Madagascar	>1.0%
Malawi	>0.5%
Malawi Mali	No
Man Mauritania	
Mauritius	— >0.0 abv
	>0.5%
Mozambique	
Namibia Ni sar	3% or more >0.5%
Niger Niger	
Nigeria	No
Rwanda	No
Sao Tome and Principe	No
Senegal	Other
Seychelles	No
Sierra Leone	No
South Africa	>1.0%
South Sudan	
Swaziland	No
Togo	No
Uganda	No
United Republic of Tanzania	No
Zambia	>3.0%
Zimbabwe	>1.0%

AMR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
Antigua and Barbuda	No
Argentina	>0.5%
Bahamas	No
Barbados	No
Belize	3.5% or more
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	No
Brazil	>0.5%
Canada	>1.1%
Chile	Other
Colombia	2.5% or more
Costa Rica	>0.0%
Cuba	>0.5%
Dominica	No
Dominican Republic	No
Ecuador	No
El Salvador	No
Grenada	>0.0%
Guatemala	No
Guyana	No
Haiti	_
Honduras	No
Jamaica	>0.0%
Mexico	2.0% or more
Nicaragua	>0.5%
Panama	No
Paraguay	Other
Peru	No
Puerto Rico	_
Saint Kitts and Nevis	No
Saint Lucia	>0.0%
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	No
Suriname	No
Trinidad and Tobago	>0.0%
United States of America	>0.5%
Uruguay	>0.5%
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	Other

EMR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
Afghanistan	No
Bahrain	—
Djibouti	—
Egypt	1% or more
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	—
Iraq	No
Jordan	No
Kuwait	—
Lebanon	—
Libya	—
Могоссо	—
Oman	No
Pakistan	No
Qatar	—
Saudi Arabia	_
Somalia	—
Sudan	
Syrian Arab Republic	No
Tunisia	No
United Arab Emirates	
Yemen	

Albaria>1.2%Andra1.0% or moreArmeniaNoArmeniaNoAustria>0.5%AzerbaijanNoBelarus>0.5%Bolguin<0.5%Bolguin<0.5%Bolgaria<0.5%Creatia>0.5%Creatia<0.5%Crent Republic<0.5%Denmark<1.2%Estonia<0.5%Finland<0.5%GeorgiaNoGerere<1.2%GeorgiaNoGreere<1.2%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad<1.2%GeorgiaNoGerere<1.2%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>1.2%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5%Italad>0.5% <td< th=""><th>EUR</th><th>Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)</th></td<>	EUR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
ArneniaNoAustria>0.5%AzerbaijanNoBelaus>0.0%Belgum>0.5%Bosnia and Herzegovina>0.5%Bulgaria>0.5%Croatia>0.0%Croatia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Coratia>0.5%Denmark>1.2%Estonia>0.5%Finand>2.2%GorgiaNoGerega>1.2%Hungany>1.2%Iteland>0.5%<	Albania	
Astria 0 Azerbaijan No Belarus >0.5% Belgium >0.5% Belgium Merzegovina >0.5% Bulgaria >0.5% Coatia >0.5% Coatia >0.5% Coatia >0.5% Coatia >0.5% Coech Republic >0.5% Demmark >1.2% Estonia >0.5% Geregia >0.5% Geregia No Geregia No Geregia No Geregia >0.5% Italy >1.2% Italy 1.2%	Andorra	1.0% or more
Activation Non Belarus >7.0% Belarus >7.0% Belarus >0.5% Bosnia and Herregovina >0.5% Bosnia and Herregovina >0.5% Bugaria >0.5% Croatia >0.5% Croatia >0.5% Denmark >0.5% Denmark >0.5% Benmark >0.5% Benmark >0.5% Benmark >0.5% Benmark >0.5% Benmark >1.2% Estonia >0.5% Georgia Mono Georgia >1.2% Georgia >1.2% Greece >1.2% Itagary >1.2% <	Armenia	No
Belgium>7.0%Belgium>0.5%Bosnia and Herzegovina>0.5%Bulgaria>0.5%Coratia>2.0%Coratia>2.0%CoprusNoCzech Republic>0.5%Denmark>1.12%Estonia>0.5%Finance>1.2%GeorgiaNoGerece>1.2%Hungary>1.2%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Karzdnstan>0.5%KyrgyzstanNoBer >0.5%, wine, spirits >1.2%Lithuania2.0%LucembourgBer >0.5%, wine, spirits >1.2%MonteogoOtherNoraco% nor statedMonteogoOtherNoraco\$0.5%Noraco\$0.5%Noraco\$0.5%Noraco\$0.5%Noraco\$0.5%Noraco\$0.5%Portugal\$0.5%Resplic of Moldova\$0.5%Resisin Federation\$0.5%San Marino\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%Solvakia\$0.5%	Austria	>0.5%
Belgium>05%Bosnia and Herzegovina>2.0%Bulgaria>0.5%Croatia>0.5%Coratia>0.0%CoprusNoCacch Republic>0.5%Denmark<1.2%	Azerbaijan	No
Basinia and Herzegovina >20% Bulgaria >0.5% Creatia >0.5% Copris No Czech Republic >0.5% Denmark >1.2% Estonia >0.5% Finland >2.8% France >1.2% Georgia No Gerargia No Gravec >1.2% Hungary >1.2% Italad >0.5% Israel >0.5% Italy Seconstration Latvia Seconstration Latvia Seconstration Montengro Nother Ne	Belarus	>7.0%
Bulgaria >0.5% Croatia >2.0% Cyprus No Czech Republic >0.5% Denmark >1.2% Estonia >0.5% Finland >0.5% Finland >2.8% France No Georgia No Germany >1.2% Gedece >1.2% Iteland >2.8% Iteland >2.2% Iteland >2.0% Italy >2.12% Italy Solow instand Montengro Other Norway	Belgium	>0.5%
Containa >2.0% Cyprus No Cyprus No Carch Republic >0.5% Demmark >1.2% Estonia >0.5% Finand >2.8% France Georgia No Germany >1.2% Greece >1.2% Ingany >2.5% Ireland >2.2% Ireland >2.2% Ireland >2.2% Ireland >2.2% Ireland >2.0% Israel >0.5% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Luwembourg Beer 0.5% or more Monaco 0/ther Monaco 0/ther Monaco >0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino	Bosnia and Herzegovina	>2.0%
Croatia>2.0%CyprusNoCzech Republic>0.5%Denmark>1.2%Estonia>0.5%Finand>2.8%France>1.2%GeorgiaNoGermany>1.2%Greece>1.2%Iteland>2.5%Ireland>2.5%Ireland>2.5%Ireland>0.5%Kazakhstan>0.5%KyrgyzstanNoLatviaBeer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2%Litunania>1.2%LuxembourgBeer 0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2%Malta2.0% or moreMonaco0.0therNorway0.0therPoltagal>0.5%Poltagal>0.5%Russian Federation>0.5%San MarinoNoStaial>0.5%Staial>0.5%Sovaia>0.5%Sovaia>0.5%Staial>0.5% <td>Bulgaria</td> <td>>0.5%</td>	Bulgaria	>0.5%
	Croatia	>2.0%
Czeck Republic>0.5%Denmark>1.2%Estonia>0.5%Finland>2.8%France>1.2%GeorgiaNoGerece>1.2%Grece>1.2%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Iteland>0.5%Kazakhstan>0.5%KyrgystanNoLatviaBeer 0.5% vine, spirits >1.2%Lithuania2.0% vine, spirits >1.2%LuxembourgBeer 0.5% vine, spirits >1.2% or moreMonaco<10.5% or more	Cyprus	No
DemarkEstoniaFinlandFinlandFinlandGeorgiaNoGermanyGreeceHungaryItelandSeraleItalyItalyItalyItalySeraleSeraleItalyItalyItalyItalySerale		>0.5%
Finand>2.8%France>1.2%GeorgiaNoGermany>1.2%Greece>1.2%Hungary>1.2%Iceland>0.5%Ireland>0.5%Israel>0.5%Israel>0.5%Kazakhstan>0.5%KyrgyzstanNoLatviaBeer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2%Lithuania>1.2%Manda2.0% or more, wine, spirits >1.2%MontenegroOtherNonaco% not statedMontenegroOtherNonay2.5% or morePoland>0.5%Republic of Moldova>0.5%Rusian Federation>0.5%Sonaria>0.5%Sonaria>0.5%StoraiaNoSlovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.75%Slovakia>0.75%Slovakia>1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%		>1.2%
Finand>2.8%France>1.2%GeorgiaNoGermany>1.2%Greece>1.2%Hungary>1.2%Iceland>0.5%Ireland>0.5%Israel>0.5%Israel>0.5%Kazakhstan>0.5%KyrgyzstanNoLatviaBeer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2%Lithuania>1.2%Manda2.0% or more, wine, spirits >1.2%MontenegroOtherNonaco% not statedMontenegroOtherNonay2.5% or morePoland>0.5%Republic of Moldova>0.5%Rusian Federation>0.5%Sonaria>0.5%Sonaria>0.5%StoraiaNoSlovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.5%Slovakia>0.75%Slovakia>0.75%Slovakia>1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%	Estonia	
France>1.2%GeorgiaNoGermany>1.2%Greece>1.2%Hungary>1.2%Iceland>2.5%Ireland>0.5%Israel>0.5%Israel>0.5%Kazakhstan>0.5%KyrgyzstanNoLatviaBeer >0.5%, wine, spirits >1.2%Lithuania2.0% or more, wine, spirits >1.2% or moreMata2.0% or more, wine, spirits 1.2% or moreMata0.5%Noneaco% not statedMoneaco0.5%Norway2.5% or morePoland>0.5%Portugal<0.5%		
GeorgiaNoGeregia<1.2%	France	>1.2%
Germany > 1.2% Greece > 1.2% Hungary > 1.2% Iceland > 2.25% Ireland > 0.5% Israel > 2.0% Italy > 1.2% Kazakhstan > 0.5% Kyrgyzstan Mo Latvia Beer > 0.5%; wine, spirits > 1.2% Lithuania > 1.2% Malta 0 Monco Seer > 0.5%; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Mata 0 Montaco % not stated Montenegro Other Nerway 2.5% or more Poland > 0.5% Republic of Moldova > 0.5% Russian Federation > 0.5% San Marino No Slovakia > 0.5% Slovakia > 0.75% Slovakia > 0	Georgia	No
Greece 1.2% Hungary >1.2% Iteland >2.25% Ireland >0.5% Israel >2.0% Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan Mo Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Matta Consort stated Moneogro Wort stated Montenegro Other Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75%		>1.2%
Iceland >2.25% Ireland >0.5% Israel >2.0% Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Mata 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >1.2% or more Spain 1.2% or more		>1.2%
Iceland >2.25% Ireland >0.5% Israel >2.0% Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Mata 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Vertherlands >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >1.2% or more Spain 1.2% or more		>1.2%
Ireland >0.5% Israel >2.0% Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Netward >0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% Sorbia No Storkia <0.5%		
Israel >2.0% Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco %n ot stated Montenegro Other Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% Sorbia No Stovakia <0.5%	Ireland	
Italy >1.2% Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%, wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Lithuania Seer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits >1.2% or more Mata >0.0% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Mata 2.0% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Monaco 8eer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Monaco 0.0% or more Montenegro Other Notway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia <0.5%	Israel	>2.0%
Kazakhstan >0.5% Kyrgyzstan No Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco Q.0% or more Monaco % not stated Nontenegro Other Notway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >0.5% Slovenia >0.5% Slovenia >0.5% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Slovenia >1.2%	Italy	
Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Norway >0.5% Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% Sorhai <0.5%		>0.5%
Latvia Beer >0.5%; wine, spirits >1.2% Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Norway >0.5% Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% Sorhai <0.5%	Kvrgvzstan	No
Lithuania >1.2% Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco 00ther Montenegro Otther Netherlands >0.5% Norway 30.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% Serbia No Slovakia >0.5% Slovakia >0.5% Spain >1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Luxembourg Beer 0.5% or more; wine, spirits 1.2% or more Malta 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Netherlands >0.5% Norway >0.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.5% Slovakia >0.5% Slovakia >1.2% or more Spain >1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%	Lithuania	
Malta 2.0% or more Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Netherlands >0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Spain >1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Monaco % not stated Montenegro Other Netherlands >0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% San Marino >0.5% Slovakia >0.5% Slovakia >0.5% Slovakia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Norway 0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >0.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Normatic Normatic Netherlands >0.5% Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%	Montenegro	Other
Norway 2.5% or more Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Poland >0.5% Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Portugal >0.5% Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Republic of Moldova >1.5% Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Romania >0.5% Russian Federation >0.5% San Marino No Serbia No Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% or more Spain 1.2% or more		
Russian Federation>0.5%San MarinoNoSerbiaNoSlovakia>0.75%Slovenia>1.2%Spain1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%		
San MarinoNoSerbiaNoSlovakia>0.75%Slovenia>1.2%Spain1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%		
SerbiaNoSlovakia>0.75%Slovenia>1.2%Spain1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%		
Slovakia >0.75% Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Slovenia >1.2% Spain 1.2% or more Sweden >2.25%		
Spain1.2% or moreSweden>2.25%		
Sweden >2.25%		
	Switzerland	>0.5%

EUR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
Tajikistan	No
The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	No
Turkey	>0.5%
Turkmenistan	No
Ukraine	>1.2%
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	No
Uzbekistan	>1.5%

SEAR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)
Bangladesh	0.5% and more
Bhutan	>0.0%
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	_
India	2.5% or more
Indonesia	Other
Maldives	>0.0%
Myanmar	2% or more
Nepal	No
Sri Lanka	1% or more
Thailand	>0.0%
Timor-Leste	No

WPR	Definition of an alcoholic beverage (% alcohol by volume)		
Australia	>0.5%		
Brunei Darussalam	>0.5%		
Cambodia	No		
China	>0.5%		
Cook Islands	>0.5%		
Fiji	>3.0%		
Japan	>1.0%		
Kiribati	>0.0%		
Lao People's Democratic Republic	No		
Malaysia	>2.0%		
Marshall Islands	—		
Micronesia (Federated States of)	No		
Mongolia	2.0% or more		
Nauru	_		
New Zealand	>1.15%		
Niue	>2.0%		
Palau	>0.5%		
Papua New Guinea	No		
Philippines	>0.5%		
Republic of Korea	1% or more		
Samoa	—		
Singapore	>0.5%		
Solomon Islands	—		
Tokelau	No		
Tonga	No		
Tuvalu	No		
Vanuatu	_		
Viet Nam	% not stated		

APPENDIX IV DATA SOURCES AND METHODS

IV.1 GENERAL COMMENTS

IV.1.1 INFORMATION PERTAINING TO ALL CHAPTERS

The most important data source for alcohol-related information for all four chapters of this report is the WHO Global survey on alcohol and health, the last iteration of which was conducted in 2012 in collaboration with all six WHO regional offices¹ and the European Commission (in countries of the European Union). National counterparts or focal points in all WHO Member States in each region, who were officially nominated by the respective ministries of health, were provided with access to the online survey data collection tool for completion. Where this was not feasible, a hard copy of the tool was forwarded directly to those who requested it. Amendments to the survey responses were then resubmitted by email or electronically. The 2012 questionnaire was a modified version of that used in 2008. The 44 guestions were divided into three sections. Section A addressed alcohol policy; section B addressed alcohol consumption, and section C addressed national monitoring and surveillance. The questionnaire, which was originally in English, was translated into French, Portuguese, Russian and Spanish. By the end of 2012, 176 WHO Member States and one Associate Member² had responded. This represents a response rate of 91.2% (2008, 81.9%) from WHO Member States and Associate Members, covering 97.2% (2008, 97.0%) of the world's population. Whenever information was incomplete or in need of clarification, the guestionnaire was returned to the focal point or national counterpart in the country concerned for revision. The Global survey on alcohol and health addresses the situation at the national level in a given country with additional questions and space for comments on subnational specificities.³ If a country did not respond to a particular question, it was excluded from the analysis for that question. For example, several countries reported a total ban on alcohol and were not included in the analyses presented in chapter 4.

As described below, data from the United Nations Population Division and the World Bank have been crucial in order to present alcohol-related information by gender, WHO region or income level throughout the report.

The population data in this report are obtained primarily from the United Nations Population Division and refer to the total adult (15 years and older or 15+) population (unless otherwise specified), with data for males and females shown separately whenever available. Hence, in the tables and figures presenting results by WHO regions and the world, data are weighted for the population size of the countries in these regions.

¹ WHO Regional Office for Africa (AFRO), Regional Office for the Americas (AMRO), Regional Office for Europe (EURO), Regional Office for the Eastern Mediterranean (EMRO), Regional Office for South-East Asia (SEARO), and the Regional Office for the Western Pacific (WPRO).

² Tokelau completed the survey.

³ The data for the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland refer mainly to England and Wales. India is a federated state with large differences between states. In the federated countries of Canada and the United States of America, most decisions on alcohol policy are taken at the subnational level, although efforts to report at the national level were made wherever possible.

Many data tables and graphs in this report are aggregated according to WHO regions. For a full list of WHO Member States included in this report by WHO region, see Table IV.1.

Given that income levels are an important variable associated with overall alcohol consumption and alcoholrelated health consequences, some of the data presented in this report are also aggregated according to World Bank income groups. WHO Member States with populations of more than 30 000 are allocated to World Bank income groups according to 2012 gross national income (GNI) per capita: high-income (US\$ 10 066 or more), upper middle income (US\$ 3256–10 065), lower middle income (US\$ 826–3255) and low income (US\$ 825 or less). For a full list of WHO Member States included in this report by World Bank income group, see Table IV.2.

IV.1.2 CHAPTER 2 – ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

This chapter utilizes two main sources of data, namely the Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH, WHO, 2014a; see Box 11) and published surveys. For the data on alcohol consumption several sources were utilized. Official data on recorded alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption supplied by the respective Member States were given priority. If these data were not available, data from economic operators⁴ and for wine from the Organisation Internationale de la Vigne et du Vin (OIV) were used. When these data were not consistently available, data supplied by the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO) statistical database (FAOSTAT) were used. The main source for patterns of consumption data was WHO STEPS (STEPwise approach to surveillance; WHO, 2014b). The main source of data on youth (15–19 years of age) was the GSHS (Global School-based Student Health Surveys). Where data were not available, other sources such as the HBSC (Health Behaviour in School-aged Children; Currie et al., 2012) and ESPAD (European School Survey Project on Alcohol and Other Drugs; Hibell et al., 2012) were used. An additional survey on unrecorded consumption was used to improve estimation of unrecorded consumption in some countries. In this survey, sent to 42 countries with at least 10% unrecorded consumption as part of the total consumption, the nominal group technique was used to solicit five expert judgements per country. In addition, a systematic search was conducted on all published literature (Rehm et al., 2014). The data obtained were analysed and fed back to the experts who used them to arrive at a final estimate. The most significant change in the methodology of this chapter compared to that used for the Global status report on alcohol and health 2011 is a change in the definition of heavy episodic drinking (HED), which is now defined as at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days, rather than weekly. This change has been made in order to make the indicator more sensitive to global differences in patterns of alcohol consumption.

Data on drinking status (lifetime abstainers, former drinkers, and past 12 months abstainers), the prevalence of HED, and the prevalence of people with alcohol use disorders (AUDs) (harmful use of alcohol and alcohol dependence), were modelled using regression models. These regression models used data collected through a systematic search of all survey data on the previously mentioned measures of interest (from 2000 onward). The independent variables were per capita consumption, population structure (sex, age), the size of the Muslim population within the country, the region of the country, economic wealth (GDP PPP) and the year from which the survey data were obtained. Where available, the original survey data on the previously mentioned measures of interest were used instead of the predicted estimates. The validity of the predicted estimates was assessed by comparing predicted estimates to actual estimates.

When interpreting data presented in chapter 2, it is important to note that the data are only as reliable as the original source data. This is illustrated by the fact that consumer surveys assessing people's self-reported alcohol consumption usually show overall consumption figures which are much lower, quite often only around 30–60% of supply-based estimates (i.e., data on the taxation, production and trade of alcohol). This would indicate that people are underestimating their own consumption and/or that these surveys do not reach the people with the highest consumption. Sales data, on the other hand, do not allow for the disaggregation of

⁴ Canadean; International Wine and Spirits Research (IWSR); The Wine Institute.
recorded alcohol consumption (15+ years) by gender or by any other personal characteristics. To this end, survey data are needed to measure abstention. For estimating overall consumption, the alcohol per capita data presented in this report are considered to be the best available data.

Projections for total alcohol consumption data for 2015, 2020 and 2025 were derived including fractional polynomial regressions with year as independent variable. As data on per capita consumption may rapidly change over time, the regression model for each country was chosen based on the results of regression models that used data from 2005 onward, 2000 onward, 1990 onward, and 1960 onward. Models were chosen based on a sensitivity analysis that assessed the ability of these models to predict data from 2005 onward when these data were excluded (models were adjusted to use data from 2000 onward, 1995 onward, 1985 onward, and 1960 onward respectively for the sensitivity analyses).

IV.1.3 CHAPTER 3 – HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

The main data sources for the indicators in chapter 3 were GISAH and the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health as well as systematic literature searches. For indicators of risk relations, the Global Burden of Disease estimates for 2010 were used (listed in Table IV.8). Exposure and relative risk was combined to attributable fractions using the following formula:

$$AAF = \frac{P_{abs} + P_{form}RR_{form} + \int_{0+}^{150} P(x)RR(x)dx - 1}{P_{abs} + P_{form}RR_{form} + \int_{0+}^{150} P(x)RR(x)dx}$$

where P_{abs} represents the proportion of "lifetime abstainers", P_{form} the proportion of "former drinkers", and P(x) the probability distribution function of drinkers. RR_{form} represents the RR for "former drinkers," and RR(x) the RR function for a given alcohol consumption in grams per day. A cap at an exposure of 150 g of pure alcohol was used as a conservative measure as very few individuals consume more than 15 standard drinks on a daily basis for an extended period of time.

Alcohol-attributable deaths and burden of disease were then derived using the following formula: deaths/DALYs = AAF* total deaths/total DALYs.

For deaths and disability-adjusted life years (DALYs), WHO Global Health estimates were used (WHO, 2014c). All estimates for alcohol-attributable burden are based on the year 2012, using predicted 2012 alcohol per capita consumption data for countries for which no validated country data were available. Predictions were based on alcohol per capita data from 2000 to 2010, using fractional polynomial regression with year as independent variable.

The analysis resulting in the data presented in chapter 3 has a number of limitations. Data on alcohol exposure are largely based on predicted estimates with a significant uncertainty for unrecorded alcohol consumption. Data on the prevalence of abstainers and the prevalence of HED, collected in household surveys, are not available for every country and are modelled using the above-described method. The meta-analyses used to estimate the AAFs are generally based on epidemiological studies of adults in high-income countries, and there may be limitations regarding transferability of at least some of these risk estimates to populations in low-income and middle income countries. The estimates of alcohol-attributable burden of disease in older age groups can be inflated as the impact of major cardiovascular risk factors on health outcomes in cardiovascular diseases is known to decline with age (Singh et al., 2013), but there is no available evidence to account for such a decline in the case of alcohol consumption. There are also some risks to population health associated with alcohol consumption that were not included in this analysis due to insufficient evidence to quantify the effect, including injuries experienced by non-drinkers or people around drinkers. Finally, information on mortality by cause of death is limited in countries that do not have high-quality vital registration systems (i.e. most low-income countries and many middle income countries).

IV.1.4 CHAPTER 4 – ALCOHOL POLICY AND INTERVENTIONS

Chapter 4 presents 23 alcohol policy indicators collected using the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health questionnaire. The data represent the national status of alcohol policies as of December 2012. For the purpose of the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health, "alcohol policy" was referred to as an organized set of values, principles and objectives for reducing the burden attributable to alcohol in a population. There are also a variety of other policies that impinge on alcohol-related problems, increasing or decreasing them, but these policies are not adopted or implemented with the minimization of alcohol problems as a primary aim. Such policies are normally neither described as alcohol policies nor included within an overall alcohol policy description.

When interpreting the data in chapter 4, it is crucial to note that the number and subset of WHO Member States that responded to the Global Survey on Alcohol and Health in 2008 differed from that of 2012. This is a key factor, for example, in interpreting the responses to the survey question related to the presence or absence of written national alcohol policies. The apparent decline in the percentage of countries with alcohol policies in the WHO Western Pacific Region is due to a larger number of countries in this region responding to this survey question in 2012 than in 2008.

IV.1.5 COUNTRY PROFILES

Individual country profiles were prepared to give an overview of the current situations regarding alcohol and health in WHO Member States and Associate Members. This was achieved on the basis of 50 key indicators chosen by a group of experts for which the fullest data possible were collected and which reflect the 10 target areas of policy measures and interventions at the national level recommended in the Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol (WHO, 2010a). Because of space limitations, not all the information collected in the questionnaire is presented in this report. However, all data collected are displayed on the GISAH website.

Although great efforts have been made to validate the data received from the countries, caution should be exercised in their interpretation. While there has been basic validation of inconsistencies with the focal points and national counterparts within the framework of the WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health, the data on alcohol policy have not been specifically checked against the actual policy legislation in the countries concerned. However, in the autumn of 2013, previews of the country profiles were sent to the respective governments as a part of country consultation process, and changes were made as needed.

The indicators used in the country profiles and the three data sections of the report are described in more detail below. Data sources and methods related to the indicators presented in the country profiles that do not appear elsewhere can be found on the GISAH website.

IV.2 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

IV.2.1 INFORMATION PERTAINING TO ALL CHAPTERS

Table IV.1. WHO Member States by WHO region

WHO region	WHO Member States
AFR	Algeria, Angola, Benin, Botswana, Burkina Faso, Burundi, Cabo Verde, Cameroon, Central African Republic, Chad, Comoros, Congo, Côte d'Ivoire, Democratic Republic of the Congo, Equatorial Guinea, Eritrea, Ethiopia, Gabon, Gambia, Ghana, Guinea, Guinea-Bissau, Kenya, Lesotho, Liberia, Madagascar, Malawi, Mali, Mauritania, Mauritius, Mozambique, Namibia, Niger, Nigeria, Rwanda, Sao Tome and Principe, Senegal, Seychelles, Sierra Leone, South Africa, South Sudan, Swaziland, Togo, Uganda, United Republic of Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe
AMR	Antigua and Barbuda, Argentina, Bahamas, Barbados, Belize, Bolivia (Plurinational State of), Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominica, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Grenada, Guatemala, Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Jamaica, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Puerto Ricoª, Saint Kitts and Nevis, Saint Lucia, Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, Suriname, Trinidad and Tobago, United States of America, Uruguay, Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)
EMR	Afghanistan, Bahrain, Djibouti, Egypt, Iran (Islamic Republic of), Iraq, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Libya, Morocco, Oman, Pakistan, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Somalia, Sudan, Syrian Arab Republic, Tunisia, United Arab Emirates, Yemen
EUR	Albania, Andorra, Armenia, Austria, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Belgium, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Georgia, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, Monaco, Montenegro, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Republic of Moldova, Romania, Russian Federation, San Marino, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Tajikistan, The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Turkey, Turkmenistan, Ukraine, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Uzbekistan
SEAR	Bangladesh, Bhutan, Democratic People's Republic of Korea, India, Indonesia, Maldives, Myanmar, Nepal, Sri Lanka, Thailand, Timor-Leste
WPR	Australia, Brunei Darussalam, Cambodia, China, Cook Islands, Fiji, Japan, Kiribati, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Malaysia, Marshall Islands, Micronesia (Federated States of), Mongolia, Nauru, New Zealand, Niue, Palau, Papua New Guinea, Philippines, Republic of Korea, Samoa, Singapore, Solomon Islands, Tonga, Tokelauª, Tuvalu, Vanuatu, Viet Nam

a Associate Members.

Table IV.2. WHO Member States by World Bank income groups, 2010

Income group	WHO Member States
High (50)	Andorra, Australia, Austria, Bahamas, Bahrain, Barbados, Belgium, Brunei Darussalam, Canada, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Equatorial Guinea, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, Kuwait, Luxembourg, Malta, Monaco, Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Oman, Poland, Portugal, Qatar, Republic of Korea, San Marino, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Trinidad and Tobago, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America, Puerto Rico ^a
Upper middle (52)	Albania, Algeria, Antigua and Barbuda, Argentina, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Botswana, Brazil, Bulgaria, Chile, China, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominica, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Gabon, Grenada, Iran (Islamic Republic of), Jamaica, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Latvia, Lebanon, Libya, Lithuania, Malaysia, Maldives, Mauritius, Mexico, Montenegro, Namibia, Palau, Panama, Peru, Romania, Russian Federation, Saint Kitts and Nevis, Saint Lucia, Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, Serbia, Seychelles, South Africa, Suriname, Thailand, The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Tunisia, Turkey, Uruguay, Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)
Lower middle (54)	Angola, Armenia, Belize, Bhutan, Bolivia (Plurinational State of), Cabo Verde, Cameroon, Congo, Côte d'Ivoire, Djibouti, Egypt, El Salvador, Fiji, Georgia, Ghana, Guatemala, Guyana, Honduras, India, Indonesia, Iraq, Kiribati, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Lesotho, Marshall Islands, Mauritania, Micronesia (Federated States of), Mongolia, Morocco, Nicaragua, Nigeria, Pakistan, Papua New Guinea, Paraguay, Philippines, Republic of Moldova, Samoa, Sao Tome, Senegal, Solomon Islands, Sri Lanka, Sudan, Syria, Swaziland, Timor-Leste, Tonga, Turkmenistan, Tuvalu, Ukraine, Uzbekistan, Vanuatu, Viet Nam, Yemen, Zambia
Low (35)	Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Benin, Burkina Faso, Burundi Cambodia, Central African Republic, Chad, Comoros, Democratic People's Republic of Korea, Democratic Republic of the Congo, Eritrea, Ethiopia, Gambia, Guinea, Guinea-Bissau, Haiti, Kenya, Kyrgyzstan, Liberia, Madagascar, Malawi, Mali, Mozambique, Myanmar, Nepal, Niger, Rwanda, Sierra Leone, Somalia, Tajikistan, Togo, Uganda, United Republic of Tanzania, Zimbabwe
Non classified (5)	Cook Islands, Nauru, Niue, Tokelauª

a Associate Members.

Table IV.3. Percentage of population covered, response rates and geographical coverage of the Global Survey onAlcohol and Health data by WHO region in 2012 and 2008

	2012			2008		
WHO Region	Percentage of population covered (%)	Response rate (%)	Countries with survey data/total number of countries	Population covered (%)	Response rate (%)	Countries with survey data/total number of countries
AFR	100.0	100.0	46/46	100.0	100	46/46
AMR	98.5	94.4	34/36	98.9	82.9	29/35
EMR	86.2	50.0	11/22	92.6	66.7	14/21
EUR	100.0	100.0	53/53	96.9	84.9	45/53
SEAR	98.7	90.0	10/11	98.6	90.0	10/11
WPR	99.9	82.1	23/28	94.7	66.7	18/27
Global	97.2	91.2	177/196	97.0	81.9	162/193

IV.2.2 INFORMATION PERTAINING TO ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION

Table IV.4. Brief description of methodology and data sources for indicators related to alcohol consumption

Sec	tion	Indicator	Methodology	Data sources (in order of priority)	Location in report
1	LEVELS OF Consumption	Total APC, 2010 (see Box 12)	The recorded three-year average APC for 2008–2010 and the unrecorded consumption for 2010 (Box 4) were added to arrive at the <i>total consumption</i> in litres of pure alcohol. The comparison of this total with the <i>weighted</i> average of the total consumption for each region is shown in the country profile. For male and female <i>per capita</i> consumption, we used proportion of alcohol consumed by men versus women plus the demographics for 2010.	Government sources (48 countries), statistics from economic operators (112 countries), FAOSTAT data (28 countries), and other (1).	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles
		Recorded APC (3-year average)	Using the <i>recorded</i> APC data from 2008, 2009 and 2010, 3-year averages were computed. Tourist consumption was removed to provide a better estimate for APC in countries with at least as many tourists as inhabitants.	Government sources (48 countries), statistics from economic operators (112 countries), FAOSTAT data (28 countries), and other (1 country).	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles
		Tourist consumption	 The estimates are linked to APC and are based on the following assumptions: Tourists/visitors consume alcohol as they do at home (i.e. with the same average alcohol per capita consumption). The average length of stay by tourists/visitors was 14 days (except for Estonia, Luxembourg, and the Republic of Moldova, where there is a lot of crossborder shopping with shorter average length of stay). 	For <i>tourism/visitors adjustment</i> , we relied mainly on the United Nations (UN) visitors' database for estimating the number of tourists/visitors. The following criteria were used: a) if the number of tourists/visitors was less than the number of inhabitants, then no adjustment was made; b) if the number of tourists/visitors was greater than or equal to the number of inhabitants, an adjustment was made for countries where the majority was of Muslim religion (lowest threshold of adjustment; size of Muslim population was based on UN data); c) if the number of tourists/visitors was greater than or equal to 1.5 times the number of inhabitants and the country was low-income or middle income, an adjustment was made; d) if the number of tourists/ visitors was greater than or equal to 2 times the number of inhabitants and the country was high- income, an adjustment was made. The different adjustments were made to limit quantification of tourist/visitors' consumption to instances, where it would impact at least 10% of consumption.	Appendix
		Unrecorded APC	Unrecorded APC in litres of pure alcohol in 2010 was based on empirical investigations and the judgement of experts.	Unrecorded consumption was available for 192 countries. A special exercise to collect in-depth information on unrecorded alcohol from all venues (i.e., cross-border shopping, surrogate alcohol use, illegal and legal home production, smuggling) was conducted to improve the accuracy of unrecorded data (ongoing; see also Poznyak et al., 2013; Rehm et al., 2014).	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles
		Consumption by type of alcoholic beverage	APC in litres of pure alcohol for 2010 for beer, wine, spirits and other alcoholic beverages were calculated separately as a percentage of the "All recorded APC".	Government sources (48 countries), statistics from economic operators (112 countries), FAOSTAT data (28 countries), and other (1 country).	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles
		Drinking among drinkers, 2010	Litres of pure alcohol (recorded and unrecorded) consumed only by those 15 years of age and older were obtained by calculating the total population of male and female <i>drinkers</i> using the abstainer data (see below) and applying the proportion to the total litres (3-year average) of pure alcohol consumed.	Total APC and abstainer data for each country.	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles

Sec	tion	Indicator	Methodology	Data sources (in order of priority)	Location in report
		Recorded APC, 1960–2010	The time-series graph in the country profiles depicts recorded alcohol per capita (15+ years) consumption in litres of pure alcohol from the first available year for each country. Data for beer, wine, spirits and other alcoholic beverages shown as well as for "AII", that is, the sum of the types. The "other alcoholic beverages" category consists of such types as fortified wine, fermented beverages, sorghum, maize, ready-to-drink, and so on.	The decision tree for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) sources is: 1) government data; 2) industry data (if based on interviews in countries); 3) Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO), and 4) economic operators (if desk review). If there are doubts regarding the best source to use, the Steering Committee makes the final decision based on consensus and in consultation with the government. See Table IV.5 for data sources by country.	Country profiles
		Directional arrows	In order to provide a visualization of the change in alcohol consumption for the 3-year average for 2008–2010 for recorded, unrecorded and total alcohol consumption compared to the 3-year average for these indicators for 2003–2005, arrows were used and rules were established for their use.	Change was indicated if the difference between the two periods for each of the three indicators was at least 10%. In the case where the values of the two periods were below 1 litre, the arrows were horizontal, since no valid determination could be made. If one value was more than 1 litre and the change was less than 50%, a horizontal arrow was used. If the change was 50% or greater, then the arrow indicated the direction of this change.	Country profiles
2	2 PATTERNS OF Consumption	Prevalence of abstention, best estimates for 2010 (Box 14)	The percentage of those people in a population who did not drink any alcohol in the past 12 months, those who have never consumed alcohol (lifetime abstainers), and those who had previously consumed alcohol but who had not done so in the previous 12-month period (former drinkers) are presented.	Data for drinking status were modelled using regression models. Where available, the original survey data on the previously mentioned measures of interest were used instead of the predicted estimates. The regression models used data collected through a systematic search of all survey data (from 2006 onwards) and took into account per capita consumption, population structure (age, sex), the size of Muslim population within the country, economic wealth (GDP PPP), the region of the country, and the year from which the survey data were obtained. Data on gross domestic product (adjusted for purchasing power parity) were obtained from the World Bank. The validity of the predicted estimates was assessed by comparing predicted estimates to actual estimates.	Chapter 2 and country profiles
		Heavy episodic drinking (HED), best estimates for 2010 (see Box 1)	The number of males in the population multiplied by the percentage of heavy drinkers in the population. The number of male heavy drinkers divided by the number of male drinkers equals the percentage of male heavy episodic drinkers among male drinkers. (Similar calculations are done for HED among females and the total population.)	Surveys carried out in the time period 2006–2010. HED is defined as having consumed at least 60 grams or more of pure alcohol on at least one occasion in the past 30 days. Values for countries with no available surveys were imputed via multiple regression based on region, year of survey, per capita consumption, pattern of drinking score, demographic indicators (including religion) and economic wealth (GDP-PPP) as predictors.	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles
		Patterns of drinking score	Based on an array of drinking attributes which are weighted differentially in order to provide a score from 1 (least risky drinking pattern) to 5 (most risky drinking pattern).	Patterns of drinking scores were attributed based on surveys, if countries had done surveys within the past 5 years with all the relevant variables included. Otherwise, they were based on judgements of experts from the country concerned. If patterns of drinking scores were questioned in the WHO validation process done with the countries, a regression was used based on per capita consumption, heavy episodic drinking, and abstention. For a list of relevant variables in the original score please refer to Rehm et al, 2003b.	Chapter 2 and country profiles

Sec	tion	Indicator	Methodology	Data sources (in order of priority)	Location in report
3	3 TRENDS AND Projections	Estimate of the 5-year change in recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption, 2006–2010	Comparing the moving average (MA) for 2010 to the MA for 2006, the five-year change was classed as: Increase, if MA 2010 > 1.10* of the MA for 2006, and there are no changes in trend of more than -10% for any year in between, and if per capita recorded consumption is ≥ 1 litre of pure alcohol; Decrease, if MA 2010 < 0.90 * of the MA for 2006, and there are no changes in trend of more than +10% for any year in between, and if per capita recorded consumption is ≥ 1 litre of pure alcohol; Stable, if (MA 2010 ≥ 0.90 of MA 2006) and (MA 2010 ≤ 1.10 of MA 2006), and MA 2007, 2008, 2009 are within this range as well, and if per capita recorded consumption is ≥ 1 litre of pure alcohol; Inconclusive, if there are changes in trend of more than $\pm 10\%$ (i.e., upward trend but one year more than 10% down, or downward trend but one year more than 10% up) for any of the years in between or if per capita recorded consumption is <1 litre of pure alcohol.	Recorded APC data for each country (see above) were used to compute 3-year moving averages (MA) for each year beginning in 2005. For example, 2006 = average 2005–2007 2007 = average 2006–2008 2008 = average 2007–2009 2009 = average 2008–2010 2010 = average 2009–2010. Using MAs for comparison shows a stronger or more robust relationship over time by minimizing non- significant variations in the values from year to year.	Chapter 2 and country profiles
		Projections of total alcohol per capita (15+) consumption	Projections for total alcohol consumption data for 2015, 2020 and 2025 were derived using fractional polynomial regression models with year as independent variable (for modelling strategy see next column).	As data on per capita consumption change rapidly over time, the regression model for each country was chosen based on the results of regression models that used data from 2005 onward, 2000 onward, 1990 onward, and 1960 onward. Models were chosen based on a sensitivity analysis that assessed the ability of these models to predict data from 2005 onward when these data were excluded (models were adjusted to use data from 2000 onward, 1995 onward, 1985 onward, and 1960 onward respectively for the sensitivity analyses).	Chapter 2, Appendix and country profiles

Table IV.5. Sources of APC data by WHO Member State

WHO region	WHO Member State	Data source for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption ^a
AFR	Algeria	WDT 1961–2001; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2002–2005; (import, export) 2006–2010
	Angola	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Benin	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Botswana	FA0,1961–1999; merged (FA0, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Burkina Faso	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Burundi	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Cabo Verde	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Cameroon	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Central African Republic	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Chad	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Comoros	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Congo	FAO 1961–2001; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2002–2010
	Côte d'Ivoire	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine institute) 2000–2010
	Democratic Republic of the Congo	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Equatorial Guinea	FAO 1983–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine institute) 2000–2007
	Eritrea	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FA0, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Ethiopia	FA0 1961-2010
	Gabon	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine institute) 2000–2010
	Gambia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Ghana	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Guinea	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Guinea-Bissau	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Kenya	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Lesotho	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Liberia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Madagascar	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FA0, Canadean, OIV) 2000–2010
	Malawi	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Mali	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Mauritania	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FA0, Canadean) 2000–2009
	Mauritius	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Mozambique	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Namibia	FA0 1961-2009
	Niger	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Nigeria	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Rwanda	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine institute) 2000–2010
	Sao Tome and Principe	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Senegal	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Seychelles	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010
	Sierra Leone	FAO 1990–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	South Africa	WDT 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (alcohol industry) 2000–2010
	Swaziland	FAO 1990–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Togo	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Uganda	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean) 2000–2010

WHO region	WHO Member State	Data source for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption ^a
	United Republic of Tanzania	FAO 1990–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Zambia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Zimbabwe	FAO 1961–1999; merged (WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2008 and 2012, sales data) 2000–2005; with Wine Institute 2006–2010 $$
AMR	Antigua and Barbuda	FAO 1962–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Argentina	FAO 1961–1979; WDT 1980–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2000–2010
	Bahamas	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Barbados	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Belize	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Brazil	WDT 1963–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Canada	WDT 1961–1992; Statistics Canada 1993–2010
	Chile	WDT 1961–1999; Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales, production, import, export) 2000–2010
	Colombia	FAO 1961–1962; WDT 1963–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute,IWSR) 2000–2010
	Costa Rica	FAO 1961—1999; merged (Canadean, Wine institute, IWSR) 2000—2010
	Cuba	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Dominica	FA0 1990-2009
	Dominican Republic	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Ecuador	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	El Salvador	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Grenada	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Guatemala	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Guyana	FAO 1961–1989; WDT 1990– 1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Haiti	FA0 1961-2009
	Honduras	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Jamaica	FAO 1961–1999; merged Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Mexico	WDT 1961–1989; Consultores Internacionales 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Nicaragua	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Panama	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Paraguay	WDT 1961-1999; FAO 2000-2009
	Peru	WDT 1961–1999; Food and Agriculture Organization of the UN (2000–2009)
	Puerto Rico ^b	Merged (Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Saint Kitts and Nevis	FAO 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Saint Lucia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	FAO 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Suriname	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Trinidad and Tobago	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	United States of America	National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (NIAAA) 1961–2010
	Uruguay	WDT 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2000–2010
	Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010

WHO region	WHO Member State	Data source for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption ^a
EMR	Afghanistan	FA0 1961–2010
	Bahrain	FA0 1970–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Djibouti	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Egypt	FA0 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Iran (Islamic Republic of)	FA0 1961-1999; merged (FA0, IWSR) 2000-2010
	Iraq	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Jordan	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Kuwait	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Lebanon	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Libya	FA0 1961–2009
	Morocco	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Oman	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Pakistan	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Qatar	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Saudi Arabia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Somalia	FA0 1961–2010
	Sudan	FAO 1961–2010
	Syrian Arab Republic	FA0 1961–1999; merged (FA0, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Tunisia	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	United Arab Emirates	FAO 1972–1999; merged (IWSR) 2000–2010
EUR	Yemen Albania	FAO 1961–2010 FAO 1962–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
LUK	Andorra	WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (imports, exports) 2002–2010
	Armenia	FAO 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Austria	Handbook on alcohol 2011 (Anton Proksch Institute) 1960–2010
	Azerbaijan	FAO 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Belarus	FAO 1980–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2000–2010
	Belgium	WDT 1963–1999; FAO 2000–2007; Belgium Ministry of Finance (excise data) 2008–2010
	Bosnia and Herzegovina	FAO 1992–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Bulgaria	WDT 1963–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Croatia	FAO 1987–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Cyprus	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000– 2010
	Czech Republic	WDT 1963–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2000–2010 recalculated for 4% beer strength
	Denmark	WDT 1961–1989; Statistics Denmark (sales) 1990–2010
	Estonia	WDT 1990–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (Alcohol Market Yearbook, excluding tourist consumption) 2000–2010
	Finland	National Research and Development Centre for Welfare and Health (STAKES) 1961–1989; Statistics Finland 1990–2010
	France	WDT 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (taxation, OFDT based on INSEE data) 2000–2010
	Georgia	FAO 1990–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Germany	FAO (1961–1962) WDT 1963–1990; Destatis 1991–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales data from alcohol industry converted to 15+) 2000–2010
	Greece	WDT 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Hungary	WDT 1961–1999; Hungarian Central Statistical Office (sales) 2000–2010
	Iceland	WDT 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2000–2007; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2008–2010

WHO region	WHO Member State	Data source for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption ^a
into region	Ireland	WDT 1961–2001; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (taxation) 2002–2010
	Israel	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Italy	WDT 1961–1999; Assobirra Annual Report 2000–2004; WHO Global Survey on alcohol and Health 2012 (sales, taxation) 2005–2010
	Kazakhstan	FAO 1988–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Kyrgyzstan	FAO 1985 - 2009
	Latvia	WDT 1980-2001; Statistics Latvia 2000-2010
	Lithuania	FAO 1984–1999; Statistics Lithuania 2000–2010
	Luxembourg	Average of France and Germany's consumption 1961–2010
	Malta	FAO 1961–1987; WDT 1988–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Monaco	_
	Montenegro	Merged (FAO, OIV) 2006–2010
	Netherlands	WDT 1961–2001; Statistics Netherlands 2002 –2010
	Norway	WDT 1961–1966; Norwegian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Research (SIRUS) 1967–1980; Statistics Norway 1981–2010
	Poland	WDT 1961– 1999; Statistics Poland 2000–2010
	Portugal	WDT 1963–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Republic of Moldova	FAO 1990–2002; Statistical Yearbook of Moldova 2000–2010
	Romania	WDT 1963–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (production, import, export) 2000–2010
	Russian Federation	WDT 1963–1999; Rosstat (sales data) 2000–2010
	San Marino	—
	Serbia	Merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000—2004; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 with IWSR for spirits 2005–2010
	Slovakia	WDT 1961-2001; Statistics Slovakia (consumption converted to 15+) 2002-2010
	Slovenia	FAO 1981–1999; Statistics Slovenia (converted to 15+) 2000–2005; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales) 2006–2010
	Spain	WDT 1962–2001; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales, taxation) 2002–2010
	Sweden	WDT 1961–1999; Centre for Social Research on Alcohol and Drugs (Alcohol Use in Sweden 2010) 2000–2010
	Switzerland	WDT 1961–1999; Swiss Alcohol Board 2000–2010
	Tajikistan	FAO 1992-2009
	The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	Statistics Macedonia 1992–2010;FAO 1992–2009
	Turkey	WDT 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (government statistics) 2000–2010
	Turkmenistan	FAO 1992–1999; merged (Canadean, OIV, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Ukraine	WDT 1975, 1980–1990; FAO 1991–2004; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (sales converted to 15+) with Canadean for beer 2005–2010
	United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	WDT 1961–1999; 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health (customs and excise converted to 15+) 2000–2010
	Uzbekistan	FA0 1992–2009
SEAR	Bangladesh	FA0 1961-2009
	Bhutan	FA0 1961-2008
	Democratic People's Republic of Korea	_
	India	FAO 1961–1999, merged (FAO, Wine Institute, IWSR adjusted for "country liquor") 2000–2010
	Indonesia	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Maldives	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Myanmar	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Nepal	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Sri Lanka	FAO 1961–1980; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2008 (sales) 1981–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (customs and excise) 2000–2010

WHO region	WHO Member State	Data source for recorded alcohol per capita (15+) consumption ^a
	Thailand	FAO 1961–1984; WDT 1985–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012(production, import, export, taxation) 2000–2008; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2009–2010
	Timor-Leste	FA0 1961-2009
WPR	Australia	WDT 1961–1989; National Drug Research Institute (NDRI) 1990–1999; Australian Bureau of Statistics (taxation; sales data for wine) 2000–2010
	Brunei Darussalam	FA0 1961-2009
	Cambodia	FA0 1961-2009
	China	FAO 1961–1984; WDT 1985–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (production) 2000–2010
	Cook Islands	FA0 1999-2008
	Fiji	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Japan	WDT 1961—1988; Japan National Tax Agency (converted to 15+) 1989—2010
	Kiribati	FA0 1961-2009
	Lao People's Democratic Republic	FAO 1961–1999, merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Malaysia	FAO 1961–1979; WDT 1980–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Marshall Islands	_
	Micronesia (Federated States of)	FAO 1961–2002; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (imports) 2003–2010
	Mongolia	FAO 1961–2001; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (production, import, export) 2002–2010
	Nauru	Merged (FAO, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	New Zealand	WDT 1963–1996; Statistics New Zealand 1997–2010
	Niue	FA0 1990-2008
	Palau	2008 WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health (exports/imports) 2002–2006
	Papua New Guinea	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Philippines	FAO 1961–1999; merged (Canadean, Wine Institute, IWSR) 2000–2010
	Republic of Korea	FAO 1961–1999; WHO Global Survey on Alcohol and Health 2012 (production, import, export) 2000–2010
	Samoa	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Singapore	FAO 1961–1984; WDT 1985–2001; Singapore National Statistics (taxation) 2002–2010
	Solomon Islands	FAO 1961–1999; merged(FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010
	Tokelau ^b	—
	Tonga	FAO 1990–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2002–2010
	Tuvalu	FA0 1990-2008
	Vanuatu	FAO 1961–1999; merged (FAO, Canadean, Wine Institute) 2000–2010

FAO, Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations; IWSR, International Wine and Spirits Research; OIV, International Organisation of Vine and Wine; WDT, World Drink Trends.
 Associate Members.

WHO region	WHO Member State	Tourist consumption 2005	Tourist consumption 2010
AFR	Botswana	—	0.44
	Cabo Verde	0.43	—
	Seychelles	0.79	0.68
	Swaziland	—	0.24
AMR	Antigua and Barbuda	1.98	3.36
	Bahamas	2.56	4.24
	Barbados	0.91	0.62
	Belize	0.62	—
	Dominica	0.65	0.45
	Grenada	0.56	1.03
	Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.41	2.10
	Saint Lucia	1.07	1.96
	Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.45	—
EMR	Bahrain	—	0.84
	Qatar	—	0.76
	United Arab Emirates	—	0.90
EUR	Albania	—	0.46
	Andorra	1.30	1.30
	Austria	2.25	2.25
	Croatia	—	0.68
	Cyprus	1.44	0.64
	Estonia	0.80	3.00
	Iceland	0.85	0.44
	Ireland	_	0.48
	Malta	1.37	1.26
	Montenegro	—	0.81
	Republic of Moldova	3.00	—
SEAR	Maldives		0.69
WPR	Cook Islands	2.65	2.34
	Fiji	0.41	—
	Malaysia	—	0.16
	Palau	1.93	1.93
	Samoa	—	0.19
	Singapore	1.51	0.41
	Tonga	0.50	
	Vanuatu	0.53	_

Table IV.6. Consumption by tourists in litres of pure alcohol, 2005 and 2010

IV.2.3 INFORMATION PERTAINING TO HEALTH CONSEQUENCES

Table IV.7. Brief description of the methodology and data sources for indicators related to health consequences

Indicator	Definition	Methodology	Location in report
Age-standardized death rates for road traffic injuries and liver cirrhosis, 2010	Rates express deaths per 100 000 population. Deaths are markedly impacted by age, and thus, simple (or in epidemiological terms crude) rates are impacted by the age distribution in countries. Developing countries have different age distributions from high-income countries, for example, with more people in younger age categories.	To make rates comparable across countries, they are statistically adjusted to one common population structure (the standard population). In other words, standardized rates simulate a situation where all countries would have the same age distribution in the population. Data are standardized to the WHO standard population data to reflect a number per 100 000 population (WHO, 2014c).	Country profiles
Alcohol-attributable fractions for road traffic injuries and liver cirrhosis, 2010	The alcohol-attributable fraction (AAF) denotes the proportion of a health outcome which is caused by alcohol (i.e. that proportion which would disappear if alcohol consumption was removed). Alcohol consumption has a causal impact on more than 200 health conditions (diseases and injuries).	Population-attributable fractions are calculated based on the level of exposure to alcohol and the risk relations between consumption and different disease or injury categories. For each disease the exact proportion is different and will depend on the level and patterns of alcohol consumption, and on the relative risks.	Country profiles
Alcohol-attributable deaths	Alcohol-attributable deaths are deaths that would not have occurred if alcohol were not consumed in the population.	Alcohol-attributable deaths are calculated as the total number of deaths (for each age-sex-country-disease unit) multiplied by the AAF (see above) for the same age-sex- country-disease unit.	Appendix
Years of life lost (YLL) score 2010	A score from 1 to 5 was calculated, based on the percentage of YLL that can be attributable to alcohol, where 1 was the <i>lowest</i> percentage and 5 was the <i>highest</i> percentage.	The YLL score is based on alcohol-attributable YLL as a percentage of all YLLs, approximate quintiles. This accounts for the size of the country as well as for overall life expectancy, which is determined mostly by wealth.	Country profiles
Alcohol-attributable disability-adjusted life years (DALYs)	The DALY is a measure of overall disease burden. Alcohol- attributable DALYs may be interpreted as the number of years lost due to ill-health, disability or early death from the harmful use of alcohol. Alcohol-attributable DALYs are DALYs that would not have occurred if alcohol were not consumed in the population.	Alcohol-attributable DALYs are calculated as the sum of alcohol-attributable YLL and YLD (years lost due to disability). Alcohol-attributable YLL and YLD are calculated as the total number of YLL/YLD for each age-sex-country- disease unit multiplied by the AAF for each age-sex- country-disease unit. AAFs for YLL and YLD are calculated separately, as alcohol may have a different impact on fatal vs nonfatal outcomes.	Chapter 3
Prevalence of alcohol-use disorders (AUDs) and alcohol dependence	Data on the prevalence of people with AUD (including harmful use and alcohol dependence), were modelled using regression models. Where available, the original survey data on the previously-mentioned measures of interest were used instead of the predicted estimates. The regression models used data collected through a systematic search of all survey data on the previously-mentioned measures of interest (from 2000 onward) and took into account per capita consumption, population structure, the size of Muslim population within the country, the region of the country, and the year from which the survey data were obtained.	Data on gross domestic product (adjusted for purchase power parity) were obtained from the World Bank (World Bank, 2013). The validity of the predicted estimates was assessed by comparing predicted estimates to the survey data.	Chapter 3, Appendix and country profiles

Table IV.8. Causes of death included in the analysis

Cause of death	Description/details	Sources for relative risks ^a	Modelled in this report
Neonatal conditions	A pattern of mental and physical defects that can develop in a fetus in association with high levels of alcohol consumption during pregnancy (fetal alcohol syndrome), preterm birth.	Foltran et al., 2011; Patra et al., 2011.	Yes
Cancers	Nasopharyngeal cancer, oesophageal cancer, laryngeal cancer, liver cancer, pancreatic cancer, colon/rectal cancer, female breast cancer	Corrao et al., 2004.	Yes
Diabetes mellitus	Diabetes mellitus	Baliunas et al., 2009.	Yes
Neuropsychiatric disorders	Alcohol use disorders, primary epilepsy	Samokhvalov et al., 2010b; Rehm & Shield, 2013.	Yes
Cardiovascular diseases	Hypertensive heart disease, ischaemic heart disease, ischaemic stroke, haemorrhagic stroke, atrial fibrillation and flutter, conduction disorders	Taylor et al, 2009; Guiraud et al, 2010; Patra et al., 2010; Samokhvalov et al., 2010c; Roerecke & Rehm, 2010a,b, 2012.	Yes
Gastrointestinal diseases	Liver cirrhosis and pancreatitis (both acute and chronic)	Irving et al., 2009; Rehm et al., 2010a.	Yes
Infectious diseases	Tuberculosis, course of HIV/AIDS, lower respiratory infections (pneumonia)	Lönnroth et al., 2008; Rehm et al., 2009b; Samokhvalov et al., 2010a; Gmel et al., 2011.	Yes
Unintentional injuries	Transport injuries, falls, drowning, fire, poisonings, other unintentional injuries	Taylor et al., 2010; Shield et al., 2012b.	Yes
Intentional injuries	Self-inflicted injuries, interpersonal violence	Taylor et al., 2010; Shield et al., 2012b.	Yes

a For Belarus, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania, Republic of Moldova, Russian Federation and Ukraine the relative risks were calculated based also on Zaridze et al. (2009) for the following conditions: all injury causes, ischaemic heart disease, liver cirrhosis, lower respiratory infections, pancreatitis, stroke, suicide, tuberculosis.

IV.2.4 INFORMATION PERTAINING TO ALCOHOL POLICY AND INTERVENTIONS

Table IV.9. Definition and/or explanation of policy indicators

	ommended target a for national action	Indicator	Definition and/or explanation (primarily in accordance with the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health)	Location in report
1	LEADERSHIP, AWARENESS AND Commitment	Written national policy (adopted/ revised)	A written national policy on alcohol is an organized set of values, principles and objectives for reducing the burden attributable to alcohol in a population, which is adopted at the national level.	Country profiles
		National action plan (yes or no)	A specific plan designed for the implementation of the written national policy.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
		Presence of awareness-raising activities (yes or no)	National awareness-raising activities include campaigns or information available about: young people's drinking, drink-driving, indigenous people and alcohol, alcohol's impact on health, illegal or surrogate alcohol use, alcohol use and pregnancy, alcohol use and work, and harms to others than the drinker.	Chapter 4
2	HEALTH SERVICE Response	Presence of a mandated national focal point, whether organizational or individual, for monitoring and reporting alcohol-related harm (yes or no)	A designated institution, organization or department with clear responsibilities for monitoring and reporting alcohol-related harm. This could also be a person with the mandated function of monitoring the situation on alcohol and health who could be located at the ministry of health, at a drug control directorate or department, or at another specified institution, organization or department.	Chapter 4
3	COMMUNITY ACTION	National government support for community action (yes or no)	The four specific ways a government could support community action were: earmarked funds, provision of technical tools tailored to communities, training programmes and community programmes, and policies for subgroups at particular risk. If the response to any of these options was yes, "yes" is shown in the country profile.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
4	DRINK-DRIVING Policies and Countermeasures	National maximum legal blood alcohol concentration (BAC) when driving a vehicle (as a percentage)	Where data were not provided in the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health, the WHO Road Safety Report (2012) was used for determining the national maximum BAC when driving a vehicle (%). Data are provided for the general population of drivers, for young people or novice drivers, and for professional drivers.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
		Sobriety checkpoints (yes or no)	Sobriety checkpoints are checkpoints or roadblocks established by the police on public highways to control for drink-driving.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
		Random breath testing	Random breath testing means that any driver can be stopped by the police at any time to test his or her breath for the presence of alcohol.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
5	AVAILABILITY OF Alcohol	National control of production and/ or sale (yes or no)	Government monopoly means full or almost complete government control. Licensing means partial government control where a licence is required. For both monopoly and licensing, respondents were asked to provide this information for beer, wine and spirits separately.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
		National legal minimum age for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages	Legal age limit means that alcoholic beverages cannot be served or sold to a person under this age. Age limits are provided for selling or serving beer, wine and spirits. They are also provided separately for on- premise (café, pub, bar, restaurant and off-premise (stores, shops, supermarkets) sales or service.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
		Restrictions for on-/off-premise sales of alcoholic beverages (yes or no)	An off-premise sale means selling alcohol to take away, e.g., in stores, shops and supermarkets. On-premise sales means serving alcohol e.g. in a café, pub, bar or restaurant. Information on restrictions on sales was requested, regarding hours (set opening hours), days (designated days of the week), places (designated types of places permitted to sell alcohol), density (limit to number of outlets in a specific geographical area), specific events (specific types of events are restricted), selling to those already intoxicated and selling at petrol stations. These restrictions apply to beer, wine and spirits. If the response for <i>any</i> beverage type is yes, "yes" appears in the country profile.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
		Restrictions on drinking in public places	The public places asked about were: health-care establishments, educational buildings, government offices, public transport, parks and streets, sporting events, leisure events (e.g., concerts), workplaces and places of worship. Possible responses were: ban, partial statutory restriction, voluntary or self-regulated (the alcoholic beverage industry follows its internal voluntary rules) or no restriction.	Chapter 4

Recommended target Definition and/or explanation Location in			
area for national action 6 MARKETING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES	Indicator Legally binding regulations on alcohol advertising and/or on product placement.	(primarily in accordance with the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health) Respondents were asked to indicate, for beer, wine and spirits separately, if there were any legally binding restrictions on alcohol advertising and, if so, what was the extent of the restriction. Possible responses were: ban, partial statutory restriction (specifically as it applies during a certain <i>time</i> of day or for a certain <i>place</i> , or to the <i>content</i> of events, programmes, magazines, films, etc.), voluntary or self-regulated (the alcoholic beverage industry follows its internal voluntary rules) or no restriction. If the response for any beverage type was that there was a ban or partial statutory restriction, then "yes" appears in the country profile. If the response was that there was voluntary or no restriction, then "no" appears.	report Chapter 4 and country profiles
	Legally binding regulations on product placement.	Respondents were asked to indicate, for beer, wine, and spirits separately, if there were any legally binding restrictions on product placement (e.g. do economic operators sponsor television or film productions if their product is shown in these productions) and, if so, what was the extent of the restriction. Possible responses were: ban, partial statutory restriction (specifically as it applies during a certain time of day or for a certain <i>place</i> , or to the <i>content</i> of events, programmes, magazines, films, etc.), voluntary or self-regulated (the alcoholic beverage industry follows its internal voluntary rules) or no restriction. If the response for any beverage type was that there was a ban or partial statutory restriction, then "yes" appears on the country profile. If the response was that there was voluntary or no restriction, then "no" appears.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
	Legally binding regulations on alcohol sponsorship	Respondents were asked to indicate, for beer, wine and spirits separately, if there were any legally binding restrictions on alcohol sponsorship at the national level. Industry sponsorships included those for sporting and youth events. Possible responses were: ban, partial statutory restriction, voluntary or self-regulated (the alcoholic beverage industry follows its own internal voluntary rules) or no restriction. If the response for any beverage type was that there is a ban or partial statutory restriction, then "yes" appears in the country profile. If the response was voluntary or no restriction, then "no" appears.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
	Legally binding regulations on sales promotions	Respondents were asked to indicate, for beer, wine, and spirits separately, if there were any legally binding restrictions on sales promotions at the national level. Sales promotions included promotions by producers (e.g., parties and events), below-cost promotions by retailers, and free drink sales promotions by the owners of pubs and bars. Possible responses were: ban, partial statutory restriction, or voluntary or self-regulated (the alcoholic beverage industry follows its own internal voluntary rules). If the response for any beverage type was ban or partial statutory restriction, then "yes" appears in the country profile. If the response was voluntary or no restriction, then "no" appears .	Chapter 4 and country profiles
7 PRICING POLICIES	Excise tax on beer, wine, spirits (yes or no)	An <i>excise tax</i> is an inland tax applied on the sale of, or production for sale of, specific goods. Here it refers to beer, wine, and spirits. Excise taxes are distinguished from customs duties, which are taxes on importation.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
	Duty paid excise or tax stamps or labels (yes or no)	Respondents were asked to provide this information for beer, wine, and spirits separately.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
	Inflation adjustment on alcohol taxes (yes or no)	Respondents were asked to provide this information for beer, wine, and spirits separately.	Chapter 4
	Presence of price measures other than taxation (yes or no)	Price measures such as: minimum price policy, ban on below-cost selling, ban on volume discounts, requirement to offer non-alcoholic beverages at a lower price, additional levies on specific products (e.g., on alcopops), and price measures to discourage underage and high-volume drinking.	Chapter 4
8 REDUCING THE NEGATIVE CONSEQUENCES OF INTOXICATION	Legally required health warning labels on alcohol advertisements and /or on alcohol containers (yes or no)	If 'yes', respondents were asked to provide the text or a picture of the warning.	Chapter 4 and country profiles
	Requirement to display consumer information about calories, additives, vitamins and micro elements on the labels of alcohol containers (yes or no)	Respondents were asked to provide information on the requirement to display consumer information about calories, additives, vitamins and micro elements on the labels of alcohol containers.	Chapter 4

	ommended target a for national action	Indicator	Definition and/or explanation (primarily in accordance with the 2012 Global Survey on Alcohol and Health)	Location in report
		Number of standard alcoholic drinks displayed on containers required (yes or no)	The number of standard drinks in different container sizes for each beverage as different brands and types of beverages vary in their actual alcohol content.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
		Alcohol content displayed on containers (yes or no)	Alcohol content varies according to the size of container and the type of beverage.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
		Systematic alcohol server training (yes or no)	Server training means a form of occupational training provided to people serving alcohol, such as bar and restaurant staff, waiting staff or people serving at catered events. Alcohol server training promotes the safe service of alcoholic beverages to customers (e.g. not serving to intoxication, not serving to those already intoxicated or to minors). Alcohol server training can be regulated and mandated by state or local laws.	Chapter 4
9	REDUCING THE PUBLIC HEALTH IMPACT OF UNRECORDED ALCOHOL	Estimates of unrecorded alcohol at the national level (yes or no)	Unrecorded alcohol means alcohol which is not taxed and is outside the usual system of governmental control, such as home or informally produced alcohol (legal or illegal), smuggled alcohol, surrogate alcohol (which is alcohol not intended for human consumption), or alcohol obtained through cross-border shopping (which is recorded in a different jurisdiction).	Chapter 4
10	MONITORING AND Surveillance	National monitoring systems (yes or no)	The four national monitoring systems centre on: alcohol consumption, health consequences, social consequences and alcohol policy responses. If the response to any of these options was yes, "yes" appears in the country profile.	Chapter 4, Appendix III and country profiles
OTHER		Sociodemographic context	In order to provide a complete picture of the countries for which data relating to alcohol and health are shown, total population, population 15 years of age and older, population in urban areas and income group are provided at the beginning of each country profile. Annual growth rate and literacy rate for 2010 are provided in the Appendix section.	Country profiles and Appendix III
		Total ban on alcohol use	Alcohol is totally prohibited in some countries. If this was indicated when asked about a written national policy on alcohol, this was verified by email. If a country did not respond to the survey and had previously indicated that alcohol use was prohibited, the representatives were contacted by email to verify that this was still the situation in 2012.	Appendix III
		Definition of an alcoholic beverage (yes or no)	If "yes", a copy of the definition was requested.	Chapter 4 and Appendix III
		Traditional and local beverages	Traditional and local beverages contribute to both the recorded and unrecorded portions of alcohol consumption. For the recorded portion, these are found in the "other alcoholic beverages" category.	Appendix III

REFERENCES

Aaron P, Musto D (1981). Temperance and prohibition in America: an historical overview. In Moore MH, Gerstein D, editors. Alcohol and public policy: beyond the shadow of Prohibition. Washington (DC): National Academy Press: 127–81.

Abel EL, Sokol RJ (1987). Incidence of fetal alcohol syndrome and economic impact of FAS-related anomalies. Drug Alcohol Depend. 19:51–70.

Allen NE, Beral V, Casabonne D, Kan SW, Reeves GK, Brown A, Green J, and Million Women Study Collaborators (2009). Moderate alcohol intake and cancer incidence in women. J Natl Cancer Inst. 101:296– 305. doi: 10.1093/jnci/djn514.

Anderson P, Baumberg B (2006). Alcohol in Europe – A public health perspective. A report for the European Commission. England: Institute of Alcohol Studies.

Anderson P, de Bruijn A, Angus K, Gordon R, Hastings G (2009a). Impact of alcohol advertising and media exposure on adolescent alcohol use: a systematic review of longitudinal studies. Alcohol Alcohol. 44:229–43. doi: 10.1093/alcalc/agn115.

Anderson P, Chisholm D, Fuhr D (2009b). Effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of policies and programmes to reduce the harm caused by alcohol. Lancet. 373(9682): 2234–46.

Azar MM, Springer SA, Meyer JP, Altice FL (2010). A systematic review of the impact of alcohol use disorders on HIV treatment outcomes, adherence to antiretroviral therapy and health care utilization. Drug Alcohol Depend. 112:178–93. doi: 10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2010.06.014.

Baan R, Straif K, Grosse Y, Secretan B, El Ghissassi F, Bouvard V, Altieri A, Cogliano V (2007). Carcinogenicity of alcoholic beverages. Lancet Oncol. 8:292–93. PMID: 17431955.

Babor T, Caetano R, Casswell S, Edwards G, Giesbrecht N, Graham K et al. (2003). Alcohol: no ordinary commodity – research and public policy. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Babor T, McRee BG, Kassebaum PA, Grimaldi PL, Ahmed K, & Bray J (2007). Screening, brief intervention, and referral to treatment (SBIRT): Towards a public health approach to the management of substance abuse. Subst Abus. 28:7–30.

Babor T., Caetano R., Casswell S., Edwards G., Giesbrecht N., & Graham K. et al. (2010). Alcohol: No Ordinary Commodity—Research and Public Policy. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.

Baliunas D, Rehm J, Irving H, Shuper P (2010). Alcohol consumption and risk of incident human immunodeficiency virus infection: A metaanalysis. Int J Public Health. 55:159–66. doi: 10.1007/s00038-009-0095-x.

Baliunas DO, Taylor BJ, Irving H, Roerecke M, Patra J, Mohapatra S, Rehm J (2009). Alcohol as a risk factor for type 2 diabetes: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Diabetes Care. 32:2123–32. doi: 10.2337/dc09-0227.

Barr HM, Streissguth AP (2001). Identifying maternal self-reported alcohol use associated with fetal alcohol spectrum disorders. Alcoholism Clin Exp Res. 25:283–7.

Baum MK, Rafie C, Lai S, Sales S, Page JB, Campa A (2010). Alcohol use accelerates HIV disease progression. AIDS Res Hum Retroviruses. 26:511–8. doi: 10.1089/aid.2009.0211.

Bennett LA, Janca A, Grant BF, Sartorius N (1993). Boundaries between normal and pathological drinking: A cross-cultural comparison. Alcohol Health Res World. 17:190–5.

Blas E, Kurup AS (2010). Equity, social determinants and public health programmes. Geneva: World Health Organization (http://whqlibdoc.who.int/publications/2010/9789241563970_eng.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

Bloomberg RD, Peck RC, Moskowitz H, Burns M, Fiorentino D (2009). The Long Beach/Fort Lauderdale relative risk study. J Safety Res. 40:285-92. doi: 10.1016/j.jsr.2009.07.002.

Boden JM, Fergusson DM (2011). Alcohol and depression. Addiction. 106:906-14.

Bongers IMB, Van de Goor LAM, Van Oers JAM, Garretsen HFL (1998). Gender differences in alcoholrelated problems: controlling for drinking behaviour. Addiction. 93:411–21.

Bouchery EE, Harwood HJ, Sacks JJ, Simon CJ, Brewer RD (2011). Economic costs of excessive alcohol consumption in the US, 2006. Am J Prev Med. 41:516–24. doi: 10.1016/j.

Boyle P, Boffetta P (2009). Alcohol consumption and breast cancer risk. Breast Cancer Res. 11(Suppl 3):S3. doi:10.1186/bcr2422.

Campbell C, Hahn R, Elder R, Brewer R, Chattopadhyay S, Fielding J et al. (2009). The effectiveness of limiting alcohol outlet density as a means of reducing excessive alcohol consumption and alcohol-related harms. Am J Prev Med. 37:556–9.

Casswell S, Thamarangsi T (2009). Reducing harm from alcohol: call to action. Lancet 27;373(9682):2247–57. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(09)60745-5.

Casswell S, You RQ, Huckle T (2011). Alcohol's harm to others: reduced wellbeing and health status for those with heavy drinkers in their lives. Addiction, 106:1087–94.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: Epidemiology Program Office (2010). Guide to Community Preventative Services (http://www.thecommunityguide.org/index.html, accessed 22 April 2014).

Chan, M (2013). Letter in reply to BMJ feature on the alcohol industry. BMJ. 346:21. doi:10.1136/bmj.f2647.

Chander G, Lau B, Moore RD (2006). Hazardous alcohol use: A risk factor for non-adherence and lack of suppression in HIV infection. J Acquir Immune Defic Syndr. 43:411–7. doi: 10.1097/01. qai.0000243121.44659.a4.

Chartier KG, Vaeth PAC, Caetano R (2013). Focus on: ethnicity and the social and health harms from drinking. Alcohol Res. 35:229–37.

Cherpitel CJ (2013). Focus on: The burden of alcohol use – trauma and emergency outcomes. Alcohol Res: Current Reviews. 35:150–4.

Chisholm D, Doran C, Shibuya K, Rehm J (2006). Comparative cost-effectiveness of policy instruments for reducing the global burden for alcohol, tobacco and illicit drugs. Drug Alcohol Rev. 25:553–65.

Chisholm D, Rehm J, Van Ommeren M, Monteiro M (2004). Reducing the global burden of hazardous alcohol use: a comparative cost-effectiveness analysis. J Stud Alcohol. 65:782–93.

Clark DB (2006). Children at high risk for underage drinking and alcohol use disorders. Frontlines. Bethesda (MD): National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism.

Coffey TG (1966). Beer Street: Gin Lane – some views of 18th-century drinking. Q J Stud Alcohol, 27: 669–2.

Colson E, Scudder T (1988). For prayer and for profit: the ritual, economic, and social importance of beer in Gwembe district, Zambia, 1950-1982. Stanford (CA): Stanford University Press.

Connor J, Casswell S (2012). Alcohol-related harm to others in New Zealand: Evidence of the burden and gaps in knowledge. N Z Med J. 125:11–27.

Corrao G, Bagnardi V, Zambon A, La Vecchia C (2004). A meta-analysis of alcohol consumption and the risk of 15 diseases. Prev Med. 38:613–9.

Currie C, Zanotti C, Morgan A, Currie D, De Looze M, Roberts C et al. (2012). Social determinants of health and well-being among young people. Health Behaviour in School-aged Children (HBSC). study: international report from the 2009/2010 survey. Copenhagen, WHO Regional Office for Europe (http://www.euro.who. int/en/what-we-publish/abstracts/social-determinants-of-health-and-wellbeing-among-young-people.-health-behaviour-in-school-agedchildren-hbsc-study, accessed 14 April 2014).

De Silva V, Samarasinghe D, Hanwella R (2011). Association between concurrent alcohol and tobacco use and poverty. Drug Alcohol Rev. 30:69–73. doi: 10.1111/j.1465-3362.2010.00202.x.

DeWit DJ, Adlaf EM, Offord DR, Ogborne AC (2000). Age at first alcohol use: A risk factor for the development of alcohol disorders. Am J Psychiatry, 157:745–50.

Drummond C, Pilling S, Brown A et al. (2011). Alcohol-use disorders: The NICE guideline on diagnosis, assessment and management of harmful drinking and alcohol dependence. Clinical Guideline 115. London: National Collaborating Centre for Mental Health, NICE.

Elder RW, Shults RA, Sleet DA, Nichols JL, Zaza S, Thompson RS (2002). Effectiveness of sobriety checkpoints for reducing alcohol-involved crashes. Traffic Injury Prevention. 2:266–74.

Elder RW, Lawrence B, Ferguson A, Naimi TS, Brewer RD, Chattopadhyay SK (2010). The effectiveness of tax policy interventions for reducing excessive alcohol consumption and related harms. Am J Prevent Med, 38:217–29.

Elder RW, Lawrence B, Janes G, Brewer RD, Toomey TL, Hingson RW et al. (2007). Enhanced enforcement of laws prohibiting sale of alcohol to minors: systematic review of effectiveness for reducing sales and underage drinking. Transportation Research E-Circular (E-C123), 181–8.

ESPAD European School Survey Project on Alcohol and Other Drugs (http://www.espad.org/, accessed 14 April 2014).

Esser MB, Jernigan DH (submitted for publication). Alcohol marketing policies in 64 countries: A global assessment approach.

Foltran F, Gregori D, Franchin L, Verduci E, Giovannini M (2011). Effect of alcohol consumption in prenatal life, childhood, and adolescence on child development. Nutr Rev. 69:642–59. doi: 10.1111/j.1753-4887.2011.00417.x.

Gmel G, Shield K, Rehm J (2011). Developing a methodology to derive alcohol-attributable fractions for HIV/ AIDS mortality based on alcohol's impact on adherence to antiretroviral medication. Popul Health Metr. 9:5. doi: 10.1186/1478-7954-9-5.

Gomber EL (1988). Alcoholic women in treatment: the question of stigma and age. Alcohol Alcoholism. 23:507–14.

Graham K, Bernards S, Munné M, Wilsnack SC, editors (2008). Unhappy hours: alcohol and partner aggression in the Americas. Washington (DC): Pan American Health Organization (http://new.paho.org/hq/dmdocuments/2009/Unhappy_Hours_ENG.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

Grant BF (1998). Age at smoking onset and its association with alcohol consumption and DSM-IV alcohol abuse and dependence: results from the National Longitudinal Alcohol Epidemiologic Survey. J Subst Abuse, 10:9–73.

Grant BF, Dawson DA (1997). Age at onset of alcohol use and its association with DSM-IV alcohol abuse and dependence: Results from a longitudinal alcohol epidemiologic survey. J Subst Abuse. 9:103–10.

Grittner U, Kuntsche S, Graham K, Bloomfield K (2012). Social inequalities and gender differences in the experience of alcohol-related problems. Alcohol Alcohol. 47:597–605. doi: 10.1093/alcalc/ags040.

Grucza RA, Bucholz KK, Rice JP, Bierut LJ (2008). Secular trends in the lifetime prevalence of alcohol dependence in the United States: a re-evaluation. Alcohol Clin Exp Res. 32:763–70.

Grundstrom AC, Guse CE, Layde PM (2012). Risk factors for falls and fall-related injuries in adults 85 years of age and older. Arch Gerontol Geriatr. 54:421–28.

Guiraud V, Amor MB, Mas JL, Touzé E (2010). Triggers of ischemic stroke: a systematic review. Stroke. 41:2669–77. doi: 10.1161/STROKEAHA.110.597443.

Gumede MV (1995). Alcohol use and abuse in South Africa: A socio-medical problem. Pietermaritzburg, South Africa: Reach Out Publishers.

Hahn JA, Samet JH (2010). Alcohol and HIV disease progression: weighing the evidence. Curr HIV/AIDS Rep. 7:226–33. doi: 10.1007/s11904-010-0060-6.

Hahn JA, Woolf-King SE, Muyindike W (2011). Adding fuel to the fire: alcohol's effect on the HIV epidemic in Sub-Saharan Africa. Curr HIV/AIDS Rep. 8:172–80.

Hahn RA, Kuzara JL, Elder R, Brewer R, Chattopadhyay S, Fielding J et al. (2010). Effectiveness of policies restricting hours of alcohol sales in preventing excessive alcohol consumption and related harms. Am J Prev Med. 39:590–604. doi: 10.1016/j.amepre.2010.09.016.

Hemström Ö (2002). Alcohol-related deaths contribute to socioeconomic differentials in mortality in Sweden. Eur J Public Health. 12:254–62. doi: 10.1093/eurpub/12.4.254.

Hendershot CS, Stoner SA, Pantalone DW, Simoni JM (2009). Alcohol use and antiretroviral adherence: review and meta-analysis. J Acquir Immune Defic Syndr. 52:180–202. doi: 10.1097/QAI.0b013e3181b18b6e.

Hibell B, Guttormsson U, Ahlström S, Balakireva O, Bjarnason T, Kokkevi AE et al. (2012). The 2011 ESPAD Report – Substance use among students in 36 European Countries. Stockholm: Swedish Council for Information on Alcohol and Other Drugs (CAN).

Hilton ME (1987). Demographic characteristics and the frequency of heavy drinking as predictors of self-reported drinking problems. Br J Addiction. 82:913–25.

Hingson RW, Heeren T, Jamanka A, Howland J (2000). Age of drinking onset and unintentional injury involvement after drinking. JAMA. 284:1527–33.

Hingson R, Heeren T, Zakocs R (2001). Age of drinking onset and involvement in physical fights after drinking. Pediatrics. 108:872–77.

Hingson R, Edwards EM, Heeren T, Rosenbloom D (2009). Age of drinking onset and injuries, motor vehicle crashes, and physical fights after drinking and when not drinking. Alcohol Clin Exp Res. 33(5):783–90.

HM Government (2012). The Government's Alcohol Strategy. (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ alcohol-strategy, accessed 28 April 2014).

Hoeksema S (2004). Gender differences in risk factors and consequences for alcohol use and problems. Clinical Psychol Rev. 24:981–1010.

Holder HD, Gruenwald PJ, Ponicki WR (2000). Effect of community-based interventions on high-risk drinking and alcohol-related injuries. JAMA. 284:2341–47.

Hradilova Selin K (2004). Dryckesvanor i den svenska befolkningen [Drinking habits among Swedes]. In: Hradilova Selin, K, editor. Svenska dryckesvanor och deras konsekvenser i början av det nya millenniet Stockholm: SoRAD Stockholms Universitet, 75–94. Humeniuk R, Ali R, Babor T, Souza-Formigoni ML, de Lacerda RB, Ling W et al (2012). A randomized controlled trial of a brief intervention for illicit drugs linked to the Alcohol, Smoking and Substance Involvement Screening Test (ASSIST) in clients recruited from primary health-care settings in four countries. Addiction. 107(5):957–66.

Institute of Medicine (1990). Broadening the base of treatment for alcohol problems. Washington (DC): National Academies Press.

International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) (2010). IARC Monographs on the evaluation of carcinogenic risks to humans: Alcohol consumption and ethyl carbamate, vol. 96. Lyon: IARC.

International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) (2012). A Review of Human Carcinogens: Personal Habits and Indoor Combustions, vol. 100E. Lyon: IARC.

Irving HM, Samokhvalov AV, Rehm J (2009). Alcohol as a risk factor for pancreatitis. A systematic review and meta-analysis. JOP. 10:387–92.

Jernigan D (2000). Applying commodity chain analysis to changing modes of alcohol supply in a developing country. Addiction. 95:465–75.

Jernigan D, Ostroff J, Ross C (2005). Alcohol advertising and youth: A measured approach. Journal of Public Health Policy. 26(3):312–25.

Jernigan D (2013). Why South Africa's proposed advertising ban matters. Addiction. 108:183–5.

Johansson P et al. (2006). The social costs of alcohol in Sweden 2002. Stockholm: Centre for Social Research on Alcohol and Drugs (SoRAD) (SoRAD Rapportserie Nr 36 (http://www.dldocs.stir.ac.uk/ documents/soradcosts.pdf, accessed 25 April 2014).

Jones SC, Hall D, Munro G (2008). How effective is the revised regulatory code for alcohol advertising in Australia? Drug Alcohol Rev. 27:29–38.

Kalichman SC, Simbayi LC, Kaufman M, Cain D, Jooste S (2007). Alcohol use and sexual risks for HIV/AIDS in sub-Saharan Africa: systematic review of empirical findings. Prev Sci., 8:141–51.

Kaner EF, Beyer F, Dickinson HO, Pienaar E, Campbell F, Schlesinger C et al. (2007). Effectiveness of brief alcohol interventions for primary care populations. Cochrane Database Syst. Rev. 18(2): CD004148.

Kanteres F, Lachenmeier DW, Rehm J (2009). Alcohol in Mayan Guatemala: consumption, distribution, production and composition of cuxa. Addiction. 104:752–9.

Kessler RC (2004). The epidemiology of dual diagnosis. Biol Psychiatr. 56:730-7.

Kraus L, Bloomfield K, Augustin R, Reese A (2000). Prevalence of alcohol use and the association between onset of use and alcohol-related problems in a general population sample in Germany. Addiction. 95:1389–401.

Lachenmeier DW, Ganss S, Rychlak B, Rehm J, Sulkowska U, Skiba M, Zatonski W (2009). Association between quality of cheap and unrecorded alcohol products and public health consequences in Poland. Alcohol Clin Exp Res. 33:1757–69.

Laslett AM, Room R, Ferris J, Wilkinson C, Livingston M, Mugavin J (2011). Surveying the range and magnitude of alcohol's harm to others in Australia. Addiction. 106:1603–11. doi: 10.1111/j.1360-0443.2011.03445.x.

Latendresse SJ, Rose RJ, Viken RJ, Pulkkinen L, Kaprio J, Dick DM (2008). Parenting mechanisms in links between parents' and adolescents' alcohol use behaviors. Alcoholism Clin Exp Res, 32:322–30. doi:10.1111/j.1530-0277.2007.00583.x.

Leifman H, Sundelin M, Raninen A (2013). General recommendations on community based alcohol- and drug-prevention, Generic ADPY report 2013. Stockholm, CAN: The Swedish Council for Information on Alcohol and Other Drugs.

Leitz J, Kuballa T, Rehm J, Lachenmeier DW (2009). Chemical analysis and risk assessment of diethyl phthalate in alcoholic beverages with special regard to unrecorded alcohol. PLoS One, 4. e8127. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0008127.

Lim SS, Vos T, Flaxman AD, Danaei G, Shibuya K, Adair-Rohani H (2012). A comparative risk assessment of burden of disease and injury attributable to 67 risk factors and risk factor clusters in 21 regions, 1990–2010: a systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2010. Lancet. 380:2224–60. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(12)61766-8 [PMID: 23245609].

Liu X, Zha J, Nishitani J, Chen H, Zack JA (2003). HIV-1 infection in peripheral blood lymphocytes (PBLs) exposed to alcohol. Virology. 307:37–44. doi: 10.1037/h0087644.

Lönnroth K, Williams B, Stadlin S, Jaramillo E, Dye C (2008). Alcohol use as a risk factor for tuberculosis – a systematic review. BMC Public Health. 8:289. doi: 10.1186/1471-2458-8-289.

Lupton C, Burd L, Harwood R (2004). Cost of fetal alcohol spectrum disorders. Am J Med Genet C Semin Med Genet. 127C: 42–50.

Macdonald S, Greer A, Brubacher J, Cherpitel C, Stockwell T, Zeisser C (2013). In: Boyle P, Boffetta P, Lowenfels AB, Burns H, Brawley O, Zatonski W et al., editors. Alcohol consumption and injury. Alcohol: science, policy and public health. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Mäkelä P (1999a). Alcohol-related mortality as a function of socioeconomic status. Addiction. 94:867–86. DOI: 10.1046/j.1360-0443.1999.94686710.x.

Mäkelä K, Mustonen H (2000). Relationships of drinking behaviour, gender and age with reported negative and positive experiences related to drinking. Addiction. 95:727–36.

Mäkelä P (1999b). Alcohol related mortality during an economic boom and recession. Contemp Drug Problems. 26:369–90.

Mäkelä P, Holmila M, Kaukonen O (2002). Päihteet ja päihdepolitiikka [Alcohol, drugs and policy]. In: I Kangas, I Keskimäki, S Koskinen, K, Manderbacka, E Lahelma, R Prättälä, M Sihto, editors. Kohti Terveyden Tasa-arvoa. Helsinki: Edita:101–122.

Matzopoulos RG, Truen S, Bowman B, Corrigall J (2014). The cost of harmful alcohol use in South Africa. S Afr Med J. 104:127–32.

McGovern P (2009). Uncorking the past: The quest for wine, beer, and other alcoholic beverages. Berkley (CA): University of California Press.

McKee M, Pomerleau J, Robertson A, Pudule I, Grinberga D, Kadziauskiene K et al. (2000). Alcohol consumption in the Baltic Republics. J Epidemiol Community Health. 54:361–6.

Merikangas KR, Stolar M, Stevens DE, Goulet J, Preisig MA, Fenton B et al. (1998). Familial transmission of substance use disorders. Arch Gen Psychiatry. 55:973–9.

Midanik LT, Clark WB (1995). Drinking-related problems in the United States: description and trends, 1984-1990. J Stud Alcohol. 56:395–402.

Middleton JC, Hahn RA, Kuzara JL, Elder R, Brewer R, Chattopadhyay S et al. (2010). Effectiveness of policies maintaining or restricting days of alcohol sales on excessive alcohol consumption and related harms. Am J Prev Med. 39:575–89. doi: 10.1016/j.amepre.2010.09.015.

Mitchell AJ, Malone D, Doebbeling CC (2009). Quality of medical care for people with and without comorbid mental illness and substance misuse: systematic review of comparative studies. Br J Psychiatry. 194:491–99. doi: 10.1192/bjp.bp.107.045732.

Morojele NK, Kachieng'a MA, Mokoko E, Nkoko MA, Parry CDH, Nkowane AM, et al. (2006). Alcohol use and sexual behaviour among risky drinkers and bar and shebeen patrons in Gauteng province, South Africa. Soc Sci Med. 62:217–27.

Navarro HJ, Dorani CM, Shakeshaft AP (2011). Measuring costs of alcohol harm to others: A review of the literature. Drug Alcohol Depend. 114:87–99. doi: 10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2010.11.009.

Nelson DE, Jarman DW, Rehm J, Greenfield TK, Rey G, Kerr WC (2013). Alcohol-attributable cancer deaths and years of potential life lost in the United States. Am J Public Health. 641–8. doi: 10.2105/ AJPH.2012.301199.

Neumark YD, Rahav G, Jaffe DH (2003). Socio-economic status and binge drinking in Israel. Drug Alcohol Depend. 69:15–21.

NICE (2010a). Alcohol use disorders: preventing the development of hazardous and harmful drinking. Public Health Intervention Guidance No. 24. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.

NICE (2010b). Alcohol use disorders: diagnosis and clinical management of alcohol related physical complications. Clinical Guideline 100. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.

Norström T, Romelsjö A (1998). Social class, drinking and alcohol-related mortality. J Substance Abuse. 10:385–95.

Obot IS (2000). The measurement of drinking patterns and alcohol problems in Nigeria. J Substance Abuse. 12:169–81.

Olsen JA, Richardson J, Dolan P, Menzel P (2003). The moral relevance of personal characteristics in setting health care priorities. Soc Sci Med. 57:1163–72.

Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (2014). Drinking lives away. Alcohol, economics and public health policy. Paris: OECD Publishing.

Otto S (1981). Women, alcohol and social control. In: Hutter B, Williams G, editors. Controlling Women: The Normal and the Deviant. London: Croom Helm:154–167.

Parry CDH, Bennetts AL (1998). Alcohol policy and public health in South Africa. Cape Town: Oxford University Press.

Patra J, Taylor B, Irving H, Roerecke M, Baliunas D, Mohapatra S, Rehm J (2010). Alcohol consumption and the risk of morbidity and mortality for different stroke types—a systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Public Health. 10:258. doi: 10.1186/1471-2458-10-258.

Patra J, Bakker R, Irving H, Jaddoe VWV, Malini S, Rehm J (2011). Dose-response relationship between alcohol consumption before and during pregnancy and risk of low birth weight, preterm birth and small for gestational age (SGA) – A systematic review and meta-analyses. An International Journal of Obstetrics & Gynaecology. 118:1411–21.

Peek-Asa C (1999). The effect of random alcohol screening in reducing motor vehicle crash injuries. Am J Preventive Med. 16:57–67.

Pol S, Artru P, Thépot V, Berthelot P, Nalpas B (1996). Improvement in the CD4 count after alcohol withdrawal in HIV positive alcoholic patients. AIDS. 10:1293–4.

Popova S, Lange S, Burd L, Chudley AE, Clarren SK, Rehm J (2013). Cost of fetal alcohol spectrum disorder diagnosis in Canada. PLoS ONE. 8(4): e60434. Doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0060434.

Poznyak V, Fleischmann A, Rekve D, Rylett M, Rehm J, Gmel G (2013). The World Health Organization's Global Monitoring System on Alcohol and Health. Alcohol Research: Current Reviews. 35:244–49.

Preedy VR, Watson RR, editors (2005). Comprehensive handbook of alcohol-related pathology. London: Elsevier Science.

Pretorius L, Naidoo A, Reddy SP (2009). "Kitchen cupboard drinking": a review of South African women's secretive alcohol addiction, treatment history, and barriers to accessing treatment. Soc Work in Public Health. 24:89–99. doi: 10.1080/19371910802569575.

Raistrick D, Heather N, Godfrey C (2006). Review of the effectiveness of treatment for alcohol problems. London: National Treatment Agency for Substance Misuse.

Ramstedt M, Leifman H, Müller D, Sundin E, Norström T (2013). Reducing youth violence related to student parties: Findings from a community intervention project in Stockholm. Drug Alcohol Rev. 32:561–65. doi: 10.1111/dar.12069.

Rehm J, Room R, Graham K, Monteiro M, Gmel G, Sempos CT (2003a). The relationship of average volume of alcohol consumption and patterns of drinking to burden of disease – An overview. Addiction. 98:1209–28.

Rehm J, Rehn N, Room R, Monteiro M, Gmel G, Jernigan D, Frick U (2003b). The global distribution of average volume of alcohol consumption and patterns of drinking. Eur Addict Res. 9:147–156.

Rehm J, Mathers C, Popova S, Thavorncharoensap M, Teerawattananon Y, Patra J (2009a). Global burden of disease and injury and economic cost attributable to alcohol use and alcohol use disorders. Lancet. 373:2223–33.

Rehm J, Samokhvalov AV, Neuman MG, Room R, Parry CD, Lönnroth K et al. (2009b). The association between alcohol use, alcohol use disorders and tuberculosis (TB). A systematic review. BMC Public Health. 9:450. doi: 10.1186/1471-2458-9-450.

Rehm J, Kanteres F, Lachenmeier DW (2010). Unrecorded consumption, quality of alcohol and health consequences. Drug Alcohol Rev. 29:426–36. doi: 10.1111/j.1465-3362.2009.00140.x.

Rehm J, Baliunas D, Borges GL, Graham K, Irving H, Kehoe T et al. (2010a). The relation between different dimensions of alcohol consumption and burden of disease – an overview. Addiction. 105:817–43. doi: 10.1111/j.1360-0443.2010.02899.x.

Rehm J, Taylor B, Mohapatra S, Irving H, Baliunas D, Patra J et al. (2010b). Alcohol as a risk factor for liver cirrhosis: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Drug Alcohol Rev. 29:437–45. doi: 10.1111/j.1465-3362.2009.00153.x.

Rehm J, Shield KD, Joharchi N, Shuper PA (2012). Alcohol consumption and the intention to engage in unprotected sex: systematic review and meta-analysis of experimental studies. Addiction. 107:51–9. doi: 10.1111/j.1360-0443.2011.03621.x.

Rehm J, Shield, KD (2013). Alcohol and mortality: global alcohol-attributable deaths from cancer, liver cirrhosis and injury in 2010. Alcohol Research: Current Reviews, 35(2), 174–183.

Rehm J, Kailasapillai S, Larsen E, Rehm MX, Samokhvalov AV, Shield KD et al. (2014). A systematic review of the epidemiology of unrecorded alcohol consumption and the chemical composition of unrecorded alcohol. Addiction. doi: 10.1111/add.12498. [Epub ahead of print Jan 28].

Rhoades E, Jernigan DH (2013). Risky messages in alcohol advertising, 2003-2007: Results from content analysis. J Adolesc Health. 52:116–21. doi: 10.1016/j.jadohealth.2012.04.013.

Roerecke M, Rehm J (2010a). Irregular heavy drinking occasions and risk of ischemic heart disease: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Am J Epidemiol. 171:633–44. doi: 10.1093/aje/kwp451.

Roerecke M, Rehm J (2010b). Ischemic heart disease mortality and morbidity rates in former drinkers: a meta-analysis. Am J Epidemiol. 173:245–58. doi: 10.1093/aje/kwq364.

Roerecke M, Rehm J (2012). Alcohol intake revisited: risks and benefits. Curr Atheroscler Rep. 14:556–62. doi: 10.1007/s11883-012-0277-5.

Room R, Rehm J, Trotter RT II, Paglia A, Üstün TB (2001). Cross-cultural views on stigma, valuation, parity and societal attitudes towards disability. In: Üstün TB et al. editors. Disability and culture: universalism and diversity. Seattle: Hofgrebe & Huber:247–291.

Room R, Jernigan D, Carlini-Marlatt B, Gureje O, Mäkelä K, Marshall M et al. (2002). Alcohol and developing societies: a public health approach. Helsinki: Finnish Foundation for Alcohol Studies and Geneva: World Health Organization.

Rothman KJ (1976). Causes. Am J Epidemiol. 104:587-92.

Rothman KJ, Greenland S (2005). Causation and causal inference in epidemiology. Am J Public Health. 95:144–50.

Rothman KJ, Greenland S, Lash TL (2008). Modern epidemiology, 3rd ed. Philadelphia (PA): Lippincott Williams & Wilkins.

Sacks JJ, Roeber J, Bouchery EE, Gonzales K, Chaloupka FJ, Brewer R (2013). State costs of excessive alcohol consumption, 2006. Am J Preventive Med. 45:474–85.

Samokhvalov AV, Irving HM, Rehm J (2010a). Alcohol consumption as a risk factor for pneumonia: systematic review and meta-analysis. Epidemiology and Infection. 138(12):1789–95.

Samokhvalov AV, Irving H, Mohapatra S, Rehm J (2010b). Alcohol consumption, unprovoked seizures and epilepsy: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Epilepsia. 51:1177–84.

Samokhvalov AV, Irving HM, Rehm J (2010c). Alcohol as a risk factor for atrial fibrillation: a systematic review and meta-analysis. European Journal of Cardiovascular Prevention and Rehabilitation. 17(6):706–712.

Santana P (2002). Poverty, social exclusion and health in Portugal. Soc Sci Med. 55:33-45.

Sartor CE, Lynskey MT, Heath AC, Jacob T, True W (2007). The role of childhood risk factors in initiation of alcohol use and progression to alcohol dependence. Addiction. 102:216–25.

Schmidt, L.A, Mäkelä, P, Rehm, J, Room, R (2010). Alcohol: equity and social determinants. In: Blass E, Kurup, A.S, editors. Equity, social determinants and public health programmes. Geneva: World Health Organization.

Schuckit MA (2009). Alcohol use disorders. Lancet. 373:492-501.

Seitz HK, Pelucchi C, Bagnardi V, La Vecchia C (2012). Epidemiology and pathophysiology of alcohol and breast cancer: Update 2012. Alcohol Alcohol. 47:204–12.

Sheeran P, Abraham C, Orbell S (1999). Psychosocial correlates of heterosexual condom use: a metaanalysis. Psychol Bull. 125:90–132.

Sheeran P, Orbell S (1998). Do intentions predict condom use? Meta-analysis and examination of six moderator variables. Br J Soc Psychol. 37:231–50.

Shi L, Stevens GD (2005). Vulnerability and unmet health care needs – the influence of multiple risk factors. J Gen Intern Med. 20:148–154. doi: 10.1111/j.1525-1497.2005.40136.x.

Shield KD, Kehoe T, Gmel G, Rehm MX, Rehm J (2012a). Societal burden of alcohol. In: Anderson P, Møller L, Galea G, editors. Alcohol in the European Union. Consumption, harm and policy approaches. Copenhagen, World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe:10–28.

Shield KD, Kehoe T, Gmel G, Rehm MX, Rehm J (2012b). Societal burden of alcohol. In: Anderson, P., Møller, L. & Galea, G. (Eds.). Alcohol in the European Union. Consumption, harm and policy approaches (10-28). Copenhagen, Denmark: World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe.

Shield KD, Parry C, Rehm J (2013). Chronic diseases and conditions related to alcohol use. Alcohol Research Current Reviews. 35:155–171.

Shin SH, Pelucchi C, Bagnardi V, La Vecchia C (2009). Child abuse and neglect: relations to adolescent binge drinking in the national longitudinal study of adolescent health (AddHealth) study. Addictive Behaviors. 34:277–280.

Singh GM, Danaei G, Farzadfar F, Stevens GA, Woodward M, Wormser D et al (2013). The age-specific quantitative effects of metabolic risk factors on cardiovascular diseases and diabetes: a pooled analysis. PloS One. 8(7): e65174.

Smith K, Cukier S, Jernigan D (2013). The adequacy of federal regulation and industry self-regulation of alcohol advertising in protecting the public's health: Content analysis of alcohol ads in magazines 2008-2010. Am J Public Health. (Epub ahead of print.)

Sorock GS, Chen LH, Gonzalgo SR, Baker SP (2006). Alcohol-drinking history and fatal injury in older adults. Alcohol. 40:193–9.

Stranges S, Wu T, Dorn JM, Freudenheim JL, Muti P, Farinaro E et al. (2004). Relationship of alcohol drinking pattern to risk of hypertension: a population-based study. Hypertension. 44:813–19.

Strong PM (1980). Doctors and dirty work: the case of alcoholism. Sociol Health Illness. 2:24-47.

Sudnow, D (1967). Dead on arrival. Transaction. 5:36-43.

Task Force On Community Preventive Services (2012). Preventing excessive alcohol consumption: Electronic screening and brief interventions (e-SBI). Atlanta, Task Force on Community Preventive Services (http://www.thecommunityguide.org/alcohol/RReSBI.html, accessed 20 March 2014).

Taylor B, Irving HM, Baliunas D, Roerecke M, Patra J, Mohapatra S, Rehm J (2009). Alcohol and hypertension: gender differences in dose-response relationships determined through systematic review and meta-analysis. Addiction. 104(12):1981–1990.

Taylor B, Irving HM, Kanteres F, Room R, Borges G, Cherpitel C et al. (2010). The more you drink, the harder you fall: A systematic review and meta-analysis of how acute alcohol consumption and injury or collision risk increase together. Drug Alcohol Depend. 110:108–16. doi: 10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2010.02.011.

Thavorncharoensap M, Teerawattananon Y, Jomkwan Y, Lertpitakpong C, Chaikledkaew U (2009). The economic impact of alcohol consumption: a systematic review (http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2791094/pdf/1747-597X-4-20.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

Trevisan M, Schisterman E, Mennotti A, Farchi G, Conti S, and Risk Factor and Life Expectancy Research Group (2001). Drinking pattern and mortality: the Italian Risk Factor and Life Expectancy Pooling Project. Ann Epidemiol. 11:312–19.

Trolldal B, Brännström L, Paschall MJ, Leifman H (2013). Effects of a multi-component responsible beverage service programme on violent assaults in Sweden. Addiction. 108:89–96. doi: 10.1111/j.1360-0443.2012.04004.x.

UN System Task Team (2012). Realizing the future we want for all. Report to the Secretary-General. New York: United Nations (http://www.un.org/millenniumgoals/pdf/Post_2015_UNTTreport.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

US Surgeon General (2007). Surgeon General's call to action to prevent and reduce underage drinking. Washington (DC): Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Surgeon General.

Van Gils PF, Hamberg-van Reenen HH, Van den Berg M, Luqman T, De Wit GA (2010). The scope of costs in alcohol studies: Cost-of-illness studies differ from economic evaluations. Cost Eff Resource Alloc. 8:15. doi: 10.1186/1478-7547-8-15.

Viljoen D, Gossage JP, Brooke L, Adnams CM, Jones K, Robinson LK et al. (2005). Fetal alcohol syndrome epidemiology in a South African community: A second study of a very high prevalence area. J Stud Alcohol. 66:593–604.

Wagenaar AC, Murray DM, Toomey TL (2000). Communities Mobilizing for Change on Alcohol (CMCA): Effects of a randomized trial on arrests and traffic crashes. Addiction. 95:209–17.

Wagenaar AC, Murray DM, Gehan JP, Wolfson M, Forster JL, Toomey TL et al. (2000a). Communities mobilizing for change on alcohol: outcomes from a randomized community trial. J Stud Alcohol. 61:85–94.

Wagenaar AC, Toomey TL, Erickson DJ (2005). Complying with the minimum drinking age: effects of enforcement and training interventions. Alcohol Clin Exp Res. 29:255–62.

Wagenaar AC, Salois MJ, Komro KA (2009). Effects of beverage alcohol price and tax levels on drinking: a meta-analysis of 1003 estimates from 112 studies. Addiction. 104:179–90.

Wagenaar AC, Tobler AL, Komro KA (2010). Effects of alcohol tax and price policies on morbidity and mortality: a systematic review. Am J Public Health. 100:2270–78.

Wechsler H, Nelson TF (2010). Will increasing alcohol availability by lowering the minimum legal drinking age decrease drinking and related consequences among youths? Am J Public Health. 100:986–92. doi: 10.2105/AJPH.2009.178004.

Willis J (2006). Drinking crisis: Change and continuity in cultures of drinking in sub-Saharan Africa. Afr J Drug Alcohol Studies. 5:1–15.

Wilsnack SC, Wilsnack RW, Kantor LW (2013). Focus on: Women and the costs of alcohol use. Alcohol Research: Current Reviews. 35 (2): 219–228.

World Bank (2013). World Development Indicators. (http://data.worldbank.org/news/new-suite-of-world-development-Indicators-products-now-available, accessed 28 April 2014).

World Health Organization (1992a). WHO Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems (ICD) 10th revision. Geneva.

World Health Organization (1992b). The ICD-10 Classification of Mental and Behavioural Disorders Diagnostic criteria for research. Geneva.

World Health Organization (1999). Global status report on alcohol. Geneva. (http://www.who.int/substance_abuse/publications/en/GlobalAlcohol_overview.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2001). Global status report: alcohol and young people. Geneva. (http://whqlibdoc. who.int/hq/2001/who_msd_msb_01.1.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2004a). Neuroscience of psychoactive substance use and dependence. Geneva.

World Health Organization (2004b). Global status report on alcohol 2004. Geneva (http://www.who.int/ substance_abuse/publications/global_status_report_2004_overview.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014.

World Health Organization (2004c). Global status report: alcohol policy 2004. Geneva. (http://www.who.int/ substance_abuse/publications/global_status_report_2004_overview.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2007). WHO Expert Committee on Problems Related to Alcohol Consumption. Second report, Geneva.

World Health Organization (2009a). Global Health Observatory Data Repository 2009. Geneva (http://www. who.int/gho/en/, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2009b). Regional plan of action for the reduction of alcohol-related harm in the Western Pacific (2009–2014). Geneva (http://www.wpro.who.int/publications/docs/RAPAlcoholRelatedHarminWPR20092014.pdf, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2010a). Global Strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol 2010. Geneva (http://www.who.int/substance_abuse/msbalcstragegy.pdf

World Health Organization (2010b). Atlas on substance use disorders 2010. Geneva (http://www.who.int/substance_abuse/publications/Media/en/, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2010c). mhGAP Intervention Guide for mental, neurological and substance use disorders in non-specialized health settings. Geneva.

World Health Organization (2010d). Brief intervention. The ASSIST-linked brief intervention for hazardous and harmful substance use. Manual for use in primary care. Geneva http://whqlibdoc.who.int/ publications/2010/9789241599399_eng.pdf, accessed 14 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2011a). The global status report on alcohol and health 2011. Geneva (http:// www.who.int/substance_abuse/publications/global_alcohol_report/en/, accessed 14 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2011b). Global status report on noncommunicable diseases 2010. Geneva (http:// www.who.int/nmh/publications/ncd_report2010/en/, accessed 28 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2012). Global health adds life to years. Global brief for World Health Day 2012. Geneva. (http://www.who.int/ageing/publications/global_health.pdf?ua=1), accessed 29 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2013a). Global NCD Action plan 2013-2020. Geneva. (http://www.who.int/nmh/publications/ncd_action_plan2013.pdf?ua=1, accessed 7 April 2014).

World Health Organization (2013b). Global status report on road safety 2013: supporting a decade of action. Geneva.

World Health Organization (2013c). Mental health action plan 2013-2020. Geneva.

World Health Organization (2014a). Global Information System on Alcohol and Health (GISAH) (online database). (http://www.who.int/gho/alcohol).

World Health Organization (2014b). STEPwise approach to surveillance. Geneva. (http://www.who.int/chp/ steps/instrument/en/index.html).

World Health Organization (2014c). Global Health Estimates 2013: Deaths by Cause, Age and Sex, by Country, 2000-2012. Geneva.

Zaridze D, Brennan P, Boreham J, Boroda A, Karpov R, Lazarev, A et al. (2009). Alcohol and cause-specific mortality in Russia: a retrospective case-control study of 48,557 adult deaths. Lancet. 373:2201–14. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(09)61034-5.

Zaridze D, Lewington S, Boroda A, Scélo G, Karpov R, Lazarev A et al. (2014). Alcohol and mortality in Russia: prospective observational study of 151 000 adults. Lancet. [Epub ahead of print].





EXIT THE MAZE OF HARMFUL SUBSTANCE USE FOR BETTER GLOBAL HEALTH

Contact

Management of Substance Abuse Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse 20, Avenue Appia 1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Tel: + 41 22 791 21 11 Email: msb@who.int www.who.int/substance_abuse

